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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
SEPTEMBER 6, 1988

INDEX
. Subject Page No.
‘ Moment of Silence for Bill Bethel.cccecescscceccccnscces 1
1 Approvél of Minutes (8/29/88) ...Deferred.cecceccccccecs 1
| Appointment of Cletus Muensterman as Acting
| County Highway Superintendent....cccceeeecccscscececccns 1
i County HighWaYeeececoeooeceeosocsccsccsccacecsossssccssnssnnce 1

Weekly Work Reports
‘ Weekly Absentee Reports

| Clearing of Log Jam - First Avenue Culvert.ceececscecscecs 2
} . Complaint re Bidding Procedures - James MOrley.eceececcess 2
Formal Opening of Meeting - Sheriff Clarence Shepard.... 4
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County Attorney = David Miller..ccceceeseccsosscncasescas 4
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Lawsuits ($246.04)
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re Bidding ProcedureS................................D.. 4

|
County Engineer - Dan Hartmano s oo 'y oto ° 0;..,_'.'.;::.?. e oo PP e“o'o oo . 7
Claim/Veach, Nicholson, Griggs ($4,850.00)
Progress Report/Road Paving Program
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Oak Grove Road “ ,
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o .
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Lynch Road Interchange Proposal...ceccececcccccesccacsecs 9
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($10,000).............................C................. 14
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
SEPTEMBER 6, 1988

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Monday, September 6, 1988 in the Commissioners
Hearing Room with President Rick Borries presiding.

The meeting was called to order by President Rick Borries, who
said, "This is a sad day for this Board because one of our very
valued employees, County Highway Superintendent Bill Bethel, died
early this morning at St. Mary's Hospital. Bill started with
this County on September 13, 1982. His pleasant smile and easy
way of doing business in very difficult situations was a
remarkable trait that he had. 1I've said if it was an icy January
morning or sweltering July afternoon, you'd f£ind Bill Bethel on
the job -- doing what he could for the benefit of this County.
I'd like to have a moment of silence for Bill Bethel."

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The meeting continued with Commissioner Borries stating the
minutes of the meeting held on August 29th were very lengthy. If
it pleases this Board, approval of said minutes will be deferred
until next week's meeting. The other Commissioners voiced their
approval.

RE: APPOINTMENT OF CLETUS MUENSTERMAN AS ACTING COUNTY
HIGHWAY SUPERINTENDENT

Commissioner Borries said that Mr. Cletus Muensterman, who has
been the long time Assistant County Highway Superintendent, is
performing the duties of Acting County Highway Superintendent.
Cletus has extensive experience with the County and is certainly
a very qualified person and a person of integrity and he believes
he will do a fine job.

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Submitted for the record was
the Weekly Work Report for Employees at the County
Garag€.........report received and filed.

Gradall: Heinlein and Burkhardt Roads
Paving Crew: No. 6 School Road and Hillview Drive
Grader: Wright Drive, Grace Court, Burdette Park,

Schissler Road, Young Road, Heerdink Lane and
Swope Lane

Mo-Trim: Wright Drive and Schmuck Road off Koring Road

Patch Crew: 0ld Petersburg Road and Mill Road (west of
St. Joseph Avenue)

Trash Crew: Kratzville Road, Waterworks Road, Folz Road,
Laubscher, Bayou Creek, St. Joe Avenue,
Burkhardt and Lynn Road. (Also hauled dirt
to Bexley Court and worked from garage on
hauling trash. Removed downed tree from
Green River Road

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew.....report
received and filed.
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- Installed two culverts on Happe Road, (One 12 x 30
and one 18 x 35)

- Repaired washouts on Wimberg Road,Bridge 69 and
Boonville-New Harmony Rd., Briar Court, Caranza Drive,
Volkman Road and Burkhardt Rd.

- Cleaned out log jam in culvert on First Avenue

- Cut grass at Nesbit Station Road

- Hauled junk from yard

Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were

the Weekly Absentee Reports for Employees at the County Garage
and the Bridge Crew......reports received and filed.

RE: CLEARING OF LOG JAM ~ FIRST AVENUE CULVERT

Commissioner Cox commented that in reviewing some things that
have been requested, the Board could report that the log jam on
beaver dam has been cleaned from the culvert on First Avenue by
the County Bridge Crew. She checked with the gentleman who
called the complaint in and this is a three-pronged project,
because the City is involved in a portion of cleaning out the
drainage ditch and also part of it is on private property. She
is glad that the County has done their part to get the problem
corrected.

RE: COMPLAINT RE BIDDING PROCEDURES - MORLEY & ASSOCIATES

Commissioner Borries said that Mr. James Morley of Morley &
Associates had requested to appear on today's agenda regarding
the Commissioners Meeting of August 22, 1988. Attorney Miller
noted that Mr. Morley was in Room 303 meeting with Area Plan
Commission concerning Vogel Road. Mr. Borries requested that
Attorney Miller advise Mr. Morley that the Board is ready to hear
his comments.

President Borries said the Board is also awaiting the arrival of
Sheriff Clarence Shepard so he can officially open the meeting,
as he traditionally opens the first meeting of the month. He
should arrive shortly.

Mr. James Morley entered the meeting room and was welcomed by
President Borries. He approached the podium, and said, "My name
is Jim Morley and I'd like to address the Commissioners:
concerning the bidding procedures for County road design work and
the procedures of this office on past jobs. On August 22nd,

there was a bid received -- or should I say proposals were to be
received -~ for inspecting bridges within the County At that
time (from the minutes of the meeting -- and I was not present;

someone from my office was in the audience) there was
considerable concern about an envelope received that you weren't
sure when the time was. The envelope was not sealed. There were
supposed irregularities in the bid and the concern of the
manipulation or discussion that went on regarding that bid is
very strong. There was a notice that went out and you asked for
proposals to be received up until 2:00 p.m. on that date and if
you had re-read your Notice to Consultants, nowhere on it did it
say anything about a sealed envelope , or was it even a bid --
nor was a bid even asked. Therefore, it was not the kind of
thing that was necessary to be tossed out or anything else on
irregularities. In the minutes of the meeting, the meeting went
on and then it was adjourned for a short time for someone to call
my office to see exactly what was in the envelope. After the
adjournment, the minutes say a subsequent report revealed that
Morley personnel had evidently left for the day, as the answering
service is on at this time. I couldn't understand those minutes,
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so I asked to listen to the tape. The tape, in fact, said "Mr.

Morley's office is gone for the day -- the answering service is
on.”™ Now, gentlemen, that is basically a lie. We do not have an
answering service nor a telephone service -- have never had an

answering service and there was someone in my office. I did not
understand what was going on regarding the invitations. The
ironic thing of all of this is that I didn't submit a proposal on
this job. That happened to be simply a carbon copy of a letter
addressed to EUTS that is identical to the one that you all
received for North Green River Road. But the procedures
involvement of this bidding procedure I think are ridiculous. My
firm has submitted time after time for design jobs for County
work and in three cases that I have record of here, we submitted
proposals in which we gave an amount. On the "B" Street
Underpass we submitted a price of $68,000 and I have the page out
of our proposal with me. That job was awarded to Hayes-Mattern
from the east cost for approximately -- well, it was over twice
that much. On the South Green River Road job we also gave a
proposal to the Commissioners in the amount of $42,500. The job
was awarded for $57,712.98 to another firm. The, most recently,
the interchange at USI, the feasibility study -- in that one you
very specifically on the instructions to bidders made it an
invitation to bid. Then when bids were received (and our bid was
$5,750.00) the project was awarded to someone else for again
approximately twice the amount we had bid. Now, what concerns me
through all of this is a misunderstanding of how we can always be
passed over and the only thing that sticks in my mind goes all
the way back to something that happened several years ago on
Burkhardt Road, in which Andy Easley called my office to lean on
me a little bit about easing off on the specifications for David
Guillaum, who was a sub-contractor on that job -- and we were
having problems with him on the installation of pipe. And Andy
asked me to ease off a little bit on the specifications. Later
on, Mr. Willner made a job visit to Lee McClellan on the job --
again with concerns about Mr. Guillaum and his hardship in
meeting the specifications. Now I don't really understand what
all the procedures are. I know that I have probably more
registered professional engineers than anyone in this town. I
know that our work will stand up against anyone. I don't see how
this matter could be a matter of politics or party politics. I
do not understand why —-- but apparently it continues. We are
always passed over for one reason or another and I'd like to
bring to your attention these prices have been submitted. Back
in 1982 you reviewed procedures for Selection of Consultants.
When you reviewed those procedures for Selection of Consultants
(and I don't have the adoptive copy -- I have the copy signed by
your Attorney) it discussed that when you selected a consultant
in a public meeting, then you would give reasons for that
selection. I don't know that I've ever heard actual reasons
given or listed whereby a consultant selected or not selected
would be able to make corrections in their proposals the next
time. All of this just compounded; I just felt the manipulation
or discussion that went on at the August 22nd meeting was, as far
as I'm concerned, the straw that broke the camel's back. And I'd
like to see some kind of changes and a more formal procedure in
the selection of consultants undertaken and some feedback that
eliminates the confusion associated with doing consulting work
for the County."

Mr. Borries thanked Mr. Morley and entertained questions. He
said the Board appreciates Mr. Morley's comments and certainly
wants to address some of his concerns -- and they appreciate his
mentioning these. They're very sorry for what apparently were
mistakes he has referred to in the August 22nd meeting. BHe is
not aware at this time as to who made the call to Mr. Morley's
office or as to why it was said they were gone for the day.

Mr. Morley said, "I do not know. I heard it on tape, but did not
recognize the voice."
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Attorney Miller interjected, "I believe it was someone from EUTS
who made that call and then reported it to us."”

Commissioner Borries said, "Well, I want to assure you that,
personally, from my standpoint, I have the highest respect for
you and your work in this County and certainly appreciate your
concerns at this time. We certainly will make every effort to
address those concerns."

RE: FORMAL OPENING OF MEETING - SHERIFF SHEPARD

Sheriff Clarence Shepard apologized for his tardiness and
proceeded to declare the County Commission in session pursuant to
adjournment.

RE: INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS FROM SCOTLAND YARD

Continuing, Sheriff Shepard introduced the Commissioners to
Andrew and Jo Dunlop, visitors from Scotland. Mr. Dunlop spent
30 years with Scotland Yard. They are here in the U. S. on a
holiday -- and he is explaining our form of government to them,.
as it is a little different than it is in Scotland. Mr. Dunlop
spoke at the Rotary Club luncheon today and was well received.

There was a brief pause in the meeting as the Commissioners
personally welcomed the Dunlops to the U. S. and to Vanderburgh
County.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - DAVID MILLER

Acceptance of Checks/Alexander Ambulance Lawsuit Collections:

Attorney Miller said he has the following checks (2) in
connection with the Alexander Ambulance Lawsuit Collections:

Chasity Hertzberger..ccecceeceecescesec$ 20.00
Larry Chamber $226.04 (full payment)

Total $246.04

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Willner, the checks were endorsed and given to the
Secretary for deposit into the County General Fund. So ordered.

Authorization to File Suit/Declaratory Judgment re

Bidding Procedures: Attorney Miller said there was a somewhat
lengthy discussion last week at the meeting with respect to
bidding on two projects (culverts), one of them being Rollet Lane
Bridge and the other Nesbit Station Road. It was his
understanding that after he left there was discussion concerning
an authorization given to proceed with filing of a Declaratory
Judgment action. The minutes have not been approved. He wanted
to be sure that that was his instruction. He asked Mr. Borries
in mid-week and he said it was his understanding that yes, that
such an action had been authorized. He checked through Joanne
Matthews to listen to the tape and get the exact language. There
was a positive discussion concerning the filing of such an action
on the part of both Mrs. Cox and Mr. Borries, but it was never in
any way moved or in any way placed in the form of an instruction
to the County Attorney. "If that is your wish, I am prepared to
do that. But I do not want to do it until and unless I have
specific direction from the Board. I, in fact, worked on that
project a good deal last week and am ready to file the action.
But I wanted to await this meeting before doing so, so that I
could be sure that that was your instruction.”

Commissioner Borries entertained comments from the Board.

Commissioner Willner asked, "David, what are we talking about
dollar wise?"
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Attorney Miller responded, "I don't know the answer to that. I
can tell you that the matter should be one that can be resolved
without any substantial testimony. The facts of what occurred
are reasonably forthright and subject to agreement, so probably
what would occur is that there would be cross motions filed by
the State of Indiana and the County for what is called Summary
Judgment based upon an agreed set of facts, and the case would
proceed on oral argument and a decision rendered by a Judge on
that basis. But I don't know how much time will be involved."

Commissioner Cox said, "Mr. President, I just want to say that it
is really irrelevant with me as to the way you do it -- whether
it is a Declaratory Judgment or, I think Attorney John had
mentioned possibly an Attorney General's opinion. Either way is
satisfactory with me, just as long as we get an answer to the
question as to which is proper procedure. I think that is the
number one thing that needs to be addressed. I am willing to go
either way —-—- whichever the Board decides. I guess my only other
question would be to David. Does an Attorney General's opinion
carry as much weight as....?"

Attorney Miller said, "I didn't mean to interrupt you -- that is
exactly what I was going to say. But an Attorney General's
opinion does not carry the weight of a Court Decision."”

Mrs. Cox, "Thank you."

President Borries said, "I think it is important that the matter
be resolved. I think Attorney Miller has done extensive
research. As we pointed out in rather lengthy testimony last
week, these culverts were discussed at length in any one of a
number of meetings within the framework of the Board of
Commissioners and its minutes."

Attorney Miller interrupted, "That is what I am saying. That is
not going to be an issue. What was done is going to be fairly
forthright. The question that is presented is a legal question
as to whether or not this County is essentially within its rights
or power to attempt to save the public money by obtaining a
number of materials for a project through its own employees and
obtaining specifications for the project that way and then
bidding out labor only -- and that is the question. And that is
why we're prepared to go forward with a Declaratory Judgment on
that basis, if so instructed."

Commissioner Willner asked, "David, is there another way to
approach the situation? 1I've spoken with I guess the head of the
Board and they seem to think they also wish it was stricken from
the State law. So would it not be advantageous to ask one of our
legislators to issue a new challenge to the Legislature?"

Attorney Miller responded, "Well, that is one answer to the
overall question. The question that is presented here I don't
think would be resolved in that way, but it would certainly
resolve it for all future purposes and I see no reason not to
inquire of the Legislature as to willingness to consider that, if
that is the opinion of the Board with respect to the general
applicability of the statute.”

Commissioner Willner said, "It would seem to me that if we had a
statute in the State of Indiana that would be constantly not
adhered to, that it would behoove the Legislature to want to

straighten that out as well as anybody else -- as well as the
Courts -~ and it seems like a lot less cost on this Board's
part."”

Attorney Miller said, "I can't quarrel with that except it is not
my impression that we are discussing a statute or a set of
statutes not being adhered to as much as we are discussing a set
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of statutes that are subject to a varying number of
interpretations by a varying number of County Boards -- and it
causes some confusions from time to time as it has this Board in
this instance. It is understandable -- and that is why I bring
it up again today -- that the Board would not necessarily want to
go to the expense of filing a Declaratory Judgment action. On
the other hand, there is some certainty that the Declaratory
Judgment action will give you a result of one kind or another,
whereas there is some question as to whether or not the
Legislature will choose to act in any particular session on any
particular proposal. I have enough work to do; I am not trying
to talk you into this or not talk you into this -- I am just
giving you my thoughts as they come to me on this particular
matter.”

Commissioner Cox said, "Commissioner Willner, I am sorry -- I did
not understand who you said you spoke with."

Mr. Willner said, "The State Board of Accounts. Well, the
discussion has gone on. I am not totally convinced that the
methods that have been used are saving the County money, because
it is awfully hard to back track and see actually where money is
being allocated on a specific project and, to my knowledge, and I

know using County forces -- their labor and equipment should also
be figured in on the total cost of the project, which we haven't
been doing. You're right -- we've got the forces and they can do

this, but there are also lots of other things that they could be
doing. As I said before, I don't have any preference, but I
think the decision must be given to this Board, because we have
another four months to operate to finish out this year and I'm
sure there will be other things coming up and there's still a
division of opinion as to whether we can do this or we can't and
I think it needs to be decided. Evidently the State Board of
Accounts feels it isn't right or they wouldn't mention to you
that they wish it would be changed -- and the majority on this
Board feels that the action was correct.... So I really think
any action on any contracts that are not legally advertised and
legally bid (which would exclude invitational contracts) I don't
think we can participate in until this question is answered. I
also read in the paper, David, where we did, in fact, exceed the
$25,000 limit to the individual.”

Attorney Miller said, "I understand that from facts that
developed later, as well, and I did check the statute on that and
whether I was and am correct or not about the original contract,
there is a statute that applies to both contracts awarded by
invitational bid and contracts awarded as a result of public
notice bidding that provides that in the event of an extra that
is not a part of the original contract and not reasonably
foreseeable as necessary within the scope of the original
contract,the bid may be exceeded by up to 20% of the original bid
and if it takes it over $25,000 that is not considered by the
State Board of Accounts or by me as a violation of that $25,000
limit. I have not talked to Mr. Guetting at all, but I
understand also from the media that he and I at least agree about
that -- that if there is an original bid for $24,000 for example
and if there is an extra for $2,000 that takes the bid over the
$26,000, that extra is not in violation of the $25,000 limit
because of another statute that is part of that chapter. It was
a statute that I had not reviewed prior to speaking to you last
week and, therefore, when the question came up I did review it
and totally independent of Mr. Guetting and the State Board of
Accounts, I concluded that that made no difference and he
apparently told someone in the media the same thing -- because I
believe I read the same account you did and both of us were..."

Mrs. Cox said, "I think the question here on a change order is
getting into some unknown areas that necessitates the change,
such as soil conditions or..."
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Attorney Miller interrupted, "The statute doesn't say that
though; the statute is very..."

Mrs. Cox asked, "You mean any contractor can come in as low bid
and then come back to us and say,. 'Oh, I misquoted this -- and
now I'm going to need this much and...'

Attorney Miller interrupted, "No, you have it turned around. It
doesn't have to do with a contractor and his bid. 1If a
contractor misquotes -- misses something that is part of the
original job -- then he is bound to do the job for the original
price. That is the case each time. 1In this case it was County
personnel, as I understand it, who made a later determination
that this piping should be done along the border of the (I
believe his name is Toy) residence and we requested (and when I
say 'we' I mean the County requested) that the extra work be done
and there was a price put on that by the contractor that resulted
in the price going some $300 over the $25,000 limit. So it
wasn't the contractor coming to us and saying 'I missed something
or I forgot something'. It was just the reverse of that."

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I think that is a question under
Point #2, at what state of the procedure or the project was an
agreement made to do this project and whether it was part of the
original project? And in the minutes of December 1l4th, it was
part of the original project."

Attorney Miller said, "My understanding was just the reverse --
but I have not looked into that.”

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, you know -- one day it might be this and
one day it might be that, but besides the point, our County
Engineer and I'm sure, through the media, the contractor knew
well and good how this Board felt about any amount being paid
over $25,000 -- and that is also recorded in the minutes -- and
Mr. Borries was very strong on that and I was very strong on
that. So it shouldn't come as any surprise. I was not aware
that it had gone over, because some how or other I missed the
$1,800 payment or whatever it was in between that -- that we had
gone over the $25,000 limit to the contractor. So we're back to
the original question now, what should we do to get this resolved
-—- and I think it has to be addressed.”

Attorney Miller commented, "As I said, I am prepared to go
forward; I just need direction from you -- and the minutes of
last week didn't carry any definitive direction.”

President Borries queried the Board concerning their feelings and
asked if there is a motion?

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, Attorney Miller was authorized to proceed to
obtain a Declaratory Judgment. So ordered.

President Borries asked Attorney Miller if he has anything else
to report and Attorney Miller responded in the negative.

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER — DAN HARTMAN

Claim/Veach, Nicholson & Griggs: Mr. Hartman submitted a claim
in the amount of $4,850.00 for partial design of the USI-Route
#62 Interchange, as agreed upon in contract of September 5th.

Mrs. Cox asked at what stage they are in the development of the
concept on the overpass? Have we seen anything?

Mr. Borries said they are about 50% complete.

In response to query from Mrs. Cox, Mr. Hartman acknowledged that
we've seen nothing.
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Mr. Borries said this claim regards the 50% of the fee to be
billed 30 calendar days after the Notice to Proceed, payment to
be received within two weeks following approval of the invoice at
the regularly scheduled Commission meeting, then 45% of the fee
will be billed upon presentation of the project study -- payment
to be received within two weeks following approval of the invoice
at the regular Commissioners meeting.

Commissioner Cox asked to examine the claim.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the claim was approved for payment. So
ordered.

Progress Report re Paving Program: Mr. Hartman reported that

J. H. Rudolph & Co. 1s currently paving Bappe Road and Duesner
Road with binder asphalt and they will put the surface on as soon
as possible.

The Rogers Group is working on Millersburg Rd., Heckel Rd.,
Whetstone Rd. and Pine Rd. They also have paved the Woods Rd.
Bridge approaches (that is under a different contract, however).

Schutte Rd..: Schutte Rd. is presently being designed in the
County Engineer's office and they are about 10% through the
design.

Oak Grove Rd.: Oak Grove Rd. is also being designed in detail
and they are about 50% finished with that project.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF STREETS IN EASTLAND ESTATES D-2

Mr. Hartman said he has the street acceptance letter re Eastland
Estates D-2. He was told it was accepted on July 11, 1988, but
he does not have the Commissioners' signatures and he would like
for them to verify this at the present time.

Commissioner Borries asked if Mr. Hartman has a report from Bill
Jeffers, Chief Deputy Surveyor?

Mr. Hartman said he does and all he needs at this time is the
Commissioners' signatures.

Commissioner Cox requested that Jim Lindenschmidt review the
minutes of July 1llth to see that this was approved on July 1llth?

Commissioner Borries asked if he can take it that if this was
approved on July 11 that the Commissioners will sign the letter?

Mrs. Cox responded, "Certainly."

Having checked the July 11lth minutes, Mr. Lindenschmidt reported
that acceptance was not approved on July 1llth - the matter was to
deferred. Attorney Miller reported that Bill Bethel had failed
to sign on July 1llth and that was the reason for the deferral.
Mr. Bethel apparently signed later, because his signature is on
the letter -- but it was never again taken up by the
Commissioners for final acceptance. That is the status of the
Eastland Estates D-2 street improvements at this point. All the
signatures having been obtained, he would say it is appropriate
that there be a motion concerning this matter.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the streets in Eastland Estates D-2 were
accepted for County maintenance, as follows:

Glenmoor Road 531.7 LF
Eastpointe Court 200.5 LF

Total 732.2 LF (0.139 mi.)
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In response to query from Commissioner Cox, it was noted that all
streets are paved with 6" thick concrete pavement with

roll curbs (29' wide) and have been constructed in accordance
with the approved plans.

So ordered.

RE: PROPOSALS ON COUNTY BRIDGE INSPECTION

Mr. Hartman said that, as brought up earlier in this meeting, we
have six (6) bidders on the inspection of our bridges here in
Vanderburgh County for the coming year. The County Engineer's
office is ready to assist the Commissioners in the final approval
of a proposal. The bidders are:

Howard Needles, Tammen & Bergendorf
Veach, Nicholson, Griggs & Assoc.
Fink, Roberts & Petrie

Floyd E. Burroughs

Bernardin, Lochmueller & Associates
United Consultant Engineers

If he may make a recommendation at this time, Mr. Hartman said he
would propose that we talk with the people from Veach, Nicholson
& Griggs and Bernardin, Lochmueller, because they are local firms
and also the Floyd Burroughs people (because they had the
contract last time) and get a comparison as to what these
companies have to offer us and for what price.

President Borries entertained questions of Mr. Hartman regarding
that particular selection -- so he can set up a time to interview
the consultants and notify the Commissioners.

Mr. Hartman said he proposes to set up an interview schedule for
next week, at which time he wants to have three or four
consultants come in and obtain final proposals from them as to
what they intend to do for us -- if we should select them.

President Borries asked if the aforementioned firms are agreeable
to this Board? Are there any additions or deletions to the list
of consultants? There being no response, Mr. Borries asked if he
may take it then that Dan Hartman should proceed with that
process?

The Commissioners nodded their agreement.

RE: LYNCH ROAD INTERCHANGE PROPOSAL

Commissioner Borries noted that the Board received the following
communication from EUTS today concerning the Lynch Road
Interchange Proposal:

Vanderburgh County was recently notified that the Lynch
Road Interchange Proposal has been approved by the
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).

Vanderburgh County has proposed to construct a partial
cloverleaf interchange at I-164 and Lynch Road, as part of
the Lynch Road Extension project. The interchange will be
located approximately one mile north of S.R. 62 on I-164,
and approximately 5.3 miles south of the Boonville-New
Harmony Road/I-164 Interchange in Vanderburgh County.

FHWA approval of the interchange clears the way for the
County to proceed with design of the portion of the Lynch
Road Extension between Burkhardt Road and Telephone Road
which has been in abeyance pending the FHWA approval of the
interchange. The Lynch Road Extension will be a major
east/west corridor extending 4.25 miles from Oak Hill Road
in Vanderburgh County to Telephone road in Warrick County.
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The Lynch Road Corridor will enhance the transportation
network and reduce through traffic on the Morgan Avenue
Corridor.

Commissioner Borries said this is a positive sign.

Mr. Hartman asked if Bernardin, Lochmueller Associates are aware
of this?

Commissioner Borries said he would hope they are. Perhaps we
could forward a copy of this communication to them.

Mr. Hartman said he will do so.

Commissioner Borries said he is not certain who the consultants
are -—- he's not sure if this is part of Bernardin's project or
whether it is another group.

Mr. Hartman said he believes it is Bernardin, Lochmueller.

Commissioner Cox asked who "BAO" is? The communication from EUTS
is not signed and merely bears these initials.

Commissioner Borries said he believes that is Blane Oliver, the
assistant in EUTS.

RE: TRAVEL & ADVANCE - COUNTY POLICY

Commissioner Borries said County Auditor Sam Humphrey has
questions concerning the County Policy re Travel & Advances.

Mr. Humphrey said we had an occasion come up this past week in
which some questions arose. Sue Hartig of Legal Services
requested an advance payment of about §$1,000.00 for a trip she is
to make to California. The purpose of this trip is some kind of
convention for five (5) days and she got an aircraft ticket two
months in advance for around $260.00 and the normal price would
have been over $500.00. The room rate was $95.00 per day plus
$200.00 registration fee. At any rate, there was a requested
$1,000.00 advance. It is his understanding that the policy has
been $500.00. He wants to know what to do about it -- those are
the facts. That also raises some other questions about the
travel policy as established in 1986. The current policy says
travel will be restricted to Indiana and it must be mandatory at
the request of the State with mileage at 25 cents per mile. With
regard to lodging, if occupied by one person a maximum of $45.00
would be allowed for one (l) single room and the bill must show
it is a single room. The State policy now in several cases is
that a single room and a double room are the same when there are
State-called meetings. And they are all more than $45.00 per
day. If a room is shared, there are other details. And there
has been an increase in per diem; today it is $24.00 per day and
it was $23.00 per day when this policy was written.

Mr. Humphrey said he would like for the Commissioners to review
the travel policy and give his office an updated version of what
they want —-- and tell him what to do about the $1,000.00 advance
request he has from Legal Services. It is his understanding that
Ms. Hartig put this on her credit card and will be paying a

couple of months' interest on it if she doesn't get the advance.
And she has saved the County money by doing that. Legal Aid is a
joint department.

Commissioner Willner asked if Ms. Hartig had a request before the
Board?

Commissioner Borries entertained comments.
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Mr. Humphrey said he does not believe this comes out of the
Commissioners' budget; he thinks she has a travel account of her
own.

Commissioner Borries said that several years ago when this County
experienced a much tighter financial situation in some accounts
than may presently be the case, he thinks the Board of
Commissioners felt that travel would proceed according to the
guidelines that had been proposed through State-called meetings,
as Mr. Humphrey had pointed out. He thinks the County Council
subsequently changed -- at least in terms of placing travel
monies in various accounts -- where we do not at this point
receive the same kinds of requests from people that we once did.
The decision had been made by Council to put all the travel
expenses in the Commissioners' Budget in the early 1980's and
that procedure stayed intact for probably three or four years.
But within recent years that has changed. As a result, there may
be a change that has to come from this Board. He doesn't know of
any change the Board has looked upon in relation to those
guidelines, except where there may be State bulletins that have
changed the allowance in terms of mileage or travel or in terms
of hotel expenses. At one time it was very, very low and he
thinks there were concerns that people who were going to
State-called meetings simply could not make expenses --
particularly at some of the hotels, even at what are called
"government rates" in Indianapolis. But, again, he would want to
note there has been a change in the policy from the standpoint
that there are now monies available in some accounts. He would
assume that Ms. Hartig has some monies that have been placed in
her account for professional travel. 1Is he correct about that?

Mr. Humphrey said that is correct. For the Commissioners'
information, we do not pay mileage even at a State-called meeting
before we have received back the certification of State-allowed
persons to attend. When you attend one of these State-called
meetings, the State will then send a copy to the Auditor
(whatever County applies) as to who attended and what they are to
be paid, including the driver (for whom we pay mileage) ~-~- so
that is not done until we receive the certification back from the
State on state-called meetings. There is some travel being done
that is not a State-called meeting, because of a change in the
policy by Council. As he sees it, we have no control over that.
He did call the State Board of Accounts and queried them relative
to two of the Council members. They said if they have it in
their budget they can use it. 1It's that simple. But since we
did have this policy and the $1,000 matter came up, he wanted to
ask the Board of Commissioners for their approval to go ahead and
do that.

Mr. Humphrey noted this is not a government-called meeting.

Mr. Borries noted this is a problem, when government officers are
involved in a State Association of some sort and are frequently
called out of town to attend those meetings, particularly if the
individual is an officer. He asked if he can take it that the
Board is going to review the travel and advance policy? Are
there any suggestions? The Commissioners need to obtain
additional information. In the case of Ms. Hartig, they would
not want to cost her any personal money at this point; if she has
available money in her budget, he assumes she is proceeding
according to that guideline -- it is perhaps a one-time situation
for her at a National Conference from which he assumes she would
benefit. Any action by this Board at this time?

Commissioner Willner said he has none.

Commissioner Borries said we may not want to revise the policy,
except again to say that these are things we felt we need to
control and we said we have no alternative with only $5,000
budgeted for travel this year. Perhaps we need information as to
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how much was put into some of the other accounts for travel this
year. He assumes it was considerably more than the $5,000 put
into the Commissioners' budget at one time.

Mr. Humphrey said he can provide the Commissioners with this
information.

RE: AUTHORIZATION TO TRAVEL - COUNTY AUDITOR & TREASURER

Commissioner Borries asked when Messrs. Humphrey and Tuley are
leaving?

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the County Auditor and County Treasurer were
authorized to travel to Indianapolis on Monday, September 12th
for a one day meeting. So ordered.

RE: REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS FOR NEW ROOF FOR
HILLCREST EMERGENCY SHELTER

The Chair recognized Mr. Jim Lindenschmidt.

Mr. Lindenschmidt said he has a Bid Notice re the new roof for
the Hillcrest Emergency Shelter, which formerly was the
Superintendent's Home. He needs the Commissioners' signatures to
advertise for bids. It is basically the same type membrane on
the roof of the Childrens' Home -- so they can use anything that
is equal to it. We will have to advertise this Friday and the
next Friday in order to have bid opening on Monday, September
26th.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, authorization was given to advertise.

RE: FIRE HYDRANT - DAYLIGHT FIRE STATION

Mr. Lindenschmidt proceeded to advise the Commissioners
concerning cost of moving fire hydrant at the Daylight Fire
Station from one side of the street to the other. At the Board's
request he has obtained an exact cost estimate from the Water
Department. He asked them if they would participate in the cost
and their reply was "No". The cost is, however, $4,072.50.

Mrs. Cox said, "You mean they won't participate financially --
but they will dig the hole, etc.”

Mr. Lindenschmidt said he did mean insofar as the cost is
concerned.

Commissioner Cox said since she introduced the request to the
Board, she would suggest we forward the information to the Scott
Township Volunteer Fire Department Chief and tell him it can be
done ~-- and see if they are willing to participate in the cost -—
or come up with some other way to finance this. She doesn't know
that they have the money in their budget.

Mr. Lindenschmidt said he will forward a copy of the cost
estimate to them.

RE: SPEED LIMIT - 11TH AVENUE

Mr. Lindenschmidt said he had talked with Bill Bethel last week
about a problem on llth Avenue. Several people had contacted him
about a speed limit sign on 1llth Avenue just off Allen's Lane and
he went out and looked at it himself. It is like three short
blocks and has a 20 mph speed limit and a couple of residents
down at the end are raising heck. He talked to one of them and
told him he didn't know why they needed to go faster than 20 mph
anyway. It is a dead~end. There are three cul-de-sacs that come
off of 1llth Avenue.
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Mr. Lindenschmidt then submitted three photos of the signs --
going from Allen's Lane onto 1llth Avenue. Apparently this is a
neighborhood squabble and they don't know who authorized the 20
mph speed limit sign. He told Bill Bethel to bring it up at the
meeting and he talked with him about it. Unfortunately, Bill
didn't make it.

Commissioner Willner said we should put the sign on 11lth Avenue
about no soliciting in Vanderburgh County without the
authorization of the Auditor.

Mr. Lindenschmidt said one fellow called him and said his car
would not idle that slowly.

Commissioner Cox said Mr. Lindenschmidt mentioned this to her one
day last week when she was in the office and she asked him to
check the Code of Ordinances. It does not have llth Avenue down
as having a special speed limit. She can't answer as to where
the sign came from. .

Mr. Lindenschmidt said it is not included in the Code of
Ordinances.

Mr. Willner said, "Tell him the speed limit is officially 45 mph
but he can leave this 20 mph sign."

Mr. Lindenschmidt said the fellow said they are patrolling that
area and they are giving some tickets.

Commissioner Cox said those tickets will be thrown out of Court
if there is no ordinance to cover that 20 mph.

Commissioner Willner said, "Not if he pays them without going to
Court."

Attorney Miller said, "It will only be thrown out if somebody is
smart enough to contest it and looks it up in the book."®

Mr. Lindenschmidt said there are a lot of children in that area.

Commissioner Borries asked, "Do we want to leave the sign there
then?"

Mr. Lindenschmidt asked, "Do you want to approve the sign or do
you want it removed?"

Attorney Miller said, "If you are going to leave it there, I
would suggest that you approve the speed limit by motion and
thereby amend the speed limit."

Mr. Lindenschmidt said the people who talked to him wanted it
raised to 30 mph. '

Commissioner Willner asked if he could ask the Sheriff or EUTS to
give him an educated guess as to what the speed limit should be
and then we can go from there?

Mr. Lindenschmidt said he did promise to bring this to the
Board's attention.

Commissioner Borries suggested we do a speed check to determine
what might be appropriate for that area. He asked that Mr.
Lindenschmidt refer this to EUTS and ask them to conduct a speed
study.

Mr. Lindenschmidt agreed to do so.

RE: TRAVEL REQUEST - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

The meeting proceeded with Commissioner Borries presenting a
travel request from County Clerk Helen Kuebler to attend a State

/S
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Board of Accounts Clerk's Meeting in Vincennes on September 14
and 15, 1988.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the request was approved. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY TREASURER — MONTHLY INTEREST REPORT

The monthly Interest Report dated September 1, .1988 from the
County Treasurer was submitted.......report received and filed.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

President Borries entertained matters of 0ld Business for
discussion.

Precinct Boundaries: Commissioner Willner said that according to
the Indiana State Election Board, Vanderburgh County needs to
upgrade its Precinct Boundaries and he would move that the Board
go on Council Call for $10,000.00 in order that we can proceed
with this project. It is the law -- it is mandatory -- and needs
to be done by January 1989.

Mrs. Cox said she believes it is February 1, 1989.

Attorney Miller reported that he has some research on this on his
desk.

Commissioner Borries said when the Commissioners received the
information he asked Attorney Miller and also Mr. Black to review
it. It seems to be very complex in relation to what the
guidelines are going to be. It needs to be done accurately. 1In
his opinion, it needs to be done by some kind of computer data
entry base because of this 800 voter limit which could change
almost yearly. It must not cross Township lines nor State
Representative lines. It will make no change in the current
precincts for this year, but it must be done accurately and
quickly and, in his opinion, set up with some kind of data base
in order to make sure this information can be changed. Perhaps
as we look into the 1990's it could be changed almost yearly --
if you were in a rapidly growing area of a County or a

Municipality. The statute says -- he guesses we would know by
September 20th in this County, when all door-to-door registration
would be finished -- so we'd have as accurate information as we

could get from that standpoint as of September 20th. There are
some preliminary reports that would have to be filed in November
and then final approval to the State Election Board would occur
in January. Then, as he would see it, there would other District
Boundaries that would be changed both in the Cities and the
Counties -- but the first priority seems to be the Precinct
Boundaries that have to be in conformance with this 800 voter
limit. Again, he guesses the most current information we would
get would be right after the September 20 door-to-door
registration deadline is past.

Commissioner Willner said the implementation of this Statute will
require compliance with its provision by February 1, 1989. "As
County Commissioners, you are responsible for establishing and
defining this Act."

Commissioner Cox asked where Commissioner Willner came up with
the $10,000 figure?

Commissioner Willner said it is a guesstimate -- that's about all
he can say. He's asked other Counties what they were spending
and he got all the way from $5,000, $6,000, 7,000, depending upon
the population and the work done -- and it's just a figure and
will have to come back before this Board before it is authorized.

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I know we have to have legal
descriptions written."
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Attorney Miller said, "There is no question in my mind that you
are going to need professional assistance, probably from sort of
engineering or urban planning...."

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "And milar maps that will have to be sent
to the State Election Board before they can be approved by us.
We have to send those up there to have them accepted.

Attorney Miller said, "You need a starting point...."

Mrs. Cox again interjected, "And then the maps will have to be
printed for the Registration Office, the Election Office, both
political parties —-- the County has always furnished those
before, I think. So I think $10,000 may be a conservative
figure. The last time this was done was in 1979. I will second
your motion, Mr. Willner.

Commissioner Borries asked, "Your wish at this point is that we
go on Council Call?"

Commissioner Willner said, "We need the money before we do
anything. After that, it still has to come back to this Board
for approval and I would hope we can get a better handle on the
exact cost -- I'm not too sure of that. It might be a per hour
thing, too.

Attorney Miller said, "You can put out some kind of request for
proposals.”

Mrs. Cox asked, "To re-draw precinct boundaries then?"
Commissioner Borries said, "I think you have sufficient
information to develop some kind of a proposal that we could
advertise?'

Attorney Miller responded in the affirmative.

Commissioner Willner said, "Let's see if we get our money from
Council before we do that. My motion right now is to go on
Council Call."

Mr. Borries asked Mrs. Cox, "And you second it?2"

Mrs. Cox said, Yes -- and this is not going to come up until the
October meeting. So that gives us October, November, and
Decemper -- and that is a lot of work to do."

Commissioner Borries said we should have final totals after
September 20th.

Commissioner Cox interjected, "Well, probably October 8th, Rick
-- because that is the final date for registration. But you have
to take Census data -- you can't just go on registration, because
there are a lot of people out there who are there who do not
register to vote. And there are various reasons why they do not
register to vote. But that doesn't mean that a law may change
and then they will want to register. And when you look at
Precinct Boundaries, you need to look at the Area Plan Projected
Growth Studies in those areas. I mean, if we're going to do a
mass change of it (which I think we really need to do, rather
than just looking at those large precincts and scaling those down
to 800 voters)ee..."

Commissioner Borries interjected, "We've had growth that has
occurred in a number of different areas of the County and you do
have to look at Census tracks -- but, again, there are some rigid
things that have to be done in terms of Townships and maps of
each of the Precincts, etc. I think the one fortunate thing is
that there is probably technology available today that could put
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Census figures in a computer into a data base program and then
you can set up a file where you can again see how it could be
done, which was not widely available in 1979, but is today."

Commissioner Willner said, "Once that has software, the future
changes would come fairly easily. 1Is that right?"

Commissioner Borries said, "Yes, that's right -- once you put it
on a data base."

Mrs. Cox said, "I did second the motion."

Commissioner Borries said, "So ordered."

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS
Tues. Sept. 6 5:30 p.m. County Council Budget Hearings
Wed. Sept. 7 5:30 p.m. " " " "

6:00 p.m. Area Plan Commission

Commissioner Cox asked if the County Commissioners' Budget will
come up? Do we have a schedule of what is coming up?

Mr. Lindenschmidt said this is there final hearing -- no one is
appearing before them this week. Sam, however, has to be there.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Well, what do they do? Make the final
cuts? I think somebody had better be there to make sure -- if
you're not there you don't know what they're cutting.”

Commissioner Borries said that as he understands it, the cuts
were made last week.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Then what is the purpose of this
meeting?"”

County Auditor Humphrey said, "For your information, I put $2
million in Local Roads & Streets from the County Option Income
Tax money. They took $1 million out of that and put it back into
the General Fund today and I expect they are going to take final
action on that tonight. So that means Local Roads & Streets has
$1-1/2 million for next year. From other funds they can move
monies, and they could even increase it up to today."

Commissioner Willner said, "They can increase up to the frozen
levy."

Mr. Humphrey said that today and tomorrow there is still some
latitude.

Commissioner Willner said, "They could add to the County
Commissioners' Budget?"

Mr. Humphrey said that is correct.

Commissioner Cox asked, "What was the reason for taking the money
out of Local Roads & Streets?"

Mr. Humphrey said, "You will have to ask them, I don't know."

RE PUG MILL DEMONSTRATION

Commissioner Cox asked if the Pug Mill Demonstration isn't
scheduled for September 7th? This is what she has in her notes.

Commissioner Borries said it is to be held tomorrow at
Bockelman's. He believes Cletus Muensterman is aware of that and
Bob Willner is aware of it. He believes Bob plans to be there.
He thinks County forces will be prepared to give demonstrations
for those who will be attending tomorrow. 1Is that right?
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Commissioner Willner said he is not quite clear on the agenda.
His agenda says 1:00 p.m. What does the Board want him to do?

Commissioner Borries said he believes what they wanted (and what
he talked with Bill Bethel about) was that some Counties wouldmse
even consider operating a pug mill of this sort because they do
not have the funding available to do roads in the manner that
we've done over the past several years. And he guesses that is
the whole purpose of the Indiana Association or HERPIC doing this
workshop. They did one in Northern Indiana and they asked for
information (which he provided at the Southwest District Meeting
last June or July, as to whether there was any County in Southern
Indiana had a pug mill and he said we did). He talked with Bill
as to whether we could give a history of it and they could tour
our facility and perhaps see some demonstration of how they would
use it. Because of Mr. Willner's continuing interest in terms of
the highways and also tenure on the Board, he asked him to
provide some background concerning the operation of that
particular pug mill. He did not handle reservations -- this was
done by HERPIC. He had initially suggested the Tower Lite, but
it did not work out because they have a service club that meets
at noon, so that is why Bockelman's was chosen. HERPIC provided
directions to get to Bockelman's and also to the County Highway
Garage.

Commissioner Willner said if he is not mistaken, he believes they
are scheduled to be at the County Highway Department at 2:30 p.m.
where they are actually going to use the pug mill and they are
actually going to haul the material out to Wright Road, which is
the first road on the left as you come off of St. Joe onto Meier
Road and they are actually going to pave that tomorrow -- so they
will have first-hand experience. Everybody including the media
is welcome to come.

Commissioner Borries said the media will be notified.
RE: CLAIMS

Commissioner Borries said approval of the claim for photo sheets
on Boonville-New Harmony Rd. project has been held. Does the
Board wish to act on this today. He has no further information.
The milars are available.

Mr. Hartman said the claim is well within line insofar as cost.

Commissioner Cox said her question did not concern the company
and Mr. Hartman says he does have these in hand. But her
question is who authorized the work?

Mr. Hartman said he talked to Andy Easley concerning the work
Accu—-Survey did for the Boonville-New Harmony Road overlay. He
said it was all verbal over the telephone and it was done by
him. He (Hartman) has personally looked into this with other
concerns and other private organizations who have done work with
this firm and these amounts are well within the bounds of
accuracy.

Commissioner Cox then asked, "But did he say who directed him to
do this?

Mr. Hartman said, "He took it upon himself to do this. He and
Rose talked it over and at his own discretion he authorized them
to fly and produce the necessary material to continue this work."

Mr. Lindenschmidt interjected, "I sat in on a meeting with Lee
Gallivan and Calvin Evans and they were talking about they put in
for this project on that road with the Feds, and they had it all
drawn up (you were there) and they said they needed more
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information on that if we wanted to do it. I guess that is why
he had this done -- to get that information onto that to submit
to them for the 3-R program -- to get that done."™

Mrs. Cox asked, "Well, when were they asked to do this?"

Mr. Lindenschmidt said, "I don't know. All I know is I was in a
meeting down in Rose Zigenfus' office when the State and Federal
men were there."”

Mrs. Cox asked, "When was this, Rick?"

Mr. Lindenschmidt continued, ®"Andy was there, Dan was there —-
were any of you there?"

Mr. Borries said he believes Mr. Willner was there.
Commissioner Cox asked, "In what capacity were you there, Dan?"

Mr. Hartman said, "I was in the process of taking over as County
Engineer and Andy, himself, was at an investigation. I was there
in lieu of Andy Easley, but he did show up after all."

I was there when they said they needed more information on this.
Andy questioned why they needed more information and Lee Gallivan
said they had updated the requirements for this type of work and
Andy said he guessed we'd have to go to the expense. They said
they've changed the requirements since we first applied for that
program. I assume he just went ahead and hired somebody to fly
it to get it on their maps.”

Mrs. Cox said, "This is account #216-4837; wonder what account
that is coming out of?"

Mr. Hartman said that is the Boonville-New Harmony Rd.

Mrs. Cox said that shouldn't come out of that account, because
this is an entirely different project. If it is the account
Lochmueller is working out of, that is not the right account to
pay that out of. "Am I not right, Mr. Willner?2?"

Commissioner Willner said, "You are correct." Handing the claim
to Mr. Hartman, Mr. Willner said, "If you want to present this,
don't just hand it to me; let's do it right."

Mrs. Cox continued, "I think that has been pointed out in the
newspaper, that we have paid some invoices out of the wrong
accounts. And I don't know how Andy could go ahead and authorize
that to be done without someone with authority telling him to do
it. And how are we going to pay for it? Accu-Air has done
satisfactory work and there is no question about that.”

Mr. Hartman said, "Yes, Ma'am. I erroneously put the
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. account number (which was east of Green
River Road) on there -- and that was incorrect. Shirley Jean Cox
is correct.”

Commissioner Borries asked, "Was there an application made for
these funds? Or was there just discussion of these funds by the
State and Federal officials -- in terms of this project?"”

Mr. Hartman said, "I'm sure the County would be reimbursed on
those amounts there -~ or at least 80% of the amount would be
reimbursed. But it was not discussed.....”

Mr. Borries said, "Apparently, what was done -- the application
was not submitted through this Board, as I understand it at this
point -- and that is what needs to be done."
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RE: CHANGE ORDER RE WOODS ROAD BRIDGE

Commissioner Willner asked Mr. Hartman if he has a Change Order
today re the Woods Road Bridge?

Mr. Hartman submitted a letter or document -- but it was not the
correct form. Commissioner Willner asked, "Is that a standard
form?*®

Attorney Miller said, "No, you need to bring before the Board all
changes that you know about at one time."

Mr. Willner interjected, "And you need to get the Contractor's
signatures. Is that not correct?®

Mr. Hartman said, "I followed the format which Andy Easley had
previously done."

Commissioner Willner asked, "Why don't you pull one of the Change
Order Forms out and follow that procedure?"”

Mr. Hartman said, "I did that.®

Attorney Miller said, "Well, in addition to this, Dan, there
should be in the County Engineer's office a Request for Change or
Proposed Change Order or something like that -- that the
Contractor and the County Engineer sign off on and that should be
brought to the Board. If there isn't one, I will help you write
one -- but I'm sure you will find one from previous projects.
This type of letter is simply Notification to the Contractor that
the Board has acted and it has been approved.

Mr. Lindenschmidt produced a copy of the type document required.

Attorney Miller stated that it is in the form of an addition or a
deletion (a change of any kind) to the contract.

Commissioner Cox said, "I think the form is irrelevant -- I think
you can make a change in most any form you want. The ones I'm
most familiar with are the ones that come in on our State road
projects that have the different columns -- and say they either
needed more fill or more rip-rap or less rip-rap and this change
order amounted to thus and so -- you know. Are these changes --
and we did specify -- I know this Board said if there are going
to be changes, bring those change orders to us before the changes
are made for authorization to make those -- unless, of course,
there is an extreme emergency --you know, where they dig down and
hit an Artesian well and they have to do something immediately at
the time to take care of it."

Mr. Hartman said, "This was a pipe."

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, you brought that to us and explained -- and
that was on a bill and you deleted that amount."”

Commissioner Borries asked, "So you're going to come back with a
change order in a different format?"

Mr. Hartman said that is correct.

RE: RESOLUTION OF CONGRATULATIONS TO BARBARA CUNNINGHAM

Before proceeding with the agenda, Commissioner Cox requested
that the Board include in our minutes today —-- and perhaps a
letter or resolution of congratulations to Barbara Cunningham,
the Area Plan Commission Director, who recently received a
National Planning Award and was recognized for her contributions
as an officer of the Indiana Planning Association. She received
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this from the American Planning Association -~ and she thinks

that is quite an honor to be recognized at the national level.

Commissioner Borries said the Board will do so.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts

Bond & Fine
Dep. Clerk
Bond & Fine

Karen Winiger
Jennifer Althaus
Diana Whitney

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts

Michelle RKnapp-Johnson Bond & Fine
Karen Winiger Dep. Clerk
Vickie L. Kavanaugh Bond & Fine

(Appointments)
$535.55 EBff:
$535.55 Eff:
$6.00/Hr. Eff:

(Releases)
$535.55 Eff:
$535.55 Eff:
$6.00/Hr. Eff:

County Cumulative Bridge (Appointments)

Greg A. Baggett Laborer

County Treasurer (Releases)

Cashier
Clerk

Marlene Brannon
Faith Hart

Circuit Court (Appointments)

Michael John Cox PTI
Patricia Burress Guard
Joan Reed Guard
James D. George PTB
Sidney D. Jordan PTI

Circuit Court (Releases)

Joyce Lee Franklin PT Clerk
Jeffrey Shoulders PTI
Michael John Cox PTI
Mary M. Lloyd PTI
Tracy Thread PTI
Jon Aarstad PTB
Paul Aarstad PTI
Kelli Ulrich PTI

Prosecutor (Appointments)

Bettye L. Norrick Secretary
Prosecutor (Releases)

Bettye L. Norrick Secretary
Porter Dillon Dep. Pros.

Superior Court (Releases)

Daniel Wagner Prob. Off.

Burdette Park (Releases)

Kevin Seidehamel PT Guard
Tiffany Clawlson Slide
Dan Julian PT Guard
Jennifer Davis Slide
Rochelle Burmeister Slide
Shelia Leister PT Guard

$8.58/Hr.

$558.04/Pay
$558.04/Pay

$4.00/Hr.
$15,500/Yr.
$15,600/Yr.
$3.35/Hr.
$3.35/Hr.

$5.00/Hr.
$5.00/Hr.
$3.35/Hr.
$5.00/Hr.
$5.00/Hr.
$5.00/Hr.
$5.00/Hr.
$4.00/Hr.

$16,000/Yr.

$14,500/Yr.
$15,000/Yr.

$20,900/Yr.

$3.35/Hr.
$3.35/Hr.
$3.35/Hr.
$3.35/Hr.
$3.35/Hr.
$3.35/Hr.

Eff:

Eff:
Eff:

Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:

Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:

Eff:

Eff:
Eff:

Eff:

Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:
Eff:

9/12/99
9/5/88
9/3/88

9/12/88
9/2/88
9/2/88

8/29/88

9/7/88
9/12/88

8/29/88
9/6/88
9/6/88
8/25/88
8/15/88

7/29/88
7/27/88
8/26/88
8/13/88
8/13/88
8/13/88
8/6/88

8/13/88

8/29/88

8/29/88
8/29/88

9/10/88

8/22/88
8/6/88

7/25/88
8/16/88
8/15/88
8/19/88
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Trisha Perdue Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/19/88
Tracy Trautvetter PT Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/18/88
Jill McNaughton Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 8/18/88
Elizabeth Borries Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 8/3/88
Amy Helfrick Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 8/15/88
Daniel Durbin Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/25/88
Carole McNaughton Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/14/88
Barbara Owens Reg. Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 8/16/88
Barbara Bain Cashier $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/2/88
Carol Owens PT Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/17/88
Kelly Seikmann PT Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/4/88
Matthew Caton PT Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 8/22/88
Robert Keiffner PT Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/18/88
Roger Storms PT Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/8/88
Timothy Spurling Gr. Crew $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/21/88
Shawn Stanley AHG $4.00/Hr. Eff: 8/15/88
Joeli Staley AHG $4.00/Hr. Eff: 8/9/88
Frank Current Gr. Crew $4.00/Hr. Eff: 8/25/88

There being no further business to come before the Board at this
time, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 4:40

p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey David Miller
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox
COUNTY ENGINEER SHERIFF OTHER
Dan Hartman C. Shepard James Morley
Andrew Dunlop
Jo Dunlop
Jerry Riney
Bob Gulick
News Media
SECRETARY: Joanne A. Matthews
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fp%mf/ ﬁ ﬁ"i/“w |

%/ (/o(f¢ %/ // 7/6’

23



MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
SEPTEMBER 12, 1988

Subject Page No

Approval of Minutes (August 29th)....Deferred..cecesccececes

Construction Engineering Agreement w/Bernardin-Lochmueller re
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. ProjeCt cecscecescsasscssnssossces

County Attorney — Curt JohN..c.cececccccsscncscsccscasccosncs
Acceptance of Check/Evansville Dance Theater ($100)

Lawsuit - Donald & Mary Huck vs. Vanderburgh Countyeeeeeeee
Request for Declaratory Judgment re Bidding Procedures.....

Ordinance re Developer's Responsibility/Subdivisions.ecc...
(County Attorney David Miller is researching)

Notice from National Casualty Company re Reimbursement.....

County Highway - Cletus Muenstermaniccceccecccccccscsccccccos
Weekly Work Reports
Weekly Absentee Reports
Woods Road - Guard Rail
Heinlein Rd. Ditches & Culvert
Wimberg Road/Drainage
Motz Road Improvement project
Rollet Lane Pipe Installation
Repair of West Franklin, Schroeder & Volkman Rds.

County Highway Engineer — Dan HartmaN..eeoecsssessssscescscss
Progress Report/Road Paving Program
Plans for Improvement of Oak Grove Rd.
Aerial Photos/Boonville-New Harmony Rd. (Claim)

Request for Authorization to Install Street I.D. Signs
and/or Traffic Controls signs in Brookview Heights,
AUdUbon EStateS & Eastland EStateS D"'2 R EE RN Iy

Bridges #34 & #35 - Outer Darmstadt Rd. (Design PlansS)..ce..
Peach Blossom Lane (Update requested)....cieeeceecccccsccces

Letter & Proposed Agreement/United Consulting Engineers
Right-of-Way Engineering Services on N. Green River

Roadc..o.'..o.o.no...o....Q....0.'......000..00...00'.0.

Bridge Inspection Proposals/Interviews Scheduled....ececcceas

Status of County Bridge ProjecCtSececcccecacccscccccscscnscsss
Boonville-New Harmony Bridge (Bridge #13)
Fulton Avenue Bridge
Green River Road North Bridge
Orchard Road Bridge

North Green River Road Project (Update).eceeescscccscscancnse

Lease Agreement with Conrad Baker Foundation.....c.ceceeceses

10

10
11
11

13
13

2y



A2

Welbac Table T.V..(Notice re Intent to Sell to Tele-Media)..
Clerk of the Circuit Court - Monthly Report.eccecececececcecceccecs
Insurance Certificate.ccececcccccerccctsoscccscscscccsonaccoccccas

01d BUSINESSeceessccecccssoscsscssosssosssscsscssassssssssssscs o
Relocation of Fire Hydrant/Daylight Fire Station
Maintenance Contract for Air Conditioning at

Auditorium
Signed Release/Pinkston Accident
Kansas Road Bridge
Speed Limits/11lth Avenue
Intersection of Upper Mt. Vernon & Peerless Rds.

E-911 Service
Scheduled Meetings...........................................

Claims.......'.................00........;...........l.......

Bowers, Harrison, Kent & Miller ($15,899.40)
Employment ChangeSIQOOOQOOQOOOOQOOC.0..C.....Q...............

Adjournment....o......0.00..0000000000.00000000000000.......0

14
15
15

16
17

17
17
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
SEPTEMBER 12, 1988

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Monday, September 12, 1988 in the Commissioners
Hearing Room, with President Rick Borries presiding.
Commissioner Willner was absent due to illness.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Cox said that since Mr. Willner is quoted several
times in the minutes of Augqust 29th, she would move that approval
be deferred until Commissioner Willner is present. A second to
the motion was made by Commissioner Borries. So ordered.

Mrs. Cox also noted a couple of minor corrections on Page 1, and
said this was all she found. These were duly noted by the
Secretary.

RE: CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AGREEMENT RE BOONVILLE-NEW
HARMONY RD.

The meeting proceeded with Commissioner Borries introducing Tom
Bernardin of Bernardin, Lochmueller & Associates, who was present
for purposes of obtaining signatures on documents pertaining to
the Boonville-New Harmony Rd. project.

Mr. Bernardin said his firm did the engineering on the
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. project and they are getting agreements
ready for the construction phase of the project. Since Pederal
funds are involved, agreements have to go to the State Highway
Department to be reviewed and approved prior to execution of the
agreement. He has two letters: One is a cover letter for the
Commissioners to sign for transmittal of these documents to the
IDOH for their review. The other is a letter of assignment of
the Project Engineer and it states who they intend to assign the
project and the staffing they have for the project. Both letters
require the Commissioners' signatures. With the Commissioners'
permission, he will read both letters.

Commissioner Borries said this would be fine. The letters were
as follows:

September 6, 1988

Mr. S. R. Yoder, Chief
Division of Local Assistance
Indiana Department of Highways
100 North Senate Avenue

Room 805 -~ State Office Bldg.
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Re: County Consultant Agreement
Vanderburgh County - Bernardin-Lochmueller
& Associates, Inc.
Project No. RS-7682(1) - Boonville-New Harmony
Rd. Extension

Dear Mr. Yoder:

The Board of County Commissioners has selected Bernardin-
Lochmueller & Associates, Inc. to complete the Construction
Engineering on the referenced project. We are enclosing for
your review and approval two (2) copies of the following:



COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 2
September 12, 1988

l) Agreement for Construction Engineering

2) Manhour Fee Justification

3) Statement of Overhead Rate

4) Approved Consultant Selection Procedure

5) Copy of Request for Proposals with a list of
Consultants Solicited including DBE's and WBEs
and proposals received

6) Copy of minutes from Commissioners Meeting making
the consultant selection

Services of a consultant were needed due to the insufficient
in house capabilities of the County Engineering Department
to accomplish the project.

Bernardin-Lochmueller and Associates were selected for this
project because of past performance in completing county
projects in a professional and timely manner. They were also
selected because of the qualifications of their staff to
complete this project.

/s/ Richard J. Borries, President
Robert L. Willner, Commissioner
Shirley Jean Cox, Commissioner

% % %k k *k %k %k *k %k
September 6, 1988

Mr. John P. Isenbarger, Director
Indiana Department of Highways
100 North Senate Avenue

Room 1101 - State Office Bldg,.
Indianapolis, IN 46204

ATTN: Chief, Division of Local Assistance
Room 12032 - State Office Bldg.

Gentlemen:

Charles R. Mills who is an employee of Bernardin-Lochmueller
& Associates, Inc. is hereby designated full-time Resident
Project Engineer for the construction of project RS-7682(1).
It is understood that in this capacity he will be in full
time direct control of the project, and will follow the
established procedures of the Indiana Department of Highways
in the discharge of his duties. It is also understood that
in this capacity he will be working under the supervision

of the IDOH District Area Engineer and will look to that
office for advice and instruction.

Vanderburgh County will utilize the services of the
following personnel:

1) Richard Z. Bennett, Coordinator Engineer
2) Charles R. Mills, Jr., Inspector

3) Gary U. Kercher, Inspector I

4) Shirea Mills, Weighman

5) Sharon Burks-Meier, Secretary

6) Richard A. Schaefer, Survey Party Chief
7) Mike Rogers, Rodman/Chainman

These personnel who are employed by Bernardin-Lochmueller
& Associates, Inc. will accomplish the overall supervision
of this project. The testing equipment which is listed on
the attached sheet will be supplied for this project by
Bernardin-Lochmueller & Associates, Inc.

The engineering staff of Bernardin-Lochmueller & Associates,
Inc. shall maintain all books, documents, paper, accounting
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records and other evidence pertaining to the cost incurred
and shall make such materials available at their respective
office at all reasonable times during the contract period and
for three (3) years from the date of final payment. The
Federal Highway Administration, the State of Indiana, or
other authorized representatives of any unit providing

money for the project shall be furnished copies thereof if
requested.

/s8/ Richard J. Borries, President
Robert L. Willner, Vice President
/s/ Shirley Jean Cox, Member

Mr. Bernardin passed the agreements to the Board for their
perusal and provided the Secretary with an unsigned copy.

Mrs. Cox queried Mr. Bernardin concerning Item 5 in the letter to
Mr. Yoder and he said he thinks the minority firms are now
covered under the DBEs. Mrs. Cox asked if the list contains the
names of the people who were invited to participate or merely
those who responded. Mr. Bernardin designated the three DBEs and
the two firms who responded.

President Borries asked Commissioner Cox if she wants to approve
these today -- or does she need some time?

Mrs. Cox said she wants to compliment Bernardin-Lochmueller &
Associates for their timely progress on this and for moving it
forward. Hopefully, the I-164 and this will dovetail in their
just beautifully. She thinks they are to be commended for that.
She is a little bit disappointed that we only had two firms to
bid on this project. This is one of the major road building
projects in Vanderburgh County. Perhaps the economy is such
though that everyone is so busy in construction that they do not
have time to enter into another contract.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Borries, the letter to Mr. Yoder was signed and returned to Mr.
Bernardin for transmittal. So ordered.

Mr. Bernardin reiterated that the Commissioners will have as much
time as they need to review the agreements when they come back
for execution.

Mrs. Cox asked if the agreement talks anywhere about design?

Mr. Bernardin said it has an engineer's construction cost
estimate.

With regard to the letter to Mr. Isenbarger, Mrs. Cox asked Mr.
Bernardin if he has a biography concerning Mr. Mills?

Mr. Bernardin said he has a resume. Mrs. Cox asked to peruse
same. He said a copy is in the packet and he passed a copy to
Mrs. Cox for her review..

Mrs. Cox asked if the Inspector is considered to be the top
person on this job or is the Coordinate Engineer?

Mr. Bernardin said the Resident Project Engineer -- who appears
in the first paragraph. (He is currently working on a bridge job
in Park County for Bernardin-Lochmueller.)

Mrs. Cox asked -- there are two Mills?

Mr. Bernardin said they are Senior and Junior -- father and son.
Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner

Borries, the letter to Mr. Isenbarger was signed and returned to
Mr. Bernardin for transmittal to Indianapolis. So ordered.

AL
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President Borries said he also wants to commend
Bernardin-Lochmueller for their timeliness in this project and he
asked if Mr. Bernardin has any idea as to when there might be
some approval on letting?

Mr. Bernardin said the file traces were submitted in June and
everything is accepted design-wise as far as he knows. He thinks
10 out of 11 parcels of right-of-way are clear.

Situation with Fehd Property: Mr. Bernardin went on to explain
that with regard to the right-of-way, we have the one parcel to
the Fehds that has gone to condemnation. He was informed this
morning that the Fehds have requested a Change of Venue to Gibson
County (by Mr. Hustace of the firm of Bowers, Harrison, Kent &
Miller). Thus, we're still awaiting a hearing on that. That is
pretty much the critical path right now. They need a three month
lead time from the time right-of-way is clear to the time letting
can occur --- so they're looking at some time after the first of
the year for a letting.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - CURT JOHN

Check/Evansville Dance Theater: Attorney John reported that he
is 1in receipt of another check in the amount of $100.00 from the
Evansville Dance Theater regarding their outstanding balance at
Vanderburgh ‘Auditorium. He asked that the secretary show this
received and so notify the Auditorium.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Borries, the check was accepted, endorsed, and given to the
Secretary for deposit into the County General Fund. So ordered.

RE: LAWSUIT - DONALD & MARY HUCK VS. VANDERBURGH COUNTY

Commissioner Cox presented copy of Lawsuit Notice (Donald & Mary
Huck vs. Vanderburgh County) concerning accident on either Hogue
Rd. or Middle Mt. Vernon (she can't remember which). In response
to query from Attorney John as to whether it is a Notice of Claim
or a Lawsuit, Mrs. Cox said it is a Lawsuit. They have already
filed the Notice and evidently our settlement offer wasn't
satisfactory, so a lawsuit has been filed.

RE: REQUEST FOR DECLARATQORY JUDGMENT

Commissioner Cox said she also has a note regarding another
lawsuit Attorney Miller was working on.

Attorney John asked if she is referring to the suit for
Declaratory Judgment concerning bidding procedures? Mr. Miller
and his office have been handling that.

Mrs. Cox asked, "But it hasn't been filed as of yet?"
Attorney John said, "To my knowledge it hasn't. There is a

proposed complaint that has been drafted -- but I don't know
whether it has been revised or filed."

RE: ORDINANCE RE DEVELOPER'S RESPONSIBILITY IN SUBDIVISIONS

Commissioner Cox said the other item concerns the ordinance re
Developer's responsibility in Subdivisions -- how long they are
to be responsible for any storm sewers that collapse or anything
like that. So at least if we get these on record...."

Attorney John said, "I believe there has been research done by
Attorney Miller's office on that, also, and he will discuss that.
I had a call from Joanne Matthews on Friday asking if that had
been forwarded to my office -- and it has not. I have, however,
discussed it with him briefly and he is in the process of doing
that."
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RE: NOTICE FROM NATIONAL CASUALTY COMPANY

Commissioner Cox said another item is the notice from National
Casualty Company that we're defending Vanderburgh County in the
case of Lesh, Lefler and Perdue (Civil Case 87~CIV-653) and to
date it has cost them $10,203.65 and they are asking that we
reimburse them in the amount of $10,000 in accordance with the
terms of our policies.

Mr. Lindenschmidt reported, "We just wrote that company a letter
this morning -- we wrote them for a breakdown."

Mrs. Cox said, "I also think we need to know if there have been
other -- I understand we have a $10,000 deductible -- but is this
on every case?"

Attorney John said he is not sure.

Mrs. Cox said, "I will refer the letter from National Casualty
Company in re Policy No. P06206 to claimants to County Attorney
Curt John."

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

The meeting proceeded with President Borries welcoming Mr. Cletus
Muensterman, Acting Highway Superintendent. Mr. Borries said for
the past week Mr. Muensterman has been "Mr. Do-It-All" and has
done an excellent job of taking over with the very untimely death
of Mr. Bill Bethel. As Acting Superintendent he has had
extensive experience with the Highway Department. The Board
welcomes him today and appreciates his good service.

Mr. Muensterman thanked Commissioner Borries for the kind words.

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Muensterman submitted
copies of the Weekly Work Report for Employees at the County
Garage for period September 6 thru September 9, 1988....reports
received and filed.

Gradall: Heinlein, Kleitz, Baseline and installed
culvert at Armstrong Recreation Center

Paving Crew: Hillview Drive and Wright Drive (the latter was
paved for demonstrating the Asphalt Pug Mill
cold mix operation)

Patch Crew: Ruston Lane, Kleitz Rd., Kuebler, Pollack Avenue,
Inglefield, West Franklin, Broadway (west of
Schutte)

Hauling Crew: Hauled rock to Schmuck Road, Trapp Rd., Staub
Lane, and 0ld State Rd. (on the shoulders)

Crews also installed culvert on Darmstadt Rd. and the culvert at
Mill Rd. and St. Joe Avenue was paved.

Weekly Work Report Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew....report
received and filed.

- Installed guard rail on Woods Rd. (350 ft. approximately)
and also on Middle Mt.Vernon Rd.

- Cut grass and painted rail on Mann Rd., Bixler,
Montgomery, Baseline, Bayou Creek, Kentucky and St.
George and 0l1ld 460

- Repaired washouts on Baehl Rd., Caranza Drive and
Kuebler Rd.
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- Built retaining walls on Baehl Rd.

- Hauled rock to yard

Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were
the Weekly Absentee Reports for both Employees at the County
Garage and the Bridge Crew.......reports received and filed.

Commissioner Cox said she, too, wants to echo Commissioner
Borries' remarks concerning Mr. Muensterman. She knows he has
big shoes to fill out at the County Garage, but he has much the
same demeanor as Mr. Bethel and his friendliness and his
jollyness and his ability to let his wit and sense of humor come
through when a lot of other things are tough -- and she thinks
his fairness of attitude toward the men. She feels very
comfortable with him in that position and she knows he will do a
proud job .for Vanderburgh County. She does have some questions
of Mr. Muensterman.

RE: WOODS RD. GUARD RAIL

With regard to the Woods Road guard rail (we said in a meeting
and I think Mr. Willner was very adament about seeing that those
guard rail ends were buried) make sure that those....

Mr. Muensterman interjected, "Yes, that is the reason we didn't
put it all up ~-- because the guard rail was bad. We didn't want
to put all the work to it and then take it right back down."

RE: HEINLEIN RD. DITCHES & CULVERT

Mrs. Cox said, "And I'm glad to know that you reported that the
Heinlein Rd. ditches are all cleaned out and I assume that is on
both sides?"

Mr. Muensterman, "Yes, Ma'am."

Ms. Cox, "And has the culvert been cleaned down at the corner of
Heinlein Rd. and Baumgart Rd.? That has all been cleaned too?”

Mr. Muensterman, "Yes."

RE: WIMBERG RD. DRAINAGE

Commissioner Cox said she knows there were some other things we
were working on and she can get together with him for an update,
but just to get any other progress that she may not be aware of
-- the Wimberg Rd. drainage?

Mr. Muensterman said they should be getting that today or
tomorrow.

Mrs. Cox said she does thank the County Highway Department for
their participation in putting up the speed signs and the truck
limits along there. That has really helped to control the
traffic in that area.

RE: MOTZ ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Mrs. Cox said we were also working on a Motz Rd. improvement
project. It is down on the paving list to be paved this year,
but there was also some talk -- and she knows she had asked Mr.
Bethel what the chances were of getting those improvements and he
very intelligently said it would depend upon how much money we
have left at the end of the paving season. But she does know
that the German Township Volunteer Fire Department and the
residents out on that road are very concerned about trying to
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improve some of the safety factors and she will be getting
together with Mr. Muensterman to see how far we have progressed
along there.

RE: ROLLET LANE PIPE INSTALLATION

Mrs. Cox queried Mr. Muensterman concerning the Rollet Lane pipe
installation.

Mr. Muensterman said the pipe has been ordered and as soon as it
gets in they will install it. Mrs. Toy has been informed to this
effect.

RE: REPAIR OF WEST FRANKLIN, SCHROEDER, AND VOLKMAN ROADS

Commissioner Cox then queried Mr. Muensterman concerning the
repair of West Franklin, Schroeder and Volkman Roads (roads that
were damaged by the sub-contractor putting in the gas lines). We
did get a settlement from the company SO.....

Mr. Muensterman said, "We went out and paved those -- or pétched
themo " :

Mrs. Cox asked, "All of them are done?"

Mr. Muensterman said we have patched them and if the weather
lasts we hope to go back and pave them -- we'll just put a
surface coat on top.

Commissioner Borries thanked Mr. Muensterman for his report.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER - DAN HARTMAN

Progress Report/Road Paving: Mr. Hartman reported that this past
week J. H. Rudolph has paved Bayou Creek, Duesner Rd. Happe Rd.,
Alta Vista Rd. and Frey Rd.

The Rogers Group has paved Woods Rd., Millersburg Rd., Heckel
Rd., Pine Place, Kimbell Place and Caranza Drive. The Rogers
Group still has Seib Road, Buente Rd. and Bixler Rd. to do.

RE: PLANS FOR IMPROVEMENT OF OAK GROVE ROAD

Mr. Hartman presented a set of preliminary plans his office is
doing for the improvement of Oak Grove Road. He said the plans
show the 500 ft. on either side of Stockfleth Ditch and show the
culvert which we're going to put in at Stockfleth Ditch plus two
headwalls. We're putting in 12' x 8 ft. precast concrete
culverts there because of minimum clearance distances and these
plans are about 95% completed and the specifications and Notice
to Bidders will be prepared shortly.

Commissioner Cox said, "One of the notes I had was an update on
the Oak Grove Road project -- whether this was a bridge or
culvert -- and she assumes the decision has been made that the
culvert would be the way to go and it would be the cheaper way."

Mr. Hartman said it would be the cheaper way and it also saves
his office that much more work. The bridge or culvert -- and he
thinks the precast concrete culvert will be the cheapest.

Mrs. Cox asked how iong that culvert is?

Mr. Hartman said it is 40 ft. long with a 20 degree skewed angle.

Mrs. Cox asked, "What would be the width of the roadway over the
culvert? 1Is that going to be widened out somewhat?

~3
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Mr. Hartman responded, "Yes, 24 ft. width for the full one
thousand feet of roadway. There is some temporary right-of-way
we must acquire and some permanent right-of-way which we have to
acquire."

Mrs. Cox asked, "But we do have cooperation from those people?"

Mr. Hartman said, "Yes; the land is there, it's just a matter of
Who ® 0 00

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, it certainly would be a great improvement
to their businesses.”

Mr. Hartman said we are raising the grade about 3 ft. at the
center.

Mrs. Cox said, "Now, Oak Grove Rd. was down to be re-paved and we
are holding up on that?"

Mr.Hartman responded in the affirmative.

Turning to President Borries, Mrs. Cox asked, "Do you think Mr.
Willner would mind? I think he was very strong on a culvert. BHe
didn't want a bridge. Do you think it is okay if we just give
him the okay to proceed forthwith on this? Or, would you want to
hold it until Mr. Willner is here?"

Commissioner Borries said he hopes Mr. Willner will be back
within a week.

Mr. Hartman said, "We won't be complete in one week's time.
We'll be ready to advertise it in one week's time -~- put it that
way."

Commissioner Cox asked, "I mean can we go ahead and say, ‘Hey,
what you are doing here is fine -~ proceed?"

President Borries said, "Sure -- okay."

RE: BOONVILLE-NEW HARMONY ROADWAY

With regard to the Boonville-New Harmony roadway that was flown
by Accu-Survey (and we're proceeding along with that piecemeal
like because we have not set aside enough money to pay for the
project itself) -- we are screening the possibilities of
transferring some monies over there (with the Commissioners'
permission, of course) and with that in mind, he can't say much
more for the project.

RE: REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO INSTALL STREET I. D. SIGNS
AND/OR TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS IN BROOKRKVIEW HEIGHTS,
AUDUBON ESTATES AND EASTLAND ESTATES D-2

Mr. Hartman said Mr. Jack Alles of Morley & Associates is here to
present a request.

Mr. Alles approached the podium and said he is appearing for

Mr. W. C. Bussing, Jr., the developer on three subdivisions. He
believes the Commissioners have a copy of his request letter,
which reads as follows:

September 9, 1988

Vanderburgh County Commissioners
Room 305 Civic Center Complex
Evansville, IN 47708

Re: Brookview Heights Subdivision Street Signs (87-1416-4)
Audubon Estates Subdivision Street Signs (87-1513-4)
Eastland Estates Section D-2 Street Signs (87-1595-4)



35

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 9
September 12, 1988

Dear Commission Members:

The developer of the above three projects is requesting the
Commissioners to authorize the installation of street
identification signs and any traffic control signs required in
the three projects.

The streets within all three projects have been accepted for
maintenance by the Commissioners.

Copies of the plats are attached for the street name
identification.

If you have any questions, please contact me.
Sincerely,

/s/ C. Jack Alles, P.E.

cc: Mr. W. C. Bussing, Jr. (w/o enclosure)

Mrs. Cox asked, "Mr. Alles, does the developer intend to install
these signs? Or, are you asking the County?

Mr. Alles responded, "We're asking the County to have their
Traffic Department install those." ’

Mr. Borries said, "Traffic Engineering."

Commissioner Cox said, "We've talked about this before, and I
guess there has not been any final determination for including in
a subdivision ordinance as to just whose responsibility it is to
identify these streets. I do know that some developers go ahead
and put up their own street signs and I think in the past the
County has put up just the regular green and white (or whatever
color) road signs. (Someone interjected, "Black and white".)

Commissioner Borries commented, "I think it has been our practice
if these streets have been accepted that if there aren't signs
there, this is forwarded to Traffic Engineering and taken care of
in that fashion."

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Borries, the request from Morley regarding street identification
signs in Brookview Heights, Audubon Estates and Eastland Estates
D-2 Subdivisions was approved, and is to be forwarded to the
Traffic Engineering Department for action. So ordered. (Copies
were given to Messrs. Muensterman and Hartman.)

RE: DESIGN PLANS - BRIDGES #34 & #35 - OUTER DARMSTADT RD.

Mr. Hartman said his office has turned out a complete design for
the Outer Darmstadt Road bridges (No. 34 & No. 35) over Lower Big
Creek. Mr. Willner has a set of those plans and he was going to
give his input on those plans, but he has not received this from
Mr. Willner yet. Mr. Hartman said at this stage he is holding
the design for that project.

Commissioner Borries said the Board will ask for Mr. Willner's
comments at the next meeting and see if we can proceed through
that. He thinks the long range plan of working with the Big
Creek Drainage Association and Dave Ellison (as we had done on
Woods Rd.) in an effort to try to improve the situation...

Mr. Hartman interjected, "I could talk with Mr. Ellison in the
interim, also, which might be helpful."®
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Mrs. Cox said, "I would like to say that when we do get to the
point where we can advertise for these bridges -- and I cannot
see doing one without doing the other (they're both on the same
road and it just makes good sense) -- but I remember when I first
came on the Commission several instances where bridges were bid
as companion projects and we were able to save a good amount of
money. Like we had an alternate bid -~ we bid them individually
and then as a companion project. So this would be one where this
Board could consider pursuing that avenue."®

RE: PEACH BLOSSOM LANE

Mrs. Cox said she has one more item -- it has been in her notes
for several months ~- and that is the Peach Blossom Lane
situation. She knows this was before Mr. Hartman's time, but
there were homes out there they couldn't get loans approved on
because of the condition of the street.

Mr. Borries said the street had never been accepted.

Mrs. Cox said, "Right; the street had never been accepted and it
had deteriorated. 1In some areas it had almost disappeared. It
was her understanding that this Board agreed that the bank (who
she believes has a receivership on the subdivision or the overall
control of the subdivision) —-- but this Board did send a letter
to the bank (Union Federal/Mr. Earl Williams) advising them it
was the Board's opinion that they needed to completely resurface
that entire area before the County could take over and maintain
the street. Have you heard anything on this?"

Mr. Hartman said he has heard no comment whatsoever, but he will
pursue it.

RE: LETTER & PROPOSED AGREEMENT/UNITED CONSULTANT ENGINEERS
RIGHT-OF -WAY ENGINEERING SERVICES ON NORTH GREEN RIVER RD.
PROJECT

Commissioner Borries said Rose Zigenfus of EUTS is here today
with regard to a letter and proposed agreement from United
Consultant Engineers. She is here to offer an explanation in
terms of right-of-way engineering services on the Green River
Road project. _They have indicated how many parcels would have to
be purchased in this particular project in order for it to
continue and its review through the number of processes that go
through. He then recognized Mrs. Zigenfus.

Mrs. Zigenfus said, "Our agency reviewed the agreement and
discussed the potential cost with the Indiana Department of
Highways to get a feeling for what might be appropriate. Having
never reviewed one of these before, we understand that the costs,
as outlined, are in line with normal right-of-way engineering
costs and, based on that review, we recommend that you go ahead
and execute the contract."”

Mr. Borries said, "In terms of title search, right-of-way stake
out, as is pointed out, (buyer, appraiser and review appraiser
are handled locally, is that right?)"

Ms. Zigenfus said, "Yes; this agreement does not cover
right-of-way services. All this covers is right-of-way
engineering. The right-of-way services could be let locally in
addition to this particular contract. Wwhat that means is that
you need appraisers and review appraisers, and buyers. But we
can't begin that process until this phase of the right-of-way
engineering is complete."

Mrs. Cox said she thought we approved someone for United
Consulting Engineers to get some help in running down the proper
titles in this area.
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Mrs. Zigenfus said, "They did; they did a supplement to their
original agreement -- to look up some of the title work -- and we
have all of that. This is not what they are doing here with
right-of-way engineering."

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioer
Borries, the letter was taken under advisement for a one (1) week
period. So ordered.

RE: BRIDGE INSPECTION PROPOSALS

Mrs. Zigenfus said the screening committee met concerning the
Bridge Inspection Proposals. They reviewed proposals from
Bernardin~Lochmueller & Associates; Veach, Nicholson, Griggs;
Fink, Roberts & Petrie; Howard Needles, Tammen & Bergendorf;
United Consulting Engineers and Floyd E. Burroughs. The
screening comittee met and ranked the firms and have set
September 29th as the date for interviews. These firms will be
contacted and interviews will begin at 1:30 p.m. and be held
throughout the afternoon -- prior to selecting a consultant.
She will advise the Commissioners as to where the interviews will
be held.

Mrs. Cox asked Mrs.Zigenfus if she reported that notices will be
sent to all the people who submitted proposals to us?

Mrs. Zigenfus said the aforementioned are the only firms that
sent proposals.

Mrs. Cox asked, "So no one is being eliminated?"
Mrs. Zigenfus replied, "No, everyone is being interviewed."

Commissioner Cox asked if Mrs. Zigenfus has copies of all the
proposals submitted?

Mrs. Zigenfus said she does not.

Mrs. Cox said it might be well if the Commissioners had copies.
She always goes through her copies and makes notes concerning the
time frame and different things -- and if she could have a copy
of each of those prior to the meeting she'd appreciate it.

Commissioner Borries said it has been an evaluation instrument
that has been used in this. Rose might want to share with
Shirley at that point many of the criteria in those particular
proposals.

Mrs. Zigenfus said she will provide Commissioner Cox with a copy.

Mrs. Cox said -- these are standard evaluations -- the number of
days it will take to complete the project, overhead rates, etc.

RE: STATUS OF COUNTY BRIDGE PROJECTS

Mrs. Zigenfus said she has prepared a Status Report of County
Bridge Projects, based on the letters received from the IDOH on
the potential for Federal Aid. The following letter is in
response to that. She thought the Board might want to know why
they are not programming next year for Federal Aid. There are
certain things that need to be accomplished prior to approval of
funding and we are not to that point yet. If the Board has any
questions on this now or later, feel free to contact her. She
will give a copy to Joanne Matthews for her records. But she
thinks it important for the Commissioners to understand that they
won't program a bridge project until it has reached a certain
point of completion and each of these bridges in these projects
have extenuating circumstances.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Now, this Boonville-New Harmony Rd. Bridge --
which one is that?"
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Mrs. Zigenfus said it is the one west of Highway 65.

Mrs. Cox noted there are no numbers on these bridges, which

really makes it hard. We have more than a dozen bridges on
Boonville~New Harmony Rd.

Mrs. Zigenfus said she will get the Bridge Number for Mrs. Cox.

Mrs. Cox said, "I know where it is; I can look on my map and get
the number -- but just to pinpoint the....that's the one we
shored up. We had to do some emergency repairs on it -- I don't
know how much that cost."

Mrs. Zigenfus said, "These projects are listed in The TIP if you
want to look at that."

The Status Report submitted was as follows:

TO: Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners
FROM: Rose M. Zigenfus

SUBJECT: Status of County Bridge Projects

DATE: September 12, 1988

As you know, the Indiana Department of Highways (IDOH) recently
notified the County that several of our proposed bridge projects
have not advanced far enough to obtain federal funding for
construction within FY'88 - '89.

The purpose of this memo is to provide you with a summary of the
current status of the bridge projects that have been

proposed within Vanderburgh County so that you will have the most
up to date information regarding these projects.

Boonville—New'harmony Road Bridge (Bridge No. 13)

This bridge project is being designed by Vanderburgh County.
Requirements to receive federal aid have caused some delays in
completing the design. On July 16, 1987, IDOH requested that the
County submit a hydraulic analysis, a structure economic
analysis, structure size and geometric computations and a
proposed soil boring location plan. Once these items are
submitted in a final form and meet IDOH approval, the next step
will be for the County to submit roadway cross-sections at the
bridge approaches and a summary of material quantities needed for
bridge construction. In order to expedite this project, the
County may want to consider constructing it with all local

funds. The bridge is expected to cost approximately $240,000.00.

Fulton Avenue Bridge

This bridge is being designed by Vanderburgh County in
conjunction with the Fulton Avenue widening project which is
being designed by Veach, Nicholson and Griggs. The design of
this four-lane bridge has not yet been completed. The County is
awaiting IDOH and FHWA approval of grade review plans for the
road widening and a design exception affecting both the road and
the bridge project. The County still needs to decide on some of
the geometrics for the bridge pending the approval of the grade
review plans and the design exception. Design work has been
coordinated with Veach, Nicholson and Griggs. The estimated cost
to construct the four-lane bridge necessitates application for
federal aid. =

/
i
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Green River Road North Bridge:

This bridge is also being designed by Vanderburgh County as part
of the improvement of Green River Road North to a four-lane
divided facility. Four designs have been completed for this
bridge thus far by the County Bridge Engineer. A decision
regarding the median, included in the proposed design for the
Green River Road North road project, must be made before work can
proceed on the current design for the bridge. 1In addition, the
Indiana Department of Highways requested on July 21, 1988, that
additional soil borings at the bridge site be submitted for their
review along with a soils report, structure cost comparisons and
a revised set of design plans. The County is in the process of
getting the additional soil borings requested by the State.

Orchard Road Bridge

Veach, Nicholson and Griggs have the contract to complete the
design of this bridge. Preliminary design plans were submitted
to IDOH and a field check was held on July 21, 1988. At the
field check, IDOH provided comments and suggested some
alterations in the design. The State is awaiting a response to
their comments, revised grade review plans and a draft Design
Study Report from the consultant. These items will be submitted
within the next few days according to the consultant.

RE: NORTH GREEN RIVER ROAD PROJECT

Mrs. Cox said she has a note to follow up on the North Green
River Road project. Have we received the compilation of all the
information that was in the Public Hearing?

Mrs. Zigenfus said, "No; as a matter of fact, the deadline for
the comments from the public hearing was August 19th. Following
the deadline, the Indiana Department of Highways has thirty (30)
days to compile the report. So, it should be completed on
September 19th. It then goes to Federal Highway Administration
for fifteen (15) days review time and I suspect we'll get a copy
shortly thereafter."®

RE: LEASE AGREEMENT WITH CONRAD BAKER FOUNDATION

President Borries presented a Lease Agreement with the Conrad
Baker Foundation to be signed, concerning office space. He asked
if Mr. Lindenschmidt has any comments? Have there been any
changes in the lease?

Mr. Lindenschmidt said it is exactly the same. There was a
change in it and after re-negotiations -- it came back and is now
exactly the same as it was.

This is for office space for the reassessment work being done by
Chuck Simon. The lease is on a month-to-month basis, because we
don't know how long they are going to be there.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Borries, the Lease Agreement was signed, with the understanding
that the lease will be on a month-to-month basis commencing
September 1, 1988. So ordered.

RE: WELBAC CABLE T. V.

The meeting proceeded with Commissioner Borries reading the
following letter from Welbac Cable T. V. Corporation:
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September 2, 1988

Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners
1l N.W. 7th Street, #305
Evansville, IN 47701

Dear Sirs:

Welbac Cable T.V. Corporation has entered into an agreement
to sell its cable television operations in Indiana to
Tele-Media Corporation. 1In accordance with the terms of
Section 6.04 of the cable TV ordinance dated March 19, 1984,
please consider this letter as our request for your consent
to this pending transaction.

Tele-Media is one of the most respected operators in our
business, with more than 160 systems in 18 states. We are
confident that Tele-Media will serve your community well.
They are committed to excellent service and the continued
development of cable TV as an important community resource.
Very shortly you'll be receiving a proposed form of consent
and a factbook describing Tele-Media's history and their
current cable activities.

This transaction is expected to take place on or before
October 31, 1988. Therefore, your consideration of this
request at the earliest possible date will be deeply
appreciated. Should you have any questions, please contact
me at your convenience.

Cordially,

/s/ John T. Schmuhl
President

(Address and telephone number for Welbac is as follows:
Park Plaza, Suite E-2, 3390 W. 86th Street,
Indianapolis, IN 46268; (317) 875-6983)

It was noted by President Borries that no contact information is
given for Tele-Media. He thinks the Board would want to request
contact information should there be any complaints or calls from
residents served by this firm.

Attorney John interjected, "Rick, I don't believe this is notice
that they are selling out. I believe that your current contract
requires that you adopt a Resolution (we did one several months
ago). It takes your consent and I believe they are just
notifying you that upon completion of their agreement they will
forward to you for your approval and consent that they be allowed
to sell to this new company. I think this is an informal notice
that they are negotiating for the sale of the business.”

Mrs. Cox said, "That clarifies that, doesn't it? They have
changed hands so many times and changed names so many times."

Attorney John said, "Yes; this was Wells Cable TV -- or I think
they've gone under two or three names.”

RE: CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT - MONTHLY REPORT

Commissioner Borries submitted the monthly report from the Clerk
of the Circuit Court for the month ending August 31,
1988....report received and filed.
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RE: INSURANCE CERTIFICATE

Helfrich Insurance Agency: An insurance certificate was
submitted for the Conrad Baker Foundation, Inc. for contents
located in the 0ld Vanderburgh County Court House. This is for
data processing equipment being used in the reassessment
project........certificate received and filed.

RE

OLD BUSINESS

Relocation of Fire Hydrant at Fire Station in Daylight, IN: Mrs.
Cox said she received a call from the President of the Scott
Township Volunteer Fire Department Association & Booster Club and
he indicated to her that one of the main reasons they came to the
Commissioners concerning the relocation of the fire hydrant for
safety reasons was because they did NOT have any funds. She
asked that they either send a letter or make a personal
appearance before the Board of Commissioners regarding a request
for assistance in this area.

Maintenance Contract for Air Conditioning/Vanderburgh Auditorium:
Mrs. Cox said she believes in the minutes approximately a month
ago the Board was going to ask for an itemized list of the work
that had been done under the Maintenance Contract and Mr. Willner
wanted to know why the bill was so high and he was going to talk
to both companies. Have we received an itemized list of the work
that has been done on the Auditorium?

President Borries replied, "Not that I'm aware of; I have talked
with Mr. Walter Clements, the construction engineer on the air
conditioning project -- who has been in continuous contact with
them on a number of matters. I will continue to talk with him to
see if there will be a time when we might send a letter to them
indicating their services on the air conditioning will not be
needed. But he is continuing to work with them. The air
conditioning units have been installed now and, as in any
situation, there are some changeovers that will need to be
fulfilled, I think, in regards to Thermotron."

Mrs. Cox said, "I did get a copy of a report that was done by
Johnson Controls. I don't know whether Mr. Willner got a copy or
not -- I assume he did, as this was in my mail box. But the
report concerned the status of some of the equipment over at the
Auditorium and that may help answer some of his questions as to
why the utility bills were so high. According to this report, it
indicates that there was dust and dirt and belts were loose and
that damper linking had been disconnected and the filters were
dirty. Mr. Willner was concerned about our high utility costs.
Sometimes the efficiency of a unit is certainly based on
cleanliness ~- and this goes along with maintenance. I'm sorry
he is not here today; I understand he has the flu and I wish him
well. But I think he really needs to take a long, hard look at
this report dated Augqust 10th and it is signed by Ricky Dawe,
Sales Engineer for Johnson Controls, Inc. Of course, we have two
totally different projects going on over there. One is
replacement and the other is this maintenance contract. what
concerns me is the ongoing nature of these things, because under
our contract we must give that company thirty (30) days notice if
we intend to cancel -~ or we can be liable for breach of contract
unless we prove that they haven't done their job. I'm not saying
that is the case -- but I can't see putting this off, off, and
off when money is tight and it is needed for improvements over at
the Auditorium -- you know, to keep just putting off another
$5,000 and now we're into September. I hope that we would pursue
this in a very orderly fashion and get that resolved.

Signed Release/Property Damage Pinkston Accident: Mrs. Cox said
the Board was to get a signed release from the insurance company
concerning the Pinkston accident property damage. Remember the
check that came in? .I do think our attorney said it was very
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necessary to have this in the files. Of course, Mr. Bethel said
he would send it in and it may be out at the garage, Mr.
Muensterman, it was a signed release -- the County car that Mr.
Pinkston was in an accident with (an individual ran into him) and
it was a total loss. The insurance company totaled it out and
they gave the County a check for the car. It was questioned --
to make sure that the release the County had signed was only for
property damage and not any personal injuries or liability to Mr.
Pinkston. The check came through here and it has been put into
the County General Fund. It is the release that is pending. Our
attorney felt it was very important that the release that was
signed when the check was given to Mr. Bethel did not include a
release of personal injury to Delbert Pinkston.

Kansas Road Bridge: Mrs. Cox said the other item on her list
concerns the Kansas Road Bridge. We made a determination to tear
that down and then there was some discussion and controversy from
the persons involved. I believe you, Curt, said you might pursue
that -- the Kansas Road Bridge near I-164. I know we haven't
torn it down.

Speed Limits/llth Avenue: Mrs. Cox said there is a letter from
Lt. Gary O'Risky concerning the 20 mph speed limit on 1llth Avenue
north of Allen Road.

Commissioner Borries said the Board has not yet heard from Rose
Zigenfus of EUTS on this. But the letter from Lt. O'Risky was a
result of Jim Lindenschmidt's follow-up with the Sheriff's
Department.

Mrs. Cox said, "So we need to report that there is a report from
the Sheriff's Department regarding the 1llth Avenue 20 mph speed
limit."

Mr. Lindenscmidt interjected, "I also asked EUTS for a report on
that, but we haven't received it yet."

Intersection of Upper Mt. Vernon & Peerless Roads: Mrs. Cox
noted that the intersection of Upper Mt. Vernon & Peerless Roads
was referred to EUTS quite some time ago. The request came in
from the woman who wanted a traffic signal or flashing light or
something at that intersection (that was back on August 1lst). If

.Mr. Lindenschmidt is going to check with Rose Zigenfus on the

1llth Avenue speed limit, perhaps he can also ask her about this.

E-91]1 Service: She is not sure what the E-911 Service letter
means —- the subscribers who live in the far outskirts of our
County who are on this CONTEL exchange, but the letter is dated
September 2nd and it does show that our Board is on file as a
County and this Board is on file as wanting to get onto the E-911
Service. At one time there was a question as to whether we'd
sent this notification in or not. They are now following through
with some different proposals concerning the CONTEL exchange
subscribers, if we want to get them on our system. She believes
Mr. Borries has a copy of the subject letter.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Tues. Sept. 13 9:30 a.m. Zoning Subdivision Review
(Room 303)

Thurs. Sept. 15 8:30 a.m. Tax Adjustment Board
(Room 301)

4:00 p.m. Board of Zoning Appeals

(Room 301)

Friday Sept. 16 8:30 a.m. Tax Adjustment Board

(Room 301)
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RE: CLAIMS

Bowers, Harrison, Kent & Miller: Claim for legal fees in the
amount of $15,899.40. We do have money budgeted -- it was
budgeted because of pending litigation. 1In one particular case,
litigation will not now be necessary (the Elizabeth May case).
Commissioner Borries said it is his understanding that this
matter is settled -- and that is the major item on this
particular claim. The other matters involve claims against the
County that are handled through litigation.

Commissioner Cox asked if Mr. Borries knows what period this
covers?

Mr. Borries said late July and early August, particularly in
regard to the Elizabeth May case.

Attorney John said he believes the Elizabeth May case was a
separate trial (August 9th, be believes) and they were successful
in getting the County dismissed.

Mrs. Cox said we might note that the amount that has been
indicated as due on the Elizabeth May case of this total claim is
$10,446.62. And, we spent $531.50 on the Alexander Ambulance
Service account. She's not sure whether this is a paying
proposition. ’

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Borries, the claim was approved for payment. So ordered.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Area Plan Commission (Appointments)

Kathie Holly Bkkpr./Secy. $15,885/Yr. Eff: 9/12/88
Virginia Worthwein Deputy Admin. $15,512/Yr. Eff: 9/12/88

Area Plan Commission (Releases)

Virginia Worthwein Bkkpr./Secy. $15,512/Yr. Eff: 9/12/88
B. J. Gilles Deputy. Admin. $14,589/Yr. Eff: 9/12/88

There being no further business to come before the Board at this
time, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 3:55

p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries C. Mayo Curt John
R. L. Willner (Chief Deputy)
(Absent; il1l)
S. J. Cox
COUNTY ENGINEER COUNTY HIGHWAY EUTS
Dan Hartman C. Muensterman Rose Zigenfus
OTHER

Tom Bernardin/Bernardin-Lochmueller
Jack Alles/Morley & Associates

Jim Lindenschmidt

News Media
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SECRETARY: Joanne A. Matthews
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June 27' 1988.............................l................ 3
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
SEPTEMBER 19, 1988

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
7:30 p.m. on Monday, September 19, 1988, in the Commissioners
Hearing Room, with President Rick Borries presiding.

The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Borries.

RE: EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE/COUNTY-WIDE HAZARDOUS WASTE

President Borries said he does have one addition to make to the
meeting agenda. Fire Chief Doug Wilcox has another commitment
and he is here with regard to the County-wide Hazardous Waste
Emergency Response Plan developed through his leadership. This
has been an ongoing thing. Commissioner Borries welcomed Chief
Wilcox to the meeting.

Chief Wilcox said he doesn't know whether the attendees are aware
of the threat that each county in the country has imposed upon it
by hazardous materials. This is something that the Federal
government has addressed in times past with the Title 3
Legislation. Part of that legislation mandated that each state
have an emergency plan. Basically, what the legislation said was
that each community should identify any hazard that it has in the
community, that people have a right to know what that is, and
that the community has a responsibility to establish an emergency
plan on how to deal with each hazard.

Last August the state set up a State Commission and they
designated that the local counties put together a Local Emergency
Planning Group and they gave us until this October to come up
with a comprehensive plan for our County. The Commissioners
asked him to serve as Chairman of that committee and he agreed to
do that until such time as we had a plan in place and approved.
There were some 27 people appointed by the Commissioners. It was
mandated by the legislation that there be different people from
all segments of our community, both business, environmental
groups, local emergency response personnel, the news media,
several different categories -- and the Commission did comply
with that with their appointments. He will have to say the Board
made some excellent choices, because it sure made the job as
Chairman easy. Everyone worked together. A goal was set. Their
goal was to meet the deadline and he is here tonight to give each
of the Commissioners a copy of an approved Emergency Plan from
the Vanderburgh County Local Emergency Planning Committee. It is
a guideline for hazardous materials incidents. He thought they
would like to make it a part of the minutes to show that we have
complied well in advance of what the Federal government required.

Part of this legislation also requires that we make available any
information that is given to us. They not only have to report to
this Committee, but to their local fire department. So they had
all the Volunteer Departments plus the City of Evansville Fire
Department represented. They will make that information
available upon request. If the general public wants to know what
is out there, all they have to do is send them a request and the
Committee will see that they receive that.
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Again, he thanks the Board for their leadership in appointing the
good people to serve on that Committee, because, as Chairman,
this could have been a nightmare if he didn't have good people --
and he did have.

Commissioner Willner thanked Chief Wilcox. He said he thinks the
key to this group was its leadership, as in every other group.

He appreciates what Chief Wilcox has done, but he hopes we never
need this.

Chief Wilcox said he indicated he would stay on as Chairman until
such time as we had a plan together. It has been signed by the
President of the Commission and will be sent on to the State. We
are one of the first counties in the State of Indiana to comply
with this and he understands there are going to be a lot of them
that are not going to make the deadline. We have had several
counties request a copy of our plans so they can copy it.

Mr. Wilcox said when you start mentioning names you always forget
someone. However, Fred Hermann has been appointed the new
Chairman of this Committee and he was very instrumental in
helping the Committee put this plan together -- and he will do an
excellent job in the future. The Fire Department will still be
involved -- it will be represented by himself and Matt Timmel.

As you look through the Plan, it makes reference to different tab
sections and those sections will be added as the information
comes into the Fire Department. They will eventually have a map
of Vanderburgh County and they will identify each fixed site that
comes under the guidelines of this Area Title 3 ad it will be
added to this document -- so this is the beginning of it, not the
end. It will be a never-ending story.

Commissioner Willner asked if this names any equipment that
perhaps Mr. Wilcox's department doesn't have that might be
advantageous to Evansville and the surrounding area?

Mr. Wilcox said this is a basic plan required by Federal law and,
as he said, part of the plan that will be added is a listing of
all the departments within the County and what equipment they
have and what services they can provide. They hope to have this
information together within the next 30 to 90 days. Each one of
those tabs the plan makes reference to —-- there will be
information added to that and he will see that the Commissioners
get an updated copy as it comes along. The Committee has quite a
bit of work to do yet. We have complied with the law, but they
have not finished their job.

Commissioner Borries entertained comments.

Mrs. Cox queried Mr. Wilcox about Page 8 (Major Transportation
Routes for Hazardous Materials). They are working on that - to
establish the routes that the hazardous materials will take
through our County?

Mr. Wilcox said that is correct. As this thing unfolds, it is
done a step at a time and there is a great deal of information
that must be put together. One of the parts of the legislation
requires any facility in our County to report what they handle,
how much they handle, and how they handle it...and the Committee
has the job of compiling all that information to show where the
hazards are and what they are -- and they are in the process of
doing that now. To date we have over 50 companies in Vanderburgh
County that have reported to the Committee. Each month, as this
legislation is revised through the Federal Register, they are
changing the threshhold quantities and the chemicals on that
list. As he said, it is going to be a never-ending story. It is
something we'll have to work on continually. But the plan
presented gives us a good basic emergency plan, identifies all
the agencies that are involved, what each of them is expected to
do and also sets up an information center. Anytime we would have
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an incident, the first people we have to deal with is the News

Media =-- to make sure the proper information gets out -- and that
is addressed in the plan.

Commissioner Borries expressed thanks to Chief Wilcox for his
work. As Bob Willner has pointed out, with Chief Wilcox's
leadership we've been able to complete this particular plan in a
timely fashion and it is hoped this can sit for a while. This is
one you'd like to see on the shelf for some time.

Chief Wilcox said, "Right; we need to be prepared -- but we hope
we never have to use it."

Commissioner Cox echoed Commissioner Borries' thanks and said she
would also like for the Commission to send a letter of
appreciation to all those people who served on the Planning
Committee.

President Borries said a letter will be sent .

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Prior to proceeding with approval of minutes, President Borries
welcomed Commissioner Willner back from what sounds like the
throes of the flu.

A motion was entertained concerning approval of minutes from
meeting of August 29 and September 6, as well as June 17, 1988
(when Joanne Matthews was on vacation). The Chair entertained
comments.

Upon motion duly made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox the minutes of August 29th were approved as
engrossed by the County Auditor and reading of same waived. So
ordered.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the minutes of September 6, 1988 were approved
as corrected, and reading of same waived. So ordered.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox the minutes of June 27, 1988
were approved as engrossed by the County Auditor and reading of
same waived. So ordered.

RE: SCHEDULED EXECUTIVE SESSION

President Borries announced that an Executive Session of the
Board of Commissioners will be held on Monday, October 3, 1988 at
2:00 p.m. in Room 307 per County Attorney David Miller. The
purpose of the meeting is to discuss trial strategy in the cases
of JoAnn Reed and Mary Evans vs. Vanderburgh County. The news
media has been notified.

RE: REZONING PETITIONS

There are no Rezoning Petitions to be considered on Third
Readings this month.

VC-23-88/Petitioner, Dennis Bittner (First Reading): Requested
change in zoning is from Agricultural to C-4. Common known
address is 12400 Darmstadt Rd. Commissioner Borries asked if
there is anyone in the audience who wishes to speak concerning
this rezoning on a First Reading basis? The petition will be
introduced here and then forwarded to the Area Plan Commission
and will return to the Commissioners on Monday, October 17th, at
7:30 p.m. for Third Reading.
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There being no respcnse from the audience, Commissioner Cox asked
if Mr. Bittner lives on the property? If so, could he not under
our revised permit process for commercial/industrial development
in the City of Evansville maybe apply for a permit rather than to
ask for a rezoning of this magnitude out in that area?

Commissioner Borries said the address shown for Mr. Bittner is
12420 Darmstadt Road.

Commissioner Willner said he lives with his father and mother at
their address.

Mrs. Cox asked, "This is in the Town of Darmstadt?"
Mr. Willner said, "Yes; this is in the Town of Darmstadt."

Commissioner Borries said, "Then the Town Board of Darmstadt
should see this petition first."

Mrs. Cox echoed Mr. Borries' feelings. She said it should go to
the Town Board of Darmstadt first, then to Area Plan, then back
to the Town Board of Darmstadt.

Commissioners Willner and Borries agreed that this Petition is at
the wrong Board meeting. Commissioner Willner said he believes
thekTown Board of Darmstadt has a meeting on Thursday of this
week.

President Borries said VC-23-88 will be removed from the agenda
for consideration. The ordinance does state that it is real
estate in the Town of Darmstadt, so their Town Board would have
jurisdiction in this matter. Thus, the petition will be
forwarded to the Town Board of Darmstadt.

VC-24-88/Petitioner, Thomas K. Gabe (First Reading): Requested
rezoning is from C-4 to M-3. Proposed land use is a bulk fuel
distributor. Mr. Borries then entertained comments from the
audience regarding VC-24-88.

Commissioner Willner said he thinks this petition will be a
heated one, because the telephone calls are already starting.

Commissioner Cox said she would like it entered into the record
that she has received some telephone calls regarding this
requested rezoning. She knows it is in an industrial
subdivision, but to grant an M-3 rezoning adjacent to R-1 and R-3
seems quite a request -- especially for a bulk fuel distributor
-- and it looks like the petition indicates that the Petitioner
who is asking for this rezoning has yet to purchase the

property. She also recalls that maybe four or five years ago we
had a request from an individual who had already purchased
property in this subdivision with the understanding that he could
have his body shop and his body repair allowed in that commercial
court area, only to find that he could not and had to come for an
amendment to the rezoning. Therefore, she would have difficulty
supporting this request to an M-3 rezoning in that area. Of
course, the Board is not making a final decision tonight.

Commissioner Borries said he also received several calls on this
particular matter and would simply state that there is a concern
as to the kind of land use that is being considered here and its
closeness to residential areas.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Counsel, is there a precedent for not voting to
pass on a petition for rezoning on First Reading? Does our Board
have the jurisdiction to refuse?"

Attorney Miller said, "I think the only issue before you on First
Reading is whether or not the petition is in proper form to refer
to Area Plan for its recommendation. It would probably be a
denial of due process to do otherwise."

S
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Commissioner Borries again asked if there is anyone present who
wishes to speak to VC-24-88? There being no response a motion
was entertained.

Upon motion duly made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the petition was approved on First Reading for
forwarding to the Area Plan Commission. (Mrs. Cox said she would
second the motion only because it is the Board's responsibility
to proceed in such manner.) So ordered. President Borries
requested that the comments made at this meeting concerning this
petition be forwarded to the Area Plan Commission for their
consideration.

VC-25-88/Petitioner, Phillip A. Tschoppe (First Reading):
Requested rezoning is from M-1 to M-2. Common known address is
2340 N. Burkhardt Road. Proposed land use is for an aluminum
recycling facility.

Commissioner Willner asked, "Is that not just a pick-up station?
Are we talking about recycling aluminum or are we talking about
collection?"®

Commissioner Borries said, "I think he currently operates a
facility on Morgan Avenue."

Attorney Miller said, "This is about one quarter mile north of
his present facility before you reach 0ld Boonville Highway."

Commissioner Willner asked, "Would he need an M-2 zoning for a
recycling facility?"

Attorney Miller said he doesn't know, he'd have to check the Code
of Ordinances to determine that. But he sees that they have
consulted Area Plan's Counsel regarding this and he does know
there is some question in his mind at this point as to whether
there should be access off of Burkhardt Road to this property,
given the traffic patterns there. As he understands it, there is
a road there that intersects with Burkhardt and they are
considering a curb cut.

Commissioner Cox said she would also like to point out that in
the legal description it states that this area would contain a
gross area of 8.2 acres more or less -—- that is Number 1.
Secondly, on Page 1 of the petition under the County Surveyor's
certification where it says "Right-of-way" required -- and the
answer to that is "Yes" -- and this happens to be on North
Burkhardt Road.

Attorney Miller said, "That was referred to me for a question,
Mrs. Cox, about a week ago and the question was put to me as to
whether or not it could be made a condition of this rezoning that
the land owner relinquish 20 ft. of right-of-way along Burkhardt
Road and after doing some reading of two or three recent cases, I
rendered the opinion that it could not be made a condition --
that under recent Supreme Court cases it could be constituted as
taking of property without just compensation. The right-of-way
is needed and the landowner knows it is needed, but he is not
willing to donate it. So there is a knowledge on the part of
everyone combined that there is right-of-way required. My
initial inclination -- as a matter of personality, I guess - was
to tell him that is a condition -- but we can't do that."

Mrs. Cox said, "I do assume, too, that we have adequate set-back
lines and that can be a condition in the rezoning."

Attorney Miller said, "Yes, it can -- that's exactly right." (If
you will excuse me, I have to speak on behalf of my little boy's
school over in City Council and I will return as quickly as I
can." )
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Mrs. Cox said the Board will try not to get into any legal
ramifications while he is gone.

Mrs. Cox said, "I am not exactly sure what is meant by 'aluminum
recycling facility' -- I would point out that they are on City
water and on electricity and on a public sewer, rather than a
septic system. I would also point out that, according to our

- report from Area Plan for that area, our sewers and pumping
stations are reaching a maximum out in that area and I would
assume that any recycling facility -- no matter what it is --
would need to have large amounts of water and a large capacity in
the sewer systems. With those concerns expressed at this
meeting, I would move that VC-25-88 be approved on First Reading
and forwarded to Area Plan."

A second to the motion was made by Commissioner Borries. So
ordered.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

Weekly Work Report/County Highway Garage: Mr. Muensterman
submitted copies of the Weekly Work Report for Employees at the

. County Highway Garage for period of September 12 thru September
16, 1988...........report received and filed.

Gradall: Little Cynthiana Rd. & Wimberg Rd.
Paving Crew: Hillview Rd. and Boonville-New Harmony Rd.
Patch Crew: Scott, Heppler, Martin Station, Boonville-

New Harmony, Karendale Ct., Darmstadt, Baseline,
Schmuck and Schissler Roads

Grader: St. Joe Avenue, 0l1d 460, Schmuck, Bridgeview,
Staub Lane, Swope and Hillside Rd.

Mower : Wimberg, Baseline (West), Mesker Park Drive and
intersection of Red Bank and Upper Mt. Vernon
Mo-Trim: Motz, Jobe's Lane and Middle Mt. Vernon
. Tree Crew: Green River, St. Joe Avenue, Upper Mt. Vernon,
Creamery and County Line Intersection and

Honeysuckle Drive

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew.....report
received and filed.

— Built retaining walls on Baehl and Boonville-New Harmony
Rds.

- Repaired washouts (2) on Nurrenbern and one (1) on
Boonville-New Harmony Rds.

~ Replaced culvert on Miller Rd.

. - Replaced guard rail on Woods Rd. Bridge and cleaned up
junk

- Cut grass and painted rail on Mill, Burkhardt, Baseline,
Owensville, Frontage, Wallenmeyer, Pruitt, Maasberg,
Little Schaefer, Broadway Avenue and Dieffenbach Rd.

- Cut roads to install culverts on Neu Road

. RE: CONTRACT FOR SALT

Mr. Muensterman said he would also like to submit the contract
for Salt (Sodium Chloride) for 1989 for the Board's
consideration. It was bid by the State.
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President Borries explained the bid on Sodium Chloride is handled

and offered through the State Highway Commission. He believes

Mr. Muensterman has reviewed this and found it in order. 1Is that

correct?
Mr. Muensterman confirmed that this is correct.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Is Calcium Chloride also included or is this
just for Sodium Chloride?"

Mr. Borries said it is for Sodium Chloride. The Board will take
the bid under advisement and defer action until next week..

RE: MOTZ ROAD

Mr. Muensterman said Mrs. Cox was inquiring about Motz Road at
the last meeting and he said he'd give her an update this week.
Lee Stuckey is working on that with a Mrs. White and she is here
today. He also believes Mr. Stuckey has a meeting with her on
Tuesday, September 27th. They are getting together to plan what
we can do out there -- because the road will have to be widened
before it is paved.

Mrs. White asked for permission to approach the podium and
Commissioner Borries granted same.

Mrs. White said Mr. Stuckey was out on Motz Road today and walked

it. First of all, she really appreciates the Commission taking
knowledge in the spring of the problem out on Motz Road. She
especially wants to thank Commissioner Cox for having patience
with her during the summer, because she knows she has annoyed
Mrs. Cox quite a bit. She would like to get something done
possibly during the month of October. We're coming up on the
season for Mr. Stocker's tree farm, which the prime season is
from Thanksgiving until Christmas. She has also been told that
the asphalt plants close down in November. Mr. Stuckey led her
to believe today that it was really with the legal aspects of
getting the landowners to give up the land that was needed to
widen the road ~- that there might be some problem with getting
that all legalized and getting on the project and trying to take
care of it before November. However, she has been in contact
with all the neighbors and she told Mr. Stuckey this evening she
believes Mr. Willner had said he would come to a meeting if the
neighbors would have it; and she knows Mrs. Cox offered to come
to a meeting of the neighbors; and if Mr. Borries would be able
to come -- possibly next Wednesday or Thursday.

Mr. Borries indicated his agreement to attend.

Continuing, Mrs. White said, "I'd like to opt to have a Notary
there, maybe some preliminary papers where the people can give
right-of-way. She talked to Mr. Jeffers, who is going to try to
get out there and finish the surveying this week and have

everything lined out to where we can get something signed. If we

need to get bids put out -- get those taken care of and get that
done and maybe get the ball rolling and press to get this done
before November, because as she said previously, we're working
with a time bomb situation where someone might get hurt or there
may be a fatality -- and the children are still walking. I
brought a whole bunch of pictures to show the needed repairs

before winter. I feel that in order to make these repairs -- put

more gravel on and more grading -- that is just more money to be

washed away through the winter. If we can get in there while the

ground is dry now after the dry summer, do the excavating, and
Mr. Stuckey and I agreed that we could take care of that with
existing dirt. We had a very nice meeting today and we both
agreed that this could be taken care of. But he seemed to think
that the time factor would be the legal aspect. Again, this
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evening I checked with as many neighbors as possible and I think
I have taken care of everyone. Mr. Stocker is willing to give up
enough land to put a turnaround in for the school bus; he has
opted to have the bridge fixed which will go to the caretaker's
house (which will eliminate the expense of that); and I think
with all those aspects, if we can get everybody to work together
and get the guidance, we can get through another winter without
fear of the fire department not being able to get back there to
fight a fire from a wood stove. And, in the summer, we worry
about grass fires because I believe there is letter on record
from the German Township Volunteer Fire Department stating that
they would be unable to get emergency vehicles back in that area
-~ that it would be difficult. And I am just here to plead with
you to give me all the help you can and try to get this done
before Thanksgiving, which would be Mr. Stocker's busiest time.
Mr. Jeffers led me to believe that if we can get the surveying
done and the engineers on it and get the excavating bid out -- or
if the County can do it -- that within a week or two they could
get a road put down for us. So I'm asking for all the help I can
get. As you can see, it would be a waste of County money to
repair this road -- and it is not going to make it through the
winter -- and we have around 15 houses there now and two (2) new
ones that will be going up this spring. I just feel with the
traffic and the children walking -- last fall we did count as
many as 45 cars on a Saturday going in and out two ways -- and
there is a hazard with the school bus not coming back. We have
parents six and seven cars at a time blocking St. Joe-St. Wendel
Road -- and I think we have a lot of hazards that just can't be
put off. I know there are a lot of roads in the County and I've
been down a lot of them. But I do feel we have a great need here
and I just ask that you help me get this done before winter
without wasting more money on it."

Commissioner Borries commended Mrs. White on a fine presentation
and entertained comments from the Commissioners.

Commissioner Cox said, "I would say that I tend to agree with
Mrs. White in her assessment of the repairs that have been made
to the road and I think the pictures point out very well that due
to the narrowness of the road we lose the crushed stone or gravel
(whatever is placed on the road) and culverts have been put in --
due to the narrowness and people getting off the shoulder. And I
am as concerned as she expressed regarding the safety aspect
here. There are a lot of children in the area and walking back
or making provisions for them to get up Motz Lane to the school
bus area is certainly a hazardous situation. I would be willing
to do all that I could to help move this along at a rapid pace.
And I do know that we have accepted both temporary and permanent
right-of-way from individuals to improve projects and I don't
think there was a very long time period involved in doing this.

I think the amount of time that would be needed is to amend the
deed of the property owners indicating that this grant has been
made and it would seem that as long as the agreement was there
that this could be done after the fact. But I, too, would agree
with the residents and Mrs. White's presentation that we need to
do this now. We're in a good construction period. If we put
this off until next year, we're only going to have to go through
a very bad time during the winter, plus the usual spring rains,
which tend to delay construction projects of this nature because
there will have to be some moving of dirt out in the area to
increase the safety of that road. So that's all I have to say.

I do want to thank you for coming tonight and updating us and I
do want to thank Mr. Muensterman for pursuing this and also Mr.
Jeffers for his input and all working together to get the project
started.”

Commissioner Borries again thanked Mrs. White for attending
tonight's meeting. He then asked Mr. Jeffers if he has any idea
as to approximately how many parcels of property we'd be talking
about?

£z
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Mr. Jeffers said that earlier this year Mr. Dick Gwinn pulled all
the deeds on the Motz Road project and has them all laid out on a
map. He doesn't recall exactly how many parcels, but he is sure
Mrs. White could tell them how many property owners are involved
between St. Wendel Road and the Stocker Tree Farm,

Mrs. White said there are eleven {11).

Proceeding, Mr. Jeffers said, "I don't recall exactly everything
that Mrs. White referred to in that particular time frame. I
believe I said that once all the necessary construction work was
done I thought the road could be paved in a week. The crew that
the County has now I've observed casually, and they're doing an
extra fast job of paving. And some of the roads they have paved
in an amazingly short period of time -- and that is why I told
Mrs. White (which I'm not authorized to make statements on behalf
of the Highway Department) -- I just made a casual observation
that the County crew was capable of paving a road of that type in
two to five days. They have done that and they are doing an
excellent job. But I had no idea whether the Highway Department
or the Commissioners were contemplating doing the work with their
gradall and other equipment from the garage, or whether they
contemplated enough excavation to hire a contractor. And I think
I explained that to Mrs. White.

We have done some preliminary surveying to coordinate what Mr.
Gwinn has laid out on a map with distances and other information
we collected in the field and we plan on continuing that this
week. So if you direct your County Engineer to prepare a plan
for the road, he will have our field notes to work with. We
should be finished with our survey of that by the end of the
week.

Commissioner Borries asked, "Cletus, at this point, do you have
any preliminary observations as to whether we'd be able to do
this with the equipment (I know we could do the paving, as Bill
has said) we have."

Mr. Muensterman said it will take some time -- especially the
widening of the road.

Mr. Borries asked if Mrs. White knows how wide the road is now in
terms of the gravel?

Mrs. White offered comments but they were inaudible, because she
was speaking from her seat.

Mr. Jeffers said their survey shows it is definitely a one-lane
road. Up towards St. Wendel it is probably 14 ft. to 15 ft. wide
and then it goes down to maybe 12 ft. or 10 ft. down by the
subdivision.,

Mrs. White offered comments about a culvert for the turnaround or
something to that effect (it's not very far from the County
Line). (Again, she was speaking from her seat and comments were
not clear.) She said when she talked to Mr. Stocker this
afternoon he said he would probably keep that lane forever -- he
doesn't plan to subdivide anything. She does think that back on
the part where the road narrows, she believes a couple of utility
poles are stretched 5 ft. to 6 ft. from the road edge.

Mr. Jeffers explained, "What the County has out there is a
roadway that the records show -- and like our records are only
from 1818 through 1981, at which time the full time County
Engineer took over the maintenance of the right-of-way records --
but our older records show back in the 1830's that this road
started at the County Line on the sectionline between Section 18
and 19 and runs along the sectionline up to the caretaker's
house. At the caretaker's house, it wanders off the sectionline
around over the bridge and back up onto the sectionline again,
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then it runs due east to a point where it turns and goes
northeast to St. Wendel Road. It is pretty much described from
here to there -- there are no bearings or dimensions or anything
like that -- and there is no right-of-way mentioned in our books.
The pole line that Mrs. White is speaking of generally runs along
the west side of the road. What we found out there is that
pretty much the centerline of the road is the sectionline and
then the pole line that they are talking about runs on that
sectionline where the road wanders off -- it stays on the
sectionline. I think that the utility company just put that pole
line as close as they could to the road because there is no
dedicated right-of-way. And that is what you're after -- the
dedication of some right-of-way.

The other point she made about these legal documents, etc. —-
Linda Freeman has just finished today all the right-of-way
descriptions for the Oak Grove Road project and it took her about
three days or so to write those. Before that, it took about
three or four days for us to bring the information up from the
deeds into a form that she could put into the word processor. So
we're talking about a week's work just to get the right-of-way
forms together. We won't have them ready this Wednesday. Or 1is
that a week from this Wednesday?

Mrs. White said the 27th of September.

Mr. Jeffers continued, "Possibly we could. But if you just
wanted to go out there and get 50 ft. north and south of the
sectionline, you can do that right away. 1In other words, Jjust
bring the deed up and say ‘'including a right-of-way for Motz Road
- the south 50 ft. of Parcel A or the north 50 ft. of Parcel B --
depending which side of the road you're on. But when you get to
that curve, we're going to have to write those deeds on a metes
and bounds -- and that is going to take a little doing."

Mrs. Cox said, "So we'd be talking about 25 ft. off of each
property owner?"

Mr. Jeffers said, "I'd take 50 ft. -- if you want to really get
it and get it now -- without us finishing this survey up, we
don't know how far back the Highway Department is going to want
to lay those banks back where it goes over the crest of some of
the hills. It may take 50 ft. on each side. We don't have the
survey finished, but that will tell the engineer what he can do
with the ground. But as far as having those right-of-way
descriptions ready for a Notary that she may have at her house
next Wednesday, I'm not sure we can do that. We can try, but I'm
not sure we could get that far by next Wednesday."

Mr. Borries asked if Mrs. White will approach the podium and

state her name and address -- the secretary will have to
transcribe these minutes and he hopes what she has said can be
heard. He should have asked her to come forward earlier -- but

this frequently happens.

Mrs. White complied with the request and said her name is Jeanne
White and ner P. O. Box Number is 4341, Evansville, IN 47724 and
ner street address is 9525 Motz Road.

Mr. Borries again thanked Mrs. White for attending the meeting
and said the Board will try to work with her as quickly as they
can to move things along. He then asked Dan Hartman to look over
the situation during the coming week and subsequently give the
Board a report.

Mrs. White queried the Commissioners concerning the width of the
road -- she doesn't understand what Mr. Jeffers is saying about
getting 50 ft. right-of-way now if we can get it -- she doesn't
understand why we can't just widen the road enough for two cars
to pass or at least room to pull off, without going in and saying
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now we're going to have to make the road wider. As Mr. Stuckey
led her to believe today, even at the beginning we didn't have to
take any of the existing property except that at the back, which
is not developed at this time. She doesn't understand why they
can't just make it wide enough for two cars to pass or a school
bus to pass when Mr. Stocker has opted to give the County enough
for turnaround and make the road wider -- and he's giving up this
property willingly -- then why do we have to go along and take
that much from everybody, whether we need it or not? She's a
little confused. 1Is this just a legal thing that has to be done?
She's been down some of the roads they've already paved this year
and they are not as wide as everybody seems to think she is
asking for. She is asking for a two-car width -- not a four-lane
interstate. Perhaps she is misunderstanding.

Commissioner Cox said it seems we could treat this project -- it
is admittedly much more expensive -- but we did some improvement
out on Mill Rd. and Happe Rd. and that didn't necessitate, you
know, widening out of the pavement width that was already
there. She doesn't know that this road would have to be built to
our minimum standards. But she can understand the County
Surveyor's recommending and pointing out what our minimum
standards are -- and then we make any deviation, I suppose, from
what we feel necessary. But we do have 12 ft. On our final
pavement list there is 12 ft., there is 14 ft., there is 16 ft.,
there is 18 ft., there is 29 ft. of asphalt in some of these
subdivisions -- so it varies in different areas.

Mr. Jeffers said, "Just for purposes of comparison -- and I think
Mr. Willner would be more familiar with this project than anyone
else -- on Buente Road, the type of work that I think is going to
be contemplated on Motz Road is almost the same as on Buente. Do
you recall how many feet of right-of-way was asked for on
Buente?"

Mr. Willner responded, "As in all projects, it is different in
different places, depending upon the what the centerline of the
road is where you are. Nobody knows anything about Motz Road.

It has zero footage -- so you try to go to your ordinance and it
tells you that you need 50 ft. the same as anybody else for a
standard County road, unless it is a dead-end road (which this
one is) and then you can go 40 ft. So that is the criteria for
this road -- either 50 ft. or 40 ft. It really doesn't matter to
me one way or the other -- but if you've got a hilly terrain such
as this, the more right-of-way you can get is what you want. We
not only want to put in a new road, you want drainage and you
want the road to last twenty (20) years. So the first thing you
do is to go for 40 ft. or 50 ft. right-of-way total. That's the
first thing you do and I don't think it is going to be that

easy. I hope you're right. I hope everybody is standing there
with pencil in hand."

Mr. Jeffers explained, "What Mr. Willner is saying is that is 25
ft. either side of the centerline. But what I was saying is that
at times when you have to go over a hill and you have to lay that
bank back to keep it out of the ditch that they want dug to keep
the water off the road, you may need at least some temporary
right-of-way in addition to that 25 ft."

Mrs. Cox interjected, "And please understand that the 25 ft. goes
from the center of the road. We're not asking for 25 ft.
additional off of what is there now -- but from the center of the
road that is there."

Mrs. White said, "If we can have a meeting with all the
neighbors, I think you will find that everybody is pretty much
willing -- as there is more than one potential danger out there
and I think everybody is willing to give as much as possible and
reasonable. And I think if we can get together and explain then
I think everybody will be willing to do whatever they can."




COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 12
September 19, 1988

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER - DAN HARTMAN

President Borries called on County Engineer Dan Hartman for his
report.

Oak Grove Road Project: Mr. Hartman said his office has been
working on the Oak Grove Road Project and they're to the point
now where we need approximately $78,000.00 transferred from the
Bridge Account money. With the Board's permission, he'd like to
have that at this time.

Bridges #34 & #35 (Outer Darmstadt Rd.): Mr. Hartman asked if
Mr. Willner has inspected Bridges #34 & #35 on Outer Darmstadt
Road? This work has been scheduled under next year's projects,
but they'd like to update it a bit and have it done this year if
they can do so. Again, it was budgeted for the year 1989 -- but
if we can update it, we can get it that much sooner and that much
more use out of it and he would request the Board's permission
for money for these projects. So we need approximately
$150,000.00 for Bridge #34 and approximately $125,000.00 for
Bridge #35. These two projects could be bid at the same time, as
Mrs. Cox has suggested.

Commissioner Borries asked for comments or a motion.

Commissioner Willner said, "I don't even know what they're going
to put there at Oak Grove -- I sure want to see the plans first."

Mrs. Cox said, "It's a culvert; I understood you had seen those
plans."

Mr. Hartman said, "We're putting a 12 ft. wide by 8 ft. deep
culvert there, 48 ft. long (they come in 4 ft. increments), plus
two concrete headwalls, plus 1,000 ft. of pavement and drainage
work. The price of $78,000 includes the roadway work."

Commissioner Willner said, "That is all right with me."
Commissioner Borries asked if there is a motion?

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox, the request for the Oak
Grove Road Improvement Project of $78,000.00 for transfer from
Cumulative Bridge Funds was approved, with a second from
Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Mr. Hartman said he is asking for $150,000.00 for Bridge #34 on
Outer Darmstadt Road. This includes the deck, the abutments, and
guard rails and approaches.

Mrs. Cox asked, "In other words, this includes everything? The
materials, the labor? And the right-of-way?"

Mr. Hartman said, "Everything. No right-of-way is required.

This is merely the bridge work itself and approaches. Again, I
say we have budgeted for next year, but with your permission we'd
like to update it."

Mrs. Cox said, "I certainly would like to include in any motion
that we look at this in terms of companion projects and take an
Alternate Bid on bidding both projects with a discount for
getting both bridges. I've seen specs like that.”

Mr. Hartman said, Yes; we can bid them separately or tegether as
a proviso."

Mr. Willner asked, "Are these monies in next year's budget?"

Mr. Hartman said the monies are in the 1989 budget.
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Commissioner Willner said, "You can't go before Council and get
them approved this year. I don't know what you're asking for."

Mr. Hartman said, "Well, it is coming from the Cumulative Bridge
Fund and with your permission I think we can do that."

Mrs. Cox said, "No, you would have to ask for appropriations for
these bridges out of the Cumulative Bridge Fund."

Mr. Willner said, "That's what he's already done for next year's
budget."

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, what he is asking is to move these up and
be able to get started on them and award the contract prior to
January lst; I would think that is what he is asking for."

Mr. Hartman verified that this is what he is asking.

Commissioner Willner said, "You can't do that. You can't let a
contract until you have money in your hand."

Mrs. Cox, "That is what I am saying. If we don't move on it,
we'll have to wait until after January 1 to even do anything."

Mr. Hartman interjected, "The money is in the Cumulative Bridge
Fund. It is there for us to use. Whether we use it this year or
next year is up to you men and women."

Commissioner Borries asked, "He's saying he wants to go on
Council Call. When do we go on Council Call?"

Mrs. Cox, "Well, we'll have to wait now, because -- you weren't
here last meeting, Bob, and you've had the bridge plans to look
at (that is what you requested and you've had them what -- two

weeks or whatever it was) and it had to be delayed. And I'm sure
it is probably too late to get in the advertisement for the
October Council Call. Have you sent those in yet, Joanne?"

County Auditor Sam Humphrey said they have been sent in.

Commissioner Willner said, "I'm not in that big a hurry.myself,
I'll wait. You can do anything you want to get them ready -- you
can do that anyhow -- you just can't let the contract.”

Mrs. Cox said, "But we've got them ready, Bob, and, you know,
this has been looked at now for quite a lengthy period and this
is some of our carry-over project that we're trying to get worked
out for improved drainage out in the Big Creek area -- and I
don't see why we should be concerned about holding them up any
longer. 1If we wait -- this is good construction season right
now. Fall is always good construction season. If we wait until
January 1 and we get in the rains and snows and everything it is
going to make it a lot more difficult. If Sam can get them
advertised, do you have any problem with just asking the Council
for the request to move these forward?"

Commissioner Willner said, "No, I don't have any problem. Go
ahead.™

Motion was made by Commissioner Cox that permission be granted to
go on Council Call requesting funds for bridge improvements
(Replacement) to Bridges #34 & #35 on Outer Darmstadt Road in the
amount of $150,000.00 and $125,000.00, respectively, and
$78,000.00 appropriation for the Oak Grove Road project.

Commissioner Willner asked if she wants to make the motion,
taking them one at a time?
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Mrs. Cox said she will rescind her other motion concerning
permission for transfer of $78,000. She thought maybe we had
that in our Cumulative Bridge Fund budget contractual services.
We do not?

Mr. Willner said, "No."

Mr. Hartman said, "We're doing work on Oak Grove Road, which is
under contractual services. But we have eliminated 1,000 ft. of
that because of this project."”

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox, permission was granted to
go on Council Call in the amount of $78,000.00 for the Oak Grove
Road Culvert installation and approaches, with a second from
Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox, permission was granted to
go on Council Call requesting appropriation of funds for a
replacement Bridge #34 in the amount of $150,000.00 and Bridge
#35 in the amount of $125,000.00, with a second from Commissioner
Willner. So ordered.

Mrs. Cox asked if the Board can also respectfully request the
County Auditor to see if at all possible that these two requests
for allocation of bridge fund monies be included in this month's
advertising so that they could be heard by Council at the October
meeting.

Commissioners Borries and Willner verbally agreed.
RE: AGREEMENT WITH UNITED CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. FOR

RIGHT-OF~-WAY ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR GREEN RIVER ROAD
PROJECT ME-340(3)

President Borries said the Commissioners received an agreement
(which was reviewed through Rose Zigenfus) from United Consulting
Engineers, Inc. for right-of-way engineering services for Green
River Road, Project ME-340(3) for approval. As indicated in the
cover letter, this agreement concerns right-of-way engineering
work items to be furnished by United Consulting Engineers, Inc.
and that total engineering fee would be in the sum of $50,280.00.
Right-of-way engineering items to be furnished by Vanderburgh
County will include twenty year title search $5,000 title
insurance required for parcels when the appraised values is over
$5,000 right-of-way stake out of proposed right-of-way limits;
appraisal analysis and fee estimate. As stated, these plans have
been reviewed through EUTS and forwarded to the Commissioners.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Now, who is to provide those services that
Vanderburgh County is supposed to be providing?"

Mr. Borries said, "Well, the appraisal analysis -- and those will
have to be advertised and I think invitations at that point -- or
people who will do that work locally."

Mrs. Cox asked, "If we have not yet agreed on the exact type of
highway or roadway we want in this area, would that affect the
right-of-way engineering?"

Mr. Borries replied, "That is not my understanding -- not at
all.,"

Mr. Willner said, "Nope."

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, if we don't have a paved, raised median, we
certainly wouldn't need as much right-of-way, would we?"

Mr. Willner said, "The turn lanes -- yes. It's exactly the same
right-of-way."

S F
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Mrs., Cox said, "Well, I don't think I understand it. I just
don't understand it that way. Until we determine how many lanes
the road is going to be from one spot to another spot and maybe
not be the full four-lane with a paved, raised median the entire
length....how do you see that, Rick?"

Mr. Borries, "Well, the right-of-way is going to proceed
according to Federal standards. The design for the median or any
kind of turn lane, Shirley, would not, as I understand it, affect
any right-of-way that has to be purchased along that route. 1If
you're going to go through a Federal and State project you still
have widths that have to be followed."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Does it state the minimum right-of-way that
they're going to..."

Mr. Willner interjected, "It says the Consultant shall provide
right-of-way engineering in accordance with the procedures and
standards as indicated in the I.D.0.H. Right-of-Way Acquisition
and Procedure Manual for Local Public Agencies: Prepare final
right-of-way plans showing limits of additional right-of-way
required; prepare metes and bounds legal description for
permanent right-of-way ($390,000 per parcel x 48 parcels);
description for temporary right-of-way; individual plat drawings
for permanent right-of-way ($220.00 per parcel x 48 parcels);
transfer documents and all parcels taken."

Mrs. Cox said, "See, that is my point. Have we determined how
much right-of-way is necessary at this time? And much ground is
going to be taken? Because during some of the testimony at the
Public Hearing on this there were questions raised by the
individuals in attendance at that meeting as to the necessity of
making this additional request for right-of-way."

Attorney Miller interjected, "I think you may be assuming
something that is not correct and that is that just because the
Consultant is engaged, that does not mean that if there is a
question about how wide the highway is to be at a certain point
for the roadway that the Consultant will immediately begin the
engineering work that is required. I am sure the Consultant, who
is going to have to be working with and through the Indiana
Department of Highways is going to not want to do his work twice
-~ and therefore make his design judgments based upon the
ultimate plans and right-of-way determinations of those who are
going to make those determinations. This does not say that if
there is uncertainty the work is going to go forward anyway."

Mrs. Cox said, "I am not sure that he would want to do it twice
without our paying him twice for it -- and that would be my
concern —-- to know what -- I don't see how they can bid on the
total cost of this until they know what the scope of our project
is going to be."”

Attorney Miller asked, "Well, isn't that their job? The document
says that it is their job to prepare final right-of-way plans --
and they can't prepare final right-of-way plans until there is a
decision made by the appropriate public body as to what they
want, in general, the highway to look like. These people are
being hired to prepare those final plans."

Mrs. Cox asked, "But what are they basing their $50,000.00 on?
What are they basing the work that is going to be necessary or
the needed work for right-of-way engineering service the
$50,280.00 on? Where do they come up with that figure, when we
do not yet at this time have a final plan for North Green River
Road?"

Attorney Miller responded, "That is their job -- to prepare a
final plan -- that is what that says."
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Mrs. Cox, "No, they are being paid for doing the final
engineering plan. We've already got a contract with them for
that. This is over and above the original contract that we have
with them. This is additional service. This is for right-of-way
engineering."

Attorney Miller said, "Well, let me call your attention to
services that the Consultant will render: Just checking the
contract quickly, the services to be provided by this Agreement
are as set out in Appendix "A" an integral part hereof. You go
to Appendix "A" and it says, 'The Consultant shall provide
right-of-way engineering, including the following: 1) Prepare
final right-of-way plans'. So I assume they will prepare final
right-of-way plans and provide metes and bounds legal
descriptions for us so that we will know what we have to buy.
That is how I read the contract."

Commissioner Cox said, "I don't understand it at all -- I just
don't know. I thought we had a contract with them to do the
design.”"

Mr. Hartman said, "There was a contract with them for design of
the North Green River and this is for the opinion of right-of-way
(searching, descriptions, writing)."

Mrs. Cox said, "That is my point. How can we determine what
right-of-way we're going to need until we know what the scope of
the work area is going to be on North Green River Road?"

Attorney Miller stated, "They will obviously rely upon the plans
that the Design Engineers are now working on in order to prepare
final right-of-way plans. This appears to me to be Step 2."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Is this on a percentage basis or the total
contract? Is that the way these work? I don't understand -- I'm
just trying to get these clarifications.”

Mr. Borries asked, "Dan, do you know what the right-of-way is in
terms of North Green River Road? I know that they have done a
Title Analysis of all that particular area.”

Mr. Willner interjected, "You know, some right-of-way has to be
purchased, particularly in the north end of the project. Less on
the southern end of it." '

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, my question was simply -- can we award a
contract for right-of-way engineering services for the North
Green River Road project when we do not at this time have a final
decision on what the scope of the work is going to be? That was
all I asked. That was my question.”

Attorney Miller said, "The answer to that is yes you can, because
the design work you are talking about is a necessary prerequisite
to them performing the final right-of-way plans and giving us the
bounds descriptions so we will know what we have to acquire. I
don't see any inconsistency in that."

Mrs. Cox said, "That is all I needed to know."

The Chair entertained a motion.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the agreement was approved. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - DAVID MILLER

President Borries welcomed Attorney Miller and asked for any
report he has at this time.
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Attorney Miller said he has only one thing to report and that is
that the Motion to Correct Errors filed by Mr.Dale Thene, after
he was subjected to a Judgment in favor of the County on a Motion
for Summary Judgment, has been denied. That is to say, the
Motion to Correct Errors has been denied and he would expect that
Mr. Thene is going to file an Appeal with the Indiana Court of
Appeals. The Commissioners will recall that Mr. Thene is the
individual who, although he is now a Deputy Sheriff, had sued the
County for a substantial amount of additional and back wages
claiming that during a period of several years when he was a
Civilian Jailer before he was a Deputy he should have been paid
at the legal rate of a regular deputy. The importance of that
case is that if Mr. Thene had been successful we would have faced
the responsibility of paying roughly twelve or thirteen other
people who were in the same situation. We have defeated his
claim now two times and he expects we will defeat it again in the
Court of Appeals. But that is the stage of that litigation.
There have been no other developments since he was here last.

RE: TELEPHONE REQUEST - SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

Commissioner Borries submitted a request from Sheriff Shepard
indicating he'd like an additional telephone line to be used as a
Trustee phone. They now have one unit with two plug-in locations
for the same line (5147). This is used for incoming new inmates
as well as Trustees. The new phone needs to be a wall phone with
an on-off switch in the Jailer's second floor office. This
switch is needed for security reasons prior to and after
departures of prison trips. The 5147 line needs to remain
outside the second floor Jailer's office.

Mr. Lindenschmidt said he called KLF to see what it would cost to
have this work done. The phone and parts would run $75.00 and
they are estimating the labor at anywhere from $120.00 to
$135.00, so the Board is talking about a cost of $195.00 to
$230.00 for that phone. After that the only cost would be the
monthly service contract on it.

‘A motion was entertained.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Borries, the request was approved. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY TREASURER - MONTHLY REPORT

Mr. Borries submitted copies of the Monthly Report from the
County Treasurer for the month of August......report received and
filed.

RE: TRAVEL REQUEST - AREA PLAN COMMISSION

Also submitted was a travel request from Barbara Cunningham of
the Area Plan Commission to attend an all-day Indiana Planning
Association Meeting beginning at 9:00 a.m. on September 23rd in
Indianapolis. Since it is an all-day meeting she is asking to go
the night before. The only expenses will be transportation and
meals.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner the request was approved. §So ordered.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

The Chair entertained matters of old business for discussion.

Aspen Drive Sinkhole Problem/Storm Sewer Maintenance: Attorney
Miller said he does have an update he neglected to give to the
Commissioners. They will recall two or three weeks ago when Mr.
Steve Miller of Citizen's Realty was here and concern was
expressed about the maintenance of storm sewers that are
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constructed in subdivisions and then pass out of the public
right-of-ways into private right-of-ways and he has not forgotten
the Board's request to investigate this and develop a solution to
that matter. He has initiated some research into case law that
has not been concluded. They have contacted the Indiana
Association of Counties on two occasions and asked that they
provide us with any examples of ordinances that may have
addressed this matter. There was some confusion the first time
they were contacted. We did not get back what we had requested.
It is a good Association and we have talked with them again. 1In
any event, his office is working on providing the Board with a
suggested solution, but it is a pretty complex problem and will
take a while. Jeff Harlan of his office has been assigned to do
the basic work-up. He checked with him today and he is actively
pursuing it.

The Chair entertained further matters of o0ld business for
discussion.

Evansville Industrial Foundation, Inc.: Mrs. Cox said this is
not old business. But she did receive a telephone call and a
carbon copy of a letter file marked September 19th from the
Evansville Industrial Foundation (Patrick Vercauteren's
secretary) requesting that the portion of Hedden Road that
extends north of Kansas Road into the Airport Industrial Park be
accepted for maintenance.

Commissioner Borries said he forwarded that correspondence to Dan
Hartman.

Commissioner Cox said, "I would move that the correspondence be
forwarded to Dan Hartman and the Surveyor's office at the same
time for a review of compliance with the drainage plan that was
submitted.”

Commissioner Willner said, "I don't think we're really ready for
that yet. They're going to have to do some work on that road to
bring it up to County standards before it is even ready for
inspection.”

Mrs. Cox said, "I assume that when you get a petition or a
request in for acceptance of a road -- what you do is send the
County Engineer out to do the inspection to find out what needs
to be done on it to bring it up to standards and get a report
back."

Mr. Borries said "I think they've indicated there is some kind of
repair work that is going to take place there."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Well, isn't that the proper procedure that this
Board takes when a petition comes in? That it is referred to the
County Engineer...."

Commissioner Willner said, "I consider that as a warning that
that is going to come forth. The petition isn't here. 1In other
words, they are just putting us on notice that they are going to
do this work and then they are going to come back with the
petition. That is the way I read it."

Mrs. Cox: "All right then, I stand corrected.”

Commissioner Borries commented, "I forwarded that to Dan for his
review and I'm sure you're going to look to see what kind of
conditions are there."

Mrs. Cox said, "And I don't see that it hurts at all for the
Surveyor to take a look at it for compliance with the drainage
plan, rather than Mr. Hartman come back and then we have to refer
it to the Surveyor and have a delay on it. I don't see any
reason that we can't go ahead and have both entities look at it

6.
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and make the necessary requests for corrections -- if there are
some -- and let them do this. There may be others than those

pointed out here. I don't know."

Commissioner Borries said we'll ask the Surveyor's office to do
the same then.

RE: VANDERBURGH AUDITORIUM/ELEVATOR & RESTROOM IMPROVEMENTS

Commissioner Borries said that Roger Lehman of the Building
Commission has sent a memo regarding review of the
above-described projects recommending architect-engineer
qualifications and estimates on fees for improvements at
Vanderburgh Auditorium and he feels combining the projects would
be most efficient and time saving and said he would be most
willing to follow through on the project regarding the elevator,
and restroom renovations at the Vanderburgh Auditorium. He has a
time schedule that would be followed. If the Board would want to
review this or there are any comments at this time, we'll need to
notify Roger if this is acceptable.

Mr. Lindenschmidt reported that Mr. Lehman is on vacation, but he
has been working with the Purchasing Department. They are ready
to go with the advertisement if the Board sees fit to proceed.
Mrs. Cox said, "I think Roger helped us with the air conditioning
specifications at the Auditorium and I have no objection to
asking him to participate in this project.”

Commissioner Borries said the Board will so advise Mr. Lehman.

RE: AUDITORIUM - AIR CONDITIONING

Commissioner Borries said he has been in touch with Mr. Walter
Clements of WSC Associates who has been the engineer on the air
conditioning renovation at the Auditorium. It is his
recommendation at this time, should this Board see fit, that we
would give the Thermotron Corporation a 30 day notice saying that
their services in regard to the air conditioning would not be
needed. He also has some differences in relation to what he sees
Thermotron needs to refund in regard to that fee and he (Borries)
will request a meeting with Thermotron and also forward those
concerns to the County Attorney for his review at that point to
make sure Mr. Clements has addressed those things. If the Board
is willing, notification will be sent to Thermotron.

Attorney Miller asked, "Is Mr. Clements indicating that he
believes Thermotron is not in some way met its obligations under
this contract?"”

Mr. Borries responded, "In some cases that is what he is
indicating, that is correct."”

Attorney Miller asked, "Did he put that in writing?"

Commissioner Borries said, "Yes."

Attorney Miller said, "Well, will you forward a copy of that?"
Mr. Borries said he will provide Attorney Miller with a copy. He
has two letters from Mr. Clements and he doesn't know that he has

copies immediately available. A motion was entertained.

Mrs. Cox asked if Attorney Miller is going to review the notice
we're sending or....?

Mr. Borries said, "I think the notice would go ahead and proceed.
I think Attorney Miller is going to review the areas of dispute.
That would be my understanding.”
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Attorney Miller said, "As I understand it, there are two things
to be done. First of all, terminate any future involvement
because it is no longer necessary, thereby saving the balance due
on the service contract. Secondly, review the possibility of
recovery of some portion of the funds for lack of compliance. 1Is
that right?"

Mr. Borries confirmed that this is correct.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, a 30 day termination notice is to be sent to Thermotron
Corporation, Inc. concerning the maintenance contract on the air
conditioning at Vanderburgh Auditorium. So ordered.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Tues. Sept. 20 2:00 p.m. City~County Computer Mtg.

(Room 303)

Mrs. Cox queried Mr. Borries concerning the purpose of this
meeting.

Commissioner Borries said he doesn't know.

Mr. Lindenschmidt said it was a posted meeting and he called the
Controller's office to see if it was on and they said it was.

Commissioner Borries said there has been correspondence from
Pulse Systems, Inc. concerning a proposal that has been a concern
we have had in view of the County Council's decision in regards
to the computer budget to make sure that we continue to provide
services, and he has indicated he will do so. It may involve
some discussion concerning that particular proposal.

Mrs. Cox said she does have a copy of that.

RE: CLAIMS

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Superior Court (Releases)

$37,374/Yr. Eff:

Barton Alan Bates Ct. Admin. 9/23/88
Area Plan Commission (Appointments)

Joseph V. Coleman Zon. Invest. $14,589/Yr. Eff: 9/26/88
Burdette Park (Releases)

Steve Grammer F/T Guard $3.60/Hr. Eff: 8/27/88
Heidi Wallace P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/1/88

Alicia Minton Ext. Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/26/88
Gabriel Reising Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/1/88

Jeff Ludwig Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/19/88
Brooke Ranes P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/18/88
Holly Wade P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/11/88
Brooke Turpin P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/11/88
Clifford Harth P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/11/88
RKaren wWilliams Cashier $3.37/Hr. Eff: 9/18/88
Gregg Topper F/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/19/88
Robin Temme P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/28/88
James Gerard P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/19/88
Scott Johnston Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/15/88
Mark Luff P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/5/88

Ivy Meisberger P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/18/88
Jana Stanley P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/5/88

Susan Borries Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/18/88
Scott Weber P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/18/88
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Amy Sundermyer P/T Guard $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/19/88

Nicholas Jankowski Slide $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/6/88

John Bippus Asst. PMgr. $37.00/Day Eff: 9/5/88

Scott Buedel PTCG $4.00/Hr. Eff: 8/28/88

There being no further business to come before the Board at this

time, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at

9:45 p.m.

PRESENT ; COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey David V. Miller
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox
COUNTY ENGINEER COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY SURVEYOR
Dan Hartman C. Muensterman Bill Jeffers

Chief Deputy

OTHER
Doug Wilcox, Fire Chief
Mrs. Jeanne White/Motz Road Petitioner
Jerry Riney
Danny Spindler
Others Unidentified
News Media

SECRETARY: Joanne A. Matthews

A

Robert L.. Willner, Vice President

Cayr '"/ro)ss

irley J ox, Member




MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
SEPTEMBER 26, 1988

Subject Page No.

Approval of Minutes (August 1l1/Special Meeting re
Computers).........................'l..................

Approval of Minutes (September 12)..ccccccccsccccccese

Authorization to Open Bid re Work on Emergency
Shelter at Hillcrest-Washington HOmME@.e.oseeecorececaes

Woodridge Place (County-Accepted or Not?).eeescccacses
(Commissioners to research & provide answer)

Acceptance of Street Plans/Eastland Estates D-=3..cccces

Request for Installation of Street Signs in Brookview
Subdivision (Sections B; C & D)cececccoscoscsccscacocnscscs

Reading of Bid re Emergency Shelter/Hillcrest..ccseeace

County Attorney — Curt JONNeccceccecscccscccccsccsaancse
Center Heights Lumber Company re Barrett Law
Assessment (Release signed/Original to D. Miller)

Awarding of Contract re Roof for Emergency Shelter at
Hillcrest-Washington Home
U. S. Industries Group, Inc. ($18,700.00)ccccccccecs

County Highway - Cletus MuenstermanN.ecscceccccceccescccce
Weekly Work Reports/Garage & Bridge Crew
Weekly Absentee Reports/Garage & Bridge Crew
Request to Lower Speed Limit/Mohr Rd.
(To be referred to the Sheriff & EUTS for Study
& Report back to the Commissioners)

County Engineer - Dan HartmaNe.ceccciccececcecsssccaccass
Progress Report/Road Paving Program
Woods Road Bridge Project
Caranza Drive Sewer Project
Bridge Inventory Study/Interviews Scheduled

Telephone Request/Sheriff's Department (App'd.e)cececececs

01d Business.........................‘.........I...‘...
Interruption in 911 Service
Inspection of Polling Places with regard to
Accessibility to Handicapped (Bennie Gossar)
Approval of E-911 Service for Cynthiana, Elberfeld
& Haubstadt (CONTEL to be notified)

Letter to Be Sent to State Highway Department
Requesting Study of Boonville-New Harmony Road &
Highway 41 Intersection & Highway 62 & USI Intersection

Claim - SIGECO - Deferred until next week; Bob Gulich
to attend to explain...'................‘.............‘

10

12
12

15

19

66.
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Drainage Board Meeting................................I
Employment Changes.....................................

Adjournment...........I........'.......................

19
19
20
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
SEPTEMBER 26, 1988

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. on Monday, September 26, 1988 in the Commissioners
Hearing Room with President Rick Borries presiding.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

President Borries entertained a motion concerning approval of
minutes of the combined meeting of the Board of Public Works and
the Board of Commissioners held on August 11, 1988 concerning
data processing. .

Upon motion duly made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the minutes were approved as engrossed by the
Board of Public Works and reading of same waived. So ordered.

A motion was then entertained concerning approval of the minutes
of the Commissioners Meeting held on September 12, 1988.

Upon motion duly made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by
Commissioner Borries (since Commissioner Willner was absent
September 12th due to illness) that the minutes of September 12,
1988 be approved as engrossed by the County Auditor and the
reading of same be waived. So ordered.

RE: AUTHORIZATION TO OPEN BID RE WORK ON EMERGENCY SHELTER
AT HILLCREST-WASHINGTON HOME

The Chair entertained a motion to authorize the County Attorney
to open the bid received for work on Emergency Shelter at the
Hillcrest-Washington Home. Notice to Bidders was advertised
September 9 and 16, 1988, and only one (1) bid was received

(U. S. Industries Group, Inc.).

Motion to this effect was made by Commissioner Willner, with a
second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: WOODRIDGE PLACE

The meeting continued with President Borries stating Attorney
Jeff Ahlers is present to speak on behalf of the residents of
Woodridge Place. He then recognized Mr. Ahlers.

Attorney Ahlers expressed appreciation to the Board for placing
him on the meeting agenda on such short notice. He then
introduced himself and said he is with the law firm of Kahn,
Dees, Donovan and Kahn here in Evansville.

"My clients and your constiuents are William R. Betz and his wife
Carol, who reside at 5808 Woodridge Place, Dr. Randall K. Brown
and his wife JoAnn at 5821 Woodridge Place, and Dr. Max H Ahlers
and his wife Donna of 5741 Woodridge Place. The concern that I
am bringing before you today is that there seem to be questions
insofar as the status of Woodridge Place. 1Is that a
county-accepted and maintained road? Or, is it not? I have done
some research this morning with the Surveyor's Office, as well as
what I could gain from the Commissioners' Records, and it appears
that a part of Woodridge Place is a county-accepted and
maintained road and it could be that all of it is. The records
are unclear and are inconsistent. If I may, in order to possibly
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clarify this to the Commissioners, I would like to approach the
Commissioners! Table and give you an Exhibit. On this map, as
you can see, what is in yellow is the best that I can ascertain
from the County and State records is considered a county-accepted
and county-maintained road. As you can see, part of the yellow
where Woodridge comes off of New Harmony Way —-- according to the
records, that goes .17 miles down to the dead-end and that is a
county-maintained and accepted road. Also, Jennings Lane coming
off the other side of New Harmony Way (also in yellow) -- from
the best I can ascertain, that is paved and that is a
county-accepted and county-maintained road.

The area in question that I am addressing to you today on behalf
of your constiuents and my client is the houses in pink that I've
drawn in on that blue road. That blue road is Woodridge Place as
it comes off Jennings Lane -- and that is a paved road which, to
the understanding of the homeowners there, was brought up to
standards five years ago and accepted by the Commissioners as a
county-accepted road to be maintained by the County. As that
blue line runs on west and comes to where it is just a white

line -- and runs back down to Woodridge where it is yellow --
that is gravel. All of the yellow of Woodridge coming in from
the other way is paved as well and, to my understanding, is
county-maintained.

Now, the three residences I am concerned with today -- they have
all bought their properties within the past year to two years.
So what they know of this they have relied upon much in part on
what the prior owners and the realtors have told them, and
various notes and conversations they have had with various
government officials and, as I said, the prior landowners. To
their understanding, five (5) years ago that road was brought up
and paved so it would be brought up to County standards -- and,
that it was accepted.

Approximately four (4) years ago, their understanding is that the
road in question was patched and repaired by the County, thereby

being consistent with the belief that it was a county-maintained

and accepted road.

Recently, however, there was a contract awarded to the J. H.
Rudolph Company by the Commissioners on July 18, 1988. On Item
#22 of that contract, it does provide for certain work being done
to Woodridge Place. From that contract I am unable to ascertain
as to exactly what that work is. Apparently they went out to do
some work on that road and apparently started on that area which
I have indicated in white (towards the end of that blue line) and
began grading that gravel. Apparently there was a complaint by
someone down there (I guess by one of their private drives) so
they discontinued their road grading down there and to this time
it is still unresolved as to where this work was to be performed.
And, in fact, the records are somewhat inconsistent as to what
the county-maintained and accepted roads are. As I have
indicated to you on this sheet (it is called the Road and Street
Number Index of Vanderburgh County, Indiana) -- it is my
understanding that this has recently been put out in a report to
the County, where the roads and their County Road Numbers (the
names and the numbers) have been indexed together. Apparently
the State goes by County Road Numbers and here locally, most of
the time we know them as their common names. In this report they
matched up the names and the numbers. As you will note, New
Harmony Road is considered County Road #326 and Woodridge Place
is considered County Road #356 and Jennings Lane is County Road
#387. Thereby, it would indicate that it is a county road.
However, in such short time I was unable to devote an extended
period of time looking through the Commissioners Records. But
the time I spent going through it I was unable to find a letter
from the Commissioners stating that this was a county-accepted
road.
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To summarize the position, these people who reside along that
Woodridge Place (on the blue line on the exhibit) would like to
have their road as a county-accepted and county-maintained road.
To their knowledge, they felt that it was when they bought the
property. But now there seems to be inconsistent records and
various people have differing opinions as to what this road is.
First of all, we would like to respectfully request that the
Commission make a determination as to whether or not this is, in
fact, a county-accepted and county-maintained road. Secondly, if
it is, we would then respectfully request that the needed
resurfacing (which seems to be covered in the contract recently
awarded to J. H. Rudolph) be done and inquire as to when it would
be done. Thirdly, if the Commission feels that it is not a
county-accepted and county-maintained road, then we would
respectfully request that the Commission tell us what they would
like for us to do to make it a county-accepted and
county-maintained road. These residents are all in favor of
making that a county-accepted road and, to their knowledge as I
said, they thought it was; but recently there seem to be
differing opinions, mis~communication, or what have you. I would
state that I would be willing to answer any questions right now
if I am able to do so. Or, I would be willing to provide in
persons -- at another meeting or via correspondence -- any
additional information that I may be able to provide to the
Commissioners on this topic."

President Borries said he appreciates Attorney Ahlers
presentation and subsequently entertained questions from the
Board.

Commissioner Willner asked, "Do their deeds speak to the
right-of-way width?"

Attorney Ahlers asked, "Do you mean county right-of-way, ingress,
egress and that type of thing? Or, do you mean who actually owns
the ground?"

Mr. Willner said, "I'm talking about public easements."

Attorney Ahlers said, "Yes, they speak to public easements and
various other easements running through that area."

Commissioner Willner asked, "How wide would that have to be if
they do speak to that?"

Attorney Ahlers said, "The deed I looked at -- and I have not
looked at the actual abstracts at this time -- as I said, I have
just known about this the last couple of days -- on the actual
deed it does not say an actual footage. But I would certainly be
willing to get that information for you."

Commissioner Willner continued, "I did go out and take a look
and, just from looking at our Road and Street Index and measuring
the mileage, it would seem to me that Woodridge Place #356 speaks
to Woodridge intersection of Harmony Way and the cul-de-sac. I
think we measured it and it measured .17 mile. In my opinion,
just very quickly looking at it, it speaks to this portion here
(designating on map)."

Mr. Ahlers asked, "The portion in yellow coming off Harmony Way?"
Mr. Willner responded, "Yes."
Commissioner Borries asked, "Including the blue?"

Commissioner Willner said, "No, just from here to here (pointing
to the map.)

Commissioner Cox said, "The only question I have is what is the
date of the information that you gave us here?"
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Mr. Ahlers said, "I am not certain, but I believe this is as of
January 1, 1988. Mr. Dick Gwinn of the County Surveyor's Office
is here and he might be better able to answer that question."

Commissioner Borries said, "We also have a list of accepted roads
which was completed by our Highway Department.”

Mrs. Cox said, "For the accumulation of information, I would also
like to enter information taken from the Vanderburgh County
Highway Department 1985 list of roads compiled by County Highway
Superintendent Bill Bethel and Road Inspector Lee Stuckey. Even
though these pages are not numbered, it does appear on the last
page of this road list under Item #489 (Woodridge Place) -- it
says the road priority, the base, and the miles approximate was
.2 mile. Poor drainage. Road width is 15 ft. Last year paved
was unknown and traffic count was 35 per day. I know that I did
get a call from a family who no longer are property owners along
that area and asked for some attention to their roadway -- and I
did drive out there and look at that road. First I looked at the
list I had and it was on there. And I do know that the County
did do some patching/paving on the road soon after that request
was made. I do know that it is very, very difficult to maintain
an accurate list of all roads and at one time the County Highway
Department had a 3" x 5" card file system that was being used in
alphabetical order (which was at least some record) and it was
very easy to get one of these cards mis-filed out of alphabetical
order or carried away to another phone. Those repairs were made
with really no question at that time -- the patching portion of
it was done without any question as to its being an accepted or
unaccepted road. Based on this information and the .2 mile --
and that seemed to kind of add up to what was there at that
time."

Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Dick Gwinn for his comments.

Mr. Gwinn said, "Jeff was in our office a couple of hours this
morning and I gave him a copy of the State Highway Department
December 31, 1987 Vanderburgh County Road Inventory. We have one
computer printout copy. That computer printout copy was dated in
April (I've forgotten exactly what date it was) and I saw it
maybe six weeks ago when we received it. The State Highway
Department specifically identified what the State Highway
Department says our road inventory is and I presume that he has
relayed that to you."

Commissioner Borries queried the Board concerning their feelings
with regard to Mr. Ahlers' request.

Commissioner Cox asked that Jim Lindenschmidt bring the
Commissioners a copy of the roads let by contract.

Mr. Cletus Muensterman, Acting County Highway Superintendent,
said he was out there when they patched it. He thinks they put
about three patches down and they were informed via radio by Bill
Bethel and Lee Stuckey to get off it -- it was private property
-- not to go back. Someone called into the office and told them
to get off it. They put not even a ton of patch down -- and then
they pulled out. They got a call later on saying they were going
to pave it. And then we found it wasn't county-accepted. "As to
who made up the list, I don't know anything about that. But we
were pulled off that road about two years ago or something like
that -- as I was out on the job at the time."

The Chair then recognized Chief Deputy Surveyor Bill Jeffers. He
said that Mr. Ahlers made a statement earlier in his presentation
that he did his research in the Surveyor's Office and that the
records were unclear and inconsistent. "As a matter of record I
would like to say that his research was done in the Highway
Department Office, which also happens to be in Room 325. To my
knowledge, he didn't discuss this with any member of the County
Surveyor's Staff."
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Mr. Jim Lindenschmidt returned to the meeting with a copy of the
list of roads accepted by the Board of Commissioners for paving.
Mrs. Cox then referred to Page 3, where it says "Woodridge Place:
From Jennings Lane to Woodridge Place."

Commissioner Borries commented, "Certainly, what you ask is very
reasonable and we will make every effort to get some answers to
your questions. First, as you have indicated here, a request for
determination. If it is found that this portion is accepted, a
request for repairs. If not, what specifications then would be
necessary for the road to be accepted. 1Is that correct?’

Mr. Ahlers responded, "Yes it is, Commissioner Borries."
Commissioner Borries asked, "Is that agreeable with this Board?2"
Mr. Willner responded, I don't care -- whatever you say.

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, we must make a determination, because one
time it was thought to be accepted and was on a list and then
patching was done and then there was a question as to whether it
was a county-accepted road, and, you know, on the list we have
here Jennings Lane is also an accepted road -- and I know we did
not pave Jennings Lane -- they paved it themselves two years ago.
I don't know why they would go to that expense -- unless they
just maybe wanted it done at the time they wanted it done and we
couldn't get to it. But I think we must make a determination,
because roads shouldn't come off the accepted list. And, if I
recall correctly, this other section of Woodridge Place with the
cul-de-sac was accepted in December 1987. That is the first time
that it was sent in for acceptance by the State Highway. And, in
the green book, it shows Woodridge being .2 mile and on our
paving list it shows Woodridge off Jennings Lane to Woodridge
Place (which would include this gravel area in between those two
sections) as being .29 mile. So I feel if a mistake has occurred
the mistake is in this void between these two roads -- as to
whether it is or is not accepted. And I think that is what we
need to determine. That is the problem when roads are accepted
in sections and not the entire length of them -- so I don't
know."

Commisisoner Boerries queried Mr. Ahlers concerning the Betz's
official address. Mr. Ahlers said it is 5808 Woodridge Place.

Commissioner Borries asked if it is the feeling of the Board that
the matter needs to be researched in order to correspond with Mr.
Ahlers to get the questions answered?

Mr. Willner said, "In the interim, I take the position that the
portion of Woodridge Place accepted starts at Highway 460 (New
Harmony Way) and concludes back to the cul-de-sac. Now, if there
is any other information that is available at this time -- okay.
If there is not, then that is my position.”

Commissioner Cox said that portion was accepted in December 1987
by this Board. Prior to that time -- on the 1985 published list
that we had in our office -~ it showed Woodridge Place on that
list as being maintained by the County prior to this other one
even being built and showing it as .2 mile in length. But not
the center portion there. We have no record of anything past .2
mile off Jennings Lane or past .17 mile off of Harmony Way.
There is a void in there of that area -- it is questionable, as
far as I am concerned.

Commissioner Willner said, "If somebody wants to research the
Commissioners minutes to see what date that was accepted, I have
no problem with that. But, my God, that is a tremendous job.
That would take one man three months to do that."
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Commissioner Borries said, "I think he has asked for some
answers. What is your feeling then on how we would get those
answers?"

Commissioner Willner said, "I really don't know."

Commissioner Borries said, "We will get some answers and continue
to ask our staff here to address the questions that you have
given us today and we will correspond with you either via letter
-- or if you care to contact us back, we will try to get these
answers as quickly as we possibly can."

Mr. Alhers expressed appreciation to the Commissioners and said,
"In one final comment (responding to the gentleman over here) the
Surveyor's Office was very helpful and in no way did I mean to
imply that their records were not at all accurate -- whether they
were the records of the Highway Department or the Surveyor's.

RE: STREET PLANS FOR EASTLAND ESTATES SECTION D-3

Commissioner Borries recognized Mr. Jack Alles of Morley &
Associates who was present with regard to Street Plans for
Eastland Estates Section D-3.

Mr. Alles introduced himself and stated he is with Morley &
Associates. He said he is representing the developers of
Eastland Estates D-3, Messrs. W. C. Bussing, Jr. and O. W.
Kattman, Jr. Mr. Hartman has a handout highlighting this
subdivision. "The plans were submitted to your staff in August.
Since then I have met with your staff to review the project --
Mr. Hartman, the County Highway Engineer and his assistant, Mr.
Dick Gwinn; and a member of the County Drainage staff. The
subdivision will consist of 28 lots. The footage of the proposed
streets amounts to 1,258 lineal feet. The street section will be
29 ft. wide back to back with curbs and constructed of 6 inch
Portland cement concrete. The utilities will all be under
ground. The water line will come in and a space will be left for
street pavement. In other words, when we pour the streets we
will block out a section so it can cross the main street. The
rest of the utilities will be bored underneath the completed
street pavement. After the streets are accepted for maintenance
we will come back to the Commissioners to request the
installation of street signs. The rest of the information
addresses other requirements that the staff wanted him to bring
to the Board's attention. I will be glad to answer any
questions."

Commissioner Borries entertained questions from the Board.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Mr. Alles, I do have a memo from our
County Highway Engineer's Department dated September 20, 1988,
acknowledging receipt of your plans and also pointing out that
close supervision is required to comply with good work to produce
the quality construction and should be in place prior to concrete
paving -- and he is talking about the sub-grade construction for
the facilities. Are you aware of these recommendations?"

Mr. Alles said he hasn't seen a copy of that letter. However, we
have a County Inspector (Mr. Pinkston) and their pavement
contractor contacts Mr. Pinkston before pavement is constructed
and they do have the density tests run to his satisfaction before
the pavement is placed.

Mrs. Cox asked if the Commissioners have a set of those plans?

Mr. Alles said, "Your staff has a set, yes. I do have one sheet
whereby I can show you the layout of the subdivision."™ Mr. Alles
then approached the Commissioners' table and shared the layout
with them.

Mrs. Cox asked, "We haven't required you to install sidewalks in
any of the other sections?"
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Mr. Alles responded, "No, Ma'am; they were waived on Section D
and this is the 3rd phase of Section D."

President Borries entertained further questions. There being
none, a motion was entertained.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the Street Plans for Eastland Estates Section
D-3 were approved. So ordered.

RE: REQUEST FOR INSTALLATION OF STREET SIGNS IN BROOKVIEW
SUBDIVISION (SECTIONS B, C & D)

Mr. Alles then requested permission to present developer's
request of the Commissioners to authorize the installation of
street identification signs and any traffic control signs
required in Brookview Subdivision, Sections B, C & D. He said
the streets within all three sections have been accepted for
County maintenance by the Commissioners. He noted that this is
similar to the request made last week for three other
subdivisions.

The Chair entertained comments or a motion.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the request was approved. So ordered.

The Board said the Traffic Department will be instructed to sign
Sections B, C and D in Brookview Subdivision.

Mrs. Cox noted that they are not only requesting installation of
street identification signs, but installation of any required
traffic control signs. Are there are three-way intersections or
stop/yield signs that Mr. Alles foresees? Are they indicated on
the plats

Mr. Alles said they are not -- some will be required, but they
prefer to leave this up to the Traffic Engineering Department.

Commissioner Willner noted -that an Ordinance will have to be
initiated to conform to County policy.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Do we need a motion to that effect also, Mr.
Willner?"

Commissioner Willner said, "I make that a part of my motion."
Mrs. Cox said, "I will second.”
So ordered.

Commissioner Borries asked that Jim Lindenschmidt give the
request to the Traffic Engineering.

RE: READING OF BID.-- HILLCREST-WASHINGTON HOME

County Attorney Curt John said that, as stated previously, only
one (1) bid was received re new roof for the Emergency Shelter at
the Hillcrest-Washington Home, that being from U. S. Industries
Group, Inc. The total bid price was in the amount of $18,700.00.
The bid would appear to be in order insofar as they have sent a
Certified Check in the amount of 5% of their bid and signed the
Non-Collusion Affidavit and the Bid. He doesn't know whether
there was any type of Engineer's Estimate on this project.

Mr. Jim Lindenschmidt asked Mr. Dick Gwinn if he had an estimate?

Mr. Gwinn said he didn't have a formal estimate, but in his mind
it was $20,000.00.
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Attorney John said the Board may wish to refer the bid to the
County Engineer's office for review.

Motion to this effect was made Commissioner Willner.

Mrs. Cox said she would also ask that Mr. Jim Lindenschmidt, who
has worked on the projects at Hillcrest-Washington Home, also
review the bid along with Mr. Gwinn and she will second the
motion. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - CURT JOHN

Center Heights Lumber Company: Attorney John reported that he is
in receipt of a letter from Attorney Marco L. DeLucio of the law
firm of Early, Arnold & Ziemer with regard to Center Heights
Lumber Company. As the Commissioners will recall, there was a
possibility of the imposition of the Barrett Law assessment in a
certain area of Vanderburgh County. Mr. Bill Jeffers may be able
to better explain. Mr. Delucio's concern for his client was the
inclusion in the abstract of his client's property the notice of
Barrett Law assessment. According to Mr. Jeffers, he doesn't
believe this particular property will be affected even though it
is in the included area, because this property is already
serviced by City sewer. He is requesting the Commissioners sign
a Release of Notice of Barrett Law Assessment and he believes he
has previously addressed this Board and the Board had indicated
they would so release that particular property. Mr. Jeffers may
be able to explain a little further. He states he believes that
the request is in order.

Mr. Jeffers said he believes this was discussed previously, which
may be the reason why Attorney John is again asking. "When the
original notice was sent out to all of us in that area or was
published in the paper, I believe, concerning the Caranza sewer,
the line of the proposed area to be benefitted was drawn down 01d
State Road (that was the eastern boundary) and the western
boundary was something like 250 ft. west of Kembell Drive and, I
believe, the southern boundary was something like 150 ft. south
of Campground and then the northern boundary was, I believe,
Sunrise Court -- or something like that. And I believe the
purpose of that was to conform with the Barrett Law requirement
that everyone in that area be notified that they may be subject
to an assessment under the Barrett Law. The engineer plotting
out that area simply made it all inclusive when, in fact, I don't
think there would be any need for anyone south of Campground Road
to be included now. And, to my knowledge, there are no
properties listed among the 50 or so properties which have all
received notification and have all seen legal descriptions of
what the engineer wants. To my knowledge, nothing south of
Campground Road has ever been included past that preliminary
boundary being drawn."

Attorney John asked, "To your knowledge, there would be nothing
wrong with the Commissioners signing this release -- because this
property will not be affected?"

Mr. Jeffers responded, "I believe an abstractor just picked that
up and now is asking for you to delete it from the abstract."

Attorney John said, "I see no problem with it myself."

Commissioner Willner asked, "Is there a residence on this
property?"

Attorney John said, "This is Center Heights Lumber -- it's a
lumber company."

Mr. Jeffers said, "I believe it is vacant property that lies
behind the water tower on Campground and kind of behind Center
Heignts Lumber Co. There is a wooded area back in there."
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Attorney John said, "According to Mr. DeLucio's letter, Center
Heights is currently served by sewer and they would not
anticipate benefitting from or attaching to any additional
service that may be added to that area."

Mr. Willner asked, "Was it connected to sewer prior to our
serving notice of the Barrett Law?"

Attorney John responded, "That was his indication. If you'd like
to take it under advisement a week....2?2"

Mr. Willner said, "I need to know exactly."

Attorney John said perhaps Mr. DeLucio can come to the
Commissioners meeting next week.

Mr. Willner said if he has proof as to the date it was installed
—- that's fine; he wouldn't have to come. But he'd just want to
see some proof, because he doesn't believe a sewer can be
installed after that notice of Barrett Law and get by (as one has
done). He doesn't believe that is possible and he just wants to
be sure.

RE: AWARDING OF CONTRACT FOR ROOF - HILLCREST-WASHINGTON HOME

Mr. Gwinn reported that the bid from U. S. Industries Group, Inc.
was perfectly in order; no exceptions, just like it was invited.

The Chair entertained questions or a motion.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Borries, the contract for roofing on Emergency Shelter at
Hillcrest-Washington Home was awarded to U. S. Industries Group,
Inc. in the amount of $18,700.00. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Muensterman submitted work
report for employees at the County Garage for period September 19
thru September 23, 1988........report received and filed.

Gradall: Wimberg, St. George and 0l1ld State Road

Paver: Diamond Island and Boonville-New Harmony Roads

Patch Crew: Five Dollar, Seven Hills, St. Joe Avenue, 01d
Princeton and Twickingham Drive

Grader: Woodridge, Golden Rule, 0l1ld Henderson & King's
Rdl

Mower &

Mo-Trim: Baumgart, Pollack, Lynn, Indian Mounds, Speaker,

Skyline, St. Joe Avenue (medians) and 0ld
Henderson Road near the dam

Brush Crew: Mt. Pleasant, Baumgart, 0ld Princeton Rd. &
Peck Rd.
Trash Crew: Millersburg, Hedden, Pollack, and St. Joe Avenue

from garage to Diamond Avenue

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew......report
received and filed.

- 1Installed culverts on Rollett Lane (one 85 ft. x 12 in.)
and on New Road (one 18 in. x 30 ft. and one 12 in. x
35 ft.)
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- Built drop boxes on Rollett Lane and on Springdale Drive
- Repaired culverts on Red Bank Road and Darmstadt Rd.

- Cut roads to install culverts on Little Schaefer Road

- Cut grass around guard rail on Martin Station Road

- Seeded and strawed Woods Road Bridge and Neu Road

- Repaired washouts on Maasberg Rd. and Boonville-New
Harmony Rd.

- Cleaned bridge deck on Bridge #177

Mr. Muensterman said he thinks the County Highway employees did a
great job this year as hot as the weather has been We have laid
approximately 41.64 miles (just the garage crew). J. H. Rudolph
has laid 2.70 miles under Contract #1; Contract 2 is completed by
The Rogers Group; Contract #3 is completed by Rogers. On
Contract #4, Rudoloph laid 3.64 miles and on Contract #5, Rudolph
is complete. On Contract #6, The Rogers Group has .95 mi. yet to
complete.

RE: REQUEST TO LOWER SPEED LIMIT - MOHR RD.

Mr. Muensterman said he has a request from a lady concerning
lowering of speed limit on Mohr Road. He would like to know how
he should proceed? He understands an ordinance has to be passed.

Commissioner Borries said he talked with the individual, as well.

Mrs. Cox said Mohr Road was one of the first roads the County
Highway Department did, and it was an excellent job -- smooth as
glass, so she is not surprised. She thinks that this Board
should first alert the Sheriff's Department to enforce the
current speed limit in the County and cut down on the speeding.
She is sure people are speeding, as several people passed her.
It is a two-lane road.

Mr. Muensterman said it is very dangerous down at the bottom —-
with that railroad track. The road is maybe 8 ft. to 9 ft. wide
and they come down from Kratzville Rd. and really pour it on.

Commissioner Borries said that is always a problem after you pave
a road. The speed tends to pick up when the surface is improved.
He has had requests from time to time asking (after it is
paved)if we can't install speed bumps.

Commissioner Borries said he also wants to recognize the fine
work the County Highway Department has done this year. It is
certainly an outstanding job -- very commendable. This matter
will be referred to the Sheriff and EUTS so speed and traffic
counts can be conducted.

Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were
the Weekly Absentee Reports for employees at the County Garage
and the Bridge Crew........reports received and filed.

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER - DAN HARTMAN

Progress Report/Road Paving Program: Mr. Hartman gave a report
on the road paving program, stating that this past week J. H.
Rudolph has accomplished Oak Grove Road, Maxwell, Middle Mt.
Vernon, Summertime Lane, Treetop Lane, and Brookdale Drive.

The Rogers Group did not do any work last week; however, their
contract is still open to be completed later.
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Woods Road Bridge Project: As of now, the Woods Road Bridge
Project has been completed. We are now awaiting a letter from
the Contractor (Dave Guillaum) certifying that his debts have
been paid and information as to the amount we still owe him. He
thinks there is a 60-day waiting period from now till then.

Caranza Drive Sewer Project: Attorney Miller has informed Mr.
Hartman that on Caranza Drive, under the Barrett Law, the sewer
is passing across two pieces of property and these two pieces of
property are not tapping in to the Caranza Drive Sewer System --
and that he needs a buyer appointed by the Commissioners to
purchase this right-of-way and that can be done at the Board's
leisure.

Mr. Hartman asked if the Board understands Mr. Miller's request.
He is requesting that the Commissiners appoint a buyer/appraiser
to purchase this right-of-way or easement that we need to
complete the Caranza Drive Sewer System.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Is David Miller the Attorney on this?”"
Mr. Muensterman said that is correct.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Do we need an appraiser and a buyer? Can they
be one and the same? Or, does it need to be one appraiser and
one buyer?"”

Mr. Hartman said the appraiser and buyer can be one and the same.

Mr. Lindenschmidt said most of the people are giving ground, as
they will benefit from the installation. This one section is
going through some property —-- which neither one of the property
owners will be partaking in this sewer =-- but the shortest route
has to go through their property and, according to David Miller,
that is what this is about. He believes these property owners
are already on the sewer system -- but this route cutting through
their property will make this the cheapest route. However,
according to the Attorney they are not too cooperative.

Commissioner Borries said it would seem to him that we have to
have an appraiser. What is the feeling of the group?

Mrs. Cox said, "If they can be one and the same -- I have no
objection to that. And I believe it would be cheaper to use the
same person."

Commissioner Willner asked that Attorney John call Attorney
Miller to confirm that they can be one and the same. If he has
already worked on this, he has the necessary information.

RE: BRIDGE INVENTORY STUDY

Mr. Hartman said he has lost track of where we stand with regard
to the Bridge Inventory Study -- and his office remains at the
Board's service in pursuing that project.

Commissioner Borries said that as he understands it, interviews
are going to be set up for Thursday, September 29th.

Mr. Hartman asked if the firms have been informed? Or, does his
office so inform them?

Commissioner Cox said she has a copy of a bridge interview
schedule.

Mr. Hartman said he doesn't have one in his possession -- but he
will see that he gets one.

7F
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RE: TELEPHONE REQUEST - SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

Commissioner Borries read the following letter from Sheriff
Clarence Shepard:

September 19, 1988

County Commissioners

305 Civic Center Complex

Evansville, IN 47708

Dear Commissioners:

I would like to use the 426-5318 phone number that was

removed from the third floor jail office in the new second

floor jail office addition. We have the pipe for the lines

that run under the floor already.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.
Sincerely,

/s/ Clarence C. Shepard
Sheriff, vanderburgh County

Mr. Borries said Jim Lindenschmidt has advised he felt it would
not exceed $150.00 for labor. (We have the phone available.)

Mrs. Cox asked if there is any particular reason they need this?
Commissioner Borries said they have installed a new second floor
jail office -- there has been a modification and he apparently
wants to move one of the lines previously on the third floor to
this new office.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the request was approved. So ordered.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Interruption in 911 Service: Commissioner Willner said that a
couple of weeks ago we had a lapse in telephone service at a 911
number in the Sheriff's Department (we were without service for a
couple of hours). In finding out what happened and what we could
do about it, it seems that the telephone company was doing some
work within the building and only expected our telephones to be
off for a second or two and actually the second or two turned
into an hour or two. 1In asking that this not happen again and,
if it did, what would be our alternative to have that corrected,
he found that there was back-up system that was in place and that
the Sheriff's Department was not aware of the back-up procedures.
There has been a meeting and the Dispatchers are now all trained
as to the back-up procedure and that particular problem should
not happen in the future.

State Election Board: Commissioner Willner continued, saying
that I.C. 3-11-8-6 states that the County Executive Board of
County Commissioners shall locate all polling places in suitable
rooms in the County accessible to the handicapped. What they are
asking is that we do a visual inspection of all the polling
places and say "yes"™ or "no" to handicapped voting. He would
like for Benny Gossar, a Commissioner's employee, to do this
precinct-by-precinct and for those polling places that are not
accessible to the handicapped, we must £fill out a form and that
form must be turned in by October 7th. Also, he would ask Benny
to have any suitable changes in the voting places which may be
accessible to the handicapped. He would like for this project to
start as soon as possible. And, he will make that in the form of
a motion.
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A second was provided by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: E-911 SERVICE

Mr. Willner said that with regard to E-911 Service, the Board now
has figures and they have a decision to make. The number of
subscribers to the E-911 number will be 82,000 and the monthly
cost is $8,596.00 and installation cost is $100,889.00. That is
for McCutchanville, St. Joe and St. Phillips. Cynthiana has six
(6) subscribers; Haubstadt has ten (10) subscribers and Elberfeld
has sixty-two (62) for a total of seventy-eight (78) subscribers
on other exchanges. The monthly cost for those 78 subscribers
would be $1,797.00 and the installation fee is $7,734.00. They
are saying that a 14 cent monthly surcharge would collect
$11,294.92 each month and this would give us somewhat of a
surplus to work with. The decision that this Board needs to make
right now is whether to include Cynthiana, Haubstadt and
Elberfeld or 78 residents of Vanderburgh County in the Enhanced
911 number for an installation cost of $7,734.00 and a monthly
cost of $1,797.00. The Bell representative said that,
personally, he favors the second option, because he knows how the
public reacts whenever there is an increase in their telephone
bills and if there is a 3% surcharge for 11 months of service
they don't have, he thinks they would rather have a breakdown and
thinks there would not be negative reaction if that were done.

Mrs. Cox queried Mr. Willner as to the date of the letter from
the Indiana Bell representative., He said it is dated September
22, 1988. He said he received the letter this morning and made
copies and put them in the Commissioners' mail boxes.

Commissioner Borries pointed out that he also states we do not
have CONTEL's concurrence in regard to Option #1, so we'd have to
plan on paying their portion as soon as the system would cut
over. He asked Mr. Willner that if there would be an emergency
call on these exchanges, would they be transported via emergency
vehicle to Gibson County or Warrick County? Or, would they come
to Vanderburgh County?

Mr. Willner said he's certain all three (Cynthiana, Haubstadt
and Elberfeld) would come to one of the three hospitals in
Evansville if there were serious injury or sickness. Cynthiana
has no medical facilities; Haubstadt probably has a hospital in
Princeton, and Elberfeld has no medical facilities. Thus, he's
sure they'd all come to Evansville regardless of whether or not
they have the E-911.

Mrs. Cox asked, "We are providing fire protection for these
residents, aren't we? Gibson County doesn't provide it for
Haubstadt and Elberfeld and Posey County doesn't provide it for
those on the Cynthiana exchange, do they?"

Commissioner Willner said they are Vanderburgh County residents
and he would say that of the 62 residents in Elberfeld, probably
40 would depend upon the Elberfeld Fire Department. All of those
in the Haubstadt area would depend upon the Scott and German
Township Fire Departments.

Mrs. Cox asked, "Do you mean that Elberfeld would come across the
County Line to provide fire service? Without any question they
would be the first responder? 1Is that under any kind of
agreement that we have with them?"

Mr. Willner said, "No."

Mrs. Cox continued, "Well, I personally have reservations about
excluding these 78 households. I don't know how many people that
includes -~ but 78 households that are located within vanderburgh
County that pay our property tax and pay our local option income
tax that is subsidizing the ambulance or the emergency response
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and paramedic to not have access to these facilities. I doubt
seriously that the surrounding counties have the type of
facilities that we can offer here in Vanderburgh County -- and
these people are paying for it. I would want to see them
included in the E-911 that we're adopting here in Vanderburgh
County. I think that in no way would that lead us to cause then
to be excluded."™

Commissioner Willner said he feels they should be included. He
has trouble with excluding anybody from this, though it certainly
would be more simple to do that.

Commissioner Borries said he thinks these residents in some of
these outlying areas may indeed need the system the most when
there would be an emergency. If that is the Board's agreement,
then we will tell them to proceed and include them and perhaps
contact CONTEL to see if there is some way that they would concur
~- if they would pay their portion as soon as the system would
cut over.

Commissioner Willner said we need written authorization and he
would move that we send written notice to this effect.

Mrs. Cox said, "And we take Option #1 (the entire county)? 1Is
that what we're taking?

Mr. Willner responded in the affirmative.
Mrs. Cox provided a second to the motion. So ordered.

Mr. Willner asked if this would be considered a contract and do
we need our money in place before the Commissioners sign?

Mr. Lindenschmidt said what they need to know is whether they
need to go on and include them in these plans.

Mr. Willner said the Board has already approved the motion. But,
is this considered a contract?

Mr. Lindenschmidt said, "Not yet."
Attorney John said, "You haven't signed anything yet."

Commissioner Willner said, "Well, we're telling them to do
something. We're telling them to include them in the proposal.
But that would not be the start of the...."

Attorney John responded, "No."

Mr. Lindenschmidt commented, "Just as soon as the system cuts
over -- so that is not going to be immediately. At that time we
will owe them $7,734.00."

Mr. Willner said, "No, we're going to owe them $108,623.00.
That's going to be a one-time billing. We will have to have that
amount of money upon first billing from them. Now, they are
going to collect that much money in the total year plus some.

But we have to have that money up front. We need to go on
Council Call."

Mr. Lindenschmidt said, "You won't this year -- because it won't
be in this year."”

Attorney John asked, "When is the proposed installation
completion?"”

Mr. Lindenschmidt said probably 10 or 11 months down the road.

Mr. John said they had originally said something like 18 to 24
months.
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Mr. Lindenschmidt said the letter mentioned something about 11
months prior, but he didn't think they'd be collecting the fee or
the people would even hold still for collecting 11 months before
they ever had the service.

Mr. Willner said that is right -- and we need to come up with
that amount of money beforehand -- or at least have someplace
where we know we can get it.

Mr. Lindenschmidt said, "Right -- after the last half of next
year. But as far as CONTEL you probably have to have that
immediately."

RE: REQUEST TO STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT RE BOONVILLE-NEW
HARMONY ROAD & HIGHWAY 41 NORTH INTERSECTION

Commissioner Willner requested that a letter be sent to the State
Highway Department -- with a note of urgency -- concerning the
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. and Highway 41 North Intersection. He
understands there were four (4) fatalities there yesterday. And
he understands another is brain dead.

Boonville-New Harmony Rd. at Highway 41 North is just beside the
Vanderburgh County Rural 4-H Center and the 4-H Center is getting
a lot of play from hot rod car buffs, antique car buffs, horse
shows craft shows, etc. It is an especially busy place in the
summer and something needs to be done with that intersection and
it needs to be done now. He is asking that the State Highway
Department do a major intersection study as quickly as possible.

RE: REQUEST TO STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT RE HIGHWAY 62 &
USI

Mr. Willner said, "I understand that the intersection improvement
is not supposed to take place before 1991 or 1992 and I would
like to include that intersection in an upgraded Interchange
Design Study or a State Intersection Study. Before that is done,
I want to know what they intend to do -- and why -- and I place
that in the form of a motion."

Mrs. Cox said, "I have no problem with the first part of the
motion, Bob, cancerning Highway 41 and Boonville-New Harmony Road
Intersection. I think it definitely needs to have our undivided
attention and a complete study by the State Highway Department.

I don't understand, however, the second part of your motion with
regard to the Highway-USI entrance, because it is my
understanding that a letter was sent to this Board advising the
Board of the improvements on Highway 62 at the entrance to USI
and that the bids were to be let in 1989 (no later than June).
Now, have we received information contrary to this? That
information was pretty specific as to the amount that was going
to be needed and the additional lanes they were planning for that
area. Have we been notified otherwise?"

Mr. Willner responded, "Evidently that funding did not take place
from what I understand from EUTS. I do not know the particulars,
but I did talk to Rose Zigenfus today and she informed me that
this has been put off until 1990 or 1991."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Do we have written verification?"
Mr. Willner replied, "I don't know."

Mr. Jim Lindenschmidt interjected, "I think what she said was
that the bid letting would probably be in 1989, but it wouldn't
be constructed for another year -- so you're two years off right
now. And she was interested in having some kind of signal out
there -- because even with an overpass, you're talking about two
or three years down the road."

F
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Mr. Willner said, "I just think the State should do a study at
that intersection, as well. I'm not sure what they have done."

Mrs. Cox said she would agree to that. And she would agree to
this Board expressing its concerns and the urgent need for
attention to that intersection. But she was under the impression
that the bids would be let no later than July of this year -- and
she doesn't see why construction couldn't be...."

Mr. Lindenschmidt interrupted, "He said 1989."

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, yes, this coming year -- in 1989 -- and I
don't see why construction couldn't occur during that time."

Commissioner Willner said, "That is not the way I understand it."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Well, you have to have money before you let the
bids, don't you?"

Mr. Willner replied, "Even if they do a lane extension, I think
they ought to coordinate that extension with our efforts. If I
understand it right, they are going to spend $150,000.00 or
$160,000.00 on that -- and I think that would be a waste of money
if we come along and do an overpass. So I think it should be
coordinated and that is why I am asking for the study."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Are you advising them to hold off on their
project until we can catch up with them?"

Mr. Willner responded, "Absolutely not; I just want to know what
is going on."

President Borries asked, "So what you are asking is for the State
Highway to confirm the date of their bid letting and construction
on that particular intersection at S.R. 62 and USI? You want
confirmation...."

Mr. Willner interrupted, "Or their study that was done that says
that is what is needed. I'm more interested in that than I am --
the problem is people coming from Evansville -- stacking into the
short lane and turning left into USI. I understand that is the
problem. So, changing the length of the lane doesn't do anything
for the problem except get them into a turn lane -- and they are
still stopped there. It hasn't helped the initial problem.
Instead of staying in the lane, they go down and make a U-Turn
and enter from the west. And the extension of that lane isn't
going to help the problem one bit as far as I'm concerned -- and
they are going to spend a lot of money. So I'd like to have
their thoughts on why they asked for that money and extension --
and why they're going to spend that much money when it really
doesn't address the problem."

Mrs. Cox repeated, "Well, as I said, I have no problem with the
first part of your motion.

Commissioner Borries said a letter will be drafted regarding the
Boonville-New Harmony and Highway 41 North intersection. "May I
take it by some consent that we will request information from the
State Highway regarding the intersection study at USI and S.R. 62
and their timetable for the lane extension or turn blister
extension (as I think some would call it); and then we're asking
for some rationale as to why that plan rather than something
else, such as an overpass?"

Mr. Willner responded, "That is correct.”
Commissioner Cox stated, "Well, we're back to the point here as

to what we need. If they're going to do this, don't we need an
overpass? Is that what you're saying?"”
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Mr. Willner replied, "I am not saying what we need; I am asking
the State Highway Department to take a good look at it -- and the
same thing goes for the Boonville-New Harmony Rd. and Highway 41
Intersection.”

Mrs. Cox said, "Bob, then we should have done that quite a while
ago if that was going to be the feeling of this Board. I
understood that we've moved forward on studying this overpass at
USI. We've appropriated money; we've hired an engineer to do a
conceptual design and we even asked the engineer to work with the
State Highway Department on these proposed improvements that they
were going to make to that intersection. Now, I don't understand
what is happening to change that feeling."®

Mr. Willner commented, "Nothing whatsoever."

Mrs. Cox continued, "I do know that you tended to hold the
position when we found that the State was going to improve the
intersection that you questioned whether we would really need an
overpass, if I recall correctly. And I thought it was the
thinking of the Board at that time (whether it was a unanimous
thinking of the Board I will not say -- but I do think it was the
majority opinion of this Board) that we needed both. That we
needed immediate attention to that intersection to give us some
temporary relief, with the long range plan of an overpass. So if
we're simply asking for an update on their improvements to that
intersection and to see if we can dovetail it in with our
overpass, I don't have any problem with your motion. But if
we're asking them to take a look and recommend to us the
improvements that they feel we should make at that intersection,
I think it is too late to ask that."

Mr. Willner said, "I am not asking them to take a look to see
what we should do. I am asking them to take a look to see what
they should do. 1It's not the County's highway -- it's the
State's highway.”

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, they have given us permission to build an
overpass."

Mr. Willner, "That's wonderful; but that has nothing to do with
what I'm asking."

Commissioner Borries asked, "You're questioning the rationale of
their plan, right?"

Mr. Willner responded, "I want them to do an updated study of
that intersection period."

Commissioner Borries then queried Mrs. Cox concerning her
feelings.

Mrs. Cox said that it doesn't hurt to ask. She will second the

motion to ask -- but she doesn't see the need for it. She thinks
they studied that intersection.

Commissioner Borries said, "We will ask and try to get that
information. So ordered.”

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Speed Limit - 1llth Avenue North of Allen's Lane & Upper Mt.
Vernon Rd. & Peerless Rd. Intersection: Mr. Jim Lindenschmidt
advised that the Commissioners have a report back from both the
Sheriff's Department and EUTS (the Board already has a copy of
EUTS' report and the Sheriff's report was just received).
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Commissioner Borries said the EUTS Study and the Sheriff's report
concerning llth Avenue north of Allen Road both indicate that the
20 mph speed limit is not unreasonable. If an increase in the
speed limit were made, it would be recommended that it not exceed
25 mph. Gary O'Risky of the Sheriff's Department makes that
recommendation because of two factors: The short length of
roadway on llth Avenue and the numerous small children who live
in the area. He noted two small pre-school age children playing
next to the street at the time of his inspection. EUTS evaluated
the existing speed limit on 1llth Avenue and recommended that the
speed limit be raised from 20 mph to a maximum of 25 mph. An
increase of 5 mph would not have a negative impact on traffic
flow, but would provide for safe travel since this is a dead-end
street. He asked if the Board wants to take this under
advisement or is there a motion?

Commissioner Cox moved that the information re Upper Mt. Vernon
Road and Peerless Road be forwarded to the person who inquired
concerning that intersection and that we follow EUTS'
recommendation that we look at the existing warning signs at this
intersection and replace them if they are in poor condition -- to
warn the drivers. She believes this was EUTS' recommendation. A
second to the motion was provided by Commissioner Willner. So
ordered.

With regard to the speed limit on 1llth Avenue, it was noted that
the 20 mph posted speed limit was put there by an individual (in
some sort of neighborhood dispute or something). Unless the
Commissioners post a lower speed, the speed limit is 45 mph.
Commissioner Borries said he feels 45 mph is unacceptable.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, upon recommendation from EUTS and the Transportation
Officer of the Sheriff's Department, the speed limit is to be set
at 25 mph and an ordinance drafted reflecting this change. So
ordered.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Wed. 9/28 2:00 p.m. County Council @ Auditorium

(Tour)
2:30 p.m. Council Finance & Personnel
Mtgs. at Auditorium
6:00 p.m. Meeting with Motz Road
Residents
7:00 p.m. Meeting of Union Township
Residents re Emergency Route
Mon. 10/3 2:00 p.m. Executive Session (Room 307)

re JoAnn Reed & Mary Evans

Commissioner Cox said the meetings of the Motz Road residents and
Union Township residents would be a conflict. She read in the
paper about the Union Township residents meeting -- but she has
received no formal notice to that effect.

RE: CARANZA DRIVE - APPOINTMENT OF APPRAISER/BUYER

President Borries announced that Attorney David Miller has
advised Jim Lindenschmidt that the appraiser and buyer with
regard to the Caranza Drive Sewer Project can be one and the
same,

Mrs. Cox said the Board has previously used Bob Goff, Ken Hansen,
and Victor Funke -- and she thinks they have all proved
satisfactory.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, Mr. Victor Funke was appointed. So ordered.
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RE: CLAIM

SIGECO: Mr. Lindenschmidt said Mr. Bob Gulich of SIGEGO was
supposed to have been here today, because we received a claim in
the mail in the amount of $1,902.51 for relocation of electric
and distribution pole and wire lines on Burkhardt Road. This was
approved by the Commission on January 12, 1987. However, this
area is now in the City. This covers the cost incurred prior to
that area being annexed into the City. He called Mr. Gulich and
he said he would be here today to explain the claim -- but he
isn't here.

Mrs. Cox asked, "What is the total cost? At one time I think
they quoted a cost of something like $30,000.00."

Mr. Lindenschmidt said the County owes $1,902.51.

The Board decided to defer action on this claim until next week,
and that Mr. Lindenschmidt should ask Mr. Gulich to be here at
that time. Motion to this effect was made by Commissioner
Willner, with a second from Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: DRAINAGE BOARD MEETING

President Borries announced that a Drainage Board Meeting will be
held immediately subsequent to the Commissioners Meeting.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Scott Township Assessor (Appointments)

Joann Johnson Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 9788

Treasurer's Office (Appointments)

Tonya Bennett Cashier $14,565/Yr. Eff: 9/12/88

Treasurer's Office (Releases)

Tonya Bennett Clerk $13,978/Yr. Eff: 9/12/88

County Highway (Releases)

David Gugin Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 8/23/88
James E. Josey Part Time $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/2/88
Gary J. Bray Part Time $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/2/88
Russell W. DeHaven Part Time $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/2/88
Robt. J. DeArmond Part Time $3.35/Hr. Eff: 8/25/88

Voter's Registration (Appointments)

Amelia Tornatta Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 9/5/88
Casey Randolph Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 9/5/88

Co-Op Extension Service (Releases)

Debra E. Bivins Secretary $14,978/Yr. Eff: 9/9/88
Angela L. Powers Part Time $31.00/Day Eff: 9/1/88
Molly Schmidt Part Time $27.00/Day Eff: 9/1/88
Carmen Blankenberger P.T. $27.00/Day Eff: 9/1/88
Mary Hollingsworth Part Time $27.00/Day Eff: 9/1/88
Bryan L. Clements Part Time $27.00/Day Eff: 9/1/88

Co-Op Extension Service (Appointments)

Carrie Sue Catlett Secretary $13,978/Yr. Eff: 9/19/88

Pigeon Township Assessor/Reassessment (Releases0

Donna Mae Krowl Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 9/9/88

S -
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Pigeon Township Assessor (Appointments)

Donna Mae Krowl

Election Office (Appointments)

Carol Jean Prim Asst. Supv.
Mary Lee Bassemier Dep. Clk.
Charlotte Shetler Dep. Clk.
Sandy Deig Supervisor
R. Warren Thompson Bal. Assem.

Circuit Court (Releases)

Randy A. Chapman PTWR
Elizabeth A. Deem PTWR
Keith Haas PT Intern

Circuit Court (Appointments)

Sara Jo Vessels PTWR
Vickie Kavanaugh  PTWR
Denise Karcher PT Intern
Roberta Jourdan Reporting

Burdette Park (Releases)

Ben McCarthy Ext. Guard

Amy Pangburn

Stephanie Gee Slide

Jocelyn Oak P T. Guard
Kristina Howard P. T. Guard
Michael Pruitt P. T. Guard
Bob Hays P. T. Guard
Robert Kirk P. T. Guard
Sarah Embry P. T. Guard
Brandon Shumate P. T. Guard
Steve Becher P. T. Guard
Darin Jackson’ P. T. Guard
Jeff Braun P. T. Guard
Mark Walker PTGC

Kenny Palmer PTGC

Gary Goodsen PTGC

Burdette Park (Appointments)

Kenny Palmer PTGC
Gary Goodsen PTGC
Wade Morris PTGC

First Deputy

Pool Cashier

Page
$13,398/Yr. Eff:
$5.70/Hr. Eff:
$4.85/Hr. Eff:
$4-85/Hl’.’. Eff:
$6.00/Hr. Eff:
$5.70/Hr. Eff:
$5.00/Hr. Eff:
$5.00/Hr. Eff:
$4.00/Hr. Eff:
$5.00/Hr. Eff:
$5.00/Hr. Eff:
$4.25/Hr. Eff:
$182./00 Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.60/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.50/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$3.35/Hr. Eff:
$4.00/Hr. Eff:
$3.50/Hr. Eff:
$3.50/Hr. Eff:
$4.20/Hr. Eff.
$4.00/Hr. Eff:
$3.50/Hr. Eff:
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9/12/88

9/12/88
9/12/88
9/12/88
9/5/88
9/5/88

9/9/88
8/27/88
8/27/88

8/31/88
8/31/88
9/9/88

9/12/88

9/1/88
9/1/88
9/5/88
8/9/88
8/28/88
9/1/88
9/5/88
8/31/88
8/28/88
8/22/88
8/28/88
8/29/88
8/22/88
8/26/88
8/31/88
8/31/88

8/31/88
8/31/88
9/4/88

There being no further business to come before the Board at this
time, President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 4:25

p.m.
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R. J. Borries
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox
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Dick Gwinn

Bill Jeff

ers
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MINUTES
VANDERBURGH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 3, 1988 .

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at 2:45 p.m.
on Monday, October 3, 1988, in the Commissioners Hearing Room, with Vice
President Robert Willner presiding.

The meeting was called to order and subsequently opened by Sheriff
Clarence Shepard, who declared the Commission in session pursuant to
adjournment.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Willner entertained comments, questions, or a motion
concerning approval of the minutes of the Commissioners Meeting held on
September 19, 1988.

Commissioner Cox said she has not finished reading them.

Commissioner Willner asked if she would like to hold up for a week on
approving these minutes.

.The Commissioners deferred this item for one (1) week.

RE: COMMISSIONER WILLNER...EXECUTIVE SESSION

Commissioner Willner said the Commissioners held an Executive Sessioun at
2:00 p.m. on this date and they do need a motion to instruct the
Attorneys to continue the defense of the Evans case and at this time
asked for a motion.

Commissioner Cox moved that their Attorneys be instructed to contirue -0
work on the case as discussed at their Executive Meeting.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: BOB GULICK, S. I. G. & E., CO...INVOICE ON POLE RELOCATION

Mr. Gulick said he believes Mr. Lindenschmidt introduced this last weex
and he pretty much covered the bases.....basically what happened was tne
Commission requested they relocate an electric line on Burkhardt Road
that was requested by the Federal Highway Administration due to safet,
considerations and in order to reduce the cost on this, they agreed :. do
it on their own time schedule and it took them longer to do it than t:ie
county to maintain the road. The road went from county jurisdiction o
city of Evansville jurisdiction and when that happened, they contacteu
the County Engineer and he requested they stop construction and the; »ent
to the city Board of Works and they did not think it was worthy of .er:t
and discontinued the project and this is the cost they had incurred .; to
that point.

Commissioner Willner said this claim is for $1,902.51.
Mr. Gulick said the estimate was in the neighborhood of $25,000.

Commissioner Willner said he had a call from the Federal Highway
Department and was told, in his opinion, the poles that were to be left
there would be subject to Vanderburgh County's liability and as far as
Federal Regulation was concerned they were six (6) to ten (10) feet too
close to the road. He said if he can remember correctly, this board did |
vote at a public meeting to engage S.I.G. & E. Co. to relocate these
poles and he asked Mr. Gulick if he had the date of that meeting.

Mr. Gulick said that meeting was on January 12, 1987.
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Commissioner Willner said he was sorry that it did not come down to
getting those poles removed, but the Board of Works did vote in a public
meeting....he asked Mr. Gulick if he had the date of that meeting.

Mr. Gulick said they did not officially go to the Board of Works, they
went to the City Engineer Office.

Commissioner Willner asked if there were any questions.

we 4Rt
Commissioner Cox said sgi—is not following...federal
recommendations...what isL?oing to do for their reimbursement on the

project? s

Commissioner Willner said he did not believe the Federal Government will
participate in the pole relocation.

Commissioner Cox said she means the entire project.
Commissioner Willner said they have already paid for that.

Commissioner Cox said she knows, but they can always ask for money back.
She said she thinks they should research this problem.

Commissioner Willner said let him rephrase his statement. He said if
they were to remove the poles or pay S.I.G. & E. Co. to do so, it would
not be reimbursible with FPederal Funds, it was at the County's total
expense and had nothing whatsoever to do with the Burkhardt Road Federal
Aid project to Vanderburgh County.

Commissioner Willner said it was merely a learned suggestion that they do
that and he believes the minutes of January 12, 1987 will point that out.

Commissioner Cox said she understood him in his opening remarks to say
that it was the recommendation of the Federal Highway Inspector that this
be done.

Commissioner Willner said that is correct.

Commissioner Cox said she recalls that they did discuss this and they
were all in unanimous agreement and the price was not to exceed $30,000.

Commissioner Willner said this is correct.

Commissioner: Cox asked what does the Federal Highway say about this now,
is it acceptable to leave the poles where they are?

Commissioner Willner said it is now not a part of their jurisdiction,
that he knows of.

Commissioner Cox said it was a road that was built with Federal Funds, it
was a participating percentage of Federal monies that were used to
construct that road.

Commissioner Willner said that was correct, this is merely a suggestion
of his and not an order in any way and has nothing to do with the
Burkhardt Federal money.

Commissioner Cox asked, "What is his response now to the fact that they
are not going to move the poles?"

Commissioner Willner said he could not tell her that.

Mr. Gulick said he talked to him and he said he was going to talk to the
city about this matter.

Commissioner Cox asked what is this claim of $1,902.51 for?

Mr. Gulick said this was for mostly manpower that was used to haul poles
out and he thinks they may have even installed some poles in the ground,
but never any electrical wires. He said this is basically time and
materials to the sight.



94

MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING o
OCTOBER 3, 1988 PAGE 3

Commissioner Cox said she has no problems with paying this claim because
they asked S.I.G. & E. Co. to do this project and they did and were
ordered to stop, which is out of their jurisdiction, but she said she
does think that this should be pursued because she is afraid they could
lose or be asked to return monies if they are not assured that this will
meet Federal.J/..if it does meet Federal Government regulations now, then
why did it noff meet it before and she said she thinks that is a very good

question? R?Z”Qf

County Attorney Miller said he can check the legality on this, he said he
did talk to them about this at the time when this came up very briefly
and he pointed him to a set of Government recommendations regarding the
placement of power poles and signs and other obstructions within a
certain distance of a right-of-way, but there was no discussion at that
time that this was a condition and paying S.I.G. & E. Co. does not
jeopardize their right to go ahead and attempt to force it be done
later. If there is some sort of Federal demand for refund, but it has
never been brought up in that context, it was simply brought up as a
recommendation that might reduce the county's liability exposure. He
said he was- mever worried about the county's liability exposure on this
particular point, but in as they work with those Federal people all the
time, it seemed to him important to keep them happy and show them that
they want to cooperate. He said he would talk to them and make sure
there is no Federal Governmental demand.

Commissioner Cox said she cannot remember the exact discussion, but she
does know this was presented to this Board as a safety factor and one
that needed to be attended to, and if it was a safety factor two (2)
years ago, she cannot understand why it is no longer a safety factor.

Commissioner Willner asked Mr. Gulick if there were any blueprints or
sketches made of that job?

Mr. Gulick replied that there were.

Commissioner Willner asked if they would be available to them upon
payment of this bill.

Mr. Gulick replied in the affirmative.
Commissioner Cox asked why would they need the blueprints? .

Commissioner Willner said he thinks they should be available, if the city
would ever......

Commissioner Cox said the city cannot move the poles.

Commissioner Willner said no, but if they would ever like to ressurect
the project they would have the blueprints ready.

County Attorney Miller said another reason is that the County has paid
for them.

Commissioner Cox said that is not what Mr. Gulick said, she said she
asked him what this claim was for and he did not say anything about
blueprints.

Mr. Gulick said he has a set with him and he will give them to them
today.

Commissioner Cox moved that the claim in the amount of $1,902.51 be
approved for payment and a copy of the blueprint for the project be
furnished to the Commissioners.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.
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Mr. Gulick said the reason the city decided not to move the poles as part
of this proiject is that they were planning to install street lights along
Burkhardt Road and in order to install street lights, they need the poles
near the pavement and if the wood poles were moved, they would have to
come back with metal poles and the cost would be much higher.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY...INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT ON JOINT DEPT. OF
CENTRAL DISPATCH

Mr. Miller said he was going to hold the discussion of this agreement
until last because the agreement has been retyped in preparation of their
signatures and it is on it's way over here.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF CHECK/ EVANSVILLE DANCE THEATER, INC

Mr. Miller said he has a check in the amount of $100.00 payable to the

Vanderburgh Auditorium from the Evansville Dance Theater, Inc. He said
this is an installment payment on a settlement that was long ago agreed
to between the Evansville Dance Theater and Vanderburgh County, growing
out of the non-payment of the Dance Theater of a rental bill that they

owed and that has been coming in at a steady rate over the past several
months and will be paid off in November, so he is asking them to accept
this check.

Commissioner Cox moved that the check from the Evansville Dance Theater,
Inc. be endorsed by this Board and placed in the County General Fund.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: CENTER HEIGHTS LUMBER COMPANY/SEWER ASSESSMENT

Attorney Miller said he has another item to be brought up, at a previous
meeting and he thinks it was the last meeting when Mr. Curt John was
here, there was a discussion regarding whether Center Heights Lumber
Company real estate should be included in and Center Heights should be
subjected to the Barrett Law sewer assessment. He said they asked for
some documentation establishing Center Heights had in fact paid a city
sewer connection charge. He said they have been supplied with that
documentation, and he is submitting it to them for their examination, the
payment was made in 1979 in the amount of $2,750.00. He said they have
looked at the legal description of the Caranza Drive sewer project...he
said he really believes this whole thing came up because someone was
reading an abstract on behalf of Center Heights that picked up a mention
of this Barrett Law process. He said he does not believe that Center
Heights would, in any way, have essentially been subject to our
assessment process anyway, but, in any event, they find no reason why
Center Heights property should be involved in this Barrett Law sewer
project which they call the Caranza Drive project, they believe the real
estate involved that is owned by Center Heights is outside the area and
he recommends to the Commissioners that the release of notice of Barrett
Law assessment be executed by the Commissioners and delivered to them
through their attorneys.

Commissioner Cox so moved.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.
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RE: ALEXANDER AMBULANCE REPORT

Mr. Miller said he has a current report, as of October 3, 1988, on the
Alexander Ambulance accounts to submit for filing and along with that, a
number of payments that he is asking them to accept. Report received and

filed.
Mr. Miller said the payments are as follows: .
Kevin Kenniman $ 10.00
Linda Kemper $ 21.87 (Balance of $237.00)
Thomas Yeates $ 10.00
Chastity Hertzberger §$ 20.00 (Balance of $155.00)
Chris Hunt $ 5.00
Audrey Chatman $ 25.00
Helen Haaf $167.58

Mr. Miller said this payment also applies to the account of Edward
Buttram, the payment of Mr. Buttram and Ms. Haaf are paid in the same
check.

Commissioner Willner entertained a motion to have these checks stamped
with their signatures by their secretary and place them in the County
General Fund.

Commissioner Cox so moved.
Motion seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: LAWSUIT/NATIONAL CASUALTY & HARTFORD INSURANCE

Mr. Miller said this lawsuit was filed 1ast month and he would like to l
report on the progress. A

Attorney Miller said the Commissioners authorized legal action to be
filed by reason of the failure of those companies to provide the county
with a defense in the Elizabeth May case. He said in response to the
receipt of the complaint, he has had immediate contact from the Claims
Supervisors from both companies, both of whom had a perplexed and
uninformed attitude about these claims. Neither of them could understand
why their companies had not responded in the first place and he reported
to them that he did not understand it either and he could not get their .
attention and that is why they filed the lawsuit. He said they indicated
separately that they are both very interested in resolving this matter
without the expense of litigation, if they satisfy themselves as we are
satisfied, the companies should have acted to defend them in the
beginning.

He said he expects to have something good to report in the settlement
before the end of the year. He further said he told them both that he
was going to push to have that done and if they are successful in doing
that, they should get back all of the $40,000 or so that the county
expended in the Elizabeth May case. He said it looks very good at this
point.

RE: INTER LOCAL AGREEMENT FOR A JOINT DEPARTMENT OF CENTRAL DISPATCH '

Attorney Miller said he attended a meeting this morning at the Mayor's
Office of the Joint City-County group considering the preparation for
Commissioners consideration for City Council and County Council of an
Inter-Local agreement to provide for a joint department of Central
Dispatch. A final typed document was tentatively approved by the group.
Both Kevin Winterheimer of the City Attorney's Office and he have worked
on this agreement, have contributed to it and he believes it is an
agreement which will serve the interests of the residence of Vanderburgh
County and contribute to city-county cooperation in this area. He said
he recommends they execute this agreement in the form he is giving to .
them., He further said he is giving them the original and three (3)
copies. He said the agreement establishes a department of Central
Dispatch which will have facilities for dispatching Evansville Police,
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Evansville Fire, Vanderburgh County Sheriff's Department and such other
emergency and government communications services which is authorized by a
Board of Directors that is created in this agreement, the county will pay
one third (1/3) of the costs of the equipment and operation of this body,
the city will pay two thirds (2/3). The Board of Directors, which is
specified on page 2, article 3 and will consist of the Mayor, a County
Commissioner, a City Councilman, a County Councilman, the Police Chief,
the Fire Chief and the Sheriff.

Attorney Miller said there will be a code of by-laws. This is being set
up very much like a private corporation, but will be operated as a
governmental agency under joint control under this Board of Directors and
if any other governmental bodies become involved, such as the Water
Department or something like that, there will be an adjustment of tnhe
financial burdens and responsibilities. He said the by-laws, he is
confident, will only require meetings of this Board probably two (2)
times a year to review what has gone on and the need for any big
equipment. Most of the work will be done by an Executive Committee that
.will meet on a regular basis.

Attorney Miller said he recommends they sign this. It is something they
have been working on for some time and it will have to be passed on to
County Council and City Council, but his recommendation is that it ve
done. He said Mr. Mark Owen of the County Council was at this meet ::
and expressed support for the agreement.

Commissioner Willner said he has no problem with the agreement as
presented; however, he has had some calls from the local volunteer :.:«
departments and they are interested in having someone sit on this u.a:
and if they stop and think about it, it may not be too bad.

Commissioner Willner said the Sheriff, in the past, has been dispat.:er
for all of the volunteer fire departments located outside the city ot
Evansville through a radio dispatch service and he thinks it is ver,
important for them to continue to do this and he feels that
representatives from Scott, McCutchanville, German, Perry, and etc. ve
represented in this agreement.

Attorney Miller said this is a policy decision as opposed to a legal
decision, so there is no reason for him to respond to that althougn :e
would say to them that the agreement does contemplate the probabilit; of
the inclusion of them being within the communication network inasmucrn as
Article 1 describes 'such other emergency and governmental communi..:®:.ns
services as may be authorized by the Board.' He said there is alway. a
problem in corporate boards, club boards, any kind of board that has un
even number of people, as opposed to an odd number, because it create-
the possibility of a stalemate, so he cannot speak to the policy qguestion
of why there was not included a volunteer fire department representa:.ve,
but it seems to him that the possibility of the volunteer fire department
is being part of the communication network is taken care of and he
doesn't think there is any opposition to that in the group that he sat
with today.

Commissioner Cox said she has some questions. She said she assumes that
the budget for this joint department will be reviewed by the City Council
and the County Council.

Mr. Miller said it has to be.

Commissioner Cox said she does not understand where it says "or a
committee of said councils," as she thinks this should go before the
entire City Council and the entire County Council."

Mr. Miller said he thinks they are talking clearly about developing the
initial budget and they will have a committee of both Councils to work on
that and then it will be submitted. It has to be submitted, the one
third (1/3) that the County is going to pay cannot be paid unless it is
approved as a line item in the annual county budget and the only place
that can be done is through a full County Council vote. He said just
because they sign an agreement like this they cannot delegate that power.
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Commissioner Cox said then it should not say "that the Evansville City
Council and Vanderburgh County Council or a committee of said councils
may meet in concert for consideration of the budget or an amendment
thereto."

so that when it gets to the point of full consideration by the County
Council or the City Council, it is not one group or the other that has
total input into the development of the budget or an amendment to the
budget, that was all that was intended to mean and that is all that it
does mean. It is all it can mean under the state law.

Mr. Miller said it doesn't mean to approve it, it means to think about it I

Commissioner Cox then asked what does it mean where it says, "the parties
hereto agree that the percentages of funding apply only to jointly used
property and joint operations and the parties acknowledge that individual
radios and equipment will be the responsibility of each participant.”

Mr. Miller said, there are pieces of communication equipment that the
Sheriff uses and they are still going to buy communication equipment for
the Sheriff's Department to accept these messages out on the road, car
radios, those kinds of things, the equipment that is being discussed here
is the equipment that is going to make up the Central Dispatch Unit and
the Antenna and the block houses that are going to contain the necessary .
equipment that are going to be interspursed throughout the county so that
these messages can....this is going to be set up very much like a
cellular radio system, as he understands it, there are going to be two
(2) or three (3) antennas...repeaters throughout the county so that the
signals can get from here to there and everywhere and the messages that
will be accepted, the dispatches will be accepted by equipment that is
maintained by the individual departments and the joint department of
Central Dispatch is not going to buy that equ1pment. It is going to buy
its' equipment.

Commissioner Cox said, under 'Administration Article 3' on page 2, she

has the same question as Commissioner Willner did and she feels very
strongly that the volunteer fire departments should be represented on

this board and to eliminate the concept of an uneven number on the

board. Perhaps they could have representatives from the westside of the
county and from the eastside of the county, dividing it right in two and
that would make a nine (9) member board and they could elect those,

German and Perry could get together and elect what reprersentative may be

on a rotating basis, but she feels they do need to have input on this ‘
board.

Mr. Miller asked if he could make a suggestion? The suggestion is that
he feels that inasmuch as the City is paying two-thirds (2/3) of the
expense, the people on the city side are going to insist that there be a
majority on this board that are essentially city oriented in their
governmental thinking...that has not been a point of contention during
these discussions. He doesn't know if the Sheriff has any different
impressions. The Sheriff was at the meeting this morning, but, he thinks
if they start adding more people to the board, it may get a little
cumbersome and he would think that the needs of the volunteer fire
departments could be served by an addition perhaps to this agreement, to
the effect that one of the Chiefs could serve ex-officio or something
like that. That way he would be at the board meetings and can have
input, but they don't have the possibility of a stalemate or something l
like that.

Mr. Miller said he has not heard it stated, but he has got to believe,
that if funding is one third (1/3) two thirds (2/3), the makeup of the
board needs to recognize that. That is just true in any kind of
organization that he has ever been involved in, but he will leave it to
them to give him the direction on how to respond to the committee.
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Commissioner cox said they have designated the Police Chief of the City
of Evansville, which is responsible for the safety of our citizens within
the city limits and the Sheriff of Vanderburgh County, which is
responsible for law enforcement and safety outside the city limits.

Then, they have the Fire Chief of the City of Evansville, who is
responsible for the fire safety of their citizens within the city limits
and they have not included anyone who is responsible for the fire safety
outside the city limits.

Mr. Miller said he is not disputing the policy matter that the two (2) of
them are raising, he is just saying that it is something that is a little
bit difficult to deal with.

Commissioner Cox asked who is going to respond to the 911 number for fire
outside the city limits.

Sheriff Shepard said he is. They are doing it now. They receive the
calls and dispatch the units.

Commissioner Willner said a very simple solution is to add two (2) and in
the back of his mind, he would say he would want a representative from
the Town of Darmstadt, which should have some input on this board and
just for a matter of clarification, the Volunteer Fire Departments do own
some of the equipment and they own their own tower, they own their
antennas and there is a lot of money other than government money that
needs to be looked after, so he is going to stand clear on the addition
of the Volunteer Fire Departments to this agreement and he is sure
Commissioner Cox is going to do the same, so they must contend with that.

Commissioner Willner said he is sorry if this constitutes another meeting
for this board.

Mr. Miller said that is the purpose of publig discussion, to find out
what they......

Commissioner Willner said he has not thoroughly read this and would like
to do so, but those are two (2) things they are going to ask for.

Mr. Miller asked about the concept about the eastern and western parts of
the county.

Commissioner Willner said the Volunteer Fire Departments do have an
organization and it is not represented east or west, it is outside the
city and he thinks for representation, one (1) is enough.

Commissioner Cox said one (1) is fine with her, but Mr. Miller spoke of
an uneven number and that is why she suggested that as a possibility.

Commissioner Willner said they do have another town in Vanderburgh
County, so that would make two (2) additions.

Mr. Miller said he would report back to the Committee.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT/CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Work report submitted for employees at

the County Garage for period of September 26 thru September 30,
1988....report received and filed.

Gradall: Little Schaefer Road, Boonville-New Harmony and Heinlein
Roads

Paving

Crew Boonville—-New Harmony Road

Patch

Crew: Seven Hills, Park & Radio (Southwest Corner), Graff Road,

Pleasant Road, Red Bank & 0ld 460 at Intersection, Little
Schaaefer & Springdale and Little Schaefer & Diefenbach Rd.
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Grader: Turpen Lane, Montgomery, Bixler, Little Schaefer &
Diefenbach Intersection, Cypress Dale, Roth, Schissler and
Mann Roads

Mow-Trim: Woods, Heinlein, Petersburg, Kansas & Browning Roads at
Intersection.

Brush I

Crew: Burkhardt & Oak Grove (S.W. Corner), Eichoff & Middle Mt.

Vernon Roads & Browning & Boonville-New Harmony Roads

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same period was
the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew.....report received and filed.

- Built retaining wall on Motz Road

Repaired washouts on Ward and Kuebler Roads

Built drop-box on Boonville-New Harmony Road

Installed guardrail on Kansas and Bixler Roads

Flushed culverts on Darmstadt and 0ld State Roads ‘

1

Cut brush around Bridge #111C

Re: Woodridge Place: Mr. Muensterman said he would like for the
Commissioners to act upon this today if possible. He said he would like
to recommend to the Commission that they NOT resurface Woodridge Place
according to Contract #4, which was awarded to J.H. Rudolph & Co.

Mr. Muensterman said since Woodridge Place ‘is not accepted by the county I
as yet, he recommends they resurface Allen Road, which- runs north from

old 460 to dead end, also Wittenheimer Drive which runs from Allen Road
south to dead end. He said these two (2) roads are dearly in need of
resurfacing and in the vicinity of contract #4. He said J.H. Rudolph

would like to complete their contract so he informed Mr. Ray Vinson on

these two (2) roads and he agreed to these two (2) roads per contract #4.

Mr. Muensterman said if the Commissioners would agree to this arrangement
first, they have Koring Road almost completed and only have Laurel Lane

to finish and they would like to finish the contract and move out of that .
area.

Commissioner Willner stated that Allen Road is .07 of a mile and asked if
Wittenheimer was also .07 of a mile and the original contract was for
what? ‘

Mr. Muensterman said the mileage was correct and the contract was for
.29, '

Commissioner Willner said it would be a somewhat smaller area than what
the original contract called for.

Mr. Muensterman said it was a smaller area, but the road is about the
same shape or worse than the other.

Commissioner Cox asked if they have determined if Woodridge Place is not
a county accepted road. She said she thought when they appeared before
them the past week, they asked for a research of the deeds and to furnish
us some right-of-way and in the report that was published in 1985, it was
included as a county accepted road at that time.

Mr. Muensterman said according to the Engineers, they can't come with
anything.
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Commissioner Cox said they cannot come up with a lot of things that are
said to be county accepted. If he wants to go back and try to prove the
date that these were accepted, she challenges him to find them. That is
open, but they are on the list and they have a state assigned number and
she said she thought that what the Attorney presented to them was out of
the road study report, that Woodridge Place did have a state assigned
number and this was prior to.....

Mr. Muensterman said only one (1) Woodridge Place has....accepted by the
county 12/31/87, that was the top sheet number 76, State Road Highway
356, and that is the only one.

Commissioner Cox asked about the date it was accepted.

Mr. Muensterman said the county accepted it on 12/31/87 and the state
accepted it on 4/12/88.

Commissioner Cox said she wants to pave all the roads they can and she
has no objection to doing Allen Road and Wittenheimer Drive, but she does
not think they should pull off of Woodridge until they get a final report
back on this road.

Commissioner Cox asked Commissioner Willner if he has heard anything from
this.

Commissioner Willner said he does not know of anybody that is ggrking on

it, he is not going to go back and check all minutes. Theyééégytnat a prs>
portion of the road, or all of the road, ha een,_accepted because of
some of the people who live on the road. He said he is mnot—saying that
portions of the road are not accepted, but, they have no record of it and
it is not his responsibility to come up with that. He said if some of
the residents think that the road has been accepted, it is their
responsibility to come up with the proof of that and vntil then....unless
she wants to do that.

Commissioner Cox said she furnished it at the last meeting, the report of
the County Highway Department completed in 1985, listing Woodridge Place
as a county accepted road in that report. Now, how does it get
unaccepted from 1985 until now, that was her question.

Commissioner Willner asked what date it was accepted?

Commissioner Cox said none of those roads in there have any date of when
they were accepted.

Commissioner Willner said, "Yes, the one here does have a date."

Commissioner Cox said that was the accepted way after this other report
was published.

Commissioner Willner told her to give him a date on the other one.

Commissioner Cox told Commissioner Willner to give her a date on
Wittenheimer Drive. When was that accepted?

Commissioner Willner said Wittenheimer Drive is on their state accepted
road list and they can probably go and get the date if she wants it.

Commissioner Cox said there are some that have state assigned numbers...

Commissioner Willner asked if he could have a motion to the letter from
Mr. Muensterman. Does she wish to make a motion on Allen Road and
Wittenheimer Drive or does she not?

Commissioner Cox said she would like to see them resurfaced, but she does
not think they can do this until they have determined these people on
Woodridge, if they are or not accepted, she asked if they could hold this
until Mr. Borries gets here?
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Re: Damaged Roads

Commissioner Cox said she thinks Mr. Muensterman reported at an earlier
meeting and correct her if she is wrong, that West Franklin Road, Volkman
Road and the other road that was damaged by the sub-contractors

installing gas lines, had been repaired. ~
Mr. Muensterman said they just patched them. They are going to repair .
them. They are going to repave West Franklin.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER/DAN HARTMAN

Mr. Hartman said J. H. Rudolph has completed contract work on Church
Road, Church Lane, Lake Shore Drive, KRoring Road and Little Schaefer Fcad
and Rogers Group did not work last week, but they still have some worx on
St. Joe Road.

Re: Blue Claims

Mr. Hartman said he has two (2) blue claims, one (1) from
Bernardin-Lochmueller & Associates, Inc. for Lynch Road Extension from

Oak Hill Road to Burkhardt Road in the amount of $11,449.27 The claim

has been checked and is correct and is in line with their agreement witn ‘
the County.

Commissioner Cox moved the claim be approved.
Motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Mr. Hartman said he has a second claim from Dave Guillaum Construct:

for the full amount of $41,045.77. He said this would be for total -
payment due #4 and the mathematics are correct and 1n llne with wna: ey
agreed upon.

Commissioner Willner said this claim is for Dave Guillaum Construct. u 1n
the amount of $41,045.77 for the Woods Road Bridge.

Commissioner Cox asked if this was completed?

Mr. Hartman said it is completed, but they have not made the final
inspection as of yet.

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Hartman if he has inspected the work that
being claimed here.

Mr. Hartman replied yes, and he is recommending it be paid.
Commissioner Cox moved the claim be allowed.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Re: Woods Road Bridge

Commissioner Willner said Mr. David Scherzinger is here representing Dave
Guillaum on the Woods Road Bridge. Mr. Guillaum has turned in to him a
final billing and he would like to speak to that. He wants Mr. Hartman
to approve this or find out what is wrong with it so that he may be paid,
as he has other sub-contractors that must be paid and there are three (3)
or four (4) areas of contention and they need to discuss those for a
moment.

Mr. Scherzinger said they are real proud of the bridge. They are happy

that they were able to do it for the county and they appreciate the work
and think it is a nice looking job.
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He said Mr. Guillaum and Mr. Hartman discussed the problems they have had
on this and on almost everything. They are in agreement on and they came
in under on a lot of the items that were bid, about $4,000.00 under what

the bid actually was, but they have about five (5) items they are having

a disagreement on: 1) dirt, the cubic yards of dirt that was used on the

job and on this claim #4, they had 5,226 cubic yards and what it actually
was, due to the fact that they had to build some roads up for the farmers
on the west end and the east end of the project, and they had to add some
dirt to the slopes to make the slopes not quite so steep, at the request

of the inspector, it came to 6,077 cubic yards instead of 5,226.

Mr. Scherzinger said it may be simpler for him just to read what he has
with him:

Mr. Scherzinger continued, "We recently discussed several guantity items
for the Woods Road Bridge project with the Highway Engineer, Mr. Dan
Hartman. The majority of items we were in agreement on. Those items he
has on an invoice to be submitted for your approval. There are several
areas, however, that we feel need clarification. Mr. Harvey Klenk was
the dirt sub-contractor for the bridge project and he submitted a letter
and figures indicating the quantity of dirt hauled to be 6.077 cubic
yards. The additional field dirt was needed primarily to accommodate the
farmers on the east and west ends of the project to get on and off of the
road, which they are aware has been raised. Mr. Pinkston, which is the
inspector on the bridge, gave them direct orders to add dirt to these
areas and others to improve the slopes and access to the fields. Part of
this project, Mr. Klenk had his truck certified to capacity in yards for
hauling for the Indiana Highway Department on the Division Street
Project. His low count per day and statement of qguantity is included,
which they have given Mr. Willner copies of everything here in this
letter. We are requesting payment per our sub-contractors billing orf
6,077 cubic yards VS the 5,226 cubic yards approved. This is one of the
areas we are having problems with. - oo

Early in the project, the three (3) foot elevation there by County Crews
doing the layout work resulted in increasing the abutments approximately
one and one half (1 1/2) feet to make the structure fit, our concrete
tickets included, which Mr. Willner has a copy of, these four (4) areas
show a total of 49.5 cubic yards poured VS 44.7 cubic yards approved for
payment. A field measurement taken on 10-1-88 was less than successful.,
to verify these figures and that aoutment #1 and #2 has been backfilled
and has beams on top, so they were not able to make an accurate
measurement of it, there is not anyway!

Mr. Scherzinger continued, "The quantity difference, we feel, is in the
use of neat line figures VS abutments which had variations, but witnout
the benefit of field measurements, we have no quantity verifications
other than concrete tickets. We certainly feel that a five (5) cubic
yard difference to be excessive, however, without an actual abutment
measurement, we will accept the estimated quantities. We are not asking
for anything more due to the fact that we cannot prove that we have more
in it. But, according to our concrete tickets, we do have five (5) cubic
yards more than what was turned in."

Mr. Scherzinger continued, "Another area we are having a problem with,
is in the steel involved in the bridge. The reinforcing steel was also
effected by layout and stake. The modified abutments were obviously
larger than originals, a total of 3,917 pounds and 3,548 pounds has been
approved. We are requesting payment for the steel we actually used, as
wasted due to the error, as it was billed to us from F. J. Folz Co.,
4,209 pounds and 4,043 pounds, tickets included, which Mr. Willner has
copies of. The reason we had so much difference in the metal was due to
the fact that when we widened the abutments, naturally, you have got to
add bigger metal reinforcement in order to make everything work out, so,
we not only had the smaller stuff already to do the job originally, but
we had to order more metal in order to get the job done right."
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Mr. Scherzinger continued, "Another problem they are having is, the day
the beams were set to support the deck, it was noted a one (1) dinch
variation would obviously result in a deck increase of one (1) inch. 1In
other words, so everybody understands, when we set the beams on the
abutments and the caps, there is a one {l1) inch variation in these beams,
so instead of rejecting these beams and sending them back, the inspector
on the job directed us to go ahead and pour one (1) inch more of concrete
on that deck, which made a five (5) inch deck instead of a four (4) inch,
because it took a long time to get these beams in and it would have put
the job way behind. We are requesting payment for the concrete we used
rather than the original amount. Proof of payment...we have tickets
included on that.".

Mr. Scherzinger added, "Mr. Hartman and Mr. Pinkston have looked over

the completed structure. We completed the final punch list three (3)

weeks ago. The structure is complete and we are regquesting payment of

our retainage of 10% that was held to guarantee satisfaction on

completion., We will furnish Commissioners with lien form as used by

various states along with another copy of our bond for your assurance if
necessary. The layout problem affected our crews progress in that the

steel had to be reordered. During this four (4) week waiting period, our
crew could not do productive work. We did secondary operations, not out

of priority and we have not made an issue of this. we have simply been ‘
too busy completing the structure. We had under runs totaling $4,138.44

on seven (7) items, as you can see from our summary sheet that Mr.

Willner has a copy of. We certainly try to keep items reduced where
possible; however, when diminsions are increased to correct items,

planned quantities cannot apply. We do not want you to misunderstand our
intentions of this letter and we certainly appreciate working for
Vanderburgh County and we are very proud of the new bridge and we nope

you will consider the items mentioned. The letter is signed: Sincerely,
Dave Guillaum." l

Commissioner Willner thanked Mr. Scherzingér’for his presentation and
asked Commissioner Cox if she has any questions she would like to ask Mr.
Scherzinger.

Commissioner Cox said to Mr. Scherzinger, "Are you saying the bridge
design was wrong? Way did you have to reorder your beams? You said thae
beams that you ordered were too short and you had to reorder them."

Mr. Scherzinger said, "No, I was talking about the steel reinforcement .
in the abutments, which is the supports at each end of the bridge, and

when we had to widen the abutments out, you had to make your steel wide
enough to support it."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Then, who changed the plans? When you bid on
this, wasn't that in the original plans?"

Mr. Scherzinger said, "Yes, but due to the Surveyors' making a mistake
on elevation on what they gave us, they had to widen it in order for the
beams to support the weight. 1In other words, that elevation mistake
caused us to be off a little one way or the other and they had to widen
out abutments in order to accommodate that and we had the other steel
there alrady, so they had to puy steel twice for that part of the
project. In other words, to explain to you petter...maybe I'm not .

explaining....we had to widen the original planned abutments a foot and a
half on each side of the bridge and in so doing, had to order more metal
and of course, it took more concrete too."

Commissioner Cox asked why did he not submit to them a change order on
this adaptation that was made in the building.

Mr. Scherzinger said he really did not know how to answer that. He said

he knows the inspector was aware of the problem and everypbody was aware

of it and it was more or less decided that's what had to be done. '
Commissioner Willner said to let him answer that.

Ccmmissioner Cox asked, "How can you answer that Bob, you weren't out
there. Were you?"
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Commissioner Willner said, Just a minute and I will tell you whether I
was there or not. This bridge is probably three (3) blocks from my home
and yes, I was there hundreds of times and yes, I brought to this board
that a change order is needed, early on....and not even you would second
my motion and we did not get a change order...."

Commissioner Cox said, "Now, just a minute, you brought a change order?
A change order was brought to us on a removal of a pipe....a culvert
underneath the road, yessir."

Commissioner Willner said, "There has never been a change order brought
to this board on Woods Road Bridge."

Commissioner Cox said, "And you asked for a change order on that because
there was questions....someone gave the approval to not charge for
installing that pipe. We did not need that pipe and traded off for the
increased amount of dirt. Now, that was discussed. These other things,
this is the first time I have heard them. I'm sorry, but this is the
first time I have heard them and I have not missed any meetings and I
have been out at the bridge too."

Commissioner Willner said, "No, this is not the first time you heard
it."

Commissioner Cox said, "I have been out at the bridge several different
times and I saw maybe two (2) people out there working on the bridge at a
time. To Mr. Scherzinger, "How many people do you have on your crews?"

Mr. Scherzinger responded, "There may very well have been two (2) there
at the times you were there, but we have had as many as four (4) and as
many as eight (8) at one time."

Commissioner Cox said, "Sometimes this was like 9:00 in the morning. It
was not at a lunch hour and it was not at a time when people would be
gone."

Commissioner Cox said to Commissioner Willner, "So now don't say I did
not second a motion for a change order on this Bob, because this is the
first I have heard of it."

Commissioner Willner retorted, "It certainly is notli"

Commissioner Cox replied, "It certainly is. I know what I hear and I
dispute that.™" '

Commissioner Willner responded, "Very well."

Mr. Scherzinger said, "Our Superintendent did come down and talked to
Mr. Hartman, I believe. The way I understood it, I wasn't there, but the
way I understood it was that was the agreement they came to. We had to
widen them and if they didn't widen them, they took a chance on the
bridge not holding and that was the agreed procedure to do."

Commissioner Cox said, "This is the first time this has been discussed
in a public meeting."

Commissioner Willner asked Mr. Lindenschmidt to go back and look up the
minutes for about two (2) months ago.

Commissioner Willner said, "In the first place, the way this is supposed
to work, is that any change order is supposed to come to this board
before it is done and that was not done on any of these occasions. Now
we have a problem and I am sorry it is done that way and I don't know
whether the editor of the Press or the Courier once said that due to the
city's problem, that no change orders should be approved. Well, that is
bologna, how are we going to handle these change orders? How are we, the
man on the bridge has worked everyday and he ordered a contractor to do
these things. It is not his job to do that. It is the Commissioners job
to do that. We are supposed to do that. We are supposed to sign the
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change order, but that is not done and it is let go until the job is
complete and now we have a problem. What I am saying is, Mr.
Scherzinger and Mr. Guillaum need their money. They need to pay their
sub-contractors and this problem needs to be addressed once and for all
and he has submitted a bill and he says there is some problem with Mr.
Hartman on the bill. Let us have a meeting. We need to go out and
reinspect the bridge ourselves and let's get these things done because he
needs his money."

Commissioner Willner asked, "When would they like to do that? Did they
want to meet out there Wednesday morning at 10:00 a.m. and they will
inspect the bridge and get these things all taken care of. He asked Mr.
Scherzinger to make available to the other Commissioners a copy of the
information that was given to him."

RE: PETITION OF RESIDENTS OF BEATY LANE

Commissioner Willner said he has a petition from the residents of Beaty
Lane and he will read the petition:

"We, the residents of Beaty Lane, petition the Vanderburgh County
Commissioners to inspect Beaty lane in order to advise us of requirements
necessary for the county to take over maintenance of this lane." .

Commissioner Willner said the petition is signed by seven (7) residents
and the person sending this letter is Joe Melton and his number is
867-5295. This Lane is immediately adjacent to McCutchanville off of 0ld
Petersburg Road.

Commissioner Willnr entertained a motion to forward this to the County

Engineer for his recommendation. ‘
Commissioner Cox so moved. ’ gy .

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER/DAN HARTMAN

Browning Road Estates, Section D: Mr. Hartman said Browning Road Estates
Section D' is ready for inspection and he has plans and etc. for it and

his office plans on inspecting this in the coming week. With their
permission he will hand these out and they may inspect them. .

Airport Road: Mr. Hartman said Airport Industrial Park is also ready for
inspection and he has a copy of it also. He said it is ready for their
inspection and comments. R

Commissioner Cox asked if these had been referred to the Surveyor's
Office for review of the drainage.

Mr. Hartman said the Surveyor will be informed and the Highway
Maintenance man will be informed.

Motz Road: Mr. Hartman said he is sure Motz Road is now being surveyed
and they have four (4) drafting sheets outlined and ready to put the
field information on it at this time and on Schutte Road they had the .

aerial photograph enlarged to a large scale and they can work on it also.
So, these two (2) roads are in the initial stages of being engineered for
approval by the Commissioners.

RE:  MONTHLY REPORT...ALEXANDER AMBULANCE SERVICE

Commissioner Willner said they have a monthly report from Alexander
Ambulance to be received and filed for the Month of August.
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RE: OLD BUSINESS

Boonville-New Harmony Road & Highway 41

Commissioner Willner said he wants to give them an update on
Boonville-New Harmony Road and Highway 41. The magic number is now five
(5) deaths in less than the last two (2) years. A ten (10) year old girl
died last Wednesday from an accident at that intersection.

Change Order on Woods Road Bridge

Commissioner Willner asked Commissioner Cox if she had any o0ld business.

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Lindenschmidt if he had found those minutes
yet. ‘

Commissioner Willner replied, "No."

. Commissioner Cox said, "It has always been our policy to ask that these
change orders be brought to us before they are made, if at all possible.”

Commissioner Willner replied, "Why weren't they, this is my question?”

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, and here you got the contractor comi:rj up
here and telling us this and this is the first time we have heard
anything about it. So, maybe we don't know everything that is goir; un,
but I do recall, Bob, the only change order request that came befor+ :rere
was that culvert, that was a $1,200 amount item in a submitted biii an~d
the County Engineer did not okay that for payment because he wanted
to....the contractor wanted to trade that off, he said, 'I will tox. .t
the pip€eiecccess”

Commissioner Willner said, "That is the prbplem, there are too man,
trade-offs.”

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Wednesday.....October 5.....2:30 p.m......County Council - Room 3C!

Wednesday.....October 5.....6:00 p.m......Area Plan Comm.-Room 301

Mondaye.e«sse.s.0ctober 10.ccececececseeess.Special Drainage Board Mect.ng
immediately following Cournt,
Commissioners Meeting.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Clerk of Circuit and Superior Courts...Appointments

Sarah Happe Dep. Clerk $535.55 bi-weekly Eff:10/3, 88

Clerk of Circuit & Superior Courts...Releases

Tracey Statz Dep. Clerk $535.55 bi-weekly Eff:10/3/88

Pigeon Township Assess Office/Reassessment..Appointments

Thomas Toon part Time $35.00/day Eff:9/26/88

Pigeon Township Assess Office/Reassessment..Releases

Thomas Toon Part Time $35.00/day Eff: 9/26/88

vanderburgh County Election Office...Appointments

Gerald Wohlhueter Bal. Assem. $4.85/Hr. Ef£f:9/19/88
John Lee Jones Bal. Assem. $4.85/Hr. 9/19/88
Janice Dudley Bal. Assem. $4.85/Hr. 9/19/88

Sylvia Loviscek Bal. Assem, $4.85/Hr. 9/19/88
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Burdette Park..Appointments

Perry Gostley Rink

Burdette Park..Releases

Perry Gostley Pool
Ron Stokes P.T.
Wade Morris P.T.
Adina Allen P.T.

Guard

Manager
Grounds
Grounds
Grounds

Circuit Court..Appointments

James Jones PT Work Release
Steve Lehman PT Work Release
Jane Beverly PT Work Release
John Voight Verification Off.
Darren Newman Trans. Officer
Christopher Carl Law Clerk

Herbert Russell

Circuit Court..Releases

Darren Newman
John Voight
Deborah Snyder

Perry Township Assessor..Appointments

Trans.
PT Clerk

PT Work Release

Verification Off.
Officer

David Fox

Perry Township Assessor..Releases

Fieldman

Gerald Jarboe

RE: ASPEN DRIVE

Fieldman

$4.35/Hr.

$48.00/Day
3.50/Hr.
3.50/Hr.
3.50/Hr.

$ 5.00/Hr.
5.00/Hr.
5.00/Hr.
$17,766/Yr.
16,948/Yr.
782/Bi-Wkly.
$ 5.00/Br.

$ 17,766/Yr.
16,948/Yr.
5.00/Hr.

$35.00/Day

$35.00/Day

PAGE

Eff:

Bff:

Eff:

Eff;

Eff:

Eff:

17

9/14/88

9/14/88
9/19/88
9/25/88
9/25/88

9/22/88
9/19/88
9/20/88
9/26/88
9/26/88
9/19/88
9/20/88

9/23/88
9/23/88
9/30/88

9/16/88

8/12/88

Commissioner Cox said she left this for Commissioner Borries because she
thought he was going to be here, so, if Commissioner Willner wants to

read this, then go ahead.

Commissioner Willner said,

"What is the status of Aspen Drive sewer

repairs; S.1.G. & E Co. Electric lines are exposed and transformers are

in danger of falling into sink holes.

Bob Gulick."

Commissioner Willner said he does not know what the status is, this is

the first time......

Commissioner Secretary Joanne Matthews interrupted to say that this is
what David Miller is working on.

Steve Miller appeared here.

That is when those people were here,
the Mehlings and Mr. Schenk, with those sink holes out on Aspen Drive and

Attorney Miller said he remembered when Steve Miller appeared here, but
he said he was not here when the Mehlings were here.

Ms. Matthews said they were here the week before, which is why it was

postponed.

Commissioner Willner said,

"On Aspen Drive, the easement between two

properties has a big sink hole and some of the transformers are falling

in and it is on easement, not only to S.I.G. & E. Co., but to all utility
easements and I don't Knoweeeoo"

Attorney Miller said his understanding of the status of that is that he
was to, and he is proceeding, with some research regarding the ultimate
solution to the responsibility for continuing maintenance of the storm
sewer and he is doing that and in the meantime, it was his understanding
that the county, we were not going to take any action with respect to
this problem and it was further his understanding that, Mr. Miller, on
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behalf of Citizens Realty, indicated that Citizens would go ahead and
finance, with its' own private monies, a f£ix for this particular problem
that had been raised at that point. He said he has not been back in
touch with Mr. Miller about this and if there is some endangerment to
S.I.G. & E. Co. facility, he would suggest that they had better call Mr.
Miller and find out what they have dcne.

Commissioner Cox said that was her understanding too.

Being no further business to come before the County Commissioners, Vice
President Willner declared the meeting recessed at 4:30 p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey David Miller
(Absent)
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox

COUNTY ENGINEER COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY SURVEYOR

Dan Hartman C.. Muensterman B. Jeffers
Chief Deputy

OTHER

Bob Gulick, SIGECO

David Scherzinger/Dave Guillaum Co.
Jerry Riney

Danny Spindler

Others (Unidentified)

News Media

SECRETARY: Joanne A. Matthews

(Transcribed by Jean Wilke and proofed by B. Miles)

Richard J. Borries, President

Robert L. Willner, V. President

. i 70/12/5 5
~_SAiriey J&n Cox, Member
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 10, 1988

The Vanderburgh County Commissioners met in session at 2:30 p.m. on
Monday, October 10, 1988, in the Commissioners Hearing Room, with
President Borries presiding.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

President Borries entertained a motion for approval of minutes of the
meetings held on September 19 and also September 26, 1988.

Commissioner Cox said on the September 19 meeting, page 8, paragraph 3,
line 5, "whatever is placed on the road and culverts" should be corrected
to that, "have been put in" and then there is two (2) little dashes,
should say "get damaged due to the narrowness and people getting off the
shoulder."

Commissioner Cox moved the minutes of the Commissioners meetings, with
the corrections on the meeting of September 19, 1988, be approved as
engrossed by the County Auditor.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: SHERIFF SHEPARD

State Road 57 and Kansas Road: Sheriff Shepard said they requested him
to run an accident survey on State Road 57 and Kansas Road, in the
northern part of the county, and they see before them a report that reads
as follows:

2-25-87 2 car accident Property damage
1-08-88 2 car accident Personal Injury
3-11-88 3 car accident Personal Injury
7-30-88 2 car accident Personal Injury
8-11-88 2 car accident Property damage
8-12-88 2 car accident Property damage
9-02-88 2 car accident Personal Injury
9-25-88 2 car accident Personal Injury
9-27-88 2 car accident Personal Injury

Sheriff Shepard said he goes out that way at least two (2) or three (3)
times a week and turn on to Kansas Road to go to the Training Facility
and then come back in highway 57 to the Substation. He said the flashing
light is working out there. What appears to be the problem is people
pulling up to the intersection, looking and not realizing how fast the
cars are coming. Both ways have a good view, but it is flat and a long
stretch right there and evidently the people are just not paying
attention to what the speed of the cars are when they are coming as they
look one way or the other.

Speeds of Mohr Road: Sheriff Shepard said
on Mohr Road and they will see before them

they also requested the speeds
the following:

7-29-88 0715-0815 hours 48 cars averaging 44 mph
9-27-88 1530-1700 hours 65 cars averaging 42 mph (eastb)
9-27-88 1530-1700 hours 92 cars averaging 43 mph (westb)
9-28-88 1530-1700 hours 37 cars averaging 42 mph (eastb)
9-28-88 1530-1700 hours 26 cars averaging 40 mph (westb)
9-28-88 0730-0817 hours 46 cars averaging 35 mph
9-30-88 0715-0815 hours 48 cars averaging 44 mph
Sheriff Shepard said they are within the perimeters of the speed limit

out there.
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Weapons for Sheriff's Department: Sheriff Shepard said they have met
with Mr. Dorsey and they have money set aside by the County Council to
purchase .09mm pistols for the Sheriff's Department. The bids are
properly described in there and they should have copies from Mr. Dorsey
on this and at this time, he would respectfully request that they put

this out for bids.

Sheriff Shepard said what this is, it is one hundred and ten (110) .09mm '
semi-automatic double action pistols and three hundred and thirty (330)
.09mm minimum fifteen (15) round capacity magazines, that would give an
officer the pistol, the magazine in the gun and also two (2) spare clips

and that would furnish the officer with approximately fifty (50) rounds

of ammunition VS the eighteen (18) they carry now.

Sheriff Shepard continued that forty two (42) or forty six (46) other
departments in the State of Indiana have already gone to .09mm.

President Borries asked if there were any questions of Sheriff Shepard.

Sheriff Shepard said he might add that other agencies have put in
specifications that exclude some pistols and they have some lawsuits and
some grievances from other gun manufacturers and they made this very
broad term in the fact that they just want .09mm semi-automatic and :t
says, "they must equal or surpass the quality level of the below listed
weapons." The foremost popular weapons are the 6RP226 Barretta 92F . *
model 17 or 19 and the Smith/Wesson model 5906. Those are the most
popular weapons around the State, but that would not exclude any
manufactureer from this bidding process.

Commissioner Cox asked Sheriff Shepard if these weapons are to be
purchased after the first of the year? . l

Sheriff Shepard said, "No. They want to get them at this years' pr..e,
it will be locked in at this years' figure. The January lst guns wili go
up 15%, so the bids will be opened November 7th at the Commissioners
meeting. Hopefully within the next few days we can award the contract
with a guaranteed price upon delivery at this years' price."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Do you have funds in your budget?"
Sheriff Shepard responded affirmatively. .

Commissioner Cox said, "I just noticed that under 'quantity', where .t
says, 'funding for payment will be available after January 1, 1989."

Sheriff Shepard replied, "That is because it was put in next years'
budget. The guns won't be delivered before January or February 1989. We
just want to get this years' price locked in."

Attorney John said, "The funds appropriated for that could not actually
be paid until next year. I think the thing that you are thinking aoout
is, awarding contracts without an appropriation. There is an
appropriation here for next year, but it cannot be paid until next year
and that would have to be a part of the understanding and probably be
included in the bid....."

Sheriff Shepard interrupted, "That is specified in here 'upon delivery.' l
The guns won't be delivered before January or February, but with this
years' price we will save about $4,000 or $5,000."

Commissioner Cox asked, "You did have in there an advertisement date?
Those are just the specs. It doesn't say where the proposals are to be
submitted and I assume that it would be to the Purchasing Department?"

Sheriff Shepard responded, "We left that up to Mr. Dorsey. He said he
would furnish them with the information. We just told him what we wanted
and he said he would handle it." '
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Attorney John said, "There is a date indicated here in a meeting on
November 7th, but it doesn't give any specific spot as to where that will
be held, or any time. It might be this particular meeting. We will need
to get some information as to where the meeting will be held and what
time."

Sheriff Shepard said, "It will be your meeting. It will be opened at
your meeting like regular bids are done. Mr. Dorsey evidently just did
not put the address in."

Attorney John said, "I am sure that he will put it in the specs when the
bids are to be received, where they are to be received.™

Commissioner Cox said, "That's what this is Curtis. It says that they
will be opened November 7th, but it doesn't tell in the specs and
proposal for bids,.....I couldn't find where it told the bidders to

- submit their proposals and what the deadline was." '

Attorney John said, "There is no problem with authorizing the bidding.
We may want to double check with Mr. Dorsey to make sure the appropriate
things are in there.”

Commission Cox moved that the request from the Vanderburgh County
Sheriff's Department regarding the bid for handguns for the Department
and specifications as provided be advertised on October 14 and 2l1st and
opening date for bids be established as bids submitted by 2:30 p.m. on
November 7th, 1988.

Motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: RESOLUTION/ASSIGNING FRANCHISE FROM WELBAC CABLE TV CORP. TO
TELE-MEDIA COMPANY OF THE MID-SOUTH: *

President Borries stated there was a Resolution, that had been signed by
the County Council, regarding consenting to assign Franchise for the
operation and maintenance of a community antenna television system in
Vanderburgh County from Welbac Cable TV Corp. to Tele-Media Company of
the Mid-South. It is a change again in this rapidly changing merger type
deal on that.

President Borries asked if the Attorney had had an opportunity to go over
this?

Attorney John responded, "I have not had the opportunity. 1I reviewed
the last one, so I would be happy to look at this one."

Commissioner Cox moved that this resolution be referred to the County
Attorney for review and determination if this is to be in Resolution Form
or in Ordinance Form.

Commissioner Willner seconded the motion. So ordered.

RE: INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE FOR A JOINT DEPARTMENT OF
CENTRAL DISPATCH.

President Borries stated, "This is the agreement that I referred to that
had been signed by the County Council. I think there were questions
raised at this meeting last week and I see that there may be some
comments here that this Board might want to make at this time."

The Chair then entertained comments.

Commissioner Willner said, "At the previous reading of this local
agreement, I asked for some changes and I believe the last paragraph of
that agreement reflects those concerns. You might want to read that into
the minutes."

President Borries asked, ™Is this Article 9, regarding Dispatch Services
for Volunteer Fire Departments?"
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Commissioner Willner responded, "That is correct.”

President Borries read the following: "The parties hereto agree to
continue to dispatch services for existing Volunteer Fire Departments in
Vanderburgh County for the duration of this agreement."

Commissioner Willner said, "What my fear is that if something would .
happen to the present Sheriff or his Office that the incoming Department
Head may say, 'I don't want anything to do with the Volunteer Fire
Department and will not dispatch them.' So, as long as there is a Joint
Department of City-County Dispatch, the Volunteer Fire Department will be

a part of that agreement and will be dispatched from the same source that
the 911 number is."”

Commissioner Cox asked, "How will this dispatch take place then? Will
it be through the Sheriff's Department? They will not have their own
special hook up with our new Central Dispatch. I am asking for some
clarification because, as we talked about, Bob & I and I felt very
strongly at last weeks' meeting, the responsibility for Law Enforcement
outside of the City Limits rested or was vested in the Sheriff of
Vanderburgh County and the Firefighting responsibility outside of the
City Limits was vested in our Volunteer Fire Department. We felt very .
strongly that representation from these Units should be included on this
Joint Board or Department Board that was being formed. So, there will be
no change then and the Administration of the Board of Directors will not
contain a member of the Volunteer Fire Departments?"”

Commissioner Willner stated, "It was pointed out to me that all of the
Volunteer Fire Departments are not a government entity; therefore, should
have no say in the spending or direction of these monies other than the
Dispatch Service and I agree with that. So, in lieu of the Member on the
Board, I opted for the Section in the Agreement."

Commissioner Cox responded, "It would seem that the citizens that lie
outside the City Limits pay our Local Option Income Tax money, pay other
taxes and that money is going to be used to help fund this new Central
Dispatch, which I totally support, but I do find it hard to accept why
input of these first responders to these various residents is not being
included on the Board of Directors. We are asking the Volunteer Fire
Department to provide a service without input onto the mechanism of how
they fit into this department and I am sure they would be a valuable
asset to the Board. I personally, for one, would like to see them with
representation on this Board."

Commissioner Cox continued, "The other question that I have, you also
felt very strongly, and I agreed, about representation from the Town of
Darmstadt being an incorporated town within our boundaries and it would
seem that they ought to have some input on this Board too."

Commissioner Willner said, "That was discussed and also, the Town of
Darmstadt does not have any finances in this Joint Department, so if they
are not going to put in any dollars, then they certainly should not have
any representation.”

Commissioner Borries asked, "Sheriff, do you have some thoughts in
regards to the ..cccccce™

Sheriff Shepard interrupted, "Yes, let me explain the mechanism as to I
how this started out. A couple of years ago when all of this came into
being, I met with the Chiefs, Jess Roberts and John Buckman and discussed
the possibility of forming a combined Police, Fire and Ambulance
Emergency Service Countywide. At that time, the Fire Departments , in
their opinion, did not want to opt, to go to the new equipment, which we
are going to have to purchase all new radios, all new equipment to go
into this new Centralized Dispatch System. The existing equipment that
they have will interface. At the present time, if you Dial 911 and you
live in the County, the Sheriff's Department answers the call. We have
six (6) buttons up here which ring up the six (6) Volunteer Fire
Departments. We dispatch all of the fires in the County, all of the
ambulance service in the county. That will not change. The only thing,
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we will change from the Sheriff's Department to the Centralized location,
wherever that might be, for the Centralized Dispatch. The Volunteer Fire
Departments, I have a Liaison Officer with them, Lt. Tucker, he meets
with them whenever they have their regular meetings. We have a grievance
procedure. If we have a complaint on each other or a problem with each
other, or a specific operational problem, we can fill it out and give it
back to each other. I think we have a very good working relationship
with the Volunteer Fire Departments. I will endeavor to support them as
long as I am Sheriff. I think we have a good relationship. They have
donated us a $7,000.00 computer. All of the houses, all of the
businesses in the County now are on computer. We can just punch up a
button, and John Buckman, the Chief at German Township, comes in once a
week and updates it with any problems that we might have. I can call up
Nunn Better Milling Company out here in Kasson and it will tell me first
response, second response, third response...It will tell me where the
fireplugs are, closest intersections, tells me who to send first, second
and third alarm and who to call in case of an emergency. The Volunteer
Fire Department is to be highly commended for this. They program the
thing for us and donated it to the Sheriff's Department. That will go
into the Centralized Dispatch System, so we will have an updated system
to begin with on that with all of the County properties on it. They will
have input. They will have a voice. They will have people on the
Advisory Committee. There is bascially going to be two (2) Committees,
the Executive Committee and the Operational Committee. The Executive
Committee is made up of the Chiefs, myself, Mayor, City Council, County
Council and County Commissioners (if I am not mistaken.), but it is 2/3
City and 1/3 County."

Commissioner Cox said, "Your points are well taken, but this Central
Dispatch is going to have upgraded equipment. Correct? Yet, our people
who live outside the City Limits are paying Local Option Income Tax money
that is buying this equipment for the City and a question County, and the
Volunteer Fire Department, who receives some .subsidy from Township
Trustees, through a Township Rate of Taxes, and then putting on their
Fund Raising Events, they are not getting any updated equipment. They
are going to have to continue to use what they have?”

Sheriff Shepard responded, "They opted to do that at this time. I think
some of the Chiefs are going to get some new equipment. Right Jess?"

Mr. Roberts said, "When they had the first meeting and we were talking
about this equipment, we were talking somewhere in the neighborhood of
$200,000 or $300,000 per each County Fire Department and there are five
(5) of us and we told them then that there was no way that we could come
up with that kind of dollars. Since then, we were in the first meeting
and I guess after that we were not involved with it but we, at this
point, there are some of us that would like to order one (1) radio and be
put into this system so that we have at least one (1) at our Base Station
at each one of our Fire Stations, because I understand they are very
expensive. We know that there's no way we can afford to buy these radios
because of the budgets that we operate under. What our main concern is,
we think, as an example, the Evansville Fire Department, is not donating
money to this system. The Taxpayers in the City of Evansville are. The
County residents, Scott Township is not donating money to this system,
but the residents are. They are paying taxes and we felt that there
should be a representative from the Suburban Fire Association on this."

Sheriff Shepard stated, "When we hired the consultants, there were a
number of meetings held in the basement and I think Mr. Roberts and John
Buckman and the other Chiefs attended those meetings and we got into the
equipment and all of that and we agreed that those meetings down in the
basement, which Jess attended, that they could use the equipment, it
would be compatible. At that time they chose to go ahead and let the
system work itself out to where we are today. We want them. We want to
include them, because we need them. We cannot do without them. They
provide a heck of a service to the county."

Sheriff Shepard extended an invitation to anyone who wanted to ride up to
Indianapolis (Wayne County) with him on Wednesday. He said Wayne

Township has probably the best Dispatching Sgstem of any Volunteer System
in the state and he 1s going up to see it Wednesday.
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President Borries said, "It was my understanding that this Board,

however, will have direct authority in terms of hiring and firing of
employees and that sort of thing. You are saying that there will be

another Board or Committee.......I certainly would want to emphasize my
support for the Volunteer Fire Departments and would consider any input
representation. I think that was the concerns that were voiced last .
year. This has been signed unanimously by all members of the County
Council. The funding itself is of concern now to move forward in order

to begin to plan for this full process, which is going to take a period

of time. We are talkinge...eeeeeee.

Sheriff Shepard interrupted, "We are talking another one and a half or
two years. This morning I met with Chief Hamner and Chief Wilcox and
Inspector Clayman and we are down to picking out the sites for the tower
and building itself."

Commissioner Cox said, "When we have people out there in our outlying
areas, I do not see why membership on a board should be totally related
to the amount that they are going to pay and that is what this evidently
does and I see nothing in here, Sheriff, about any other additional
committees. If, under the Board of Directors, if it could be included or
stated in some way what you have said here in our meeting, is no way
reflected in this agreement, that these people would be included and that
their input would be considered."

Sheriff Shepard responded, "I am just one voice, you realize that. I
will fight for the Volunteer Fire Departments and protect their interest
because we do have a compatibility, I think, that works real well. This
merely is in the planning stages. We have to do this to go ahead. The
county has their money already appropriated and the City just sold the
bonds last week and completed their part of it, so the money is available
and we need to do this inter-agency thing to .proceed t6 work toward the
common goal. I think all of these other things could be worked out down
the line without any in-fighting."

President Borries asked, "Shirley, have you talked with any of the other
Council members at all?" :

Commissioner Cox responded, "No, this was all very hurriedly done. It

came to our Board last Monday and you were not at the meeting and then it
went to the Council Wednesday. I didn't know it was going to go that .
soon. I have not talked with Council members about it."

President Borries stated, "I think Bob's point here was that it was very
important that he wanted to see the dispatch services for the existing
Volunteer Fire Departments be put in the agreement and again, I think the
make up of the Board was solely based on Funding and not in any way
designed to omit or exclude any particular agency or any group as
important as the Volunteer Fire Departments. It was strictly, as I
understand, set up in terms of the way that the funding participation was
going to proceed."

Commissioner Cox said, "I think you have assessed that correctly and I
too, have expressed my support for the Volunteer Fire Departments a
number of times. The problem is, all of this says here, is that 'yes,
boys, we are going to continue to use you, but you don't have any say of
how we are going to use you.' There is no assurance in here that all of
these things that are being said is ....So, what if this Board decides
later on that all of this equipment has to be updated? Then, will it be
funded out of Local Option Income Tax money and will these Volunteer Fire
Departments be upgraded or will it just say 'sorry, we are going to put
in our own system?"

Commissioner Willner said, "They own their equipment now."
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Commissioner Cox said, "Hey, we have CAPE that has provided
transportation service. They have the buses and the personnel and
someone else has come in and underbid them and there is a question
whether they are going to get that contract. The thing of it is, they
own their equipment, but what if the City or County says we no longer
want you to do it, we are going to do it?"

Commissioner Willner stated, "I don't think they can do that by virtue
of what I see in this agreement. It says that they are going to continue
those dispatch services for the existing Volunteer Fire Departments 1in
Vanderburgh County for the duration of the agreement and the duration of
the agreement was for a period of ten (10) years unless either party, I
guess, City or County, would give a written notice and that would have to
be two (2) years prior to the expiration or termination.™

Sheriff Shepard commented, "Down the line, if the Volunteer Fire
Department wanted to come up with the 800 Mega Hertz money and equipment,
they have no problem getting on line. It is my understanding that two
"(2) of you are going to go ahead and want those base units to go to sub
fleet."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Sheriff, were you in on this meeting when tue
Board was established?"

Sheriff Shepard answered affirmatively.

Commissioner Cox then asked, "The only reason that the Volunteer f:: -
Department was not included on this was simply because they didn't , .°
funding in?"

Sheriff Shepard responded, "No, we never even thought about that ua: ..
time." ST

Commissioner Cox asked, "Was there ever any thought of including trnes o0n
the Board?"

Sheriff Shepard responded, "It was never brought up to my knowledge. we
just dispatch them anyway. They are not going to be short-changed any
way shape nor form."

Commissioner Cox stated, "I don't care what people say in an open
meeting. Unless you have, and Sheriff, you know this, you work witn
legal papers all of the time....Unless it is in writing on the lega:
Paper.c...”

Sheriff sShepard interjected, "That's why that paragraph was put in
there..To protect their rights."

Attorney John said, "That one paragraph is more important than havingy a
member on the board. A member on the board just assures you that you can
vote for or against something. This is my first knowledge of this
amendment, states that those services will be provided for the duration
of the agreement, so that guarantees the services for ten (10) years to
these Volunteer Units, whereas, just membership to the board does not
assure anything."
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Sheri1ff Shepard said, "We meet and discuss now they want to pe
dispatcned or when they want to pe dispatcned or the procedure for
dispatching and we implement them througn common agreemeat. If tney wantc
to nave some input on tnis, all the chiers nave ©o do 1s reyguest a
meeting wich me and go witn me to tnis poard and in their pehalf, I will
stand up and speak rrom them, because we do work together I caink we
nave a hand and glove type of arrangement where we need each other and
they provide a service that I think is invaiuable to this county, so if
they have a prooliem and tney want some procedural changes or they want
some Kind of change, they would go witn me to the meeting an we woulid
stand up togetner collectively and ask for this change."

Commissioner Cox said, "A final guestion and this is a legal one, as 1t
reiates cto the Town of Darmstadt, simply because they are in the c¢¢
sompiianse or Vanderpurgh County and an Incorporated Town and a

. government entity, can they pbe excluded from representation on this
board, legaliy exciuded?"

Attorney John replied, "In my opinion, yes. This is off the hip because
I have not researched tnat, but I don't pelieve there are any
requirements that they be included. Have they requested to be?"

Sheriff Snepard said, "Not to me. We provide police, fire and ambulance
service to them now, we dispatch their......

Attorney John asked, "What all does tne Town of Darmstadt have as far as
police and fire protection?"

Sheriff Snepard said, "They have a Town Marshall and they have the Scott
Township.....

Mr. Roperts said, "We just have the Marshall, the fire department is the l
Scott Townsnip Volunteer Fire Department.” )

Sheriff Shepard said Alexander provides the ambulance for them. He said
they provide the emergency service for them now.

Attorney John said, "Basically, under Scott Township as opposed to the
Town of Darmstadt."”

Sheriff Shepard said, "Scott Township Fire Department, Alexander .
Ambulance and their Town Marshall or they send officers up there too."

Sheriff Shepard said, "We have an agreement with the Town. They buy
their gas for their Police Car and put it in our sub-station tank and
draw from it and we dispatch their Town Marshall. He works with our
officers on a daily basis."

Attorney John said, "From my recollection from attending those meetings,
I don't recail any exclusions or intent to exclude anyone from being
represented on the board. I don't recall any discussion regarding
McCutchanville or the Volunteer Fire Departments.”

Commissioner Cox said, ™Well, it just seems for a better dissimulation
of information we would need, whoever the Preesident of the Town Board is
of Darmstadt and a Volunteer Fire Department representative of this total
board, just for knowing what is going on and be able to dissimanate the
information to their citizens."

Attorney John said, "That is not the way it has been presented."
Commissioner Cox said that she understands that.

Sneriff Shepard said, "I don't think it has ever been a problem with

us. When getting tnis thing together and organized, we are concerned

about covering the county and I think we have done that. We are not ‘
excluding or changing any policy that tne Sheriff's Department has on

it."
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Commissioner Borries asked Mr. John, "Is it your opinion, Curt, that in
order for anything to change where the Volunteer Fire Departments would
not be consulted or in this case 'dispatched' that someone would have to
change this agreement, because it does specify what the procedure will
be?"

Attorney John responded in the affirmative.

Sheriff Shepard said, "I am not a fire fighter. I don't know a thing
about fighting fires. If there would be a change in any procedure or
anything else, I would have to go to these guys and ask their input to
stand up and say, 'this is what we ought to do' because I don't know
anything about fire fighting and they do. so, they will have a voice
through me anyway."

Commissioner Cox said, "The authority of the board, one of the things
that decides policy and procedure of the department and it's the Central
Dispatch of all of Vanderburgh County and I cannot see excluding
representation from these two (2) areas in the agreement, providing two
(2) people more on the Board of Directors. I do not see where that would
be a problem."”

Attorney John said, "I would say that time is of the essence. I think
they are in a hurry for these but that is not a valid reason to vote for
or against it."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Is it simply for the requirement before a bond
issue is obtained, that something be in place?"

Attorney John responded, "Now, that I am not sure of."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Now what is the big rush? Because you said you
really don't know how it is going to work yet and you have two (2) years
to get this implemented." . -

Sheriff Shepard said, "From now we have two (2) years if we keep moving
in an orderly manner, but now our big problem is getting a site picked
out with a tower approved by the FAA and buildings. It is my
understanding.....

Commissioner Cox interrupted, "What if you pick a site in Darmstadt?"

Sheriff Shepard said, "We have talked about that, but it is too near the
Airport and we cannot get within five (5) miles of an Airport."

Commissioner Cox said, "It certainly would seem if you would pick a spot
in Darmstadt, that it would be beneficial to have a representative on the
board to help determine that, I would think. That is why I think this
should be an all inclusive joint department and at this time it is not,
it is giving the Sheriff the responsibility for fire protection outside
the city limits, now don't get me wrong Sheriff...."

Sheriff Shepard said he has it now.

Commissioner Cox said, "But we are going ahead, we are moving into a new
era of Central Dispatch."

Sheriff Shepard said, "The dispatching and receiving of calls will not
change at all. The procedures will not change at all. The egquipment
will be moved into the new room, the computer will be moved into the new
radio room and the procedure will go on just like it is now."

Commissioner Cox said, "I will just make one last comment. I do feel
that we are making a big mistake by not including both people on this
Administrative Board from the Volunteer Fire Department and the Town of
Darmstadt."
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Commissioner Borries said, "We will certainly want to recognize her
concerns, but, Sheriff, will you continue to communicate with the
Volunteer Fire Departments and they will certainly send a letter to the
Town of Darmstadt that they are definitely a part of this process in
terms of all kinds of emergency services and that there will be no
changes, as you see, and probably expect some improvement assuming that
the equipment that they have is changed at some point."

Sheriff Shepard said, "I met with John Buckman, Chief of German Township
Fire Department on Friday."

Commissioner Borries asked what was the feeling of this Board?
Commissioner Willner moved that the agreement be executed. The
Inter-local Governmental Ageeement to Provide for Joint Department
Central Dispatch.

Commissioner Cox said she will second the motion and ask for a roll call
vote. '

Commissioner Cox; No, Commissioner Willner; yes, Commissioner Borries;
yes.

RE: COMMISSIONER WILLNER...HAZARDOUS INTERSECTIONS

Commissioner Willner said before they get into Department Heads there are
a couple of things he would like to take care of. He said he would like
to read the letter to Rex King of the Indiana Department of Highways into
the record.

Commissioner Borries said this is a letter that was sent to Rex King, who
is the acting District Engineer regarding the hazardous intersections on
US State Highways in Vanderburgh County. . The letter is as follows:

Mr. King:

The Board of County Commissioners of Vanderburgh County urgently regquest
assistance from the...c.c..

Commissioner Cox asked if there was a copy of that letter to go before
the Board or is it from an individual Or.cecesces

Commissioner Borries said it is a letter that he has written.
Commissioner Borries continued to read the letter:

The Board of County Commissioners of Vanderburgh County urgently request
assistance from the Indiana Department of Highways in the form of in
depth analysis of existing traffic hazards at two (2) intersections in
Vanderburgh County, one of these problem areas is the intersection of US
41 and Boonville-New Harmony Road, recently another fatality occured as a
result of a traffic accident at this intersection which raised the total
number of fatalities occurring at this location to five (5) in the past
several years.

The high rate of speed of vehicles on US 41 and the volume of traffic on
Boonville-New Harmony Road at this intersection creates the potential for
additional serious accidents to occur. In addition, the county has
recently received an increasing number of complaints concerning the
safety of motorists at State Road 62 and the University of Southern
Indiana entrance. The enrollment at USI has increased beyond anticipated
levels and will continue to increase as projections show a 40% increase
over the next three (3) years.




/7

MINUTES
VANDERBURGH COUNTY COMMISSICNERS
OCTOBER 10, 1988 PAGE 11

As a result of increased enrollment this intersection has become heavily
congested especially during peak hours and considering the rapid growth
of USI extending the length of the left turn lane may not adequately
reduce the hazard posed by the large volume of left turn lanes into the
university, therefore, the Vanderburgh County Commissioners are
requesting that I.D.0.H. evaluate the intersection to determine whether
current plans for improving the USI entrance on State Road 62 will safely
accommodate existing and projected traffic volumes.

Your prompt attention to these matters is greatly appreciated.
Commissioner Borries said this letter has been sent.

Commissioner Cox said she has a question, "What does this mean at the
bottom, Rick, where it says here 'therefore the Vanderburgh County
Commissioner are requesting that the I.D.0O.H.evaluate the intersection to
determine whether plans for improving the USI entrance on State Road 62
will safely accommodate existing and projected traffic volumes'.

Commissioner Cox continued, "Are you saying here then that we do not need
an overpass."

Commissioner Borries responded, "Not at all."
Commissioner Cox asked what is this thing then.

Commissioner Borries said, "It says that we would certainly feel that
that is not an adequate solution at this time."

Commissioner Cox said, "Then we are asking them to re-evaluate, not
evaluate."”

Commissioner Borries stated that was correct.

Commissioner Cox said, "And what if they comé back with a plan or if they
say, yes, they feel that it will, then what is our next move?"

Commissioner Borries said, "I think our next move is to proceed as
quickly as we can locally with..........I think we are asking here for a
partnership and certainly asking for their cooperation, obviously it is a
state highway and that is why we want their input and their assistance
here with this problem."

Commissioner Cox said, "And we are not in this letter asking them to
build an overpass or an underpass?

Commissioner Borries stated no.
Commissioner Cox said she would like a copy of this letter, please.

RE: COMMISSIONER WILLNER...WOODS ROAD BRIDGE

Commissioner Willner said, "On the subject of the Woods Road Bridge, I
have some correspondence here that I would like to be made part of the
record, and also last Monday it was said that my information was not
right, that Shirley did not know about the problems with the Woods Road
Bridge, didn't know about the concrete, didn't know about the steel and
again on Wednesday of last week she repeated those statements several
times and I wish to apologize, not only to Shirley but to other people
for saying 'damn'. I think what has happened is I have been caught up in
the election process and even though I am not a candidate I probably
shouldn't let that happen so I want to apologize for using the word
'damn’',"

Commissioner Willner continued, "Secondly I want to refer to the June 6,
1988 minutes on page twelve (12), and let me read from the record, 'Woods
Road Bridge, Commissioner Willner quiried Mr. Easley concerning progress
on the Woods Road Bridge. Mr. Easley said, I think they poured a pile
encasement on six of the piles and they probably have two more to go.

Mr. Willner asked, do we need a change order? Mr. Easley, I have not
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prepared one yet. Mr. Willner, Is it defintely going to be a dollar
amount? Mr. Easley, There will be a change in quanities, there will be
an additional amount of concrete and some steel and he may have enough
information by now that we can put together a change order.' Now then,
the two (2) people that were attending that meeting were myself and
Shirley Jean Cox."

Commissioner Willner asked Commissioner Cox if she would like to read the
minutes?

Commissioner Cox said, "I have read the minutes, my only question was
why, what prompted you to ask Mr. Easley if a change order was necessary
at the June 6th meeting when he only reported to our Board that the
pilings had been poured and two (2) more were to be done, my question to
you, Bob, is, this was never discussed and that is what I have said all
along, I was made aware, as I am made aware of several other things tnat
have happened, some of which may be rumors and some of which prove

sometimes to not be totally factual, that an error had been made in tne
surveying, but yet, not one (1) time in over a months period was that

. ever brought up and Mr. Easleys' statement was made and in no way

indicated the need for a change order, which simply leads you to believe
that business of this Board is being conducted outside this Board Room
and that is wrong." .

Commissioner Willner asked Commissioner Cox, "Do you want me to read :ne
minutes again."

Commissioner Cox stated, "I have read the minutes."®

Commissioner Willner said, "Did it say concrete and steel?"

Commissioner Willner said, "Did it say cohdfgte and steel.”

Commissioner Cox said to Commissioner Willner, "You are just like on tne
debate, get back to the issues, let's get back to the issues. The first

two (2) paragraphs of Woods Road Bridge creates no, nothing to indicate

that a change order was needed, and what I am saying to you is why didn't
you, on June 6th, or why didn't you on May 8th, which evidently you were
made aware of by the County Engineer that a change order was going to pe
necessary, but never, ever brought to this Board, that is my question to
you, it was never discussed in this Board, an elevation error was never .
discussed in this Board and that is where you called me a liar and tnat

is a very untrue statement.......”

Commissioner Willner said, "I didn't say what had caused the change
order, admittedly, but I said a change order was needed and the change
order was needed on concrete and steel, and you were aware of that."”

Commissioner Cox said, "And I'm saying that you are conducting business
outside this Board Room that belongs in the proper authority of this
Board and to the citizens of Evansville, and I say it is wrong."

Commissioner Willner said, ™That is also not true, but I do my homework
and somebody does not, now, let me go on to August 1lst on page four (4)
and read a quite a lengthly discussion and I believe Dan Hartman was in
front of us then, 'Claims, a claim to Dave Guillaum in the amount of
$65,101.00 in reference to Woods Road Bridge project was submitted for
approval. Mr. Hartman said the figures have all been checked in response
to the quirey Mr. Hartman said there were adjustments made to correct the
figure and it is reflected in this claim, the figure submitted by Mr.
Guillaum was $66,181.95 and Mr. Hartman deducted §$1,200.00 from that
claim. Commissioner Borries said that this is claim #3 on the Woods Road
Bridge and Mr. Hartman adjusted the claim down $1,200.00 so the total of
this claim is $65,101.95. Commissioner Willner asked Mr. Hartman whether
he had a change order and Mr. Hartman said he does not, there were some
0ld pipe out there and Mr. Guillaum wanted to charge us the same amount .
for the pipe removal that he was wanting to charge for the pipe
altogether although we decided we actually did not need it, thus he
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took this out. Mr. Guillaum has not seen these figures. Comissioner
Willner asked if the $1,200.00 figure was approved by the Commissioners
and Mr. Hartman said he did not approve it. Mr. Willner said if he was
talking about Mr. Hartman he is asking that this figure be approved by
the Commission. Mr. Hartman said the figure represents $30.00 per lineal
foot, he believes. Mr., Willner asked if this is the orginal bid accepted
by this Board. Mr. Hartman said the orginal bid was for new pipe, he
hasn't had a chance to check Mr. Guillaum on this and rather than hold up
the entire claim he took out the $1,200.00, according to specs most pipe
like that remains in the project, all you do is seal the ends and
proceed, you don't remove them. The $1,200.00 there is the same price.
Mrs. Cox said, let us see if I understand what is happening here, Mr.
Guillaum has turned in a blue claim for a partial payment on the project,
what you are saying is that everything that he has on the claim is
allowable except you want to question or talk to him about the $1,200.00.
Mr. Hartman said there no new culvert at all.

Mrs. Cox continued, but it did call for a new culvert in other specs and

‘ that the pbid that we have left. Mr. Hartman said that is correct. Mrs.

Cox said, but now we don't need that pipe. Mr. Hartman said that is
correct, we dont need that culvert and he is charging us $1,200.00 for
removal of existing culvert which was not specified. Mrs. Cox said okay
so we need to clarify that but rather than hold up the claim you deducted
the $1,200.00 from the amount submitted by Mr. Guillaum. Mr. Hartman
said this was correct. Mrs. Cox said, then you come in with a change
order on this. Mr. Hartman said if necessary. Commissioner Willner said
any time you change a price of a project, low or high, you need a change
order, it doesn't matter if it is higher, over, above, under or whatever,
you need a change order, this doesn't matter, it will go right througn
because it is less but sooner or later before the contract is complete
you have to change the contract price. Mr. Hartman agreed. Mrs. Cox
interjected, I think Mr. Hartman understands that, but he is telling us
that the blue claim is that is why the total contract on the white sheet
is different from that on the blue claim.. Mr. Willner again asked that
Mr. Hartman submit a change order. Upon motion made by Commissioner
Willner and seconded by Commissioner Cox, the claim was approved for
payment. So ordered' and the minutes were signed by all three (3)
Commissioners.”

Commissioner Cox asked Commissioner Willner, "Now what is your point, I
have fully said that the change order I was aware of was the one that
related to the culvert, that has never been in question, I fully admitted
that that was the only change order that was ever brought toward this
Board and if you will search on in the minutes you will find that Mr.
Hartman did bring us a change order to cover that change there and you
rejected it, because it wasn't on a state form, it was simply on an 8 1/2
by 11" sheet of paper.

Commissioner Willner said it was not a change order.

Commissioner Cox said, "A change order can be written on any kind of a
form as long as it is signed and it was listed as a change order, why did
you reject that, so I see nothing new that you read as of August 1st.
which nas taken fifteen (15) minutes to read, I fully admitted out on the
bridge and in talking with you and Mr. Borries and Mr. Guillaum and Mr.
Hartman that I was aware of this, this was discussed in a meeting."

Commissioner Willner said, "No, you said you weren't aware of it. You
said you knew nothing about concrete and steel, it was your exact words."

Commissioner Cox said, "I didn't, you never discussed concrete and steel
in this meeting, due to an elevation error."

Commissioner Willner said, "Then read these minutes, Shirley."
Commissioner Cox said, "I read those."

Commissioner Willner said, "What did it say."
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Commissioner Cox said,; "You discussed them with someone outside this
meeting and then came in here and said we are are going to need a change
order, but you never said why we needed the change order and what it was
all about, at least the concrete pipe WaS.eeeeees"

Commissioner Willner said to Mr. Borries, ¥I have a letter from belbert
Pinkston, the county employee, bridge inspector that is on the job

whenever the contractor is working and I would like this to be made part l
of the record, you may read it if you choose too, or put it in the record
if you so choose."”

County Auditor Sam Humphrey said to clarify one thing, he believes the
State Board of Accounts orders him, as Auditor, to accept any kind of
claim on a proper form, now a piece of paper as long as it is signed is
not a proper form. .

Commissioner Cox said, "Then excuse me, then does that mean that we
cannot accept the claim from Mr. Klenck on simply an 8 1/2 by 11" type
sheet of paper that says he certifies that he delivered so many tons of
dirt to the site without being on a proper sub-contractor form?"

Commissioner Willner said, "Mr. Klenck does not bill us, the contractor
bills us, Shirley."

Commissioner Cox said, "Then we better pay particular attention who our
contractors are using, the sub-contracator......before we pay those
bills."®

Commissioner Willner said, "No, we better not, you better."”

Commissioner Borries said, "I have asked for documentation from a number

of different sources and I am not inclined, based on the differences that
we have heard today, to act on anything that concerns this bridge, I want
more information about the project. The letter from Mr. Pinkston says

that: This is to verify the extra concrete and steel on the Woods Road
Bridge, due to a surveying mistake, a Bill Jeffers on or about the 2nd of
May, the contractors had to add more concrete and steel to the west
abutment#l and east abutment #2. 49.5 yards of concrete was poured on
four (4) abutments, 44.7 yards of concrete have been approved by Dan
Hartman, also due to the Surveyor's mistake longer steel had to be
ordered, this delayed normal construction by about four (4) weeks, on or
about 8/1/88 the concrete beams were set, one of the beams was one (1)
inch higher than the rest, the bridge plans called for 4" of concrete on
top of beams because one (1) beam, the superintendent and I had
determined that five (5) inches of concrete would have to be poured in -
order to have enough concrete above the reinforcement steel on top of the -
beams. Concrete was poured on the deck on 8/8/88. Total tickets for

that pour was forty nine (49) yards. I rejected about eight (8) yards of
concrete because it was setting up too fast and could not be used. Forty
one (41) yards was poured on the deck according to tickets. Between

8/1/88 and 8/8/88 the reinforcement steel was laid on deck.

Concerning borrow dirt the road was built up according to bridge plans
drawn by Dan Hartman. We do not have an exact 2 to 1 slope because we
were running over planned quantity. Dirt had to be added in areas not
planned, such as three field entrances and low areas in fields close to
bridge. Also, the run around was washed out twice and dirt had to be
replaced by dirt contractor. Mr. Harvey Klenck was the dirt contractor
and he submitted a letter showing load counts and dirt quantities to be
6.077 cubic yards. Mr. Hartman has approved 5.226 cubic yards. I feel
that Mr. Klenck is accurate on his figures.

On or about 8/23/88, I went out to the bridge to see how things were

coming along. I had been off the job due to an automobile accident on
8/8/88. Five items on the punch list that I wanted completed were the
removal of excess rock on the shoulders of the road, repairs on asphalt
where backhoe tracks were made, removal of string lines left in edge of .
pavement, smoothing out dirt on banks and edge of road. Mr. Hartman was

on the bridge on 9/8/88 and his comments to Mr. Rick Brown were "the job
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looks good, you are done, pick up your tools and leave. Getting back to
the abutments, when the piling was driven, I was there and the center of
the pilings were set exactely where Bill Jeffers drove the stakes.

I hope this letter will help clear up some things. To the best of my
knowledge, the dates, facts and figures are true."

Commissioner Borries said, "we will take that and also ask for
information from Mr. Hartman, Mr. Jeffers and continue our work on this
particular project.”

Commissioner Willner said, "Now, Mr. President, in order that this not
happen again, I wish that this Board and the necessary authorities would
speak to the Auditorium, to the air condition contract and see whether
that is up to date or not, if we could do this by next week, I would
appreciate it."

Commissioner Cox said, "Mr. Borries, about Mr. Pinkstons' letter here, do
you know who Mr. Rick Brown is?"

Commissioner Borries said he did not know what his official position is,
but would assum@.ceececcoee

Commissioner Cox said, "On another point here I do not understand, the
delivery of an order from a supplier that was inaccurate and I read this
article here and in the paper about one of the beams was off one (1)
inch, 'one of the beams was one (1) inch higher than the rest,' it would
seem that these beams, I don't know all about the construction and the
making of these but, who was the supplier of these materials?"

Mr. Hartman said, "Henderson Compacting."

Commissioner Cox said, "The county didn't.bfder those beams, did we?"

Mr. Hartman said no, it was part of the bridge contract.

Commissioner Cox asked, "What was the name of the company?"

Mr. Hartman said Precision Concrete Company.

Commissioner Willner said, "It is kind of a wrong name there, isn't it."
Commissioner Cox asked, "Is it the wrong name?"

Attorney John said, "Well from Precision and they were an inch off."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Was the company made aware of the error in one
of the beams?"

Commissioner Cox said to Mr. Hartman, "Wait, you weren't County Engineer,
you were not out there at that time, I am asking the wrong person, but I
do intend to find this company in Henderson, Kentucky and ask them why
they sent us a beam that did not line up with the other beams when I am
1-1V) - I

Commissioner Borries said Mr. Bartman would have been the County Engineer
on 8/1/88, if that is when they were set.

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Hartman if he was out there on 8/1/88?

Commissioner Borries said, "Thats when he says his date that he uses in
here was set, I'm not sure that........but I am sure you were the County
Engineer at that time, I am not sure that you were there on that
particular day."

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY...CURT JOHN
Speed limit on Eleventh Avenue

Mr. John said, "On my last meeting on September 26th. this Commission
voted to amend the speed limit on Eleventh Avenue, going north to 25 MPH.
I have that amendment here for your execution.
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Amendment to Zoning Ordinance

Mr. John said, "I have some correspondence from Area Plan Commission,
delivered to my office Friday is a Code Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance
for vanderburgh County, I will give the original to you and have your
secretary make copies of it for your review. They requested this be set
for first hearing at the earliest convienence. In essence, what the
amendment does is provides for when an individual requesting a rezoning
it submits a use of development committment, if that committment is
changed after the Area Plan Meeting and prior to the Commissioners
hearing on it, it is required to go back to the Area Plan for action
before it gets to this Board. There has been questions in the past
regarding rezonings as to whether or not that would be required and this
will resolve that problem, so you may want to set this for first reading
next week or the following week and review it."

Commissioner Borries asked if the Commissioners want to put this on the
agenda for next week?

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. John if it was in proper form?

Mr. John replied in the affirmative.

Commissioner Cox said, "then what it says in essence if there is a change.
when a developer or person goes before the Area Plan Commission and a
rezoning is granted with a stipulated site plan, and that the site plan
is altered before it comes before our Board, it has to be reverted back
to the Area Plan Commission."

Mr. John responded, "Basically that is it, what it really does is that it
says 'if the petitioner submits with his request for a zoning, either a
use committment or a development committment and it is approved by the
Area Plan Commission or they can disapprove it and that is later amended
then it goes back to Area Plan before it gets here and I would assume
that also includes that if the plan is stipulated at Area Plan."

Commissioner Cox said, "Then it would include any section fours."

Mr. John said any changes that are proposed after the Area Plan has made
the recommendation.

Commissioner Cox said she has no problem with this request. .

Commissioner Borries entertained a motion to place this on the agenda for
first reading on October 17, 1988.

Commissioner Willner said he is prepared to act on this today if the
others are.

Commissioner Cox said she was willing.

Commissioner Willner so moved that the Ordinance Amending Ordinance
153003 and 153118 Vanderburgh County Code of Ordinance be approved on
first reading and read again two (2) weeks from today.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

President Borries said it would be heard again on Monday, October 24,
1988.
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RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY...CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Muensterman submitted copies of
the Weekly Work Report for Emp?oyees at the County Garage for period of
October 3 thru October 7, 1988, report received and filed.

Gradall: Henze, Heinlein, Miller and Happe Roads.
Paver: Boonville-New Harmony Road.

Grader Maasberg, Sensemier and Schmitt Roads.
Mower: Mill Road.

Patch Crew: Baseline, New Harmony, Boehne Camp, Boonville-New
Harmony and Kuebler Roads. Also on Oakhill and North
Redbank Rds.

Woodridge Place: Commissioner Borries said he and Mr. Muensterman
"traveled Woodridge Place this past week and by his mileage and what they
were able to determine thru the State Highway at this time, in still
looking into this matter, they found the part of Woodridge Place and 1t
is very confusing because there are two (2) parts to it as you travel
thru it, excepted only to the point, according to what they are measuring
on the cul-de-sac to New Harmony to 0ld 460 Highway. We cannot find, at
this time, and I think that is the problem, the other portion which 15 a
longer portion that comes off of Jennings Lane. Any length of acceptance
along that part and I think that is where the dispute is. You have ~ot
been able to find any other documentation through any source at this
point?

Mr. Muensterman responded negatively. )
Mr. Muensterman said he thought their lawyef:might bé*éble to come 1in
with something from their deeds or abstracts or something.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Mr. Borries did you drive this section...from
Jennings Lane? How much did that measure?*®

Commissioner Borries asked, "Do you mean the whole thing...Or just from
Jennings Lane?"

Commissioner Cox requested Mr. Muensterman to get a report on this and
report back to Commissioners.

Commissioner Willner asked, "What do you expect to do with the contract
in the meantime? We have let a legitimate contract, signed by this
Board. You must do something with it."

Commissioner Borries said, "The road that we are now examining, is
Woodridge Place."

Commissioner Willner said, "I can bring you up to date real quick. We
let a contract, evidently on a road that we don't own. It is not a part
of our's. One of the people who lives on this road, says 'No, you don't
come on this road. It is a private road. So, now we have a contract to
the asphalt company and can't do the road. So, we either need to drop
that portion with the contractor's permission or switch it to another
road. Cletus has said in the same area that he has come up with
approximately the same number of roads and this asphalt company agreed to
do them in lieu of. For the betterment of Vanderburgh County, we should
agree to that. There will be another paving season next year and it is
very close this year. If we want to do what is right with the taxpayers,
we need to switch that contract over with this contractor's permission
and we need to do it today, for the same price. It goes by the ton
anyway and they give us a price per ton and they weigh each load and we
get a ton price on a road. But it is for the same price or less."
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Attorney John said, "I'm not sure that you can transfer it like that.
Are they willing to eliminate that portion of the agreement...that one
road? Will he drop that portion off of the contract? You need that in
writing and probably change that total, that particular road. The reason
I am saying that is because the new roads were not included in the
original bid and any change order anticipates something in the original
bid that was either not anticipated or cropped up unexpectedly. This, I
don't think would fit into the purpose of a change order, switching
roads. So, if they would be willing to eliminate that portion of the
contract, in writing, bring it before this Board to show that he will not
be doing that particular road at this time."

Commissioner Cox said, "Curtis, if you would just tell him....I don't
believe, unless I am not understanding correctly, has this Board made a
final determination that Woodridge Place is not an accepted road?"

Commissioner Borries said, "I am not sure we have enough information to
do that, but also, I am not sure that we are going to be able to pave it
at this time."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Could we direct our County Attorney to alert
the contractor to the problem that we are dealing with?"

Attorney John said, "The most prudent thing at this time maybe to tell .
him to hold up on that portion of the agreement and if it comes to the
point where we know that we do not have the authority to pave that road,
then we could request that he eliminate that, and if we do go ahead and
accept that road, then we go ahead and pay him."

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER...DAN HARTMAN

Re: Correspondence from Andy Easley .

Mr. Hartman said, "J. H. Rudolph, on thejr -contractual work in paving
jobs, he has done Koring Road, Laurel Drive,. and Diamond Island Road.

Rogers Group did not do any work last week, but they have yet to finish
up Buente Road, Bixler Road and Seib Road. They have completed St. Joe
Road. I direct your attention to the memo on your desk which is from Mr.
Easley to Mr. Borries and a letter from Mr. Rex King, Acting District
Engineer:

MEMORANDUM

TO: Richard Borries '
FROM: E. Andrew Easley, Jr.

DATE: October 7, 1988

SUBJ: Woods Road Bridge

The following information may help answer some questions that have been
raised concerning the construction of the bridge.

As you are aware, a construction surveying error by the Deputy County
Survey, Bill Jeffers, required the redesign of the concrete abutments.
Dan Hartman advised the contractor to increase the dimensions of the
abutments and reorder the reinforcing steel.

The contractor was told the County would pay him for the additional costs
he incurred because of the surveying error. The surveying error was
discussed at the County Commissioners' meeting on June 6, 1988 and the
possibility of a Change Order was mentioned.

I asked the contractor to get his additional costs together and submit
them to the County Engineer so I could prepare a Change Order for
submission to the County Commissioners. The contractor did not submit
any additional costs to me as of June 20, 1988, the date I was suspended
from the County Highway Engineer position.
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The additional 1" of thickness of the poured concrete bridge deck was
authorized by me after Delbert Pinkston consulted me concerning the
amount of concrete cover we were going to have on the reinforcing steel
in the concrete deck. The additional 1" was necessary to obtain the
required 2" of cover that protects the steel from corrosion due to water
on the deck.

If you have any questions on the above, please contact me.
/s/ Andy Easley

Mr. Hartman said that additional money will be necessary for the payment
of the concrete amount on abutments and on the deck itself. He said
these will be change orders. He said he hopes this will clarify some
comments and questions.

Mr. Hartman said, "Right now the contractor and I are still up in the air
over the amount of dirt fill and predicate on what the surveyor finds in
the final cross sectioning of the project itself will determine the
amount that we will actually pay and that is about a week or two (2)
weeks off as far as scheduleing is concerned”.

Mr. Hartman continued, "This office has been working on the Motz Road,
which is 1.04 mile in length and we have plotted 500 feet of cross
secions for that endeaver, Schutte Road has been........plans have been
scaled to our working scale and we are plotting the rejoining of the
intersection of Schutte Road and Highway 62, and the same with the
Boonville—~New Harmony road, this office has been working very closely
with the Highway Department in detailing that particular road. Mr. Gwinn
now will make a report on Hedden Road and Browning Road Estates".

Hedden Road: Mr. Gwinn said," Hedden Road if off for today, Mr. Morley,
myself and Cletus went over it FPriday and they have some other things
that they want to take care of and they requested that we not submit it
to you for acceptance today". :

Browning Road Estates: Mr. Gwinn said Browning Road Estates which Mr.
Wittekindt has is on for today, possibly subject to some conditions of
acceptance.

Mr. Gwinn said, "I have his letter here which follows:

Mr. Dan Hartman

Vanderburgh County Highway Engineer
City-County Building

Evansville, Indiana 47708

Dear Mr. Hartman:

Please be advised that I am submitting to you for inspection and for the
County Commissioners to accept for maintenance the roads of Red Gate
Road, approximately 570 feet and Red Gate Court, approximately 155 feet
in length located in Browning Road Estates Section 'D'.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 867-3185.
/s/William J. Wittekindt, Jr.

Mr. Gwinn said on the letter Mr. Wittekindt certifies that the roads and
drainage construction have met approved plans and are 100% complete, the
de acceleration lane was waived by the Commissioners in May or June of
1987.

Mr. Gwinn said, "Neither Dan or Cletus have signed this but, it is a
possiblilty subject to conditions, now I have written down three (3)
conditions that have been noted and also Bill Jeffers is here for the
drainage aspects of it. First, he needs to fix his back slopes for
uniform drainage onto the curb and gutter of the road and away from the
road, he needs to prevent future drive-ways from becoming drain ditches
onto the road, he needs to also make provisions for uniform drainage onto
the road from roof drain downspouts without making any curb cuts. I
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c0L0K caac Baaa Wiceekinde saouid speakK cto you and I think Biii Jerfrers
snouid speak to you Curtis and I can advise you thac basicaily cne
coastruction of the road itself and the curp and gutter work is okay".

Mr. Wittekindt asked if they nad any questions of him. He said, "What I
mean is, Mr. Gwinn here had some on like the drive-ways and the
downspouts, now tne only thing I am going to say is, if I don't build a
nome I don t know how I can control the puilder or the person who 1is
building the home, do you follow what I am trying to say, I agree that he
is right, but if he pbuilds a house and runs his drains straight in the
road, which I know is not right, do I have the power to stop him.....to
stop the owner from doing that?"

Mr. Wittekindt asked, "Do I have the legal power to do that?"®

Attorney John asked if this is a subdivision out there?

Mr. Wittekindt responded in the affimative.

Mr. John said he thinks he can put some restraintive covenantS...ceceee

Mr. Wittekindt said he asked them to when he approved the house plans.

Mr. John said they may want to put what they are talking about here in
their restrictive covenant requiring any puilders to hook up.....however
he is saying it.

Mr. Wittekindt said he cannot revise the restrictions, because they have
already been recorded, pbut I could probably put it in the letter of
approval on the house plans.

Mr. John said, "I don't know if you can amend your.......have you already
started selling lots?" RN “

Mr. Wittekindt said yes, they have a home on there now and two (2) lots
have sold in this subdivision, and you just can't go amending your
restrictions.

Mr. John asked, "Do the ones that have already built conform with what he
is requsting?"

Mr. Wittekindt said to his knowledge that they do. .

Mr. John said he is not sure of the procedure they would go about
amending the covenants or even if he could. =,

Mr. Wittekindt said you have to have every property owner agree to 1t or

it will not be amended. So basically the restrictions are bound in this

section here, so the only thing to do is if he could get a letter stating
exactly what you want and put it into the approval of the house plans.

Comnmissioner Cox said she has a question, she asked Mr. Gwinn, "We have
had a lot of streets to come in before this Board for acceptance and I
agree wholeheartly that downspouts out along....running through the curbs
are nothing but a headache, we experienced that out on Kirchoff Blvd,
when we try to resurface and then you cover up their drain spouts and
then they get out there have a flooding problem, but I wonder, is there a
specific condition in this....of road, building and drainage plan that
this is a concern here because I don't recall it being a portion of the
requirements for acceptance for the other roads that we have reviewed,
and is it because of the terrain or some extenuating circumstances where
this is of higher importance than on these other roads that we have
accepted?*®




/29

MINUTES
VANDERBURGH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 10, 1988 PAGE 21

Mr. Gwinn said, "I simply recommend that you conditionally approve this
subdivision and that part of that condition pbe that he uniformly grade
his back slopes away from his curbs so that we have uniform drainage onto
the curb and gutter that is in the road, second, that we require him to
prevent future drive-ways from pbecoming drain ditches into the road,
thirdly, that we also require him to prevent future downspout drains from
becoming drain ditches into the road, that that water come uniformly into
that curb and gutter that you have approved for this subdivision".

Commissioner Cox asked, "Now is this going to be your recommendations
from now on out on all roads that you look at, will you give these same
recommendations?”

Mr. Gwinn said he is not sure.

Commissioner Cox said, "Then why is this so necessary here, you have just
repeated what your recommendations are and what I need to know, Dick,..."

Mr. Gwinn responded, "Because we have a very noticable problem of failure
in our sub-grade under our pavement because wat€L.eseseo."

Mr. Gwinn said, "Your question is, do we have current failures in this
subdivision, is that correct?”

Commissioner Cox replied, "Well, you said in subdivisions we have
undermining of the base, under the road, I know what you are talking
about and my question was, do we have it in this one already."

Mr. Gwinn said, "This is a brand new one, he just finished the paving
last week, now, we haven't had enough exposure yet for it to be torn up,
we do not have but one drive-way that is there on one (1) house and that
particular house is not creating a problem but the undeveloped lots have
tremendous possibility for future problems with this type of curo and
gutter drainage system at the road. If he does not uniformly grade in
accordance with standard highway drawing from the curb and gutter back so
that the surface water drainage will come uniformly to that road curb and
gutter.”

Mr. Wittekindt said, "I don't know how I can force the drainspouts on
homes or their drive-ways. I believe, except one little area and I will
explain that when we get to it, the drainage in that area is right on the
money, with the back slopes and everything on section 'D' is right on the
money except for one little area and the reason that isn't is because
they are going to build on that lot in a couple of weeks and I couldn't
see manicuring it when as you know, when construction equipment, concrete
trucks and lumber trucks go over a lot, it is going to tear the whole
thing up anyway and you are going to have to redo it."

Mr. Wittekindt said, "This was just brought up today, I did not know I
was going to be required to police the downspouts and the rain water and
the drive-ways and I went with the plans that was submitted to this
Board."

Mr. Hartman said, "May I suggest that you recommend to your buyers that
these items be included in the specs when you sell them a lot and it will
be up to the county, therefore, to insure they are there and they are
built accordingly.”

Commissioner Borries said to Mr. Wittekindt, "I certainly want to say
that you have always been extremely cooperative with this Board and have
some quality development in that area."

Mr. Gwinn said he accepted the roads and curbing, they were okay.
Commissioner Cox said she tends to agree with the concept, but if they
are going to look at all of them like this they need to be consistant
with what they look at......do we have a report from the Surveyor on the
drainage.

Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Jeffers if he has any comment on this.
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Mr. Jeffers said, "I became aware that this subdivision was going to be
submitted to your Board for street acceptance today and I found that out
Friday, I visited the site Saturday morning and I wasn't aware at the
time that there was a revised street plan for Browning Road Estates
Section 'D'. I called Mr. Wittekindt this morning and he told me that on
June 22, 1988 the Commissioners approved a revised plan showing roll curb
and gutter and subsequently Mr. Wittekindt Jr. brought that plan to our
office and we ran copies of that plan and to my knowledge that is the
first time that plan was put into our file and the County Engineer on
June 22, 1988 apparently did not put a copy of it in Highway Engineering
files for this subdivision. After examining the plan and reviewing my
notes from looking at it on Saturday I am prepared to say that the
streets in Browning Road Estates Section 'D' are constructed in
accordence, in as far as drainage features, which apparently is the
features that the Highway Department is reluctant to review and accept,
they are in accordence with the revised plan as approved on June 22,
1988, except the area behind and up hill of the rolled curve along lot
seven (7) and a part of lot eight (8), it is not graded to conform witn
the typical cross section as shown on Vanderburgh County street

- standards, and I will depart from the memo at this time and say that from

the back of the curb, say two to one or three to one side slope or
flatter from the back of the curb back up to meet the existing terrain in
such a way that the water would sheet into the street, trickle over tne
back of the curb and into the gutter and not enter as channelized water.
If the Commission chooses to view this particular location, it is na.t
way up the hill on the east side of the road which will be in the iet:
hand side as you are driving up the hill and it is landmarked by a t.:e
hydrant, you will find a depression just behind the fire hydrant tna:
holds water that has no way

of entering into the drainage system."

Mr. Jeffers continued, "I notified Mr. Wittekindt and gave him a co;; ot
a report that I may or may not turn in, depending upon the action ot :iais
Board." o -

Mr. Wittekindt asked if he could say something in regards to that one
about the fire hydrant, "He said it is true there is a small pole tnere
and the reason is because that lot is sold and the gentleman that 1is
going to build a house there and as you know when you build homes,
concrete trucks, lumber trucks, etc. go in there are are going to mess
the whole thing up anyway, so I could not see manicuring it when 1t 1.
going to be torn up anyway, so that is the reason that that little
problem is there. When the gentleman grades his lot and he is going to
have to grade that also, that will be taken care of."

Mr. Jeffers said, "The pbasis of my concern on this is that there is a
natural waterway coming off the top of the hill that showed up on trne
preliminary drawings for this subdivision and because the subdivision
originally was going to have open side ditches, the water coming down
that natural way would be captured by the side ditches on the east side
of Red Gate Road, so we didn't pursue it any further, it would convey
that water down to the main channel, under the road and on down to Little
Pigeon Creek, so when the Wittekindt's voluntarily decided to go with
rolled curb and gutter, which all of us applauded at the time they did
and it is a beautiful street that they installed, the plan that was
submitted to you did not provide for collection of this channelized water
coming down the side of this hill and the contractor who was hired to
carry out the plan probably did about all he could without installing
additional structures such as area drain, that would be connected to the
closest inlet or an open channel that would carry the water on down thne
side of the street and it is not a large area, although I would say it is
at least five (5) - ten (10) feet in diameter, but the water coming down
the side of that hill has no open channel or area drain or any other
structure to collect it and orderly carry it down to where it is supposed
to go, and it is true that during the landscaping of lot seven (7) this
natural drainway could be filled and graded in such a way that the lawn
would drain.......a sheet drainage into the gutter of the street typical .
with other lots along the same street, it could be done."
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Mr. Jeffers continued, "However, I have no grading plan before me and I
trust Mr. Wittekindt and everything he said, from the first time I met
him until today has been honest and aboveboard and I don't doubt anything
that he is telling you here today, but I do not know the man who bought
lot seven (7), I don't know what his plans are, I don't have a grading
plan to show me anything that he is going to be required to do, and so I
just brought it to your attention that there is this area that will be
the source of complaints and phone calls unless it is adequately handled
somehow."

Mr. Wittekindt said, "I want to state that I want to adequately handle it
so I think we better wait......like I said I want to do what I should
do."

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Wittekindt, "There won't be too much
construction going on around that fire hydrant, will there?"

Mr. Wittekindt responded no.

Commissioner Cox said, "Wouldn't it be safe to go ahead and, evidently
there is some undermining, there must have been a little depression there
where the fire hydrant was put in and water will find its own ways and I
didn't notice it."

Mr. Wittekindt said the fire hydrant is basically on a lot line, and when
we backfilled that curve we just roughed it in and smoothed it off, in
fact I did not even seed it, because he is going to come in and he is
going to tear it up and he is going to have to regrade everything anyway,
and there is some dirt there that he could........

Commissioner Cox asked, "Well is it on a lot line or is it on someone's
property, if it is on a lot line it would seem like there would be a
discussion of who's responsibility is it 901ng to be to get this
adequately fixed." _

Mr. Witteknidt said, "I own the lot next to it, I sold lot seven (7) and
I still own lot eight (8), and he is going to build on it this fall, so
he probably won't get it all smoothed out until next spring, but really,
I can't see a problem there, I know what Mr. Jeffers is saying and I
agree that it has to be corrected, but I can't see any big problem right
now on it."

Commissioner Borries asked, "What is the feeling of this Board at tnis
time, what direction should we give Mr. Wittekindt. Mr. Gwinn has
recommended approval subject to those conditions, however, there is doubt
that those can be enforced, right."

Mr. John said, "Legally enforced."

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I would tend to agree with Mr. Jeffers, Mr.
Wittekindt has been before this Board before and he wants to have a nice
subdivision, and what we are doing here, the copy I have, Dick, is not
marked, is it Red Gate Road."

Mr. Wittekindt said it is Red Gate Road, Section 'D' Browning Road
Estates.

Commissioner Cox asked if it also includes Red Gate Court.

Mr. Wittekindt said it also includes Red Gate Court.

Commissioner Cox asked if they have the linear feet?

Mr. Wittekindt said yes, they do.

Commissioner Cox moved that the following streets in Browning Road
Estates, Section 'D'; Red Gate Road, 570 lineal feet and Red Gate Court,
155 lineal feet, these streets are paved with rolled curb and gutter and

constitutes .137 miles be approved provided that attention is given to
the area that has been designated between lot seven (7) and eight (8) to
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prevent further erosion of the soil and a further enlargement of thne
depression of the area, and that the developer also instruct the builder
to use extreme care in grading the back slopes so that the water will
drain out into the gutters and not undermine the pavement.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Mr. Wittekindt said he is going to send to the lot owner a copy of this
letter that I received from Mr. Jeffers informing him of the situation.

RE: TRAVEL REQUEST...COUNTY AUDITOR

Commissioner Borries said they received the following letter from the
County Auditor:

TO: County Commissioner
FROM: Sam Humphrey, Auditor
DATE: October 10, 1988

SUBJECT:Travel Request

This is to request permission for Jim Angermeier, the undersigned, and
two deputies to attend the Tax Increment Finance Seminar being held in
Indianapolis on October 13, 1988. This is an all-day Seminar being
sponsored by the Indiana Association of Cities and Towns and the
Association of Indiana Counties (see attachment).

Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter.

/s/ Sam Humphrey

Commissioner Willner so moved.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: NOTICE OF VOTING PLACES FOR NOVEMBER 8TH GENERAL ELECTION

Commissioner Borries said they have Notice of Voting Places for November
8th. General Election to be approved and advertised. He said these are
the same that were advertised in the 1988 Primary Election. .

Commissioner Cox said, "I was under the impression that there was to be
several changes, in 6-11 and 6-12, were those changes made?" -
Commissioner Borries said "Howell United Methodist Church rather than St. )
Agnes."

Commissioner Cox asked if St. Agnes is on the list?'

Commissioner Borries said they are both listed as Howell United Methodist
Church.

Commissiner Cox said they also requested that Benny Gossar review these
polling places for accessability to the hadndicap, do we have a report in
from him, this report was due October 8th. and it might be that this
Board might want that report before making a final determination about
the polling places.

Commissioner Borries said they would obtain that report from him, Jim
Lindenschmidt, who had a death in his family this past week says that he
will collect that information and we would need to advertise these in
accordance with the law, what is the final date that we can do that?

Commissioner Borries said,"™ I would say that in relation to that one (1)
change that you pointed out, that that probably was made in terms of someQ
accessability."

Commissioner Cox said, "I think there was one (1) other, Margie should
know the changes and maybe if we could reporte..ccc...”
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Commissioner Borries said usually she has a memo if there is any changes.

Commissioner Borries checked with Margie and she thinks they have to be
advertised ten (10) days before the election.

Commissioner Borries said there is a change in 6-2, Cedar Hall School
Gym, there will be two (2) voting sites at Cedar Hall School.

Commissioner Cox asked where was 6-2?
Commissioner Borries said it was Fulton Square Senior Citizens Building.

Commissioner Borries said on 6~18, North Star Video has been changed to
Hose House #5 at Maryland Street and St. Joe Avenue.

Commissioner Borries said they will wait until they receive the report
from Benny Gossar.

RE: CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

Commissioner Borries said they have received a Certificate of Insurance
for an event that was held this past weekend, The Tradesman's Club, at
the Vanderburgh Auditorium on 10/8/88. Received and filed.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Commissioner Borries asked if there was any old business.

Woods Road Bridge: Mr. Jeffers said, "You said you would await other
reports on Woods Road Bridge, in particular one from me, what else would
you like?"

Commissioner Borries said, "Just any additional information on that
particular statement.

Mr. Jeffers said that is all he has, unless there is something specific
other than that, that is the way it happened in non-technical terms.

Mr. Jeffers said, "As to the cross sections on Woods Road Bridge, we were
requested by the County Engineer to do those, is that by your direction?"

Commissioner Borries said, "I think it would tend to solve part of the
dispute here, it would be my feeling that they should proceed, but....."

Mr. Jeffers said, "We did the original cross sections along the roadway
every fifty (50) feet and we would have to set up the exact same cross
sections and do them again for any accurate data to be reflected and
basically, I don't want to waste time doing it unless there is a reason
to do it, so I would just like to know, is that what the Board wants, the
Surveyor's office to go set up the survey and recross-section at the same
stations that we cross-sectioned the original roadway. We have enough to
do in our office for the next several months that I don't want to do
something that is not going to be utilized."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Would this be to determine the cubic feet of
dirt......cubic yards?"

Mr. Jeffers said, "To calculate the cubic yards of dirt in the roadway
area itself, I have no way to determine how much dirt was brought by
Harvey Klenck for the temporary ditch crossing that got washed away in
the storm, I can set up the survey for Woods Road Road Bed and
cross-section that every fifty (50) feet or as done originally."

Commissioner Cox said. "I think if we are going to make an accurate
determination of the amount that is due and since there evidently is no
specific tickets on the cubic yards of dirt, that in order to make a
proper determination of the amount of dirt that was necessary to
compensate for the surveying error, I think this would be the only....."
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Mr. Jeffers said, "The dirt was not used to compensate for the surveying
error, that is concrete and steel only, and I apologize for
interrupting.”®

Commissioner Cox thanked Mr. Jeffers for explaining that.

Mr. Jeffers said, "The survey error has been used as a whipping boy too
long."”

Commissioner Borries said to Mr. Jeffers, "I realize you are busy, but it
is my feeling that we need to collect as much information that is
possible on this project."

Mr. Jeffers said; "So the Board would like for me to do that.”
Commissioner Borries said he is expressing his opinion.

Commissioner Cox said, "Since we are back on this topic and when the

letter was submitted from Mr. Easley by Mr. Hartman to this Board, in
paragraph three (3) of that letter, where Mr. Easley as did Mr. Willner
also referred to the meeting of June 6th. where he says 'The surveying

error was discussed at the County Commissioners Meeting on June 6, 1988,

and this is totally a fabrication, Mr. Willner read those minutes almost,.
well I am sure he read them correctly, I did not have a copy but I do

trust his ability to read those minutes and there was never any

discussion concerning a surveying error at the meeting on June 6th.

Board."

Mr. Jeffers said. "I think it was eluded to quite clearly, but you would
have to have prior knowledge to be able to understand the illusion.”

Rollett Lane Bridge project when it was being built and it was decided by
this Board to grant a temporary right-of-way. easement thru a farmers land
and it was reported to this Board that this was the way it was going to
work and then I go out there and I find a big large pipe put across that
ditch, covered over and a temporary runaround be made, which is fine, but
that was never reported to this Board and I questioned 'who is going to
stand the cost of this project' and it was reported the developer would,

so what information do I have to go on that the contracator would not

stand the cost of this unless it is brought out and openly discussed in

our Board meeting, and from my determination, the best that I can

determine, it was an honest error that was made and why it was not .
discussed still remains a point of concern, there are other things that I
think we need besides the amount of dirt that is out there, to look at =
this project if they are going to throughly investigate it before '
determining anything and I did ask these question out on the bridge when
we were out there and did receive some answers,. the holes in the
guardrail, this was pointed out that they were for additional posts and
the county did put up the guardrail and this was not part of the
contractors work agreement, the southeast approach to the bridge, and
here we are talking about dirt and we are talking about a lot of dirt, it
is very steep and I think the bridge plans, I don't think, I know, call
for a two to one slope and it has not been surveyed but it not a two to
one slope, granted the shoulder is nice and wide in that area, I did look
down in the channel and that was one of the main reasons for improving
this bridge at the location was to also improve the ability of water to
move through and down the Big Creek area and it appears that maybe some
of that dirt that we don't know where it is may be in the channel of that
stream, I don't know, the rip rap did appear to be holding good, the
deck, to me was poor, there were patches, it had many unfinished
appearances in a lot of places, there were indentations in the deck,
there was gravel showing in many places that,had not been covered by a
finish coat and there was not a broom or a~£§zﬁg-finish, whichever you
refer to on a bridge that was complete on that bridge surface, there was
some sections that looked as they had been grooved and to make the
statement that the bridge was built to state specifications, I think is .
stretching the point a bit as we were on the Russell Lloyd Overpass at
Green River Road and walked for about .02 of a mile over this grooved or

Commissioner Cox said, "I cannot work on illusions and I did question thel
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whatever section of a bridge, and to me this is the way that bridge deck
should look, I do not understand, and I do have the name of Percision
Concrete and personally will call that company and find out why we had
one beam out of the ones that were delivered to be one (1) inch higher
than the other beams, I think it leads you to want to have an answer
there, if the beams were exact and something was off and the abutments of
the bridge to throw that beam up an inch and that's what was explained of
why the deck looked as it did because it had to be ground down one (1)
inch. I think that we do need answers, definite answers to those
questions, and another thing that concerns me is the headline that was in
the Courier saying 'Easley says he okayed overruns after he was
suspended', this is concerning, I do not know how his authority, even
though he did start on that bridge, could have been granted to continue
on a project after his suspension by this Board and I would like to know
where his authority came from to okay anything after he was suspended
June 20th. and he indicates in his letter, so I think we need to get
those questions answered, Rick, I at this time hesitate to approve any
portion of the requested additional money except those that.....that
money that is needed to compensate for the surveying error and there are
two different sets of figures here and I think Mr. Hartman will have to
get together with the Surveyor's Office and give this Board a final
figure to determine that, but it would seem that this was an error that
was made on a part of a county employee and I believe our county
employees are covered by acts of errors and omission and we have a
liability insurance program that I feel could take care of compensation
for this portion of the requested adjustment."”

Commissioner Cox said the only other thing she would say is, "If I rave
heard it's a nice job one time, I have heard it two (2) or three ::

times while I was out there from the builders of the project and 1 aa
sorry but the final appearance of a project means a lot, I think and ;ust
because it is way out in the far confines of our county and granted, .t
is a road that is traveled very lightly compared to other roads, it
doesn't seem fair when we spend almost $170,000.00 of the taxpayers .soney
to accept a project that is not built according to the standards and ! do
recall what input we received from individuals over the First Avenue
Bridge and the roughness of the riding surface and this was a fairly new
concept to this Board, so just because it is way out there and a lot of
people don't see it doesn't mean that it shouldn't be built with a jood
deck on it."

Commission Borries asked Mr. Hartman, "Dan, you've not done final
inspection on that, have you?"

Mr. Hartman replied in the negative.

Mr. Jeffers said, "I am sure there are some basis for concern with .oume
of the items that have been brought up since I ask the original question,
but still my only concern at this time is, does the Commmission wisn for
the County Surveyor's Office to perform the work needed to bring you the
final cross-sections?"

Commissioner Borries asked the feeling of this Board.

Commissioner Willner said, "He ask the question 'will it prove anything'
and I don't know."

Commissioner Borries said, "No, I don't think he said that, I think he
said he wanted to know if he should proceed, and it is my understanding
that the purpose of doing it is to resolve the issue concerning how much
dirt was placed in the roadbed."

Commissioner Willner said, "And should his cross-section prove that the
dirt has been put there, then are you going to vote for it, I mean, is
this Commission going to vote for it or not vote for it, that is what I
am asking. If his proof is there then are we going to approve it, if I
understood him right he will do the cross-section if it is fruitful, if
it is not he doesn't want to do it."

Commissioner Borries said, "That is one item among others that we have
asked infotmation on....."
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Mr. Jeffers said, "Let me clarify that, the reason I made that statement
is that there are people already asking if they can be there while I am
doing the work, if there is going to be some question about the work
after we get through with it and and you are going to hire another
consultant to go do it again, I don't want to do it in the first place,

that is all I am saying."”

Commissioner Willner asked. "When Rudolph or Rogers or any asphalt .
company comes to lay a county road for us and we pay them by the ton, do
we weigh their trucks, does any body in the county weigh their trucks,
but you are asking this man to do that, aren't you? It seems a little odd
to me that we are asking this man to do something that we don't ask any
other body to do, we had a county employee there counting the trucks and
I don't know if it is truthful or not, he had the truck weighed, he had
one load weighed and he said the rest of them........I imagine there not
exactly to the pound, but I believe they are to the ton, so if I say it
is good enough for me, but I am only one person here, so whether you have
to do that cross-section or not is not up to me, because I will accept
what has happened already, there is nobody that can tell to the ton of

dirt how much it would take if you cross-section it ten times and I

understand that, but I am not the one that is questioning it, so you ask
that of someone else.” .

Mr. Jeffers said he is just asking the Board and it doesn't make any
difference.cs...

Commissioner Cox said this is back to Mr. Willners question, "He ask you
if your surveying relating to the extra dirt proved that there was extra
dirt there, would this Board approve the payment for the dirt that they

say is there, I think that is a good question, turn the question around,
if your survey proves that the dirt wasn't there would this Board anyway
approve the money for the extra dirt? I think that is what Mr. Jeffers

wants from this Board and I am willing right now to. say I will stand by

what the Surveyor's Office and the County Engineer comes up with on the

cross-sections."

Mr. Jeffers said, "I am still not asking that, I'm really not, I can tell
you some of the dirt is down in the Wabash River but beside from that, we
were asked to do the final cross-sections for Lynch Road and they are

asked to do the final cross-sections for St. Joe Avenue in 1981 and we

did those and turned them into David South and the State of Indiana
accepted them, so I know we can do the work and I know I will do my .
utmost to make sure there is no further mistakes made in the work that we
do, as to whether the work is going to absolutely determine to the last .
ton how much dirt is there, I can't guarantee you that, because we didn't
take cross-sections of the existing channel and some of the dirt that Mr.
Klenck provided is now within the banks of the channel, some of it was

used for the temporary crossing, it is now in the Wabash River, so I am

not saying what it is going to prove, I just want to know, are you going

to send me out to do this work or are you going to use it or can I just

go on and do something that I know is going to be used somewhere else."

Commissioner Cox said, "Mr. Klenck said that the dirt that was used for
the temporary crossing was not included in that total amount........”

Mr. Jeffers said to read Mr. Pinkston's letter. .

Commissioner Cox said, "What I am going on is.....this question was asked
out on the bridge that day and Mr. Klenck said that amount of dirt......"

Mr. Jeffers said, "I will not make any more interputations, I am just
asking is it worth my while to take a three (3) man crew out there and do
these cross-sections, are they going to be used, I am not even asking
that, I am just asking do you want me to do them."

Mr. Hartman said, "I suggest that the Surveyor be ordered to go out and
take recross-sections as he originally laid out and we get a comparison .
of what the net yardage put in there by Harvey Klenck or by Guillaum
himself."
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Commissioner Borries said, "I am not asking him to go back and back
again, but if this helps explain some of the questions."

Mr. Hartman said, "The earth involved, we are talking about right now
some 800 cubic yards of dirt and it is $6.50 a cubic yard and the
difference is about $5,000.00 and I think it would behoove us to
investigate that."

Commissioner Cox said, "I see now that this is something that I did not
pick up in the letter, it does say 'also the runaround was washed-out
twice and dirt had to be replaced by the dirt contractor', that was not
part of the original bridge."

Commissioner Cox said, "So the contractor should pay for that dirt, I do
know they came before this Board and asked for permission to make a
temporary crossing in the area and this Board did give that permission,
for the contractor to do that,"

Commissioner Borries asked again the feeling of this Board.

Commissioner Cox said she thinks they are going to have to get specific
information and I would take our County Engineer's recommendation that we
do have it cross-sectioned.

Mr. Guinn said, "I tried to ask him out there if he and any other claims
and it very well may be he has one here, if that dirt could have
otherwise been used in that embankment and he had to buy it and hauled in
there and we did, in fact, give permission for him to use that dirt in
there and if he so claims that he is not responsible for fire, flood and
damage, I am not really sure about how that contract reads, he may have a
point for some yardage there, so I am just not sure, and I don't know
what kind of advise he has passed on or what."

Commissioner Cox said. "Well, my point, Mr. Gwinn, was that the runaround
was not part of the bidded contract."

Mr. Gwinn said he is not sure that is necessarily true because they gave
him permission to do it, if he used dirt that would have otherwise been
used in that fill and he did not have to buy, he may not be responsible
for flood damage, I am not sure, they better be sure what the contract
says.

Commissioner Cox said they do not have a contract for that, there is no
contract for building the runaround. -

Commissioner Borries told Mr. Jeffers that he would like for him to
proceed and provide that information to the Engineer.

Mr. Jeffers said he has another question, "Would that take precedence
over our survey on Motz Road?"

Commissioner Borries asked how far was they on Motz Road.

Mr. Jeffers said about 10% finished on the cross-—sections and about 75%
finished on the center line survey. The center line survey is to develop
the rignt-of-way descriptions based on property corners and the
cross-section data will be used to determine the final location of the
roadbed.

Commissioner Borries asked Mr. Jeffers how long does he estimate it will
take to complete the work on Motz Road.

Mr. Jeffers said he wants to know if these cross-sections take any
precedence over the Motz Road project because they will take time away
from it, I am trying to be real fair and upfront on all of this.

Commissioner Borries said, "If you have already begun Motz Road, I would
like to see you get that completed as soon as possible.
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RE: CLAIMS

Commissioner Borries said the only claim he has is one from Bowers,

Harrison, Kent and Miller for legal services. These are extensive on a
number of cases that now some have been completed and others that are

still very much pending and the amount of the claim is $5,337.89 and

there is budgeted money available for this. I have reviewed the list and
again it is a number of cases that have at this point been with us for

quite some time and some have been completed.

Commissioner Cox moved that the claim be allowed.
The motion was seconded py Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Commissioner Borries said the following meeting are scheduled at this
time:

Rezoning Subdivision Review Tuesday, October 11-9:30 a.m.
Public Hearing on Proposed Highway to Indianapolis on Tuesday,
October 11-7:00 p.m.

Special Drainage Board to follow this meeting

President Borries said there being no further business to come before
this Board this meeting is recessed.

PRESENT : COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey Curt John
R. L. Willner .
S. J. Co
COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEEk SHERIFF
C. Muensterman Dan Hartman C. Shepard
Richard Gwinn
COUNTY SURVEYOR OTHERS
Bill Jeffers Jess Robert ‘
Chief Deputy Wm. Wittekindt, Jr.
Jerry Riney
Danny Spindler
Carol McClintock
Others (unidentified)
News Media
SECRETARY: Joanne A. Matthews

(Minutes taped by J. Matthews
(Minutes typed and proofed by Jean Wilke &

Bettye Miles)
Dol P

Richard J. Bgtries, President

Jo b2 525,

Robert L. Willner, Vice President

. Yo Cay Yofae

irley Ue&r Cox, Member
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Rezoning Petitiongl.‘.................................. l
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report back to the Board on 10/24/88
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The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
7:30 p.m. on Monday, October 17, 1988 in the Commissioners
Hearing Room, with President Rick Borries presiding.

The meeting was called to order by President Borries, who
subsequently entertained approval of the minutes from
Commissioners Meeting held on October 3, 1988.

Upon motion duly made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by
Commissioner Willner, the minutes of October 3, 1988 were
approved, as corrected. So ordered.

RE: REZONING PETITIONS

Commissioner Borries announced that the Board of Commissioners
has an evening meeting to address rezonings and allow the public
to attend. However, this evening there are no First Readings and
there also are no Third Readings due to the following:

vVC-22-88 Petitioner, Jack Kerney (Contihued until 12/19/88)
VC-24-88 -~ Petitioner, Thomas Gabe (Continued until 12/19/88)
VC-25-88 ~ Petitioner, Philip Tschoppe (Withdrawn)

If anyone in the audience is here with regard to VC-22-88 or
VC-24-88 or VC-25-88, these rezoning petltlons will not be heard
this evening.

RE: WESTWOOD HILLS - DUMPING PROBLEMS

Mrs. Roseann Derk was recognized by the Chair. She said she
resides at 1462 Crescent Court and is here this evening regarding
a problem that she feels they have in their subdivision
concerning dumping. She brought along some pnotos as well as
copies of their building restrictions. She would direct the
Board's attention to Item #13 of the restrictions, as set up by
the developer himself, who is now involved in the dumping.

"13. Waste Disposal. All lot owners shall keep their 1lots
free of garbage, sewage, ashes, rubbish, bottles,
cans, waste matter and other refuse. Trash,
garbage, or other waste or debris accumulated by the
owner or occupant of any lot within the subdivision
shall be kept in sanitary containers and shall be
disposed of in a timely manner. All containers or
other equipment for the storage or disposal of such
material shall be kept in a clean and sanitary
condition and shall be kept in such a manner as to
avoid an unsightly appearance within the subdivision."

Addressing the map of Westwood Hills submitted to the Board,

Commissioner Borries asked if the area shaded in blue -- is the
cul-de-sac a reality there -- an actual part?
Mrs. Derk said it is -- and those are two vacant lots -- they are

not sold. Mr. R. L. Tate is the developer of this subdivision
and he has seen fit to take his trash back there and dump it --
building construction materials, trees, paper, etc., that he
clears from other lots.

/e /.
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Mr. Borries said the Westwood Hills Subdivision Restrictions
provided by Mrs. Derk includes Item #13, as stated by Mrs. Derk.
He asked Mrs. Derk, "To the best of your knowledge, does Mr. Tate
own the lots at this time?"

Mrs. Derk responded in the affirmative.

County Attorney David Miller indicated he wished to speak and was
recognized by the Chair.

Attorney Miller said, "To the residents who have come down here
to complain about this, you have kindly furnished us with a copy
of the conditions, reservations, restrictions and Protective
Covenants relating to this subdivision. These are privately
written, privately instituted conditions and reservations which
protect you and every other lot owner in the subdivision. The
County does have a dumping ordinance which is enforceable through
a complaint being filed through law enforcement authorities and
then the Sheriff presents a charge to the Prosecutor, and the
Prosecutor goes to Court with that.

On the other hand -- and I know this may not be the most
desirable thing, but it is the most effective. You have not one
-- but, as I quickly scan them, four provisions of these
conditions which make it, in my opinion, improper for Mr. Tate
and Mr. Brand to do what they are doing on these lots.
Paragraphs 13, 14 and 20 make it unlawful civilly for these
people to conduct this kind of effort and use these lots for tnis
purpose. These are residential lots. Once they advertised them
and platted tnem that way, you, as owners of residential lots,
are entitled to expect that they will be kept clean and neat and
not have dangerous substances on there for your children to get
into. MR

Under the terms of the restrictions that they wrote (Harlan Brand
wrote them) you are entitled to injunctive relief. An injunction
is an order from a Court that says 'you must not do this and you
must clean this up now.' The way to get that done is not at this
Commission. The way to get that done is to engage Private
Counsel to ask the Court for that kind of relief. My guess is
that if you engage Private Counsel and contact Mr. Tate with
these in mind, it will get done before you ever get to Court.

But while I can advise this Board that the County Ordinance,
think, is sufficient to deal with the photographs that have been
presented, I think the quickest and most appropriate way is
Private Counsel."

Mrs. Derk asked, "So, in other words you are telling me that in
order to get this cleaned up I have to sue the person?"

Attorney Miller responded, "You don't have to sue him if you --"
Mrs. Derk asked, "I have to threaten to sue him?"

Attorney Miller, "Yes, that is the quickest way to get it done.
Or else you can file a complaint with our local law enforcement
officers and the Sheriff will come out, take a look at it, and
determine whether or not it is in violation of our dumping
ordinance and, in my opinion, it is -- and he will then file with
the Prosecutor."

Mrs. Derk said, "We have talked with the Building Commission and
they told him that he could not do what he is doing out there ad
they told him to clean it up -- and he has made no move to do
so."

Attorney Miller said, "The Building Commissioner can issue an
order. But what will happen if the Building Commissioner's order
is not obeyed is that either the Prosecutor would institute a
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criminal action or this Board would institute a civil action. I
am just saying the quickest way for you to get this done would be
that way -- that's all."

Commissioner Borries thanked Attorney Miller for his comments and
entertained comments from the Board.

Querying Mrs. Derk about materials in a photograph, Commissioner
Cox asked if this is rubber or plastic material?

Mrs. Derk said it is a type of construction material. He hauled
this trash/material from Iowa Street. As a matter of fact,
Harlan Brand gave tne man permission to bring construction
materials from Iowa Street into the Westwood Subdivision and dump
them.

Attorney Miller commented, "It is clearly improper for them to do
what they are doing -- there is no question about it. The only
question is how to get it solved in the quickest way for your own
comfort.”

Commissioner Cox asked Commissioner Willner if he has any
comments? She said she really doesn't see much difference here
-- Crescent Court is a county-accepted road, isn't it?

Mrs. Derk said she doesn't know whether it is a county-accepted
road for maintenance or not.

Commissioner Borries asked, "Has the Building Commissioner
documented any of what he has done at this point?"

Mrs. Derk said she was told he went out there and talked with Mr.
Tate and told him he could not do this. - He told him to clean it
up. Mr. Tate told him he would clean it up. Two months have
gone by and he has not cleaned it up; in fact, it is growing.
Last week a big dump truck came with more debris from Iowa
Street.

‘Mrs. Cox said, "I see very little difference with this situation

than what we had when the gentleman was bringing in the fill to
build a drive back across his property, because this definitely
is improper £fill."

Attorney Miller interjected, "No question about it. It is not
even fill. It appears clearly to me to be debris. They are not
filling anything there -- those lots don't need fill."

Mr. Larry Luig of 1435 Crescent Court said, "They started out by
first putting trees back there -- because there was a drop-off;
and we didn't say anything about that. But now it's paper,
construction debris, etc."

Mr. James Derk of 1432 Crescent Court said, "As I understand it,
if we retain Private Counsel it will cost us something. 1In
addition to that, can we ask the Building Commissioner or someone
to make a complaint to this body and, in addition, we will seek
our own Private Counsel? We have a number of neighbors here if
we want to raise enough money to hire a lawyer."

Attorney Miller said, "The Commission certainly has the authority
to notify them and indicate that the Commission is not pleased
and that eventually legal action will be taken. But there are
Notices that have to be given and things like that -- and that is
why I advised you that if you really want to get it done quickly
and I suspect they would react to that -- because they face not
only the responsipbility of getting it out of there, but the
possibility of damage claims and those kinds of things if
somebody gets hurt and especially after your representative
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notifies them -- you don't have to hire a lawyer, you can do it
yourself. You can write them a Certified Letter and say 'If you
don't do this, this is what we are going to do'."

Mrs. Derk stated, "We have other concerns here, too. One is
there was some discussion that he said he would come in there and
cover it over. We were told by the Health Department that he
can't cover it over -- that he has to haul it all out of there."

Attorney Miller commented, "That is right.”

Mrs. Derk continued, "I also talked to Shirley James of the West
Side Improvement Association and she said that if he tries to
build on that, eventually all of those trees are gecing to rot,
the ground is going to sink, and the house is going to fall.
What is to stop him in the future from just putting dirt over
that and building on it?"

Attorney Miller responded, "Well, there are certain standards of
liability that he has -- and if he has any business sense at
all...”

Mrs. Derk interrupted, "But I don't think he does. I mean,
obviously, he doesn't. This is his subdivision and he is trying
to sell lots in there and he obviously does not care how it
looks."

Attorney Miller said, "Well, if you're asking us to answer for
his business judgment, we can't do that. But if decides to build
a house that isn't going to stand up for the reguisite period of
time, he's got some deep trouble. So you have various
alternatives and this Board can assist .by notifying the
individual." Lo

Mrs. Derk said, "I was led to believe by Shirley James that the
Building Commission needed to be notified or there would be
future problems there that no one could...."

Attorney Miller interrupted. "You did the proper thing to notify
the Building Commission;, but in order to solve your problem, mny
suggestion is to do it directly, as well as through this Board --
that's all."

Commissioner Borries asked if the Board wants to take any action?

Commissioner Cox acked Commissioner Willner if he has any
comments?

Commissioner Willner said, "I was just trying to piece throug:n v
mind whether the Building Commissioner couldn't stop all building
within the subdivision until this was taken care of -- one simple
stroke of the pen. I'm not sure. To Attorney Miller, "You need
to answer that."

Attorney Miller said, "I don't believe so. I don't believe he
has that power.”

Commissioner Willner, "You don't believe s0? 1It's a violation of
a County ordinance?"

Attorney Miller responded, "It is."

Commissioner Willner said, "I believe we can stop it."

Mrs. Cox said, "Not a County ordinance.™

Attorney Miller askad, "Don't we have a dumping ordinance?"

Mrs. Cox said, "No sir -- not in the County."
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Mr. Willner said, "The State has one."

Attorney Miller said, "We have the State law, I know that. But I
thought that you gave consideration to a dumping ordinance about
two years ago."

Commissioner Cox said, "We did -- but we didn't."

Commissioner Willner to Attorney Miller, "You said the State
ordinance was a very good ordinance and..."

Mrs. Cox interjected, "That is what you said, David -~ that is
exactly what you said."

Attorney Miller asked, "Who said I can remember everything?"

Mrs. Cox continued, "That is right -- that is what you said when
I tried to get a County ordinance."”

Mrs. Derk asked, "How do you get a County ordinance?"

Commissioner Borries interjected, "He is in violation of State
law."

Commissioner Willner said, "If he is in violation of any law --
any law, we can stop that building -- if I am -- what if he nu.
plumbing fixture that is not in compliance? We can red tag t..e
project until he takes care of it. So the subdivision is not .
compliance, how come you can't red tag it? What is the
difference?"

Mrs. Derk said, "I like him! Go get 'em!"
Mr. Borries asked, "Are they doing any~building.dt'this time?"
Mrs. Derk said, "Oh, yes."

Mr. Derk said that are building a house on Lot #79 and some of
the materials are coming from that lot.

Commissioner Willner reiterated, "I don't see why they can't :«d
tag it -- and that stops everything."

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I think our Board should forward
this complaint to the Building Commission office and ask that
Building Commissioner immediately investigate this; that we
understand the developer had been notified before and a letter
giving them 10 days to comply and a promise to clean it up in a
30-day period has been ignored -- and that is standard for the
Building Commission whenever a complaint comes in. That is tne
way that they handle it. I don't know what day he sent the
letter out -- but if he could report back to us at our meeting
next Monday we can proceed after we get an update.

Turning to Mrs. Derk, Mrs. Cox said, "Roseann, you must
understand that if this Board does things which are not according
to law, we could all end up..."

Mrs. Derk interrupted, "But is that the law? That's my
question.™”

Mrs. Cox responded, "I think that needs to be researched."

Commissioner Willner interjected, "If we'd all end up in jail --
I'd do it."

Mrs. Derk said, "I certainly hope you don't have to do anything
illegal, but if that is within your power, I'm sure that would
give him a little shove to clean that up."

g
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Attorney Miller said, "Let me tell you the concern. The concern
is that there is no doubt about your right to live in peace and
have clean surroundings, particularly in view of these conditions
and reservations. The concern is that if this Board establishes
a policy, it takes actions that are in violation of civil rights,
including the right to do business, of other people. Then that
can expose the County to substantial liapbility. We need to go
through the process according to the ordinances and statutes.”

Mrs. Derk said, "That is what I am asking you —=- could that be
part of your process?"

Attorney Miller said, "To notify the Building Commission,
certainly."

Mrs. Cox moved that the Board give immediate notice to the
Building Commission office concerning this complaint and relaying
to the Building Commissioner that his previous instructions to
the property owner have not been complied with and ask him to
report back to the Board of Commissioners at their meeting on
October 24th.

Commissioner Borries said, "Someone must have surely reminded
him. Has he received copies of his original restrictions?"

Mr. Derk said, "Yes he has."
Commissioner Cox said, "I made a motion, Mr. Borries."
Commissioner Willner asked that Mrs. Céxfrepeat her motion.

Mrs. Cox said, "I move that this Board immediately notify the
Building Commissioner's office of this reported violation and ask
him to appear at our October 24th Commissioners Meeting at 2:30
p.m. to give a report on this problem."

A second to the motion was provided by Commnissioner Willner.
So ordered.

Commissioner Borries to Mrs. Derk, "We will communiqate with you.
There is little doubt that there are some violations here and we
will work to resolve those as gquickly as we can."

RE: BUJAY DRIVE - DRAINAGE PIPE PROBLEMS

President Borries said Mr. & Mrs. Robert Palmer are present
tonight concerning drainage pipe problems on West Bujay Drive --
and he recognized Mr. Palmer.

Mr. Palmer said he resides at 5 West Bujay Drive. He would like
to inform the Commissioners about a continuing problem with holes
in his yard along the drainage pipe. He thinks most of the
Commissioners are aware of this problem, since it has now been
going on for some eight years. Last year they came out and
sealed the inside of the pipe and put a mud mixture in the holes.
That is starting to open up again. He now has five (5) holes --
some of them 3 ft. deep. one hole is about 2-1/2 ft. wide. He
thinks something really needs to pe done. He has sticks down in
the holes now. Last year he had the whole yard roped off so
someone coming through wouldn't get hurt. He would like to see
this problem corrected, since it has been going on for so long.
This is a 9 ft. sewer pipe going through the yard. Every place
there is a seam there is a hole starting to appear.

President Borries entertained comments from the Roard.
Commissioner Cox asked, "Mr. Palmer, are other neighbors

experiencing the same situation that you're aware of along the
sewer line?"
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Mr. Palmer responded that there is one in the yard next door at 9
West Bujay. There is an open ditch running up to 9 West Bujay.
There is a pipe running between 5 West Bujay and 9 West Bujay out
across the street where it, again, is an open ditch. When it
rains real hard, the ditch fills up and the water squirts up out
of these holes. You can actually see water shooting up a foot or
two out of the hole.

Commissioner Willner asked, "Is this pipe in the right-of-way?"

Mr. Palmer replied, "Yes it is; the County has the right-of-way.
They agreed to install and maintain this ditch and pipe."”

Commissioner Borries asked for direction -- ask the County
Engineer to investigate as quickly as possible? What is the
Board's feeling?

Commissioner Cox said that whatever job the County did on it
didn't work. When the County fixed it previously, the matter was
brought to the Board and thoroughly discussed and it was
determined at that time that it was the responsibility of the
County to maintain this. So the job we did on it was a
short-term solution to the problem.

Mr. Palmer said one of the holes is about one to two and a half
feet from his house. He'd hate to see the whole side of his
house go caving in one of these days. Luckily, it has been dry
this year. Last year we had a lot of rain and it just kept
opening up.

Commissioner Borries asked, "May I take it then, with your
consent, that we ask County Engineer Darn Hartman to work with the
Palmers to see what we can do to correct. the situation? Is that
agreeable?"

Commissioners Cox and Willner said it is agreeable to them.
Commissioner Cox moved that this problem concerning 5 and 9 West
Bujay Drive area be referred to the County Engineer for follow-up
and report to the Board of Commissioners. A second to the motion
was provided by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Commissioner Borries thanked the Palmers for coming to the Board
and said the County will work with them to see what can be done.

Commissioner Cox requested that the Palmers state their telephone
number for the record.

Mrs. Palmer said their Telephone Number is 867-5436.

Commissioner Willner asked who the developer of the subdivision
is?

Mr. Palmer said it was Goebel. He said he invites any of the
Board members to come out and look at the problem. "Would they
want their yard to look like this?"

RE: AIRPORT AUTHORITY - DAVID BUNNER

President Borries recognized David Bunner, Attorney for the
Airport Authority District.

Attorney Bunner said that as the Commissioners are aware, we are
in the final stages of the construction of the new Terminal
Complex for the Airport and one of the remaining items of
construction to be begun and completed are what they refer to as
"tenant finishes" for the airlines. That includes back office
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spaces behind the ticket counters as well as the baggage conveyor
system for outbound baggage to the baggage loading room on the
lower level of the Airport.

The airlines requested that the Airport Authority consider a
mechanism of financing these tenant finishes and recouping that
financing through lease addendums on their five (5) year
contracts with the Airport. The Airport Authority looked at the
various statutes available and, basically, there is a State
statute that allows the Airport to go to the local banks and
borrow money and then repay that over a period of time not to
exceed forty (40) years. They have negotiated with 0ld National,
Citizen's and National City -- all three who are participating --
for what is called under the Statute a "Loan Contract". They
have given us a line of credit of $1,500,000.00. We do not
anticipate at this time needing the entire $1,500,000.00 for the
tenant finishes with our present tenants. We are asking or have
arranged the line of credit in that amount in the event that
between the opening of the Airport and approximately one year
from now there were any additional new airline tenants -- then we
could offer (if they asked) to include their tenant finishes
under the loan contract.

What he has for the Board tonight is Resolution #128 of the
Airport Authority, which has a copy of the loan contract attached
to it. On the face is a Certification of Approval that they
would need signed by the Commissioners, approving the Airport
borrowing this money. The approval by the Commissioners is
necessary to give the loan the tax exempt status, which makes it
a viable financing vehicle. The airlines will each individually
sign addendums to their lease contracts with the Airport that
will repay over the five (5) year period of the loan not only tne
principal, but the interest that is charged on it and
administrative fee to the Airport for the cost of ‘handling the
matter for them and any loan origination costs and any other
costs to the Airport that are incurred by entering into the
agreements.

The reason the Airport elected to go with the loan contract and
the rental addendum as opposed to potentially doing this out of
the bond proceeds of the original bond issue for the Terminal was
to keep tax monies as such (the Terminal Bond is being repaid py
the Food & Beverage Tax) -—- to keep this item off the tax rolls
total -- and we anticipate that it will do that. Our Bond
Counsel in Indianapolis has prepared all of these documents and
none of the loans will have been entered into yet. We have to
submit these documents to the State Board of Tax Commissioners
for their ultimate approval.

In conjunction with that, I have also a Public Disclosure
pursuant to Indiana Code 35-44-1-3. As you are aware, one of
your appointments to the Airport Authority (Mr. James Will) is a
member of the Board of Citizen's Bank. In that Citizen's is one
of the banks involved in this, they have had Mr. Will make the
Public Disclosure. By making that Public Disclosure, he legally
would have been able to have participated in the vote on the
project. However, he did abstain because of his involvement with
Citizen's. Mr. Bob Working, the Manager of the Airport, is with
us this evening and could, I am sure, answer any questions you
might have regarding this."

Mr. Bunner said he has the original of the Certificate and the
Public Disclosure and needs both originals back. He then
submitted them to the Commissioners for their approval.

The Chair entertained questions of Attorney Bunner or Mr.
Working.

Commissioner Cox asked, "In other words, we are making an up
front loan to adapt, improve, or decorate (whatever you want to
call it) these areas for our carriers?"
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Mr. Bunner interjected, "Yes -- yes."

Mrs. Cox continued, "And in exchange, they are going to repay on
a regular basis? In other words, they will be paying off this
loan? This involves no appropriation of County funds in order to
do this?"

Mr. Bunner responded, "No, absolutely no County or taxpayer
involvement through the Airport Tax Levy. There are no tax
monies involved."

Mrs. Cox said, "The other question I would have is: 1In the event
one of the carriers (if that is what they are referred to as)
would decide to locate elsewhere, then how is this covered in
this Resolution, David?"

Attorney Bunner replied, "The airlines are going to enter a five
(5) year lease with the Airport. 1If an airline decided to
withdraw from this market, they could do that and they would not
have to pay the landing fees (which is the bulk of the revenue
from the airlines to the Airport) but they would still be
obligated on their rental obligation. In the event an airline
got in financial trouble and couldn't pay its bills, our five
year lease with all the airlines provides that all the other
airlines guarantee the bottom line of the operation of the
Airport. If there is a shortfall, it is made up at the end of
the year or the beginning of the next year."

Mr. Bunner said he thinks they have all the bases covered.

Mr. Willner remarked, "Unless all the airlines go at once -- and
then we're in trouble." o

Commissioner Cox said, "They're not going to do that. My last
question (and I didn't understand exactly from this -- because I
read it very hurriedly; please understand I'm sure it's in here)
-- but do you plan to go in and complete all of these areas? Or,
leave the ones that aren't presently assigned a carrier?"

Mr. Working said, "Basically, we are only talking about areas
that are outside the public view anyway. This is behind ticket
counters, etc. So, yes, we would leave them. But as new
carriers come in..."

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "Cosmetically, it would not affect
appearance?"

Mr. Working responded, "No."

" 'Mrs. Cox said, "Thank you -- that is what I needed to know."

Commissioner Borries asked for County Attorney Miller's
recommendation.

Attorney Miller said, "I have reviewed these documents rather
quickly during previous proceedings. They look in order to me
and David's explanation appears totally acceptable."

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the Certification of the Loan Contract was
approved. So ordered.

Attorney Bunner said, the Public Disclosure (as with an Air Board
Member) is first disclosed at the Air Board and then it comes to
the Board of Commissioners. It then is filed with both the
County Clerk and the State Board of Accounts.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the Public Disclosure (John Will) was accepted
by the Board of Commissioners and signed. So ordered.

/4,
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RE: REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER - VANDERBURGH

The meeting continued with President Borries recognizing Mr.
Walter Clements of WSC Associates, Inc. He said Mr. Clements is
here this evening as Consultant Engineer to discuss a Change
Order for the Auditorium HVAC Renovation.

Mr. Clements said he had delivered three copies of the executed
Change Order. This basically gets the contract work for the
renovation of the Auditorium in line to complete the contract and
complete the work. Over a period time they have had some small
changes and there also are two allowance items in the contract.
The allowance items are also corrected in this document, so chat
it gets us with a complete finished contract. They hope to
complete the project by the end of the month. Attached to the
Commissioners' copies are copies of the requests for differenc
sums of money from the different organizations that are covered
in the second page of the Change Order.

Commissioner Borries said, "The original contract amount then
was..."

Mr. Clements interrupted, "The original contract amount was
$290,400.00 to Arc Construction and included in that contract
were two (2) allowance items -- and those are covered in the
first two items here. The first one was the re-work allowance
for the boiler, which was put into the contract at $5,500.00.

The actual cost was $3,589.17, which gave us a credit of
$1,910.83. The second item was for the checking and repair of
controls, and that was an allowance item of $6,000.00. Under
that are the breakdowns of the things that had to be replaced,
which actually increased the amount by $3,471.64. Then the ti.: !
item is some electrical changes required because of things that
were not correct in the original construgtion of the building
that had to be corrected to meet both-code compliance and also tu
give us an emergency power system. Originally the emergency
power was tied in on the wrong side of the electrical switch, so
we really didn't have one. This has been corrected.

The next item -- we planned on using as a back-up the existing
chill water pump in the building. Upon closer examination it wus
found that it appeared that the bearing and bearing assembly was
not adequate to maintain itself over a long period of time plus
the fact that we needed to operate with that pump for a period ot
time before the new pump came in. So that was repaired.

Item #5 -- in the Convention Bureau wall, based upon Virgil
Miller's drawings - it indicated the wall was to go from floor -.
the concrete deck above the ceiling. The wall was not extended
in the original contract. This had to be replaced so we could
operate the air conditioning system of the Convention Bureau as a
separate entity in the building.

Item #6 is the installation of double doors and the transom into
the boiler room, where the o0ld chiller was removed. Under the
original contract we only had a 3' x 7' man door. These doors
permit an eventual change to a storage area in the area that was
vacated when the old chiller was removed from the building.

Item #7 was a correction of the defuser rattle in the
Auditorium. These were dampers that were rattling in different
areas of the Auditorium area. That was not covered in the
contract, but this takes care of correcting those noise problems.

The total change is $10,444.84. This should complete all the
changes and modifications to the allowance items."

Commissioner Borries said, "This will also take care of then any
neating problems, since tne air conditioning.."
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Mr. Clements interrupted, "It will take care of everything that
is mentioned in this document or the contract. There are still a
couple of outstanding items that were in letters that were sent
to the Commissioners. But this will take care of everything up
to that date. There are some items that are outstanding based
upon the maintenance contract or there were also some air flow
changes that were detected during the checking of the air flows
in the different areas of the building. These two items are not
covered. Everything else is covered that is documented here.”
Ail of tnese change order items pbasically (except for the door
with the transom over it) have been submitted to the County
Council over a period of time and documents were submitted to
Council and to Mr. Lindenschmidt, your secretary.

President Borries entertained questions.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Did I understand correctly, Mr.
Clements, the last page on this dated October 11, 1988 -- where
they're recommending that a door be installed between the old
chiller room and receiving area and to quiet the noisy defusers
in the Auditorium -- this is a proposal from the company?"

Mr. Clements responded, "No."
Mrs. Cox asked, "Has it been completed?"

Mr. Clements replied, "One item has been completed and the other
item should be. Those items there are basically documentation
that back-up the change order pricing. The rattles have been
corrected -- those things have been taken care of. The framework
and doors should be installed this week and be completed so the
wall can be completely repaired between the boiler room and the
Auditorium.

T
A T

(End of Side "A", Tape #1) .~ .

In response to query from Mrs. Cox concerning notes on the back
of the change order, Mr. Clements said those are his notes and
this was submitted to the County Council. All of these items
have been processed through the County Council as far as approval
for payment. The original proposal (when we worked up the
project) there was a contingency allowance requested in there.

He indicated $15,000.00 and, obviously, this is less than the
$15,000.00 contingency amount. The change orders have been
executed by myself in the review process and also by the
contractor for construction company.

Commissioner Borries asked, "And this is from the contingency
fund that Council had established at that point?2"

Mr. Clements responded in the affirmative.
President Borries entertained further questions from the Board.

Commissioner Willner said, "I have a couple of things circled
here. No. 3 is electrical changes due to discrepancy in original
puilding construction. Should that not have been noted when this
pid was...?"

Mr. Clements interrupted, "We couldn't tell; it was inside the
existing electrical switch gear. We had no way of taking it
apart and shutting the building off to determine it."

Mr. Willner said, "No. 5 -- extend wall to west end of Convention
Bureau above ceiling. Wall was to be installed in the original
construction. Could you not see that either?2"
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Mr. Clements responded, "No, the original drawings indicated it
was there and a ceiling and we did not check above the ceiling
and assumed that since it was a storage area and required a wall
go to the underside of the deck by the State code, hopefully the
Building Commissioner or somebody would have approved it that way
-- because it was required as a fire break between the storage
area and the Gold Room."

Commissioner Willner continued, "And, No. 6 -- install double
doors with transom to allow old chiller area to eventually be
converted to storage area. Was that not able to be seen in the
original contract?"

Mr. Clements replied, "That was not part of the original
contract. It was only a man door. The County Council felt they
didn't want to proceed with making the whole area a storage area,
but instead of filling up the concrete block wall and then
tearing it back out to make it a storage area, they felt it would
be wise to put in the additional door to make a 6' x 7' opening
plus the transom area above to permit storage of the risers that
are used by the Philharmonic and stuff like that in the storage
area."

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, I do remember that No. 6 was discussed as
being the feasible thing to do in trying to get the o0ld chiller
unit out of there. It wouldn't go through the door."

Mr. Clements interjected, "The wall was removed and replacement
wall installed after the chiller was pulled out -- and only a 3
X 7' door was put in under the original contract. But before the
door and wall were replaced, it was felt it was wise to go ahead
and increase the door access so that the storage area could at a
later date be completed and used as a storage area."

Mrs. Cox stated, "For larger items..."., ..
Mr. Clements interrupted, "Right, than would go thfbugh a smaller
door."

Commissioner Willner said, "Then I imagine we need to have the
Council pay for it if they ordered it. Is that correct?"

Mr. Clements responded, "It's possible."”

Commissioner Willner asked, "Then why are you here? I don't
understand it. I think you're talking to the wrong person --
you're saying somebody else approved this change order and now
you're here and want us to pay it. 1Is that right?"

Mr. Clements hesitated and Mr. Willner continued, "And also on
No. 5 you have 'Approved 8-19-88'. Who approved that?"

Mr. Clements said, "It was submitted to Mr. Borries and Jim
Lindenschmidt talked to the Council for money."

Commissioner Willner said, "There is only one person who can
change a contract -- and that is this Board -- that's all."
(There was loud applause from Commissioner Cox.)

Mr. Clements said, "That is what I am asking you to do."

Mr. Willner continued, "All right, No. 7 —-- correct defuser
rattle in Auditorium - $921.00. Explain what you did to correct
the rattle.”

Mr. Clements said, "The air balance man went up into the ceiling
cavity and went around the different defusers and manually
tightened up the dampers. There are multiple dampers in each one
of the defusers. We started out with three and I think it ended
up that there were nine (9) or ten (10) that were corrected.”
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Mr. Willner asked, "And the number of bhours for that was?"

Mr. Clements replied, "I think that is only a quotation of a
total unit price -- 15% mark-up for the contract. The
sub-contractor was the one who did the work. The final item has
the door......

Mr. Willner said, "It just says the same thing - I don't get any
hours or any.."

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "On Page 1, Bob, there is 64 hours manhour
labor -- is that what you're talking about?"

Mr. Clements interjected, "No, that is something else.

President borries entertained further questions of Mr. Clements
concerning the change order -- or discussion.

Mr. Willner said, "No, I need to familiarize myself with these
problems and come to some kind of agreement with myself as to
their being over and above the contract and I will do so as soon
as possible. So I am not prepared at this time to go any further
that that." '

President Borries said, "I had asked Mr. Clements to speak to the
Board regarding what has been a very successful project here --
and I think his explanations have certainly been clear this
evening. Our discussion was based on apparently, again, what
seems to be a design error in the original building and I don't
know how you can prepare for that kind of problem."”

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I think that as soon as we get tne
message out concerning all our projects”- and, I don't know,
maybe we should see how many more we have out there -- that
change orders should be brought to this Board before they are
done. I think we've said that very loudly the last month. I'm
not sure it was said very loudly prior to that time. 1In fact, I
wasn't really aware that change orders were taking place over at
the Auditorium until Mr. Willner did bring it up at one of our
meetings and said maybe we'd better look into what is going on at
the Auditorium. And I think that perhaps is what prompted this.
I don't know if we have any other projects going on, but I think
we need to get the information to our people. I find the request
that has been submitted (and really I haven't read it in depth
and compared it) is very well documented as far as to the request
for the additional monies here and I just need to get one thing
clarified. Have you appeared before County Council with these
changes, Mr. Clements, at any time?"

Mr. Clements responded, "No, I dealt directly with the President
of the County Council (Mark Owen).

Commissioner Borries asked, "Can you explain what this
contingency account was set up to do? To handle just that -- any
kind of changes or modifications that were going to have to be
done relating to the original contract, which was the
installation of the new air conditioning units?"

Mr. Clements replied, "Yes, basically we submitted the cost
analysis on 5/21/88 and we recommended the low bid. This was
submitted at that time and we had asked that the probable added
cost of the controls (we had no idea as to the condition of the
control at the time) -- you can't find that out until you get in
and £ind out how much has or has not been taken care of. We had
indicated a $7,000.00 probable increase in cost over the
$6,000.00 allowance. We also had recommended a contingency
allowance of $15,000.00. That would have made the total project
cost approximtely $350,600.00. The budget was $395,000.00, so
this put us in at $44,000.00 under the amount budgeted for the
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project. We f£ind that our controls are about $3,500.00 over what
we had allowed in the contingency allowance and we have some
other items that were hidden costs that we did have to correct.
Some of these items had to be taken care of and it would be very
difficult to bring them back into the Council, based on the
number of times you meet. I know you meet every week -- but when
we were in the electric switch gear, we were making changes to
put the building back into service and we didn't find it until we
tied into the o0ld electric services -- those changes were made at
that time. Also, we were having humidity problems with the
Convention Bureau and that is when we brought up the wall problem
and if we couldn't do something -~ we were having trouble trying
to cool the Convention Bureau offices inside the Auditorium."

Attorney Miller asked, "Can I ask a question about that wall?

The wall apparently was called for by the original plans drawn by
Virgil Miller..."

Mr. Clements interrupted, "That's right."
Mr. Miller continued, "And the wall simply was not built?"

Mr. Clements responded, "That's right. It wasn't extended the
rest of the way out."

Attorney Miller asked, "Does anybody know why the wall wasn't
built?"

Mr. Clements replied, "I have no idea."

Attorney Miller, "Does anybody know whose responsibility it was
to build the wall -- but didn't?"

Mr. Clements said, "It's just not therei®™

Attorney Miller asked, "Was the original contractor obligated to
build this project according to the original plans?"

Mr. Clements replied, "I'm sure he was. That was 23 years ago."

Attorney Miller asked, "And this was in the original plans -- and
this wall was in the plans?"

Mr. Clements responded, "Yes, according to the drawings the wall
was supposed to be up against the concrete deck."™ He continued
by pointing to plans and saying, "There's the top of the wall,
there is the concrete deck and that space had to be filled all
the way across and around the duct work."

Mr. Miller asked, "And the wall should have gone all the way up
and it didn't?"

Mr. Clements said, "Yes, and it should have been around all these
pieces of duct work."

Mr. Miller asked, "And this is designed to be a fire wall?"

Mr. Clements said, "Yes, there has to be one hour fire separation
-—- yes sir. The other thing is, when we were trying to air
condition on (designated) this side and with that opening into
the area where we were air conditioning, we were getting moisture

migration and the duct was sweating and there were all kinds of
problems."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Could it have been that the same thing
happened back then (as sometimes happens and is brought to this
Board) where when a drainage plan or some such is submitted to
this Board and we approve it, then it always hasn't been placed
in place according to those plans. Maybe some adjustments needed
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to be made at the time when the building was originally built and
the original plans never reflected these changes. I'm not sure
that the Building Code and Fire Code that are in place today are
the same that were in place 23 years ago. I think what we have
here is a definite change in a plan that was made necessary
simply because the original plan had not been completely
followed, nor had it been amended to show that this change had
not taken place. But I guess, Mr. Borries, I would have the same
question to you that I did to Mr. Willner -- and that is, if
changes were being reported (and this is the first that I've
heard of them here at this meeting) -- to you, as President of
the Board, why weren't they brought to a public meeting?"

Commissioner Borries replied, "Well, my understanding was just
what you said in terms of the wall that was not built and the
contingency fee -~ I was very concerned that there was no change
in relation to the contingency fund that had been set up in
relation to working through this. And there was certainly no
attempt on anyone's part at this point to say that we were adding
to the contract at this point, because I think when Mr. Clements
told me about the wall, my concerns were whether or not we had
any budgetary amount that would take care of this., He indicated
that it would, but I felt that he needed to talk with the County
Council members -- and I think he did - in relation to saying if
those funds were going to be used for that purpose.”

Mr. Jim Lindenschmidt asked, "Rick, on that wall, can I say
something? I was called on an emergency over there to Pete
Helfrich's office. The water was pouring down into his office --
and they told me what the problem was. Now, I don't know if I
talked to any one of you (I thought I got ahold of one of you) --
but then I called the President of the County Council and said we
had a problem, there was extra money appropriated, and would vou
people (County Council) approve putting:this wall in, which is
necessary thing -- and he assured me that they would approve the
money for completing that wall. Mr. Helfrich had to move out of
his office because the water was pouring down in there.. I don't
know what day of the week it was or anything else, but they
called me over there to look at it."

Commissioner Cox asked, "But you didn't feel it necessary or
important enough to bring to this Board then as a potential
change order needing more funds?" '

Mr. Lindenschmidt, "I'm sorry -- but I did talk to the President
of the County Council and he said, 'Yes, the money is there -- 5o
ahead'."

Commissioner Borries said, "Well, that is my understanding of
what this fund was set up for -- the contingency in relation to
the $290,400.00 that was budgeted for the heating and air
conditioning portion."

Mr. Clements said this only represents about 3% of the total
contract cost. '

Commissioner Borries said, "I appreciate your being here this
evening. Is it the feeling of this Board that you need further
information in relation to .any of these items?"

Commissioner Cox asked, "How much of this contract has been
paid?" '

Mr. Clements said, "I think there is 10% retaining (about
$29,000) plus the next payment, which probably is close to
$50,000 that has not yet been paid of the original. But it
should be due at the end of the month, because the project should
be completed insofar as what has been done today."

Commissioner Cox asked, "You do not anticipate any additional
changes necessary to complete the project?”
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Mr. Clements replied, "No, basically there are only two items
that letters have been sent on -- but nothing has taken place on
-- and that is a re-balance. 1In testing the air handling units
we found that two of them are over air flow and one is under --
and there is a letter on September 15, 1988 that was sent but
nothing done on. That is $405.00. And there are some items -- a
letter has been sent to Thermotron Energy, Inc. indicating that
there are items that need to be corrected -- that we assume is
under their contract -- but I have no idea how that falls,
because I have yet to receive a reply to that letter. It was
sent on October 10, 1988."

County Auditor Sam Humphrey asked Mr. Clements if the figures on
the change order are his figures?

Mr. Clements said WSC prepared the change order -- but these are
the contractor's figures.

Mr. Humphrey asked if Mr. Clements checked the figures.
Mr. Clements said he thought he did.
Mr. Humphrey said there is a three cent error.

Mrs. Cox asked, "What you are submitting here is a change order,
number one, which actually is lower."

Mr. Clements said, "As indicated, it is an adjustment -- we're
trying to get the paperwork straightened up. There was an
allowance of $5,500.00 and the actual cost was less, so that is a
deduct. The next item is an add. We had an allowance of $6,000
and the total was $9,471.64." -

Commissioner Borries asked the other Commissioners™ if they wish
time to examine this further?

Commissioner Willner said, "I do."

Mr. Humphrey noted the three cent error was just an addition
error. (It should be 81 cents instead of 84 cents).

Commissioner Cox said she is glad to see Auditor Humphrey doing
his job -- that is what a good Auditor is supposed to do -- it
could have been $3.00, $1,300, or whatever.

Commissioner Borries again expressed appreciation to Mr. Clements
for his appearance at tonight's meeting. He then asked Mr.
Willner to talk with Mr. Clements to get the additional
information he needs.

Commissioner Cox said, "I don't have any questions other than
those I've already raised, unless I find something when I go
through the change order -- and I can call him if I don't
understand. Like I said, I feel it is pretty well documented."

Mr. Clements asked if he needs to appear before the Commission
again. He has checked with the contractor and everything should
be completed by the end of the month. If there is some doubt
though -- especially the door -- it is being fabricated but has
not been installed. But he has no idea as to what the
Commissioners plan on doing.

Commissioner Cox said, "I would think that the double doors with
the transom is certainly a much better move than a small door
into that area."

Mr. Clements said, "I agree; but if I don't know -- but if you're
telling me now that you don't know what you want to do, I can
stop. I don't know where the chips fall financially."
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Commissioner Cox asked, "When were they planning on finishing the
door work?"

Mr. Clements said the frame is being built and will be finished
on the 19th and they plan on putting it in on the 20th and 21st
of this month.

Commissioner Cox said, "That is before our next meeting. Well, I
have no problem with authorizing Do you have the cost of what
that is going to be?"

Mr. Clements said, "It is $1,981,00, I believe."

Commissioner Cox moved that the request for an additional
expenditure of $1,981.00 for a door between the o0ld chiller room
and receiving area at the Vanderburgh County Auditorium be
approved.

A second to the motion was provided by Commissioner Borries. So
ordered.

President Borries asked, "Bob, do you think you will be able to
reach any kind of conclusion by next week?"

Commissioner Willner responded, "I shall try; I couldn't answer
that right now -- I might create more, can't ever tell."

Commissioner Borries asked if the Board can have a week.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Well, does he have authority to go ahead
and do the door?"

Commissioner Borries said, "I think he“las the authority -- based
on that motion." T o e

Commissioner Cox said, "I have a question then concerning this
letter dated October 10, 1988 to Thermotron Energy asking that
the inoperative controls be brought to their attention. I don't
have the exact date that this Board did vote to notify the
Thermotron company that their maintenance agreement was being
terminated -- and I believe Attorney Miller was going to look
into the information regarding a possible default of that
contract due to not carrying out agreed maintenance duties as
prescribed by the contract.”

Attorney Miller said, "That may be true, but I don't remember
that assignment. I do have some letters, particularly a letter
sent by Thermotron to Mr. Borries with respect to various
activities that it has conducted. I have been out of the City
quite a bit in the last 10 days and I have not had an opportunity
to address that. I will tell you what my basic understanding is
of the status of Thermotron and its contract is, just to be sure
that I have a correct view when I start to look at that. That
is, that there are certain warranties that apply with respect to
the new equipment, which warranties are essentially an overlap of
the Thermotron -- or may be an overlap of the Thermotron
commitments to maintain that we have paid or have agreed to pay
Thermotron for. The question that I am to address -- or the
question I have been asked to address -- is whether or not it is
appropriate for the County or whether the County can save money
by taking advantage of a cancellation provision in the Thermotron
contract and cancelling or a part of that contract in favor of
relying upon the warranties of the vendors of the new equipment.
That is as far as I am in the analysis process and I apologize
for that, but that is just the way things are."”

Mr. Clements asked, "The newspaper was incorrect then in their
statement?"
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Attorney Miller replied, "I hate to say it with the folks here,
but I didn't read it in the newspaper. I don't know what you
have reference to."

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I think it is documented in the
minutes of this Board that by majority vote this Board did vote
to notify the Thermotron company that we were cancelling their
contract with a 30-day notice."

Attorney Miller said, "And I had been asked to look into the
appropriateness of that, but I have not done that."

Commissioner Cox said, "Oh, I didn't have that understanding at
all. I thought there was a clause in the contract that said this
could be terminated upon thirty (30) day notice by both parties.”

Attorney Miller said, "I think there is. The question is, is it
a complete termination or a partial termination or can we
terminate part of their responsibilities and not all?"

Mrs. Cox said, "As I recall the comment (and we can look in the
minutes -- I'm sure it is in there) because of the report that
came in on the status of the equipment which should have been
maintained, that report prompted you to say perhaps we should get
some of our money back from them if they haven't properly
maintained the equipment. Now, that was what I was under the
impression you were investigating. Not whether we could
terminate it-or not. Because that is almost $5,000 per month
that we're paying and have been paylng -- and certainly we should
not pay Thermotron for this month."

Attorney Miller said, "Thermotron did prepare aAresponse that I
know I have at my office, which I have .not reviewed with respect
to the various aspects of its duties.™ i -

Mr. Clements said, "The major piece of édhipmenf that was covered
by the maintenance contract is no longer there."

Attorney Miller said, "It has been replaced by new..."

Mr. Clements interrupted, "But the contract only stipulates that
they take care of that piece of equipment -- and it is no longer
there.”

Attorney Miller asked, "So there is nothing for them to take care
of?"

Mr. Clements said, "Except the boilers -- and that has been
repaired, too."

Commissioner Borries asked, "Has the small boiler been repaired?"

Mr. Clements said, "Yes, that is the figure of $3,589.17 -- it is
operational and heating the building right now, because the other
boiler is out of service yet. The tubes have just been replaced
and I would like for you to look into the problem of the back
door leakage."

Attorney Miller asked, "The small boiler was down for a period of
time because of a ..."

Mr. Clements interrupted, "It had a leak in one of the sections.”

Attorney Miller asked, "And are you advised that there was some
recommendation to repair it?"

Mr. Clements said, "They had quoted a price to the Council of
$12,000 to repair that particular boiler. 1In this contract, we
put an allowance in of $5,500.00 -- and it was repaired for
$3,800 some odd and it is now back in service heating the
building."
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Commissioner Cox asked, "This really should not have been a part
of this contract. But should it have been provided under the old
maintenance contract?"

Mr. Clements said, "It is very difficult to tell, Ma'am. Tubes
are very specifically called for and the Clever Brooks boiler has
tubes, while the other items are not called for very
specifically, except the absorption machine."

Mr. Miller said, "But what you are saying is that Thermotron --
if it is not covered under the ordinary cost of the maintenance
contract that we were paying on, Thermotron had quoted a $12,000
extra expense for doing it and the job was done for something
slightly in excess of $3,000."

Mr. Clements said, "That is correct, based on their letter of
September 19, 1988 (on page 2). They call it the 125 h.p. boiler
and the other is the 200 h.p. (Clever Brooks) boiler."

Attorney Miller said, "I remember some discussion about that."

Mr. Clements asked, "Then as I understand it, we would continue
to notify and send you the things we find that are a problem that
need to be corrected?"

Commissioner Borries said, "We'll look at the date that order was
given -- I think it was around September 19th or something to
that effect."

Mr. Clements said, "According to the newspaper, it was September
19th."

Commissioner Borries said, "If you had%had-commuqication with
them then, there should be some communication back-as to what, if
anything, their responsibilities would be."

Turning to Attorney Miller, Commissioner Borries said, "David,
this always brings up again here the continuing problem on these
change orders. We've had some lengthy discussions. I know of
Bob's concerns; I've had concerns; and Shirley has had concerns
regarding these. Would you prepare for us a review of what
necessary communication needs to go out to all parties concerning
change orders -- perhaps either on the form that is
State—approved and what those guidelines are, because I think it
is very important that we stay up to date and continually
informed about all of these. Again, in any major project, there
can be mistakes that are going to occur and we're always mindful
of that. But I am concerned here that all of us want to follow
and do the right thing and do the best thing and do it in a
timely fashion -- and I'd like to see if we need to make any
additions to the State-approved forms that could be sent to the
contractors and all those who receive any contractual awards from
the County."

Attorney Miller said, "I will do that. I really think that Mr.
Clements, whether intentional or not, pointed out a very real
problem in connection with change orders in public works projects
and, over the last eight years sitting here observing these
proceedings and advising you, I've a number of times wondered
about this problem. It seemed most often that you were able to
solve it in a reasonable and agreeable fashion. But recently a
number of these questions have arisen it seems all at one time.

I think you, as a Board, are in something of a Catch 22 when it
comes to public works projects and the normal emergencies that
attend almost any kind of large construction project. It is
important for you, as a Board, to have the right and exercise the
oversight to approve or disapprove changes that affect the scope
and substantial cost of a project. On the other hand, it seems
to me only realistic to expect that in the course of virtually
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any large construction project, items -- situations -- are going
to arise that need to be addressed right now. And you, as a
Board, are bound by State statutes which say that you may only
act through your minutes and through your meetings and any
contracts you make (and it is appropriate and right that this
should be) -- but any contracts can only be approved in the
course of your open public meetings. That is the reason for the
flexibility that is provided in the public works bidding statutes
for change orders and essentially overruns, which are limited to
what I believe to be a very large percentage -- but 25% of the
original contract amount. It is important, it seems to me, for
the public trust to be maintained -- that anytime it is
reasonably possible, proposals for change orders should be
brought to you before they are performed. There are going to be
times when that can't be done. And when it can't be done, it is
appropriate that proposals for these change orders be brought to
you and explained thoroughly to you just as soon as possible
after it happens. And my sense of what has happened here in a
couple of projects that have been discussed in the last several
weeks is that the administrative ball has been dropped on a
couple of occasions -- and I suppose that is going to happen.
There are statutes that protect the public from being defrauded
by improper change orders and I can give you a memorandum that
explains what those procedures are. But there are no magic fixes
here. There are going to be times when ceilings leak and walls
aren't there when they are supposed to be there and an error in
mathematics is made that makes it necessary for an extra inch of
concrete or something like that -- and those things need to be
brought to your attention as soon as possible. But in my opinion
-- and it is only my opinion, not as an elected official but as
someone who advises you -- that when that happens, if it is
within the scope of the original project and if it is a step that
is going to have to be taken to complete the project in a way
that common sense says you are going to.want it completed, you
don't want the project stopped for a week or ten days until you
can look at it. 8o, yes, I will give you that memorandum -- and
maybe this is uncalled for postulation here -- but things like
this, in my opinion, are inevitable and no one should be
surprised when something happens on a public works project that
requires something unexpected to be done. That is all I have to
say."

Commissioner Borries thanked Attorney Miller for his comments.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - DAVID MILLER

Review of Precinct Boundaries: Attorney Miller said we have been
considering in the past several months the manner in which the
Commissioners wish to deal with the reconsideration or review of
the precinct boundaries in view of Indiana Code 3-11-1.5. This
statute is a work of the most recent General Assembly, a very
lengthy bill that deals primarily with the procedures for
changing precinct boundaries -- and I emphasize to you that this
is Precinct Boundaries that the bill deals with. It is not Ward
Boundaries; it 1s not Councilmatic Boundaries; it is not any
boundaries except Precinct Boundaries. It is a project that must
be done and the precincts must be drawn within certain population
guidelines that are established by statute -- and it will require
some review and work by appropriate officials. There was a
recommendation made by this Board to the County Council to engage
an outside consulting or engineering firm to do that. The County
Council declined to fund that effort. At the request of
Commissioner Borries, I have reviewed the statute and whether or
not I think this is the best way to do it, the statute does make
provision for a way to do it which gives you the necessary
oversight and final look, which I think will be adequate.

There are many, many sections of this statute, but 3-11-1,.5-13
provides for the establishment of a Precinct Study Committee.
The Precinct Study Committee consists of the County Auditor, the
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Circuit Clerk, One Member of the County Executive (that's your
group), the County Chairman of each of the major political
parties of the County, the members of the Registration Board and
that is the Precinct Study Committee. And the Precinct Study
Committee then (and it's voluntary on the part of Counties,
whether or not to appoint this Precinct Study Committee) does the
ground work. That Committee essentially engages and uses the
services of whatever public offices are available, including the
City Engineer's, Area Plan people, County officials -- in order
to determine whether or not any precincts need to be re-drawn and
then the re-drawing is recommended to the Board. After you have
reviewed the recommendations of the Precinct Study Committee, you
can either accept them or not. Upon your final acceptance of
those recommendations, (clearly you have the right to reject the
recommendation and send the study committee back to the drawing
table) -- but upon your ultimate acceptance of the Precinct Study
Committee work, you then send the approved recommendations up to
the State Election Board for its consideration and the State
Election Board must approve or reject within 45 days and,
essentially, the only approval or rejection provisions that are
available to the State Election Board revolve around population
within the precincts. So, I have prepared a form of resolution
here for your consideration and I'll read it to you. It is, I
believe, drafted in accordance with this statute. I have, just
prior to this meeting, asked President Borries who he would
recommend as the County Commissioners' representative on this
Precinct Study Committee -- because the representative of the
Commission on the Precinct Study Committee is the Chairman of the
Precinct Study Committee. He indicated that he would like Mr.
Willner to do that. Keeping that in mind, I will read to you
this proposed resolution. .

RESOLUTION .

)

WHEREAS I.C. 3-11-1.5 requires.that the Board of
Commissioners of Vanderburgh County establish precinct
boundaries for the County and to submit all proposed
precinct boundary changes to the state election board for
approval before the Board of Commissioners Acts; and

WHEREAS I.C. 3-11-1, 5-13 recommends that each county
form a precinct study committee to reivew the County's
precincts and to report to the Commissioners upon its
findings,

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Board of
Commissioners of Vanderburgh County that a Precinct Study
Committee be established pursuant to I.C. 3-11-1, 5-13 to
perform the functions provided by statute and to perform
the function provided in I.C. 3-11-1.5 and to recommend to
this Board any alterations necessary to bring precincts into
compliance with the requirements of law.

Robert L. Willner shall serve as the representative of
the Board of Commissioners on the Precinct Study Committee
and shall call the meetings of the Precinct Study Committee,
but the first meeting shall be held on the day of
October 1988 at O'clock in Room 307 of the Civic
Center Administration Building.

The Precinct Study Committee shall report to the
Board its final recommendations together with those documents
required by I.C. 3-11~1, 5-15 on or before Janury 3, 1989.

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF VANDERBURGH

s/s Richard J. Borries, Presidentr
s/s Robert L. Willner, V. President
s/s Shirley Jean Cox, Member

.é
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ATTEST:
Sam Humphrey, Auditor
David Miller, County Attorney -

Attorney Miller said the reason he left the date of the first
meeting blank is so that the Commissioners could decide when they
wanted the first meeting called, because the statute clearly says
that the Board of Commissioners calls the meeting of the Precinct
Study Committee. Secondly, I chose a date (and probably should
have left that blank, too) but just for target purposes I chose a
date of January 3, 1989 for the Precinct Study Committee to
report back to you in order to give plenty of time for the
necessary work to be done to finalize these precincts. There is
no General Election next year. 1If there were a General Election
next year, you would have to complete all of this work and have
the precincts drawn absolutely and without question, I believe,
by January 15th of next year. But the statute says it has to be
done by January 15 of the year in which a General Election is
held. There is no General Election next year, so you do have
time to work on this. But there will be other bodies that will
need to consider the impact of this work in their deliberations
later on, so it is my feeling that you should encourage the
Precinct Study Committee to report to you as soon as possible.
Therefore, I've recommended January 3, 1989 and I submit this to
you for your consideration. I recommend that in view of the
recent County Council position that this is the way that you go
about this.

Commissioner Borries entertained questions..

Commissioner Cox asked, "Who is going- t6¢ do the work?"

Attorney Miller responded, "The Precinct Study Committee ..."

Mrs. Cox emphasized, "Who is going to do the physical work?--
That is my question.”

Attorney Miller responded, "The Precinct Study Committee, as I
recited to you, is made up of the County Auditor, a Circuit Court
Clerk, one member of the County Executive designated by the
Executive, the County Chairman of each of the political parties
and the members of the Registration Board (if the board exists).
Each of those people have the right under this statute to stand
aside in favor of a nominee who they believe is qualified in one
way or another to do some physical work. This Precinct Study
Committee could do this work itself, or, under the statute, they
can seek any help that they need from a public officer -- they
can ask for it. I can't control who is going to do the work. My
guess is that if the Precinct Study Committee does what I think
it is going to do, it is going to look to the Area Plan
Commission, the County Surveyor, and the City Engineer and others
in poth aspects of the government who have access to the
necessary data. The Election Board certainly has access to
certain data regarding the registered voters and certain items
like that, but it would be up to the Precinct Study Committee and
that is what this statute ..."

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "So it would be up to that Committee to
select the actual people who will physically do the re-drawing of
precinct lines and not to this Commission?"

Attorney Miller replied, "No - no, it is up to that Committee to
decide who is going to do the work to create its recommendation.
This Board (a) does not have to create this Committee and (b)
having created it, does not have to accept the recommendation
that it comes with."
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(End of Side B, Tape #1)

Commissioner Borries said, "I really believe that Commissioner
Bob Willner's name was taken a bit in vain in relation to what
was proposed to the County Council and I want to say certainly in
his behalf and mine that there really were no political
considerations as far as I am concerned in relation to what, for
example, the County Surveyor (who has done this in the past) can
do or cannot do. And it would be my feeling and recommendation
that this Precinct Study Committee would act as a reviewer of the
work that the County Surveyor would do. I think the County
Surveyor is the logical office to proceed with at this point the
drawing of the precinct boundaries. The law is quite
complicated. It had been my feeling that because of the vast
complexity that is involved in this particular law that a firm
that perhaps had computer technology skills and the technology
equipment available to them could do this and plug in all the
various components that are involved in this very complex law,
such as census tract and the most recent voter registration data
that will be forthcoming. Be that as it may, Council said that
this was not what they saw as an expenditure that they wanted to
approve. And I am not interested in battling the philgsophy over
this. It has to be done. Again, as I could see, it had nothing
to do with any ongoing feud with the County Surveyor. And from
my standpoint, the County Surveyor would the logical choice to
proceed and proceed quickly. Attorney Miller had mentioned that
the City Engineer would be involved. I would think that with the
change due to the City's annexation in several different areas of
the County that there is going to be significant change in regard
to City precincts, simply because most of the precincts will have
to be re-drawn (several of them inside the City of Evansville).
But it would be my feeling that this Precinct Study Board would
review what the Surveyor does and that:this Board would ask the
Surveyor to proceed with his drawing of the precincts.®

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, whatever is done has to go to a
public hearing before we pass it."

Commissioner Borries said, "Absolutely."

Continuing, Mrs. Cox said, "So if there is input necessary from
the Democratic County Chairman or the Republican County Chairman,
it can come at that time."

Attorney Miller interjected, "That is absolutely right."

Mrs. Cox said, "I don't see why this Board cannot say at this
time that -- I don't see the necessity of a committee. I think
that this Board is charged with the responsibility of making
these precincts no larger than 800. There seems to be a question
on just when this is supposed to happen -- and I would certainly
think that anytime that we could save the taxpayers money by
using in-house people who volunteer to help do this, that we
would be remiss not to do this. And I would think that this
Board could designate the Surveyor, the Area Plan Commission and
the Registration Office to work in conjunction to get this job
done. I don't feel we can use EUTS, because they are Federally
funded and I do not think an expenditure for this purpose would
be Federally approved. But those other three entities -- I don't
see why this Board -- if they are willing to accept the
responsibility to do this -- because I remember very vividly when
the mass re-drawing of precinct lines occurred and that is when
Mr. Willner was on the Board without us ~- and the County
Attorneys were in charge of that at that time."

Attorney Miller interjected, "Yes, but this County Attorney
'ain't' going to do that."

Mrs. Cox said, "Well all right, but that was one of their
responsibilities -- it was turned over to the County Attorneys."
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Commissioner Borries said, "I don't foresee that this (which is
part of the Indiana Code) Board would have to meet on any kind of
a regular basis at this point, except to review what the Surveyor
has done. I don't see it as anything that has to be a regqular

situation -- but, certainly, it is an option. And certainly I
think it might end any confusion or could be of some assistance
as the final data is given out. The Area Plan Commission -- and

certainly the Voter Registration Boards, with their statistics,
have to be involved in this; Area Plan, because they have been
involved not only with the 1980 Census but with the 1990 Census
and the Census Tracts (according to the way the law reads) should
be followed. I see it as a review mechanism that is in there and
simply one that could be used when the Surveyor completes his
work -- to conduct the check."

Attorney Miller said, "I make the recommendation to do it in this
fashion, because it is obvious to me in reviewing the statute
that there was some degree of thought given to the process by the
Legislature and they, as a group, determined that this precinct
study committee process would be a way in which the various
thoughts and input of the parties, the Election Board, and
various County Officials could be heard, considered, and .
essentially distilled before it comes before you as the ultimate
public body that gives authority to send recommendations up to
the State Election Board. And, therefore, probably save you all
a great deal of time in sifting through a lot of information that
they can sift through if they see fit to do so. It is in the
statute -- it is recommended -- it is a clearly provided for
procedure and since your first recommendation for outside
assistance did not carry the day in the County Council, it seems
to me that this is the way to go. That is my recommendation.”

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I think.probably why that is
recommended in that manner, David, is because in the vast
majority of the counties there are no Area Plan Commission
officials. There are no Boards of Registration. Registration
falls under the Clerk of the Circuit Court.”

Attorney Miller said, "Well, I understand. But that could have

"been done. They could have made exceptions for that as they do

in many statutes for larger counties.”

Mrs. Cox said, "I say that perhaps that is why that is in there
-— to use those bodies -- and that is why I asked you the
question. Is that Committee specifically charged with doing the
work?"

Attorney Miller responded, "Here is what the Committee's powers
are."

Commissioner Borries interjected, "All counties would have a
surveyor and I would think that this Committee is a committee
that simply reviews the County's precincts, based on what is
done. And it does not in any way reflect that they do the work."

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, see, they don't list Area Plan or
Board of Registration -- that is because they don't have them --
just the larger counties.®”

Commissioner Borries interjected, "They do have Board of
Registrations it says -- if there are those in the County. They
are mentioned, I believe, aren't they, David? Aren't Boards of
Registration mentioned if they are in the County?"

Attorney Miller responded, "Yes, the members of the Registration
Board (if the Board exists) are members of this Committee."
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President Borries said, "I would suggest Mr. Willner because he
is not a candidate for election this year -- but I don't know
whether he would be willing to do it. I haven't asked him if he
would be willing to do it and, again, I do not see that this
would have to be a frequent Board because, again, if we charge
and direct the Surveyor to proceed, then they would review his
findings and then they would report back to this Board and
subsequently forward the data to the Election Board."

Continuing, Mr. Borries said, "Let's consider Step #l1. May we
have a motion here to direct someone to draw the precincts?"

Commissioner Cox moved the Commission authorize the Board of
Registration officials, the Area Plan Commission office, and the
County Surveyor's office to proceed with the re-drawing of the
precinct boundaries within the limitations of the statutes.

Commissioner Willner said he would not second the motion, but 1t
doesn't matter to him. He can live with whatever the other
Commissioners want to do -- it doesn't make him any difference.

Commissioner Borries said, "I see it as the logical way to
proceed at this time. I do not see that it would be worth the
effort at this point to again get involved in a philosophical
difference here with the County Council. To me, I see the
re-drawing of the precincts as very important, very vital -- and
should we wish, to adopt this Committee as simply acting to
review what has been drawn at that point. I think it is very
important that we do it accurately and within the limits of this
law -- so I will second the motion and say so ordered."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Does Mr. Willner want a roll call vote?"
Commissioner Willner said, "No." ,,ﬁﬁ

Commissioner Borries asked, "Is there a motion then to adopt this
Resolution which, again, would simply set up the Committee that
would review the work of the group that has been authorized to
proceed and report to this Board?"

Commissioner Willner so moved, and a second was provided by
Commissioner Cox, who said this was to get the motion on the
floor -- but she wants a roll call vote. On second thought, Mrs.
Cox said she will not second -- maybe it will die for lack of a
second. Therefore, she withdraws her second.

Commissioner Borries seconded the motion. He then asked for a
roll call vote. Commissioner Cox, no; Commissioner Willner, yes;
and Commissioner Borries, yes. So ordered. Commissioner Borries
said the Board has directed the County Surveyor, the Area Plan
Commission, and Voter Registration to proceed with the drawing orf
the precincts and they have also enacted a Precinct Study
Committee that will review what has been done and give the
Commissioners a report. He then asked Commissioner Willner if he
would serve on this Board?

Commissioner Willner agreed to do so.

Attorney Miller said this concludes his report. He said he was
beginning to feel like the County Engineer we had years ago who
took up a couple of hours. What was his name? (It was
determined it was David South.)

Mrs. Cox stated that he believed in bringing everything before
the Board.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY - CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

Weekly Work Reports: Mr. Muensterman submitted copies of Weekly
Work Report for Employees at the County Garage for period of
October 10 thru October 14, 1988.......report received and filed.

VAL

‘}{:
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Change Order re Paving Contract (Kansas & County Line Road
East):: Mr. Muensterman said that due to the unexpected death of
Bill Bethel, another matter has been brought to his attention and
needs immediate action at this time. This is in regards to
paving contract VC-06-4-88, which was let on June 20, 1988 to The
Rogers Group, Inc., for Kansas Road and County Line Road East.

He is requesting a Change Order in the amount of $32,920.70. The
original contract called for a 1" binder and a 1" surface on
County Line Road East from Boonville-New Harmony Road to Baseline
Road. Mr. Bruce DeLapp, Manager of The Rogers Group, called Bill
Bethel on Thursday, July 28th, and said it needed a 2™ base and a
1" surface instead of the previous quote of 1" base and 1"
surface, because some of the road bed areas were in bad shape.
Bill Bethel instructed Mr. Dave DeLapp to go ahead with the
increase and said he would take care of the change order. This
must have slipped Bill's mind. This contract is not completed.
They had to stop laying the road in this one particular area,
which was approximately 50 yards long, because Koester Bros. was
hauling dirt across the road for fill on the I-164 project. When
Koester Bros. completes their hauling, Rogers will go back and
lay this particular area. The original contract was for 1,345
tons of base ad 1,345 tons of surface in the amount of
$129,644.97. They used 2,546.85 tons of base and 1,380.61 tons
of surface, which amounted to $§162,565.67 plus preparation of
pavement and maintenance of traffic. He said he believes Bill
Bethel was justified in okaying the increase in material, because
of the extensive use by the coal and grain haulers coming off of
the new Boonville-New Harmony ramp after the opening of I-164.

He inspected this area yesterday and he found large areas north
and south of the bridge to have a heavier base by measuring the
thickness on some edges of the road, which weren't covered with
the surface. 1In other words, they might have come over about a
half an inch. Really, where they laid ‘the base was a little
wider than it should have been. When the paver- went down, it
might have come out a little bit. But there is more thickness as
far as the base is concerned in some spots than the 1". It is at
least 2". He would like to have the Commissioners pass this
change order of $32,920.70 to complete this road."

Mrs. Cox again asked what road this is.

Mr. Muensterman said this is County Line Road East, which runs
from Boonville-New Harmony Rd. to Baseline Rd. He believes that
is going to be a heavily traveled road because of the interchange
there at Boonville-New Harmony Rd. People coming from Elberfeld
take that road to catch the Interstate.

Mrs. Cox said, "There was more than one road in that original
contract."”

Mr. Muensterman said that is correct —-- Kansas Road.

Mrs. Cox asked, "How long is County Line Road? When did Rogers
do this? I saw them -~ I know they were working on Kansas Road
at least a month or maybe six weeks ago, but I think it has been
reported to our Board each week that Rogers hasn't been working
on our County contracts."

Mr. Muensterman commented, "They haven't."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Why haven't they?"

Mr. Muensterman replied, "They have been working for the State
and they are supposed to start this week."

Mrs. Cox asked, "They didn't do anything this week either?"

Mr. Muenstrman said, "No, the last two weeks they haven't."
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Mrs. Cox said, "It has been more than two weeks."
Mr. Muensterman said, "County Line Road East is 2.20 mi."

Mrs. Cox commented, "That is 2.2 mi. then. That doesn't sound
like an unreasonable amount for 2.2 mi., if the...."

Commissioner Borries interrupted, "Are there funds available?"
Mr. Muensterman responded in the affirmative.

Commissioner Borries asked, "And from the information you've
received, you say that you've talked with the Rogers officials?"

Mr. Muensterman confirmed that this is correct.

Mr. Borries asked, "And that the base of the road was just
deteriorated so badly that....?"

Mr. Muensterman interjected, "Yes, see -- at one time it was a
chip-and-seal. And then when they started to grade it to get the
base down they ran into a lot of problems of a lot of rock --
just too soft. It just wouldn't hold up trucks. There will
probably be a lot of coal trucks and grain trucks going through
that road to I-164, either going to St. Louis or the other way --
that's another thing you've got to think about. There is a lot
of farmland in that area and it was really bad down by the woods
on past the new bridge we'd put in and down in that area and also
up towards Marx's farm."

Mrs. Cox remarked, "You often see more road deterioration in the
wooded or shaded areas because of the drainage and the holding of
the ice and snow, etc."” .

Commissioner Willner asked if Mr. Muénéﬁerman ha§7this
information on a State Board of Accounts corrected Change Order
form."

Mr. Muensterman responded, "No I haven't, not yet. I thought I'd
come before the Board first and ask."

Commissioner Cox asked if they have submitted a blue claim yet to
be paid.

Mr. Muensterman said, "No, not yet."
Commissioner Borries asked, "What is the feeling of the Board?"

Mr. Muensterman said, "The way I look at it, really we wouldn't
have to pay them yet —- until they finish the road -- because
they still have about 50 yards to lay. Koester is still hauling
dirt."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Did they call you and tell you they had
put down more? How did you find out about this?"

Mr. Muensterman said, "I got word through them calling me and
telling me that they had to lay more. And then I checked. And
Suzie, my bookkeeper, called me in the other day and said, 'Hey,
we're running over on this.' -- and then they gave me the date
and the time that he called Bill Bethel."

Commissioner Borries said, "As I understand it then, this Board
could act one way or the other. 1Is there an approved Change
Order form here that is available?"

Mr. Hartman said he got a Change Order form from Wayne Pasco
today and he will be glad to have some forms made up and give Mr.
Muensterman some for his use.

/L7
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Upon motion made by Commissioner Wiliner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, Contract No. VC-06-4-88 be amended to include
the addition of $32,920.70 -- and put on the proper form and
signed by this Board. So ordered.

Commissioner Cox asked if they nave calculated in the amount that
they have not laid yet.

Mr. Muensterman replied, "Yes, that is everything."

Mrs. Cox continued, "So they are going to completely do the
resurfacing atfter the trucking company quits going back and forth
across the road to I-164?"

Mr. Muensterman responded, "Yes -- that is the reason for the
hold up right now."

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER - DAN HARTMAN

Contractual Work: With regard to the contractual work for this
week, Mr. Hartman reported that J H. Rudolph & Co. has completed
Maxwell Road, Fairfield Drive and Oak Grove Road. As stated, The
Rogers Group has no report to make for this week.

Mrs. Cox asked, "You reported that we've done Oak Grove Road?"

Mr. Hartman said, "Yes -- we've completed the base surface on 0Oak
Grove Road."

Mrs. Cox asked, "We haven't gotten the culvert in?"
Mr. Hartman responded, "No, we have not installed the culvert."

Mrs. Cox asked, "So they've done all’éiéﬁpt the 500 feet?"

Mr. Hartman said, "Well, that is what I proposed, but I am toid
they went ahead and paved the additional 500 feet there in spite

of my pleas to refrain from paving there. We can always use this

material here for the future widening and improving of Oak Grove
Road~-however. It's not a total loss.”

Commissioner Borries asked, "Are you still in design with regard
to the large culvert on Oak Grove Road?"

Mr. Hartman said, "Yes, we have that in our file ready to be
let."

Mr. Borries asked, "And you asked Council for an appropriation
for that? 1Is that correct?"

Mr. Hartman said, "Yes -- and they said there was no money in
that account at this time -~ or no money available for that
account at this time. I did find that Bob Brenner 4id open the
account and had monies put in there. But we have no money in
that account to anywhere near complete the design that our office
turned out."

Commissioner Cox said, "I was under tne impression that the
Council did approve the funds for the Oak Grove Road
improvement."

Mr. Hartman said, "No, they put money into that account (how much
I don't know) -- just to open it up. 1In other words, there was
no money for that account."

Commissioner Borries said, "With the development that is going to
occur in that area, I see that improvement there as something
that needs to pe done."
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Mr. Hartman said, "I think so - I think you're right."

Mr. Borries continued, "I would hope that you would get the
figures together and that this Board...."

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "He had the figures."
Mr. Hartman said, "I had the figures together at one time."

Mr. Borries asked, "But are those figures reflecting on the
culvert? We're not doing the span bridge at this point."

Mr. Hartman said, "No, I included the culvert for that location.™

Mr. Borries asked, "Is it the feeling of the Board that we would
again want to ask Council's consideration on this? I suppose it
could wait until 1989, but it's......"

Commissioner Cox asked, "Well, who gave the authority to go ahead
and pave Oak Grove Road?" ‘

Mr. Hartman responded, "I couldn't answer that."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Did they feel -- because it was a
contract let that way?"

Mr. Hartman repeated, "I can't answer that - no, Ma'am. I gave
them the authority to pave within 500 ft. of the centerline."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Was this J. H. Rudolph Co.?2" .

Mr. Hartman replied in the affirmative.
Turning to Mr. Muensterman, Mrs. Cox'aékéd, “CleEﬁs, did you give
them authority to go ahead and pave it?"

Mr. Muensterman said they called him the day they paved it and he
told them we were going to put a bridge in and they asked if he
knew when? He said he had no idea. They said they would just
put the base down and that would be it in that area -~ no surface
-- and he understands that is what they did.

Mrs. Cox said, "Well then, their contract will come in less.
Their contract should come in under. Okay, I have no problem
with that.”

Commissioner Borries said, "Getting back to the culvert, is there
any feeling of the Board that we again need to proceed on that
for reconsideration by Council?"

Mrs. Cox said, "I would be willing to go to the Council and
invite them to come out to the area and actually view the amount
of traffic and the congestion that is in that area and see that
it is definitely needed as a form of infrastructure."

Mr. Muensterman said, "It is not only commercial, but it is
actually industrial back in there."

Commissioner Cox said, "It is and there is also that Ivy Tech
School."

Mr. Muensterman said, "That road was in real bad shape. We had
to do something. That is the reason I told them 'I guess it will
be alright to put the surface down'."

Commissioner Cox said, "Don't get me wrong....that's alright. I
have no problem. I just wanted to know who gave the authority to
do this."
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Commissioner Willner said, ™"That won't be credited before the
first of the year anyhow and I understand there are some funds
there. Right? Some funds there to appropriate?"

Commissioner Cox said, "I don't know....where are they going to
come from? We are going to have more come in in the next three

(3) weeks..Tax monies off the Cumulative Bridge Funds that would
be available. Certainly that money isn't invested yet."

President Borries asked, "Is there a line item on 0Oak Grove Road
for next year?"

Commissioner Cox responded negative.

Commissioner Willner asked, "How much money do we have in
contractual services?" :

Mr. Hartman said, "I don't know...I can't tell you that."

Commissioner Willner said, "What we will have to do is wait
until the first of the year and transfer that money."

Mr. Hartman said, "I don't think that would be near enough."
Commissioner Borries asked, "How much would the cost be?"

Mr. Hartman responded, "I don't know at this time. I had a
figure but I don't have it with me."

Commissioner Cox stated, "It is over $25,000, so I can't see how
you can pay that out of Contractual Se:vices."

Commissioner Borries asked, "Hadn't &6ﬁ;submitt€&; like $78,000
or something like that?"

Mr. Hartman responded affirmatively.

Commissioner Borries said, "We are past the deadline for Council
Agenda for next month, but perhaps we need to , if you could give
us a report next week on what you have budgeted for that, okay?"

Re: Claims

Mr. Hartman agreed. He continued, "I would like to give you
Commissioners a blue claim from Veach, Nicholson and Griggs in
the amount of $3,118.50 for work on Green River Road, the South
leg of Green River Road. It is within line."

Mr. Hartman said, "We have never used any money out of this
fund, this $4,158.00."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Are they complete? Did they say how
far along they are on this?"

Mr. Hartman responded, "They say 75%. They are asking for 75%
of the money."

Commissioner Borries askeder. Hartman if he would have some more
information on this in relation to what the $4,158.00.cc..."

Commissioner Cox said, "Could you also ask them how close they
are on the USI Overpass design, too, please? It seems to me that
was for a sixty (60) day period that they were supposed to come
up with something on the USI Overpass and I think the time is
quite near."
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Mr. Hartman presented the blue claim that AccuAir has made to us
regarding the work they have completed on Boonville-New Harmony
Road. We have to ask for a transfer of money to that fund. I
have filled out an application, which I am rather fresh at. I
requested the amount to be taken out of the Lynch Road Project
because Blane Oliver said there is money there available in that
fund that could be transferred to the Boonville-New Harmony Road
and with that recommendation, I have filled out the application
to transfer those monies, with your permission, to this account
so that this blue claim could be paid out of that account."”

.Commissioner Cox asked, "Who is Blane Oliver?"

Mr. Hartman replied, "He is an Engineer, our Technical Advisor
in EUTS."

Commissioner Cox responded, "He really is 'UTS', he is wrong."

Commissioner Cox moved that the request for transfer of funds by
the County Highway Engineer, provided HE signs it, be approved."

Mr. Hartman said, "I don't know whether to sign it or not. I
wish Sam Humphrey were here, I would ask?"

Commissioner Willner seconded the motion. So ordered.

Commissioner Willner said we should hold the claim until the
transfer is approved.

Re: Motz Road

Mr. Hartman said, "Motz Road design has temporarlly been held up
because the Surveyor is diligently workfhg on the Precinct
changes, so ordered by the Council.” “

Commissioner Cox said, "Now wait a minute...County Council could
not order anyone to do that. The County Council should recommend
to this Board what their recommendations are. I think they have
overstepped their powers. This Board is charged with the
responsibility and that is what we did tonight."

Mr. Hartman said, "I will take it back then...anyway...we have
not worked on Motz Road or Schutte Road for the last two (2) days
because of the urgency of the Surveyor working on Precinct
changes."

Commissioner Cox stated, "I think the Surveyor needs to know
that Motz Road and Schutte Road are priorities and from what our
County Attorney told us tonight that it is not all this post
haste that we thought it was to get these done."

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Hartman to check with Veatch,
Nicholson and Griggs and give the Commissioners an update on the
USI Overpass progress at the next meeting.

Mr. Hartman agreed to do this.

RE: LETTER TO PRESIDENT  OF SUNBEAM PLASTICS

President Borries said he had another item in regards to a letter
from Mr. Strenkowski, President of Sunbeam Plastics, who had
written the Board concerning the intersection of Highway 57 and
Kansas Road. The letter of response to Mr. Strenkowski is:

Mr. Richard W. Strenkowski, President
Sunbeam Plastics Corporation

3245 Kansas Road

Evansville, IN. 47711
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Dear Mr. Strenkowski:

In answer to your letter dated September 27, 1988, the
intersection of Highway 57 and Kansas Road is the responsibility
of the State Highway Department.

Your letter has been forwarded to the State Highway Department,
the County Engineer, the Sheriff's Department and to the
Evansville Urban Transporation Department.

The installation of the blinking light was done through the
efforts of the State Highway Department and not at the
recommendation of the County Commissioners.

In past experience we find that the installation of a light only
adds to the confusion and there is no substantial relief of
accidents.

We recently forwarded notification of serious intersections to
the State Highway Department such as Boonville-New Harmony Road
and Highway 41, also Highway 62 and the entrance at the
University of Southern Indiana. We will be glad to enter your
intersection to the ever growing list.

Indiana Statute requires an investigation by the State Highway
Department when another government entity complains of hazardous
situations.

It is our belief, that if acceleration and deceleration lanes
were installed at this intersection, as they handle the turn
movements adequately with vehicles crossing the. intersection, 1t
would be very hard to alleviate accidents.

Sincerely, oo -
/s/ Richard J. Borries T - "

President Borries said, "It says in the letter that it is this
writers belief that it would have to come from the Board, so I
would want to see if you want to request that we write a letter
to the State Highway Commission to review Highway 57 and Kansas
Road."

President Borries entertained a motion to this effect.

Commissioner Willner moved that this be done. Motion was
seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF CHECK FROM SOUTHWEST INDIANA MENTAL HEALTH
FOUNDATION

Commissioner Borries said he has a check from the Southwest
Indiana Mental Health Foundation for fees collected on operation
of Hillcrest-Washington Home for third quarter of 1988 in the
amount of $133,204.73.

Commissioner Willner moved to give approval to sign check.
Seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: MONTHLY REPORT FOR SEPT./CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT

Commissioner Borries stated he has a monthly report from the
Clerk of the Circuit Court to be received and filed for the month
of September 1988.

RE: MONTHLY REPORT FOR SEPT./VANDERBURGH COUNTY TREASURER

Commissioner Borries stated he has a monthly report from the
Vanderburgh County Treasurer to be received and filed for the
month of September 1988.
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RE: OLD BUSINESS

RE: Request to Travel/ Vanderburgh County Auditor

Auditor Sam Humphrey stated that he had a couple of items to
discuss with the Board but they did not get on the agenda and it
would take quite some time to discuss them, but in view of the
time of the evening.....

Mr. Humphrey said, "I have given you some information that we
received at the TIF Seminar. As a result of that meeeting, it
seems that I am going to have to go back to Indianapolis to visit
with the Marion County Auditor, who is the only one who professes
to be an expert in implementing these incrementai financing
arrangements. This is a classic example of where a ReHab
Commission authorizes to save benefits for it and the County is
going to have to pay for it. We have to administrate it. It is
a very technical operational procedure and the Marion County
Auditor informed all of us that if there was more than fifty (50)
properties in the TIF zone, that you could not implement it
properly without the computer. 1In that vein, we have asked for
and received approval from Bob White to have Jim Alstadt
accompany us back to Indianapolis for one (1) day, the time which
has not yet been set, but I would like your permission to go back
and see what programming that we have available to us and just
exactly what we have to do to implement this since the City has
already sold the bonds."

Commissioner Willner moved to approve Travel per Auditor's
request. Seconded by Commissioner Cox. So moved.

RE: New Method of Approving Claims/County Auditor

Mr. Humphrey stated the second tning,ﬁé?Wished tq discuss and
would like to ask County Attorney's opinion of it, would be a new
method of approving claims.

Mr. Humphrey continued, "What we have is a printout of all of
the checks that we are going to write, the amounts, to whom they
were paid, and whether or not they were paid on contract or
purchase order. I think the Welfare Department already does it
in this manner and they have a certification here that the
Welfare Department uses. I believe it would be more convenient
for you, as Commissioners, to review something like this than to
go through three or four hundred claims at one time. We are
trying to get this implemented for your benefit. We would have
to get the Attorney's approval of it and then get the State Tax
Board to approve it and I don't think this will be a problem."

President Borries asked, "You want Attorney Miller to determine
whether it is legal, at least locally, to do this?"

Mr. Humphrey responded to the affirmative.

RE: NOTICE OF CLAIM

Commissioner Willner read the following NOTICE OF CLAIM:

To: Board of Commissioners
of Vanderburgh County
Civic Center Complex
Evansville, IN. 47708

David V. Miller
County Attorney

You, and each of you, are hereby notified pursuant to I.C.
34-4-15.5-9, that the undersigned are making a tort claim against
Vanderburgh County on behalf of Kenneth T. Adier and Jan Adler.
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l. FACTS. On July 25 and 26, 1988, the claimants
experienced flooding and crop damages to claimants' property as
the result of construction activities by Vanderburgh County
through its contractor, David Gilliam, with regard to the
contract at Woods Road for the bridge over Big Creek. The cause
of the flooding was a result of the contractor failing to confine
the construction activities within the construction easement and
failing to take necessary steps during construction to prevent
potential flooding and erosion.

2. EXTENT OF LOSS. As a result of the negligence of
Vanderburgh County and its contractor, the claimants experienced
flooding and resulting crop damage and other related damage to
said property.

3. TIME AND PLACE OF OCCURRENCE. As.noted above, flooding
was experienced July 25 through July 26, 1988, in the vicinity of
the bridge over Big Creek near Woods Road.

4. NAMES OF PERSONS INVOLVED. Kenneth T. Adler, Jan Adler
and David Gilliam.

5. AMOUNT OF DAMAGES BEING SOUGHT. $2,500.00 and other
related expenses and consequential damages.

6. ADDRESS OF PERSONS MAKING CLAIM. 1701 Adler Road,
Evansville, Indiana 47712.

DATED, this 26th day of September, 1988.

/s/ Kenneth T. Adler
Jan Adler

Commissioner Willner said, "Just to dé“some research on this, I
called David Guillaum, the contractor of, the bridge, and he has
got 100% liability and 100% crop damage and he has insurance with
Heston Insurance Company. It is paid up and a claim has never
been made to his insurance company. I think the Attorney has a
copy of this. I just wanted to read it into the record that if
there is any claim it should be made to the contractor and not
Vanderburgh County."

RE: LETTER FROM VIRGINIA CRAIG/8405 HEADEN ROAD

Commissioner Cox read a letter received from Virginia Craig:

County Commissioners: Richard Borries, Shirley Jean Cox and
Robert Willner

I trust that you have received my letter concerning correct house
numbers and names for Headen Road, however, I have not heard from
you. I have heard from Mark Owen, Postmaster Hayes, President
vinson of U of E and other interested sources.

Since there is such a confusion...Hedden, Heddon, Headen and
Hidden (just last week two construction workers were looking for
an address on Hidden Road) I understand the answer is up to the
County Commissioners.

When you say "Hedden" people look at you like, "That's not a
name for anything," (which way you hedden???)

Every time I write Hedden, I think Headen and how much better it
sounds and why it was named Headen in the first place. It is
part of local history, Jennioe Headen's maiden name was
McCutchan.

Please give this some consideration. 1I'll enclose a copy of my
original letter.

.
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Thank you.

Sincerely,
/s/ Virginia Craig
(Tele: 867-2517)

P.S. Please also check the NORTH segment of Voight Rd.
This should also be "Headen".

Upon motion made by Commissioner Willner and seconded by
Commissioner Cox, the matter was referred to the Area Plan
Commission for their expertise. So ordered.

County Council Budget Review Meeting: Mrs. Cox said she attended
the County Council Budget Review Meeting today and at that time a
resolution was introduced regarding the USI Overpass and it
received the unanimous approval of those present. They requested
that she bring the Resolution to the Board of Commissioners. She
will simply make it a part of the record and ask that copies pe
made and presented to the Commissioners for their review. She
will not take time to read the Resolution, but it is as follows:

RESOLUTION OF VANDERBURGH COUNTY
COUNCIL REGARDING UNIVERSITY OF
SOUTHERN INDIANA OVERPASS

WHEREAS, remarkable enrollment increases at the University
of Southern Indiana ("USI") have rendered the current Highway 6.
intersection to its campus obsolete in design, and as a result,
this intersection daily endangers the llves of thousands of US!
students, faculty and staff. S :

WHEREAS, the State's current plans for this intersection do
not include the construction of an overpass.

WHEREAS, the State has mentioned other unacceptable short
term design remedies for this intersection, such as turn lane
enlargement, or installation of yet another stop light on this
expressway.

WHEREAS, substantial appropriation has been previously made
to the County's budget pertaining to the construction of an
overpass allowing safe ingress and egress to USI's campus at the -
Indiana Highway 62 intersection. '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council of the
County of Vanderburgh, Indiana:

1. Plans, contracting and actual construction of a
Highway 62 1ngress/egress overpass to USI must not be delayed
further.

2. So as to assure the safety of the students, faculty and
staff of USI, the County should now proceed immediately toward
any and all actions necessary to complete construction of an
ingress/egress overpass as quickly as possible.

3. The County should aggressively pursue any Federal or
State funding available to assist in the financing of this
project, but not allow such pursuit to unduly delay the
construction of this overpass.

PASSED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL of the County of Vanderburgh,
Indiana, on this day of r 1988, and
on said day signed by the President of the County Council and
attested by the Secretary.




COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 37
October 17, 1988

Mark Owen, President
Vanderburgh County Council

ATTEST:

JoAnn Utley, Secretary
Vanderburgh County Council

PRESENTED by me, the undersigned Secretary of the vanderburgh
County Council, to the Board of Commissioners of the County of
Vanderburgh, Indiana this day of » 1988, at

o'clock __ m. for 1its consideration and action thereon.

JoAnn Utley, Secretary
Vanderburgh County Council

HAVING EXAMINED the foregoing Resolution, we do now, as
Commissioners for the Board of Commissioners of the County of
Vanderburgh, approve said Resolution and return the same to the
Secretary of the Vanderburgh County Council this day of
» 1988, at o'clock __ .m.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF THE COUNTY OF VANDERBURGH

Richard Borries, President

Robert Willner, Commissioner

Shirley Jean Cox,- Cémmissioner
Mrs. Cox said that, in essence, what the Resolution says is that
we need to move forward on this project and fund it locally
because evidently there are not going to be any State funds
forthcoming. She thinks this has been asked for in the past and
they have told us they just couldn't do it. The Council Finance
Chairman, Harold Elliott, also requested that she bring the
Resolution to the Board of Commissioners and she agreed to do so.

RE: CLAIMS

President Borries said there are no further claims to be
considered this evening.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Pigeon Township Assessor (Releases)

Karen Marie Melliff Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88

Tax Adjustment Board (Releases)

Edward Ziemer Board Member $45.00/Day Eff: 9/17/88
Richard Reising Board Member $45.00/Day Eff: 9/17/88
Lonie R. Freeman Board Member $45.00/Day Eff: 9/17/88

Pigeon Township Assessor Reassessment (Appointments)

Karen Marie Melliff Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88
Ronald R. Johnson Part Time $35.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88

Co-Op Extension Service (Appointments)

Debra Bivins Part Time $28.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88
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Circuit Court (Appointments)

Darren Newman Trans. Off. $720/Yr. Eff: 9/26/88
Terry A. Barnett PTWR $5.00/Hr. Eff: 9/27/88
Melvin MacGregor PT Bailiff $5.00/.Hr. Eff: 10/10/88
Elizabeth Deem PTWR $5.00/Hr. Eff: 9/29/88
Derek W. Devine PT Intern $3.35/Hr. Eff: 9/26/88
K. L. Sermersheim PT Intern $3.35/Hr. Eff: 10/4/88

Circuit Court (Releases)

Melvin MacGregor PT Bailiff $5.00/Hr. Eff: 10/7/88
John W. Voight Trans. Off. $720.00/Yr. Eff: 9/23/88
Dennis Hudnall PTWR $5.00/Hr. Eff: 9/23/88
Herbert Russell PTWR $5.00/Hr. Eff: 9/21/88

There being no further business to come before the Board,
President Borries declared the meeting adjourned at 10:40 p.m.

PRESENT : COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey David V. Miller
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox

COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEER

C. Muensterman Dan Hartman

OTHER

Roseann Derk LE
James Derk .
Walter Clements

Gyneth Rhodes

Bob Working

David Bunner, Attorney/Airport Authority
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 24, 1988

The Vanderburgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at 2:35 p.m.
on Monday, October 24, 1988 in the Commissioners Hearing Room, with
President Rick Borries presiding.

Commissioner Borries said Ms. Matthews is ill and could not be here
today, and he cannot find any minutes to be approved, so they will have
to wait until she returns.

RE: BIDS ON AUDITORIUM

Commissioner Borries said they advertised for bids for Professional
Engineering and Architectural Services at the Vanderburgh Auditorium for
Restroom Improvements and Elevator Installation. The advertisement was
published in the media on September 23 and September 30, 1988 and at this
time he asked their attorney if he is in receipt of any bids.

Attorney John said Mr. Lehman, the Building Commissioner has handed him
three (3) bids regarding those proposals, WSC Associates, Inc.; Kramer
Group, Inc. and Knapp, Given, Veazey & Shoulders. He said they have not
been opened.

Commissioner Willner asked which were for restrooms and which for
elevator.

Attorney John said they are together, they are not broken down on the
outside of the envelope, one says 'Renovation Work, Vanderburgh County
Auditorium, one says Engineering Services for Restroom and Elevator
Improvements and the third says proposal to the Board of Commissioners
for vanderburgh Auditorium Architectural and Engineering Services'.

Commissioner Willner moved the Attorney be instructed to open the bids
and read aloud the quotes.

AT

The motion was seconded by Commissioner CB#J; So ordered.

RE

BUILDING COMMISSIONER...ROGER LEHMAN/DUMPING IN WESTWOOD HILLS

Commissioner Borries said Mr. Lehman is here regarding a report on the
dumping problem in Westwood Hills. :

Mr. Lehman said, "Mr. Tate was in my office this morning, he had

initiated a process which he thought was what we were requesting him to

do in compacting his £ill and pushing it down into a deep ravine and I
informed him that was not permissable under the current set up and he

would have to haul it out. He requested seven (7) days, he said he would -.
be contacting Floyd Staub today to see if he could get a machine out -
there tomorrow, it will now take a backhoe track excavator to get tne
material out where before he could have done it with a loader, so it is
actually costing him more to do it now than if he would have done it
properly a week ago. I do have reason to believe that he thought he was
doing the right thing at the time, even though it was not in conformance
with the current statutes. He request a seven (7) day extension before

we took any legal action and after talking to him this morning I would
recommend to the Board that we give him seven (7) days to fully comply

and at the end of that time if he has not complied we can issue a
citation”.

Commissioner Willner so moved..

Commissioner Cox said she has a question, "Did he indicate any reason why
he didn't comply with the letter that you sent to him previously?"
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Mr. Lehman responded, "He said he did not get a letter from me and I did
not send it certified so I can't prove that he did. but he said he had no
contact until Mr. Hille talked with him approximately two (2) weeks ago."
Commissioner Cox said she would second the motion. So ordered.

Commissioner Borries thanked Mr. Lehman for his work on this problem, and
they will wait until they hear from him on October 31st. l

RE: APPOINTMENT OF ENGINEERING FIRM FOR BRIDGE INSPECTION

Commissioner Borries said several weeks ago various Engineering Firms
were interviewed regarding the Bridge Reinspection that will be upcoming
in this 1989 year, if there is a recommendation, then this Board would
entertain any motion at this time regarding that Bridge Study.

Commissioner Willner moved that Bernardin/Lochmueller be obtained to do
the Bridge Inspection report for 1989.

Commissioner Cox said she would second the motion with some discussion,

- she said, "I did sit in on the interviews of the various firms and I

think you too were there, Bob, and one question that was brought up to

all of those that submitted proposals was, if in fact, if they worked on

a computer basis to gather bridge inspection information, if this ‘
information would be available to us to utilize. I still do not have an
answer. Mr. Lochmueller is out of town today and I did call the ofrice

and they were going to check on it and try to get word back, but tney did
say that if it were done in house, if their computer programing was dJone

in house, they would also furnish Vanderburgh County with that data, so

we could continue to update it with our computer program”.

Commissioner Borries said, "There was a letter from E.U.T.S. concurring
with that recommendation". ) I

S

Commissioner Borries said the motion was hédg and seconded, so ordered.
He said they would ask them to proceed with the comments that
Commissioner Cox made regarding the availability of the computer data.

RE: COUNTY ORDINANCE FOR DEVELOPMENT PLAN COMMITMENTS IN CONJUNCTION
WITH PETITION TO AMEND THE ZONING MAPS.

Commissioner Borries said Beverly Behme is here regarding a first reading
for County Ordinance for Development Plan Commitments in Conjunction uth.
the Petitions to amend the Zoning Maps.

Ms. Behme said they have a copy of this Proposed Amendment. Area Plan -
Commission meets on November 2nd. and this is handled basically the same
way a rezoning is. They make the first reading and set a date for a .
third reading and advertise that date and then it goes to Plan Commission

on the second reading. She said the date would have to be sometime atter
the 2nd. of November.

Commissioner Borries said, "Then our usual procedure would be to
advertise twice". .

Ms. Behme said, 'It is for the use commitment and development plan, the
Indiana Legislature changed the statutes and allows that you can use
commitments and development plans along with your rezonings and this is
just amended in our local code.to allow that. She said it would be done
in both the city and the county."

Attorney John said according to Ms. Behme the next procedure would be to
forward this to the Area Plan for them to vote on the matter and then it
would return here.

Commissioner Borries entertained discussion or a motion to approve this
on first reading.

Commissioner Willner moved this ordinance be approved for first reading.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.
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Comm.ssionec Borries sasd i1c nDas deen approved on first reading and cney
wili rorward cnis to Area Plian rfor Novemoer 2 1988

RE AREA PLAN COMMISSION/REQUEST FOR PHONES AND REPORT ON CORRECT
SPELLING OF HEDDEN ROAD

Ms. Benme said she has two (2) other icems, first i1s Hedden Road and
second is the regquest for chree (3) additional telephones.

Commissioner Willner made a motion that Area Plan pe aliowed three .3)
new phones

Commissioner Cox said, "I have a yguestion concerning the number of trunk
lines that we have available. At one time I know we were right at
capacity. Is there a problem with cthis?"

Jim Lindenschmidt said, "When Welfare moved out, that opened up iines.
They are availaple and we do have the phone instruments, so there would
be no cost there."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Did you iose some phones in this move Bev?"
Ms. Benme responded, "No. We are adding additional offices (3) of tnem
and we have been sharing phones. We have tnree (3) investigators on the
phones. We do get a tremendous amount of calls."

Commissioner Cox seconded the motion. So ordered.

Re: Spelling of Hedden Road

Ms. Behme stated tnat she thought tnere was a report last year or year
before last on the correct spelling of Hedden Road. I have a 1958 map
that shows Hedden Road spelled 'H e d d e n.' -All of our maps that we
currently use show it spelled this same way,. She showed Commissioners a
1899 plat book where it was spelled 'H e ad e n.' This is just a
person's name. There is a record in Recorder's Office dated June, 1867
which shows it spelled 'H e d d o n.' We have just assigned addresses on
with this 911 emergency number. All of those addresses have been mailed
to the residents that 1ive on Hedden Road and we spelled it 'He d d e
n.' It would be very complicated at this point to change the spelling."

Commissioner Cox asked, "What else is 1involved pesides notifying these
people?"

Ms. Behme responded, "All of the permanent records in our office or any
permit that we issued on Hedden Road, we would have to change. They are
also in the computer that way. We would have half records under one
spelling and half the records of another spelling."

Commissioner Cox said, "The Vanderburgh County Road List that was just
compiled and distributed this year spelled it He d d o n."

Ms. Behme said, "We have three (3) different spellings and three (3)
different periods of time."

Commissioner Cox asked how many letters they had sent out.

Ms. Behme responded, "Most of the businesses there in the Industrial
Park have been issued permits and all of their letterheads, business
cards, etc. are spelled He d d e n. I would say about fifteen (15)
letters have been sent, changing from post office pboxes to addresses."

Commissioner Cox said, "I was wondering if we could forward this
information that we have concluded today to the inquiring party, Virginia
Craig? I understand she wrote a letter that she had thought that it
should be spelled He a d e n."

Ms. Behme recommended that they spell it He d d e n.
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President Borries asked, "Are you aware of any confusion that might be
occuring right now in relation to the post office? There isn't another
road in the county that is similar to this with an '0', is there?"

Ms. Behme responded that she did not think there was.

Commissioner Borries asked Ms. Behme if she would prepare a memo to send
to the person who requested this information indicating your research? l

Ms. Behme responded to the affirmative.

Commissioner Borries asked if there was a motion, at this point, to
change it.

Commissioner Cox said, "Unless Ms. Craig has documentation to change it,
that at one time it was H e a d e n, it really should be correct. I
think that she should be allowed to bring any documentation that she
might have to your office and then we will make a determination."”

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY/CURT JOHN

Re: Bids on Restroom Improvements & Elevator Installation
at County Auditorium

Attorney John stated that he would start off with the bids:

WSC, Inc. - Bid was broken down into two (2) parts,
First part was for contract award in the amount of $9,250.00
Second part was for shop drawing review, inspections
and vital punch list in the amount of $2,450.00

Kramer - Based on the total projected construction cost....$15,750.00
(Based on 9% of the cost) - I
KGV & S - Basically gave ranges. The raﬁgeé;would be ‘somewhere between

$14,000.00 and $21,000.00, depending upon the cost of the
project when completed.

Attorney John recommended these bids be referred to Mr. Lehman to review
for recommendations.

Commissioner Willner moved to refer these bids to Mr. Lehman for his
review and recommendations. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Cox. SO.
ordered.

Attorney John stated for the record: the bid from WSC is posted at 2:00 -
p.m. on October 24th; the bid from Kramer is at 2:05 p.m. on the 24th and
there is no time or date posted on the bid from KGV & S.

Mr. Lehman stated that they were all laying on his desk when he came in
this afternoon.

Re: Welbac Cable TV

Attorney John stated, "I have a request from Welbac Cable TV for a
resolution allowing them to transfer their rights, title and interests to
a Cable TV Franchise TMC-MS. 1It is very similar to what happened a few
months ago when Welbac obtained those rights from Marble. I see no
problem with it."

President Borries entertained a motion to approve this resolution.
Commissioner Willner made a motion to approve the resolution to change

the franchise from Welbac to TMC-MS on this date. Motion was seconded by
Commissioner Cox. So ordered.
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Re: Letter Re: Harold Stuckey, County Employee

Attorney John read the following letter:
October 20, 1988

Mr. David Miller
Attorney-at-Law
4th Floor Permanent Savings Bldg.
Evansville, IN. 47708 Re: Our Client: Harold Stuckey
County Employee: Same
D/Injury: 3/16/88

Dear David:

We have been asked by Harold Stuckey to advise him as to his legal
rights. Mr. Stuckey is an employee of the Vanderburgh County Highway
Department. On March 16, 1988, Mr. Stuckey was utilizing a gas-powered
trimmer manufactured by the Echo Corporation. He received a severe
laceration to his leg when the machine would not "cut off" after he had
- released the trigger. He later discovered that the rubber bushings
caused the motor to turn, placing tension on the trigger wire and thus,
the machine does not shut off. Mr. Stuckey has received Workmens'
Compensation benefits paid by the Vanderburgh County Highway Department.

The purpose of this letter is to request that Vanderburgh County and tne
Highway Department allow us possession of the Echo Trimmer as well as tne
instruction manual. I feel that there is a viable products liability
case in this matter. We must have the tool examined by an expert. 1If,
in fact, we are successful in making a recovery for Mr. Stuckey, tnen the
Vanderburgh County Highway Department will be entitled to reimbursement
of their Workmens' Compensation expenses less reasonable costs and
attorney's fees.

Would you be so kind as to contact me upon-receipt of “this letter so tnat
I may obtain possession of the trimmer.

- Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely yours,

/s/ Daniel J. McGinn

Attorney at Law

Commissioner Cox asked if this piece of machinery was being used.

Mr. Muensterman answered negative.

Mr. Muensterman said he thought it would be a good idea to let them cneck
it. He said it might save them compensation money possibly.

Mr. Muensterman was asked if anything had been done with the
weedeater....any modifications. His reply was negative.

Commissioner Willner moved that this weed eater be turned over to Gerling
Law Offices for inspection. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So
ordered.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY SUPERINTENDENT/CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

Weekly work report/County Garage:

Mr. Cletus Muensterman submitted copies of the Weekly Work Report for
Employees at the County Garage for period of October 17 thru October 21,
1988....report received and filed.

Gradall: #6 School Rd., Little Schaefer, Springdale Dr., Happe, N. Elm
St., St. Joe Ave., Bixler and Upper Mt. Vernon Rds.

Paver: West Franklin, Happe and Mill Roads
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Crew: Millersburg & Greenriver, Old State, Evergreen, Upper Mt.

Vernon, Brentwood, Browning, Rosenberger, Selzer, St. Joe
Ave., Schenk, Boehne Camp, Henze & Neu Rds., Frontage and
Baseline Roads

Grader: Swope Lane, County Line East, Lower Seminary, Happe, Broadway
Maxwell Ave., Oak Grove, West also on Millersburg Road. I

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same period was
the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew....Report received and filed.

- Installed culverts on Springdale Dr. Installed guardrails
on Mesker Park, Hirsch and Burkhardt

- Picked up old culvert on Schutte and Bixler roads

- Built retaining walls on Miller Road (2)

- Cut grass on corner of Redbank & Hogue Rds.

- Swept decks on Bridges #91, Greenriver Rd. #112, St. George

Rd., #125 Smith-Diamond Rd., #137-Allens Lane., #36 & 142 on
St. Joe Road, #28, #28A and #27 on Mesker Park Drive .

- Hauled junk from yard

Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were the
Weekly Absentee Reports for employees at the County Garage and the Bridge
Crew....reports received and filed.

Commissioner Cox commented that she did not see Mr.’Stuckey's name on the

absentee list.
Mr. Muensterman responded that Mr. Stucké&fis back to work. He is not
off now.

Re: Railroad Crossing at Boonville-New Harmony Road

Mr. Muensterman said, "The railroad crossing at Boonville-New Harmony

Road, we paved that and repaired it. I called the contractor on this
Monday and he said they had nothing in the contract that he is to repair
that. What we are going to have to do is go out there and cut that back.

At the railroad track, there is a hump there. We are going to have to ‘
get out there and repair this because we have been getting complaints on

it. We should get out there tomorrow or the day after." -

Commissioner Borries asked, "Would there be any interest in the County
installing impact rails? That is a high speed road and a straight
stretch and they travel 55 to 60mph. I really don't know how much this
costs, but it is probably expensive. This is a major artery. If there
is interest we could find out what it will cost."

Commissioner Cox asked if it was worse since they had repaved it.
Mr. Muensterman responded affirmatively.

Commissioner Cox said she had no objections to them investigating the
costs of the materials and notifying the railroad that if they would
consider installing the material, we would purchase it.

President Borries asked Mr. Muensterman to get some prices and see what
they are talking about in terms of cost so the Board could make a

decision on this.
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Re: Appointments

Commissioner Willner moved that Cletus Muensterman be moved from Acting
County Highway Superintendent to County Highway Superintendent. Motion
was seconded by Commissioner Cox.

Commissioner Willner moved that Jack G. Waldroup, Jr. be moved from
Bridge Crew Foreman to Assistant County Highway Superintendent. Motion
was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

Commissioner Willner moved that David Franklin be appointed as Bridge
Foreman. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

Commissioner Willner said, "For the media, if anyone cares to see these
men's background or pertinent information about any of these people, I
have them right here and they are being given to the Secretary to be
recorded. David Franklin is the only new face and he comes with ten (10)
years experience from Industrial Contractors. He will be a help in our
endeavors to the County Highway Department."

Mr. Willner continued, "Cletus, I might say to you that as you continue
the leadership you have and to continue on to try to make Vanderburgh
County one of the finest County Road systems in the State of Indiana. I
think it is that now and I would hope before the first snow flies that we
might make a statement that there are no chuck holes in Vanderburgh
County. We are very close to that right now.™"

Commissioner Cox said, "You are dreaming Robert."

Commissioner Willner responded, "I don't think so. I am very serious
about this.”" .

Mr. Muensterman said, "If there are chuckholes out there, I wish someone
would call us." LoET -

Commissioner Willner said, "Let me say to the News Media that if you
wish to print something along those lines, have the people call in if
there are any chuck holes and I can tell you that we have two (2) crews
out working full time and they are finding it harder to find anymore
chuck holes. The number is 428-5713."

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER/ DAN HARTMAN

Mr. Hartman reported on a 'Back To Work' report from J.H. Rudolph & Co.
They put 233 tons of surface on Olmstead Road last week. Today they are
working on a side road and within two (2) weeks they will have Bixler
Road completed. (part of Mr. Hartman's report was inaudible.)

Re: Claims

Mr. Hartman presented claims for the following:

Veach, Nicholson, Griggs Assoc. - Project - Green River Road

Plat #3...75% of $4,158.00 = $3,118.50 ~ Less previous payment of
$1,975.05 - Amount now due: $1,143.45.

Bernardin, Lochmueller & Assoc., Inc. - Lynch Road Extension from Oak
Hill Road to Burkhardt Road in the amount of $3,094.23.

Commissioner Willner moved to approve payment of these claims. Motion
was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

Re: Bluejay Drive

Mr. Hartman said, "On Bluejay Drive, about two weeks ago, a Mr. Palmer
came in and quoted some problems that were existing out there in the
Bluejay Drive Area. Water problems primarily. About 19 years ago or so,
Sam Biggerstaff was the Engineer then and he built this culvert which was
91 x 58 diameter (Mr. Hartman pointed out the area he was talking about
on a map to the Commissioners).  That was to relieve the water pressure
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and rain water from the area above, northeast of it. However, since
then, vegatation has gotten in there and people have put downspouts into
this pipe and circumstances have changed and right now it is running 100C%
capacity. In fact, it is gurgling out of the top of this pipe at the
joint. My first purpose was to go out there and observe it and relieve
the pressure within this pipe itself, I purpose to relieve the pressure
in this pipe by removing these existing culverts, and putting them in a
seperate box by themselves. In piping them across the roadway into this
open ditch here, that will relieve the pressure in here and then coming
back and shaving off the topsoil to the pipe itself and replacing all of
the leaking joints that happen to be about seven (7) foot off center and
after we have completely rennovated those joints in here, we will come
back and build a swale with a 2 foot bottom and about 1 foot deep and
drain it toward the street itself, where it would be picked up by the
inlets here. 1In addition to that, I would suggest that we put a

spillway, about four (4) spillways at the various locations from here to
01d state Road itself. I think that would be sufficient to relieve the
pressure. Right now the water is coming up and ponding in this area
(shown on map) and we have to get this water through the open drain to

the street. This work would cost about $4,000.00. I took the liberty of
having a contractor go out there and take a look with me. He suggested
that the work in here would cost about $4,400.00 to do, complete. The
four (4) inlets would cost about $1,900 and the easement would cost

$2,500 to seal the joints and make the swale so that the water would .
drain toward the street itself. We could put additional drains on the
north side of Bluejay Drive, but I would like to try this method first,
because we can always go to the expense of putting an additional drain on
the northwest side of that driveway there. I have a proposal from Key
Construction Company for about $8,800.00 and barring agreement, permits

and finalizing the contract, I would suggest that we make these
improvements as soon as possible."

Mr. Jeffers asked, "Dan, are you sure that ditch on the other side of
01ld state Road is cleaned out good enough. td take that water down there?
I have heard that is going down so far and coming back."

Mr. Hartman said that he is assuming that ditch will be cleaned out.
Commissioner Cox asked, "Is that ditch on the County right-of-way?"
Mr. Hartman answered affirmatively.

Commissioner Cox stated, "Then it is our reponsibility to clean it, .
isn't it? I think that from what you are saying, in order to protect the
filling that we are going to put in between the concrete sections of

pipes, we must relieve some of the pressure that is now building up in -
that ......, so that the water can move." T

Mr. Hartman said, "We are going to get down to those pipes by removing
some of the topsoil to the pipe itself. We will then caulk the joints
and cover them back up. In doing so, we will make a swale here. We have
an eleven (11) foot area there to work with. We would use the same
inlets that we have there now, only the inlets would be removed from the
overhead of this pipe itself and it would be put in an independent
seperate box and dug across the roadway to dump into the ditch itself."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Do you not think this could be done in-house?"

Mr. Hartman responded, "I asked Cletus and he would rather not have it l
done in-house. 1Is that right Mr. Muensterman?"

Mr. Muensterman said, "We could be getting into a lot of private
property. We would also be working right next to this guy's basement
wall."

Commissioner Cox asked, "So, you are recommending that we do not do it
in-house?"

Mr. Muensterman responded, "That is my understanding."
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Mr. Hartman said, "I would suggest we put this off for another week and
at that time, I will get together with the attorneys and so forth and
write agreements to these property owners, whereby we may encroach
somewhat on their property."

Commissioner Cox asked, "This will not be done by bridge crew, this will
come out of other funds?"

Mr. Hartman said he guessed it could be taken from the bridge.

President Borries said, "I suppose we would write this up as a Project
and advertise and if you had a contractor who is bonded and etc., if
there were any damages as a result of the project, some of that would be
covered under their bonding. So, if you could proceed from that
standpoint, get the right-of-way figures.....I think it is your feeling,
Cletus, that you prefer to see the thing done by a private contractor?"

Mr. Muensterman responded, "If we can get the right-of-way....You are
- always told to stay off of private property, that's the big thing. As
far as the spillways that he is talking about, we could probably build
those drop boxes. We do that all of the time."

RE: ~  ACCEPTANCE OF CHECK/WELBAC CABLE TV

President Borries read a letter from Evansville Cable TV as follows:
Dear Commissioners:

Enclosed you will find our check in the amount of $26,706.08 which
represents our franchise tax payment for cable TV service for the third
quarter (July, August, September) 1988. The check is a few dollars less
than the $26,717.83 check that we sent to you for the second quarter
which is due to summertime.

Also, enclosed you will find a letter of certification-by the assistant
controller and back-up data of gross receipts collected by our company
for the third quarter.

We have just completed Booker road off of Red Bank Road which is
contiguous to the area of Kokies-West Haven. We are in the process of
building Plantation Estates and Baumgart Road, north of town contiguous
to McCutchanville, and Bluegrass Farms off of Hillsdale Road.

We would like to thank the Commissioners for permitting Evansville Cable
to serve the residents in the county with cable television service. If
any of the Commissioners have any questions, please feel free to call me
at 428-2461.

Again, thank you.

Best regards,
/s/ Robert D. Ossenberg

Commissioner Cox moved the check be accepted and they be sent a letter of
acknowledgement. Seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

BN
at
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RE: PRECINCT CHANGES

President Borries read the following Precinct changes for the Fall
Election 1988 to be advertised:

Ward Precinct From To
1 5 Swonder Ice Rink Roberts Stadium
2600 Division St. 2600 Division St.
6 2 Cedar Hall Shool Cedar Hall School
2100 N. Fulton Ave. 2100 N, Fulton Ave.
(Keller St. Entrance
G 4 St. Joseph Catholic School St. Joseph Cath.Schl
Cafeteria ) Cafeteria
No. 3 School Road St. Joseph Road
RE: OLD BUSINESS

President Borries asked for 0ld Business to be discussed at this time.

Being no discussion on 0ld Business at this time, Board went to next

subject. .

RE: " SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Tuesday, October 25, 1988 - Election Instruction - 7:00 p.m. Room 301
RE: CLAIMS
No claims were presented at this time.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES ,fiﬁ'-

Vanderburgh County Highway (Appointments)

Cletus Muensterman Superintendent $28,847/Yr. Eff:ld/24/88
Jack G. Waldroup Asst. Supt. $20,500/Yr. Eff:10/24/88
David Franklin Bridge Supt. $19,509/Yr. Ef£f:10/24/88

Vanderburgh County Highway (Releases)

William L. Bethel Superintendent $28,847/Yr. Eff:10/21/88
Cletus Muensterman Asst. Supt. $20,500/Yr. Ef£f:10/21/88
Jack G. Waldroup Bridge Sup. $19,509/Yr. Eff:10/21/88 .

Vanderburgh Superior Court (Appointments) '

Donald R. Vowels Court Admin. $37,374/Yr. Eff:10/24/88
Karen Conley Clerk $14,210/Yr. Eff:10/17/88
Russell S. Morse PT Intern $5.00/Hr. Eff:10/25/88

Vanderburgh Superior Court (Releases)

Karen Conley PT Intern $5.00/Hr. Eff:10/14/88

Being no further business to come before this Board, President Borries
declared the meeting recessed at 3:45 p.m. with Drainage Board Meeting to
follow immediately.
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 31, 1988 -

" fhe Vanderburgh County Board-ef Commissioners met in session at

2:30 p.m. on Monday, October 31, 1988, in the Commissioners
Hearing Room, with President Rick Borries presiding.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

President Borries said they have minutes from October 10, October
17, and also October 24, 1988. He said they are quite lengthly
and he doesn't know if they have had a chance to review them but
at this time he would entertain a motion for approval.

Commissioner Cox said on the minutes of October 10, 1988, on page
eight (8), paragraph two (2), line three (3), 'compliance should
be corrected to read confines' so that the sentence will read,

"A final question and this is a legal one, as it relates to the
Town of Darmstadt, simply because that is in the confines of
Vanderburgh County."”

Commissioner Cox said then on page twenty six (26), last
paragraph, sixth line from the bottom, 'tying should be corrected
to tine', so with those two (2) corrections Commissioner Cox
moved that the minutes of October 10, 1988 be approved as
corrected and dispense with the reading. -

Motion seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.
President Borries asked about the minutes of October 17, 1988.

Commissioner Willner moved that the minutes of October 17, 1988
be approved as engrossed by the Auditor and dispense with the
reading.

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.
President Borries asked about the minutes of October 24, 1988.

Commissioner Cox said she does have a question, "Bev Behme is
here, if she would read the statement that she made concerning
the road out in the northern part of our county that we have not
yet determined the spelling of the name to see if what she
reported in there is correct because my recollection is, and on
the June 1867 record, I didn't have the understanding that it was
spelled HEDDON. My question was on the the June 1867, that
volume N or whatever it was, was it spelled with the 02"

Ms. Behme said it was spelled with the O back in June of 1867,
but it could have been a typo, it was just transferred from
another document, but it never was spelled Headen.

Commissioner Cox said, "But you had an 1899 plat book that
didn’t show a name on it at all, did you have that physical
record, that volume N2"

Ms. Behme said, "I didn't bring a copy of it, I can go get it,
this just showed the people's name, it didn't show a road."

Commissioner Cox said, "I remember that, but I do not remember
what you said about June."
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Ms. Behme said, "I said it was spelled Heddon."

President Borries said, "Lets approve these minutes and then we
will move that if the Commissioners approve, we will let Mr. and
Mrs. Craig address this matter -- the issue on Headen Road and

the spelling of it."

Commissioner Cox Baid, "President Borries, that is the only

I didn't recall that having any spelling at all in there, in that
document.”

Commissioner Cox moved that the minutes of October 24, 1988 be

approved as engrossed by the Auditor and dispense with the
reading.

Motion seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: HEDDEN ROAD/MR. & MRS. CRAIG

President Borries said Mr. & Mrs Craig, the individuals who live
on Headen Road have requested some clarification on this matter
are here with us today and he asked them to come forward and give
them their information regarding this matter.

Mrs. Craig said, "I read the article in this morning's Courier
about one resident asking the Commission to consider changing
Hedden Road to Headen, that resident is me, I am Virginia Hartig
Craig, current resident of Headen Road, I was born on Headen
Road, I lived on Headen Road from sixth grade to World War 11 and
from 1970 to the present. It has been spelled Hedden (en-on,
Hidden, Hedden) I do not believe I am the only one who would like
to see the road called 'Headen' and Kenneth McCutchan mentioned
that it should be Headen, he has mentioned this to me many times
and I quote from his book, 'From Then 'Til Now' published by the
Indiana Historical Society in cooperation with the McCutchanville
Community Association' I quote page 26, "This Mary Henry was
also known throughout the country and one of the most successful
school teachers of her day, another sister Janet, who became
Jenny married a neighbor boy, the Reverend Heber Headen, she was
remembered as the donor of The Headen Retreat on the University
of Evansville Campus" and now I believe it is covered by new
buildings, of course it was a beautiful garden and on page 96, it
is talking about spelling of different roads being incorrect, FA
similiar mispelling is that of Headen Road, for many years it has
been known as Hedden and most recent"™ this book I believe was in
1967, "And most recent it is spelled Heddon (on). It was named
for the Headen family pronounced (Hayden) who owned a large farm
near the spot where the road crosses Firlick Creek, the creek
bottom at one time was called Nugent Hollow after Mrs. Headen's
family®, so I know Kenneth McCutchan would like for it to be
Headen, I also know the Headen-McCutchan family has mentioned
many times it being incorrect."

Mrs. Craig continued, "Since it is so confusing and
inconsistant, why not get it right, I know the Headen family
lived on the road and it would be logical for it to be named
Headen, if it was not in the o0ld books I am sure, I don't know
why it got all messed up. The label on our Home Owners Insurance
from Schultheis Insurance Agency shows R.R. 3 Box 206 Headen
Road, I have this little booklet that Mrs. Headen gave my
grandmother in about 1929, she lived next door to my grandmother
and my grandmother always thought so much of her, I have always
treasured this little booklet, page 2 on Headen Retreat, Mrs.
Headen, 716 Bayard Park Drive, She had moved to Evansville after
her husband and young son had died, "Dear Jenny, Headen's
Retreat means more to me than just a lovely restful garden, it
means a memory of a wise saintly man who lived close to nature
and to natures God, it means a mothers love that plans for a sons
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future, a love that broadened to take in all young people, to
give them beautiful thoughts, noble ideals. Sincerely, your
friend, Albion Fellows Bacon."

Mrs. Craig continued, "I think we all know who she is and what

- _ they are doing in her name now, so I feel that if Mrs. Albion
= a7 —Fellows Bacon thought so much of Mrs. Jenny Headen, why can't we
& - " "honor her by calling the road Headen as it should be.- There is
also a letter in this little booklet from Annie Fellows Johnson,
well known author and school mate of Mrs. Headen, also one from
Mrs. William Eicholhor and many others and also in a later book
just about like this there is a letter from Mrs. Hoover's
secretary and a note that she received a Christmas Greeting from
President and Mrs. Hoover, and besides the retreat she did much
to encourage the students and was a daughter of scholarships.
The monument in McCutchanville cemetery, Reverend Heber S.
Headen, 1852 to 1915, Jenny Henry Headen, I think I told somebody
it was McCutchan, there are so many McCutchan's and so many
Henry's that I got confused there, and she was born in 1860 and
she died in 1944 and evidently they had a daughter Annie M. born
1906 and died 1906, and Heber N. Nugent Headen was born 1902 and
died at a very young age in 1915.°%

. Mrs. Craig continued, "I am tired of when asked my address I say
8909 Headen, people look and me and say 'Headen, which way ya
Headen', so now lets correct our mistakes once and forever, we
are having to do just that, when we moved here in 1970, or to the
Headen address, we went to the Area Plan for house numbers, they
gave us the choice of 8401,3,5,7 or 9 and they said they
preferred us to use 8405, we did, now because of their mistake we
are having to get new name plates for the mail box and send out

about so many change of address cards to utilities, banks,
friends and etc. and I do think to honor Mrs. Headen it should be
changed.”

Mrs. Craig continued, "I have looked on our deed and there is no
mention of like you said, until 1967, I think there was some
change of property at that time and it was listed as (en or on) I
am not sure but is should be Headen."

President Borries thanked Mrs. Craig and said, "Although there
will be a transcript of the minutes, may we have any research

. that you have done at this point so that we can forward that to
the Area Plan Commission for them to examine?"

Ms. Behme said she will copy it for her.

Commissiner Cox said, "The postoffice is honoring Hedden,
spelled Headen because they delivered your Schultheis Insurance
Premium Notlce spelled that way, right?!'

Mrs. Craig said yes, Headen.
Commissioner Borries said pronounced (Hayden).

Commissioner Cox said she knows it is Hedden on a lot of the
maps, I looked up in +h~ rkane honk, the latest phone book for
Kern Nursery and it is listed as Heddon, the zip code blue pages
in the phone book list only Hedden with the zip code, so she
really appreciates her coming up here personally and giving them
the background information.

President Borries told Mrs. Craig that if she would accompany Ms.
Behme, she will make copies of this information.

Mrs. Craig asked if they are going to act on this today?
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Pre31dent Borries said, "I don't think so, I don't want to tell
yOoUu.......you have a very convincing argument and we certainly
want to honor your wishes but there are also other residents, as
you know, that are on here who are also caught up in this
confusion and we have to rely on our planning staff to give us
some direction here as to what kind of recommendation ‘they might.

give us_on. this." . el - l

Mrs. Craig Sald, "I sure would appreciate it, I hﬁ@e worried
about this all of my life."

RE: CONTRACT TO BE AWARDED FOR ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING
DESIGN PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR RESTROOM IMPROVEMENTS
AND ELEVATOR INSTALLATION AT THE COUNTY AUDITORIUM '

President Borries said Roger Lehman is here regarding this
contract.

Mr. Lehman said, "I have been in contact with all of the
companies involved, the three (3) firms that gave us information
that was opened last week, Matt Given of Veech and Shoulders,
Kramer Group and WSC Associates and I have requested some
additional information from them and would like to postpone this
for one (1) more week, if we could."

President Borries asked if there were any questions of Mr.
Lehman.

RE: CHANGE ORDER #1 ON HVAC RENOVATION OF THE AUDITORIUM

President Borries said Mr. Walter Clements is here regarding this
change order.

Mr. Clements said, "I have sent the three (3) copies again to
the secretary of the Commissioners and would again request that
the change order be signed so that we can complete the project, I
believe the information was delivered to Mr. Willner's office on
the breakdown of Johnson Controls hours." '

President Borries asked if there were other questions of Mr.
Clements.

Attorney Miller said he has one, "Mr. Clements, we learned in
the course of the investigative work that we have been doing, you
know, you had a call from a young lady in my office regarding
that, we have learned that there was, I believe, a report of some
kind made by Johnson Control, was that report made to you?"

Mr. Clement said, "Yes, as was requested by the contract and it
was turned over to the Commissioners, copies were given to the
Commissioners, and copies were then given to Thermatron, I
believe."

Mr. Miller said, "I did not understand that from my associate,
if the Commissioners have a copy, I need to acquire a copy of
that just to complete my file, thank you."

Commissioner Cox said, "I have no questions of Mr. Clements, I
do have questions about the Thermatron Contract and what your
question, David, was the report from Johnson Controls. I was
looking, I ‘think I might have my.cecceo”

Mr. Miller said, "I have Mr. Clements report among my documents
but I have learned about the Johnson Report and I would like to
see that before giving you a final conclusion, I have reached a
preliminary conclusion on all of this.”

Commissioner Cox asked, "On the change orders.”

Mr. Miller said, "No, not related to the change orders, related
to Thermatron.™
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Mr. Clements said, "The change order was executed by both myself
and the contractor, we have corrected our error that was pointed
out at the last meeting of the three cents."

President Borries said if there are no more questions" he would
éntertaina motion to approve this change order.._ ) :

Commissioner Willner so moved, seconded by Commissioner Cox. So
ordered.

RE: OPTION TO RENEW AGREEMENT ON BOB HAMILTON CHARITABLE
GOLF FOUNDATION, INC.

President Borries said the have a notice from Robert T. Hamilton
of the Bob Hamilton Charitable Golf Foundation, Inc. of a Notice
to Exercise Option to Revew Agreement. The agreement is as
follows: '

TO: THE VANDERBURGH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

The undersigned, pursuant to numerical paragraph 27 of the
agreement entered into on the 26th day of December, 1972, by and
between the Board of Commissioners of the County of Vanderburgh
(Lessor) and Robert T. Hamilton and The Bob Hamilton Charitable
Golf Foundation, Inc., and Indiana charitable corporation
(Lessee), a copy of said Ageeement being attched hereto and
incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit A, do each hereby
give their written notice to exercise their option to renew the
heretofore referenced Agreement for a period of five (5) years,
commencing with the expiration of the existing Agreement on May
1, 1989, and continuing for a period of five (5) successive years
thereafter up to and including the 1lst day of May, 1994.

The undersigned further reserve the absolute right to renew
the Agreement for three (3) successive five (5) year periods
commencing with the expiration of the present option on May 1,
1994, should they so desire.

Should you have any questions concerning this lease
agreement, or the option to renew presently being exercised,
please feel free to contact me.

Dated this 20 day of October, 1988.

/s/ Robert T. Hamllton

President Borries said this is a formality that they will enter
into the record for this time.

Commissioner Cox asked if there was to be a motion on this, to
renew the agreement?

President Borries said to let the Attorney look at this as he is
not sure a motion is needed, this is a notification that they
have exercised their option at this time.

RE: BOONVILLE-NEW HARMONY ROAD CONSULTANT AGREEMENT

President Borries said they have received a letter from Indiana
Department of Highways, W.J. Rittman, Chief Division of Local
Assistance. Letter as follows:

Dear Commissioners:

Two (2) copies of a proposed agreement for the subject to provide
Construction Engineering Services have been received and reviewed
by the Indiana Department of Highways. The agreement is
satisfactory and the county is authorized to execute two (2)
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copies of the approved agreement with the Consultant, which are
enclosed, both copies of the executed agreement must be returned
to this office for further processing.

President Borries said this is to Bernardin/Lochmueller and
Associates regarding the Construction Engineering Services on
- Boonville-New Harmony Road Extension.

President Borries asked Mr. Hartman if he has reviewed these as
County Engineer and if not he would like to refer them to him for
review, and report back to the Commission.

RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY/DAVID MILLER

National Casualty and Hartford: Mr. Miller said in the action
that the county has filed against National Casualty and Hartford
regarding the failure to provide a defense in the Elizabeth May
action, the respective insurance company defendents have referred
the matter to local attorneys for the purpose of entering an
appearance and negotiating with us with respect to their exposure
and liability, it is my belief that before the end of the year we
will have an agreement that will return to us all or
substantially all of that expense. We are not at that point yet,
the insurance companies have requested additional information
regarding the notifications and the state of the litigation at
the time of the notifications, we have run into a slight problem
in providing that information because the individual who was the
point man for the county's insurance program at that time, Mr.
Hodge, has changed agencies and has therefore not had access to
his file in the last couple of years and he and I have had a
difficult time getting together to schedule a review of that
file, but that lawsuit appears to be headed for completion before
the end of the year. We are hopeful that all of the money will
be paid back to Vanderburgh County.

Thermatron Energy Contract: Mr. Miller said, "pDuring the past
two (2) weeks I have caused an associate in my office to
institute a preliminary investigation regarding the services
rendered by Thermatron in the past two (2) years. I would like
for this Board to schedule, at the earliest possible date, an
executive session to discuss our findings and our
recommendations, we have a preliminary conclusion that we have
reached and we have a basis for it, I believe it is, as in many
cases when litigation is potential, advisable to discuss this in
an executive session, protected by the lawyer-client privilege
with the entire Board and, of course, if any of the Commission
Members then wish to discuss it publicly that is judgment for
each of you to make, but I do not believe that at this time it is
a good idea to lay out for any potential adversary the matters
that we have learned about, so I would ask for you to schedule an
executive session at the earliest possible time so that we can
bring you up to date on this investigation, by the time the
executive session is held I am certain that the work that I and
my associate have to do will be totally completed and we will be
firm in our recommendation one way or the other but right now
there is the one document I ask Mr. Clements about that I would
like to see. and therc are a couple of people that my associate,
in my absense from the city, has had some difficulty in reaching,
one from Johnson Controls and one from Arc, and so we are still
needing to talk to them."

Commissioner Cox asked, "Could we continue on Thermatron,
because David, I do not understand the approach you are taking to
the situation and I do have the minutes from September 19, 1988,
page 20, where we discussed the cancellation the second time of
this contract and the discussion was quite, I think, involved
with a lot of different documents being called forth at that time
that had been asked for previously and your comments, and I
assume that these minutes are correct because they were approved
October 10, 1988 and you say here first of all, 'As I
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understand it there are two things to be done, first of all
terminate any future involvement because it is no longer
necessary, thereby saving the balance due on the service
contract, number one.'

‘Commissféner COx eontlnued, 2'Second1y 'Review the possibility of
recovery of some portion of tBe.funds for lack of-compliance; is—
that right.' "Now that was your questions to the Board, and it
was confirmed that that is correct and I did make the motion,
Commissioner Willner seconded the motion that a thirty day
termination notice is to be sent to Thermatron Corporation, Inc.
concerning the maintenance contract on the air conditioning at
Vanderburgh Auditorium, so ordered."

Commissioner Cox said, "There were no, at that time, provisions
put on that motion to terminate the contract back in September,
here we are five weeks, perhaps six weeks after that and October
17th I questioned again the letter dated October 10th to
Thermatron Energy asking that the controls be brought to their
attention and then that is where you are quoted in these minutes
that we just accepted as of today where I stated that we had
cancelled the contract and you say, 'That may be true but I
don't remember that assignment, I do have some letters,
particular letters sent by Thermatron, and so on.' "Then in
reading in Sunday's paper concerning this maintenance agreement
with Thermatron, I think perhaps the situation may become a bit
more clouded than what it has been because I believe it is, and
let me get this right, 'Commissioner Willner says that the
contract has not been cancelled yet and it hasn't been cancelled
because Mr. Borries and Mrs. Cox never instructed County Attorney
David Miller to write the cancellation letter.' "Well, I think
that is carrying things a bit too far and I think we have carried
this Thermatron thing a bit too far, I learned from this article
also that the company had installed padlocks on our Auditorium
property, now who gave them the authority to install padlocks on
our county equipment, I do recall in the discussion where we were
concerned that our employees did not know how to maintain that
equipment and that's why we went out of house to have it
maintained, but yet in this article the company Thermatron is
blaming our employees for lack of maintenance to the Auditorium
air conditioning which they were being paid to do."

Commissioner Cox continued, "Another thing that concerns me --
and I think it puts another aura around this whole scenerio -- is
the fact that Thermatron has made to Mr. Willner a political
contribution including a $1,000 contribution in his 1986
re-election bid. Now, we have said here before that often times
the media may or may not have the accurateness to it or the
completeness or the total context, so I don't know why we have
held up on getting this contract cancelled. I find it really
difficult to believe we are holding on to a company to provide a
maintenance on equipment that is not even physically in this
building. And, Gentlemen, I brought this to the Board in July of
this year when our County Auditorium Manager stated that the cost
of heating and cooling had gone up tremendously and she needed
more funds, and this would have been one way that we could have
paid those increased funds, which I believe the invesuiyaciuvua
from S.I.G. & E. Co. also showed that a portion of that fund
could very well have been due to dirty and unmaintained
materials, so the question here is, Mr. Willner, is this correct,
is Thermatron making political contributions to the Commissioners
campaigns? I know I haven't received anything from Thermatron,
and have you received anything, Rick?"

Mr. Borries said, "Well I will check my record to see, Shirley."

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Borries, "You don't know if you have
or not? It looks like someone would have been checking the
record to find out what was going on, I know that I can make the
statement that I have not received any political contributions
from Thermatron."
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Commissioner Cox continued, %I think that is what we need to do

at this meeting today and I think that the horse is already out

of the barn and the pasture and completely out of the whole range

as far as termination of this contract, can we have a clear
understanding to terminate this-contract correctly today at this
-meeting and-if another motion needs to be made to so instruct the
Attorney to send a letter of this intent to Thermatron.” l

Mr. Miller said, "I drafted such a letter two weeks ago after I
learned that the previous letter had not been sent and had it
ready to go but I have been advised or was advised at that time
that the letter had been sent in the meantime, the letter of
cancellation, that was my understanding from a call to the office
here.”

Commissioner Cox said, "Then that part of the article is not
correct -- because the€eecoess"

Mr. Miller stated, "That is right."

Commissioner Cox said, "The contract has been cancelled? So we
shouldn't have paid any claims on it then, this month when the .
claim comes in?"

Mr. Miller said, "When you are considering litigation to recover
funds, it seems to -me not to make sense to make further payments

and the contract itself calls for cancellation upon thirty days
notice, as is, I think, substantially reported correctly, but it

has been my recommendation from the beginning not to make any

further payments pending the outcome of the investigation that I

want to discuss in an executive session.” l

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, but you say on October 17th David,
that you didn't have the understanding that the contract was to
be cancelled."”

Mr. Miller stated, "No, I am sorry if that was misinterpreted,
on October 19th I was acknowledging that I had not, what I
intended to acknowledge was that I had not commenced the
investigation that I have told you is now substantially
completed, I frankly did not understand if it was your intention
that I was to send that letter, I thought that letter was going .
to come out of this office and simply did not send it, but what I
intended to acknowledge a couple weeks ago, in that October 19th
meeting was that I had just not initiated that investigation
because I had forgotten, I had it in my notes and I had received
some correspondence on it that Mr. Borries had forwarded to me, I
had read the correspondence, but I had not carried the
investigation further at that point and now the investigation is
essentially complete. We have not lost anything in terms of our
rights against Thermatron by reason of that.”

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I direct you to page 17 of the
October 17th minutes then, and to read those and if they are not
correct as you are gquoted in there, now is the time to get them
corrected.”

Mr. Miller stated, "I am not going to quarrel with those
minutes."

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, those minutes do not say what you
are reflecting to this Board now as was your understanding, that
is what I am trying to point out. So something is wrong, either
you didn't say what is here or now you are saying something
different."

At this time Mr. Miller read the minutes referred to by
Commissioner Cox.
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Mr. Miller sald, “I don't have any quarrel with those minutes,
they are exactely correct.”

Commissioner Cox said, "But then this is saying here that what
you were going to do on October 17th which is two weeks ago was
look to see you know, the contract was not to be cancelled but to
look to see if it was overlapping in any way, this-is what these
minues say, 'If it was an overlapping contract.'! amd that you
said that...ec..”

Mr. Miller said, "and indeed that was part of what I recalled at
that time." ~

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, all I know is this will cost the
taxpayers probably August, September, October, November, we will
not.......basically close to $20,000 and also in the
documentation that came on the change order was that their
recommendation to repair the chiller for $12,000 from Thermatron
when the bid came in and the same work was done by another
company for $3,000, this is important enough, we talk about these
other things and saving the money but we had an opportunity to
save the money for the Vanderburgh County citizens to cancel that
contract as of August lst when the other things came out and we
didn't act, even though it was requested, it has been held up, it
has been pushed by the wayside and the big question, and I still
don't have an answer, is why has this been done."

President Borries asked of Mr. Miller, "You wish to schedule an
executive session at this time?"

Mr. Miller responded in the affirmative.
President Borries asked when would he want it scheduled?

Mr. Miller said, "Well, I think we have to advertise publicly
once and the executive session has to be held ten days after the
notice, I think, let me check the notice statute on executive
sessions just to be sure it is done correctly, we have done it
several times in the past and I just can't remember off of the
top of my head."

Commissioner Willner said just for a point of information, the
Auditorium has used Thermatron as late as last week.

Mr. Miller said he understood that.

Commissioner Cox asked by what authority.

Commissioner Cox said, "By who's authority have we been
continuing to do operation with a company that we cancelled the
contract, by who's authority?"®

President Borries said, "I am going to repeat that it is my
understanding that the contract was terminated on September 19,
1988."

CommiSsioner Cox said, "Thank you Mr. Borries, Mr. Willner, do
you have a statement?"

Commissioner Willner said, "No, it certainly wasn't I."
Commissioner Cox said, "We are still waiting for an itemized
list from Thermatron that Mr. Borries was going to get from the
company of what they had performed over there on a monthly basis,
did you ever receive that?" :

President Borries responded that he has not.

Commissioner Cox asked, "Where is it, do they not have it,
Rick?"
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President Borries said, "That is what we have requested,
Shirley, to f£ind out what: they have."

Commissioner Cox said to President Borries, "You are a patient
man, aren't you?"

President Borries replied, "No, I am not a patient man.”
Commissioner Cox said, "what I want to know is, how come they
were called, who called them to the Auditorium, you understood
that they did work, who authorized the work that they did?"

Commissioner Cox said to let the minutes show that a silence fell
over the group.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY/CLETUS MUENSTERMAN

Weekly Work Report/County ‘Garage: Mr. Muensterman submitted the
Weekly Work Report for Employees at the County Garage for period
of October 24 thru October 28, 1988.......report received and
filed. :

Gradall: St. Joseph Avenue, Bergdolt and Oakhill Roads.

Paving Crew: Mill Road and Happe Road.

Patch Crew: Baseline, Boonville-New Harmony, Meier, Lynn,
Pollack and Waterworks Roads.

Grader: Maasberg, Folz, County Line West, Calf Lane,
Green River, Emge, Motz Road and Motz Lane,
Trapp Road and The Bottoms.

Weekly Work Réport/County Bridge Crew: Mr. Muensterman submitted
the Weekly Work Report for the County Bridge Crew for the same
period........report received and filed.

- Installed Culvert on Bergdolt Road (18x50)
- Built Retaining Wall on Scott, Baseline and Trapp Roads.
- Repaired Drain Sewers in Evergreen Acres.

- Swept Bridge Decks & Cut Grass where needed on"
#6 Marx Road, 3148 Upper Mt. Vernon Road, #47 & 48
Princeton Road, #88 Mt. Pleasant Road, #88A
Baumgart Road, #150 Hillsdale Road and #36-213- 89
on St. Joe Road.

- Cut Grass at Green River and Hirsch Roads.
- Cut Chunk of Metal on 01d 460.

- Installed Metal Shims and Concrete on Boonville-New
Harmony Road Bridge #13.

- Buiit Retaining Wall on Baseline and Tiapp Roads.

National Laboratories: Mr. Muensterman said he has a bill from
National Laboratories that he would like to have signed and the
account would be 201-322 Gas, 0il and Lubricants, this was for
sampling and analysis for PCB's in the amount of $44.85. That
was for the so called sprays and barrels that were bought a few
years back and the state demanded us to have that area sampled
and they had to abide by it.

Commissioner Willner moved the claim be approved.

Motion seconded by Commissioner Cox. So ordered.
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Nesbit Station Road: Mr. Muensterman said on this Nesbit Station
Road, Tri-State Welding will repair, they are going to come back
later on and I am going out and check it myself and make sure it
is right.

‘ _Pollack Avenuei HE,. mlensterman said hé has someﬁh.mg: on” ,Pell-ack o

“Avenue from S5.I.G< & E. Co. putting in a-drive-way. It came all

the way down to the road with an 8" curbing and we instructed
them to get rid of it so I called the County Engineer and he went
out and looked at it and we understand it will be taken care of.

President Borries asked if there were question of Mr.
Muensterman.

Commissioner Willner said thanks to the Courier the pothole
article went in this morning and I think we had seventeen (17)
calls, four (4) of them are already repaired so we are thirteen
(13) behind and that program is going very good and will continue
to be good before the first snow flies.

Letter from J.H. Rudolph: Mr. Muensterman said he has a letter
from J.H. Rudolph and they need a change order on that and it is
to the good for us, it is project #VCC 602-88, Woodridge Place
which we did not pave. Mr. Muensterman read as follows:

As per your instructions we have removed Woodridge Place from the
contract, this will result in a decrease of $11,004 on this
contract. The letter was signed by Daniel Peters of J. H.
Rudolph Company.

Mr. Muensterman said he checked the amount that they were to lay
on that and it comes right to the penny, they had 240 ton of
binder they were going to use at $30.20 a ton and 120 tons of
surface amounting to $31.30, it amounts to $11,004...

Commissioner Willner asked if he has that on an official change
order.

Mr. Muensterman said he would have to get one.

Commissioner Willner said subject to the change order he would
move it be approved.

Commissioner Cox said, I will second the motion and it is
alright for me to have it right on this piece of paper please, I
don't need any kind of official, I don't think we have an
official change order."

President Borries said there is one around.

Commissioner Cox said she has seen four (4) different kinds, four
different official change orders and I don't know what they are
supposed to be.

Commissioner Cox said she does want to thank Mr. Muensterman and
the Highway Crew for their excellent job of ditching out on
Heinline Road, that has really helped to eleviate a severe water
problem out there and also the cleaning out down by Baumgart Road
of the culverts and also for the job that they did to complete
the Rollett Lane project, it looks very nice. Thank You.

RE: HIGHWAY ENGINEER/DAN HARTMAN

Contractual Projects: Mr. Hartman said under Contractual
Projects they have J.BH. Rudolph completing the work on Oak Grove
Road, Rogers Group did Seib Road on Monday, 700 tons, and on
Tuesday and Thursday he worked Buente Road and on Friday he
worked on Drexel Road and altogether he did about 4000 tons of
asphalt work.
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Motz Road: Mr. Hartman said his office has been working on
design work on Motz Road and we have plotted two (2) or three (3)
feet of roadway cross sections and have been working with the
County Surveyor on that, in that regard, every time he brings in
cross sections we plot them up immediately, we don't want to get
behind on that project.

Boonville-New Harmony Road: Mr. Hartman said the Boonville-New
Harmony Road project, we have been working on that too, that is
the one that is going from Posey County to I-164.

Bujay Drive: Mr Hartman said they have been working on Bujay
Drive, I have researched some information for Mr. Muensterman and
have conveyed my opinion to him and we are waiting on Mr. Willner
to give his final opinion on what he found out there during his
inspection.

Schutte Road & Highway 62: Mr. Hartman said the Schutte Road and
Highway 62 improvements from highway 62 to Clark's Lane has not
been worked on this past week.

Union Township Overpass: Mr. Hartman said on this he has talked
to the engineer up in Chicago, Donald Smith, and he has assured

me by this week we will have the approved center line locations

of the Barker Avenue overpass in Union Township.

Mr. Hartman said, "Over the phone I have mentioned the 5%
horozontal curve as being our extreme limit and a 10% grade
incline there. This bridge will take all truck traffic and
automobile traffic for the future."

Mr. Hartman continued, "As I understand it Bernardin/Lochmueller
Associates will be given the bridge inspection now, should I
write a formal letter to consumate that recommendation or what?

President Borries asked if there were any questions of Mr.
Hartman, if not, Mr. Gwinn has some matters here that he had
corresponded with us regarding some acceptance of subdivision
roads.

Mr. Hartman said he was getting into that.

Mr. Hartman said, "I have come to the conclusion that
subdivision inspection and record keeping of the subdivision work
that our office has to do is almost a full time job for a person
so I recommended that Dick Gwinn take that department over
completely, 100% of his time, also the County Highway
Superintendent, the Surveyor and myself are going to inspect
these county subdivisions at the same time, we are going to
inspect them on a second and forth Thursday of every month at
10:00 a.m. and you, County Commissioners, individually or
combined are welcome to go on these trips with us. We plan to
meet on the job site itself."

Commissioner Cox said, "I did ask, I believe in last weeks
minutes or the week before for an update on the USI design
because the.csees”

Mr. Hartman said that has been given to Rose Zigenfus, 100%
completed and she is now working with those figures, that is as
much as I know about it, but the design itself has been turned
over to Rose Zigenfus, or the numbers have been turned over to
her.

Commissioner Cox said, "Well, I did talk to Rose Friday and she
told me that E.U.T.S. had reviewed the USI Overpass and that they
were sending it back to the.......and she felt maybe it had been
sent back to the design engineer. Have any of you had an update
on this?"
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Commissioner Cox continued, "It looks like our Board should have
seen something concerning this, we gave a sixty (60) day limit on
the preparation of this design and that has well passed and we
haven't seen anything to date, so I think we need to have that
brought back before this Board. She also gave me scme other

*;~in£ormatzon which- I will report and it is on the Green-River- Rgé~,g~e,

~gttuation; and I did not understand and-I did not-have any —— =
correspondénce in my box and I did not understand on the phone
whether she had received written correspondence or verbal corres-
pondence from the Federal Highway person for the State of Indiana
concerning the North Green River Road improvement project, but

the information that she gave me by phone Friday was that this
project would need to go back to the public for a hearing and I
asked for the documented changes that were going to be made and
there will be no changes made, it is going to be presented again
as it was previously designed and I do not understand why we need
to waste the peoples time that came and gave the testimony
concerning the present design and pay more engineering fees to
have a company representative come down, I do not understand the
format for that, even though she said it was recommended by the
Federal Government that this go back for a full hearing.”

President Borries said they would certainly look into this and
see if they can get this information.

RE: SUBDIVISIONS/DICK GWINN

Newcomb's Addition: Mr. Gwinn said, Mr. Bill Prior is here on
behalf of Union Federal and we are recommending that this Newcomb
Subdivision be accepted subject to some conditions, the
conditions are the storm drainage in that Union Federal is to
write a supplemental letter at the time they clear up some
right-of-way easements and if you have any question in regards to
that Mr. Prior is here and he can answer for Union Federal.”

Mr. Gwinn said he recommends they approve it subject to the
exception of storm drainage and that means that Union Federal is
to write a supplemental letter at the time that they clear up
their right-of-way easements on the storm drainage.

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Gwinn, "I have a question on this and
it relates to the cover letter from Union Federal. it says: 'The
movement and construction of the cul-de-sac at the east end of
Peach Blossom Lane is the responsibility of the State Highway
Department'."

Mr. Gwinn said, "Yes, that is correct, it is in the right-of-way
of I-164 and the State Highway Department has taken that
right-of-way, I indicated on a line there and kind of inked in
where they are going to put the cul-de-sac, they are just going
to move it."

Commissioner Cox said, "The State is going to do that."
Mr. Gwinn said yes.

Commissioner Cox said, "I do want to compliment you for finally
getting this all to the state where we can accept these streets,
I know it has been a long tedious situation for our Board and for
the Bank and for the potential buyers out there in the
subdivision, this is a very important step and I would move that
the following streets in Newcomb's Addition be approved and
accepted for maintenance noting that they are both concrete and
asphalt subject to the storm drainage provisions being submitted
and this would be; Peach Blossom Lane, 2,435 Lineal Feet; Peach
Court, 140 Lenial Feet; Blossom Court, 180 Lineal Feet and
Alberta Drive, 220 Lineal Feet for a total of 2.975 Leneal Feet.
It would be nice to know if we have the right-of-way, is that
indicated on here, Dick."

"lia
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Mr. Gwinn said yes, that is all in the subdivision plat.
Commissioner Cox asked if it is a 50 foot right-of-way?
Mr. Gwinn said part of it is.

Commissioner Cox said, "See, it is always well when we vote to
accept a road just to keep our records current and to indicate
the right-of-way for these different streets and if there are
rolled Surbs or gutters or anything like that, and I did not
See....

Mr. Gwinn said there were rolled curbs and gutters on the
original concrete pavement and of course the asphalt overlay was
not part of that.

Commissioner Cox said she did know about the right-of-way.

Mr. Gwinn said it is hard to read on this small drawing.
Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Gwinn if he would include the
right-of-way for these four (4) streets so when copies are sent

to the County Highway Garage that they will know to insert and
keep the record up to date of the proper right-of-way?

Mr. Gwinn said he would do this from now on.
Commissioner Cox said she did make a motion on this request.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Green River Estates, Section 2-C: Mr. Gwinn said Mr. Phil Heston
was supposed to be here and I see that he is here. Mr. Gwinn
said, "Several of us have looked at this at various times during
the Month of October (plans passed out) and we will recommend
acceptance subject to conditions on this presentation by Mr.
Heston, first, the cleanup and all work that is disclosed
including the need to stop the extensive covering of the streets
with dirt; two, the storm drain system complete, no exceptions
and; three, providing as-built drawings including a drainage plan
with all retention ponding shown including that for the streets."”

President Borries asked, "Do you need this information today, is
that what you are asking for?"

Mr. Gwinn said, "Mr. Heston is asking for acceptance and if you
would like to defer it, you certainly may, or approve it subject
to exceptions or however you would like to do it. I would
recommend that we accept it subject to exceptions and these would
be the exceptions here."

President Borries asked if Mr. Heston has seen these so he can
provide the.....

Mr. Gwinn said, "Yes sir, he is aware of this and if you would
like for him to, I think he should tell you he will take care of
this himself." l

Mr. Heston said, "As far as the dirt on the streets, that has
been a constant problem. I have planted wheat out there, strawed
quite a number of lots and it is to my benefit as well as yours
that it be cleaned up in its!' entirety, as far as drainage, and I
am very pleased to hear about a full time man looking at these
subdivisions. I submitted these for acceptance back in July and
I am caught a little bit short now. I have a letter of credit
expiring at the bank and I will have to renew it on the 13th of
this month. As far as the drainage is concerned, I need to clean
out an easement along Green River Road that has about 6" of silt
in it and there are three (3) or four (4) other very minor things
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That needs to be taken care of and I will assure you, and I would
be glad to give you a letter to that effect, that this will be
done, the as-built plans should have been in your hands by now,
that was ordered quite some time ago, so the only thing I can do
is reassure you that these minor things will be taken care of."

-pruegident Borries asked if there were any questions of Mr..
Heston. .

Commissioner Cox asked, "Do we have the report from the Surveyor
in on this?" ‘

Mr. Gwinn said he thought Mr. Jeffers was going to be here. He
met with them when they conferenced on this and he had looked at
it and it was his understanding that he concurs with this. Of
course, he will have to speak for himself.

Commissioner Cox said, "Usually, since it is a written report to
go into the file, I was looking through here and I do not have
one."

Mr. Muensterman made a statement but did not come up to the
microphone, so it was inaudible.

Commissioner Cox asked, "What were the names of the streets?"
President Borries said Newbury and Penfold.
Commissioner Cox said she does not see a Huntington on here.

President Borries said, "Cletus, for the record, again what was
your comment here regarding....Penfold was- one that you mentioned
and then Newbury."

Mr. Muensterman said, "This is on the corner of Newbury, two (2)
homes, 8510 and 8511, I believe, both of those homes have two (2)
chunks of concrete, now when somebody drops concrete on the roads
out in the county, we try to catch it and a lot of times we
don't. We had trouble up there on 0ld Petersburg Road that we
had to take some off and we had a problem there, as you know, and
I think if they put a street down it should be smooth instead of
a hump."”

President Borries asked Mr. Heston, "When is your....in terms of
your letter of credit....November?"®

Mr. Heston said the 13th of November.

President Borries asked, "Would you gentlemen contact Mr. Heston
regarding these comments and then we will also have some
info:mation ready from the Surveyor?"

Commissioner Cox said, "Then we are taking these under
advisement until our meeting next week, November 7th?"

University Héights Cul-de-sac: Mr. Gwinn said he thought Mr.
Lutterbach was going to be here today and we will just defer thal
until he can be here.

President Borries asked what this concerns.

Mr. Gwinn said he had a University Heights Cul-de-sac on Rosemont
‘Drive. ‘

RE: CHECK FROM HELFRICH INSURANCE AGENCY

President Borries said they have a check from Helfrich Insurance
Agency, this is a return premium surplus tax in the amount of
$150.46.
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Commissioner Willner moved they endorse the check and put it back
into the County Insurance.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

“Crescent Courtt- Mr._Lebhman said they went out to Crescent Court
, ve ‘the gomplaint-about the dumping*and f“neportéd‘last
week that Mr. Tate had agreed to clean it up and Floyd I. Staub's
people were still there working and the bulldozer driver
indicated they had hauled out approximately fourteen (14) semi
trailer loads of wood this morning and brought approximately
eight (8) semi trailer loads of dirt and it is much improved.
They still have probably four (4) more loads to take off, which
he said they would complete in the morning and he has made a
really extreme effort in getting it done. It has been awfully
wet from the rains last week, so I guess my report is that he is
90% complete and I will make sure he gets it finished up and will
report back next week.

Commissioner Cox said,. "He wasn't able to work on it last week
at all then.,®

Mr. Lehman said, "It rained Thursday and ......"

Commissioner Cox asked, "What happened to Monday, Tuesday and
Wednesday?" :

Mr. Lehman said, "Remember, he said he didn't know about it
until Monday or the Friday before and he had contacted Staub to
get them out there on Tuesday and they couldn't make it until
Wednesday and then it rained, but they are hauling out in large
amounts and hauling in clean dirt.”"

RE: EXECUTIVE SESSION

Mr. Miller said the Executive Session statute requires that
public notice be given at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
meeting and as I recall, the scheduling that JoAnne has to go
through with the newspaper, if you would turn in an ad tomorrow
it won't get published until Thursday, is that correct?

Ms. Matthews said it would not be published until Friday.

Mr. Miller said then they can have the meeting Monday before the
regular meeting.

Commissioner Willner said not only are they inaccurate, they are
slow.

Mr. Miller said he would ask them to schedule the meeting........

Commissioner Cox asked, "do we have to meet the legal
publication thing? What does notice.cccceees.”

Mr. Miller said, “The statute says ‘'public notice' is required
for executive sessions to be held and Section IC 5-14-1.5-5 reads
as follows:

Public Notice of the date and time and place of any meetings,
executive sessions or of any rescheduled or reconvened meetings
shall be given at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
meeting. ‘
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Mr. Miller said IC 5-14-1.5-6 in subsection B says, "Executive
Sessions may be held in the following instances, an executive
session being one to which the public is not invited.®™ He said
number one, they are authorized by Federal or State Statute, and
number two, for discussion of strategy with respect to Subsection
B, the initiation of legal action or litigation which is either
pending or has been threatened specifically in writing, so that

=" g the statutory requifement- and the executive g&gsion can-only

be held after the publication of that notice and therefore I
would request that it be held next Monday.

President Borries asked if 2:00 p.m. would be alright?

Mr. Miller said he would like a little more than a half an hour
with you on this matter, can it be done at 1:30 p.m.?

Commissioner Cox asked, "If we find, and I assume the reason you
are requesting an executive session is in the event you turn up
additional information on your further investigation from today
forward, if we find that the information is of a nature that
could be handled in a public meeting rather than in an executive
session, I hope that we would proceed in this manner."

Mr. Miller said, "The reason that I am requesting an executive
session is because in consultations between an attorney and
client, there is always, and we have experienced this ourselves
in the past eight (8) years, there is always discussion regarding
evidence favorable, potential evidence favorable to your
position, possible potential evidence not favorable to your
position, there is discussion of downside possibilities, upside
possibilities, strategy, what witnesses are cooperative, which
ones are not, a great deal of information is discussed which if
it were in the hands of a potential adversary could be very
helpful to a potential adversary, that is the whole purpose of
the lawyer/client privilege and that is why I am requesting an
executive session so that we can openly discuss everything that I
have been able to determine about this situation and allow you to
make a fully informed decision as to whether or not to proceed.
The decision to proceed or not is one that must be made in an
open meeting. It would be my hope that if you elect to proceed
that you would not enter into extensive discussions regarding
some of the matters that we have discussed in the executive
session because those could be harmful to the position of the
county."”

Commissioner Cox said, "I need a clarification, in the event we
intend to proceed to what? File suit, is this preliminary to
filing suit?"

Mr. Miller said, "Yes.®

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Miller, "Do you, as an attorney, feel
that you do have enough information at this time to file suit?"®

Mr. Miller said, "That is something that I prefer to discuss in
the executive session.”

President Borries said, "We have that scheduled fc¢: Mouday,
November 7, 1988, at 1:30 p.m.

RE: MEETING SCHEDULED

President Borries said they have the following meetings
scheduled:

Area Plan Commission...Wed., Nov., 2nd at 6:00 p.m. - Room 301.
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RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Clerk of Circuit and Superior Court...Appointments

Patricia Duerson Deputy Clerk $535.55 Ef£:10/24/88
Kathy Owens File Clerk $6.00 hr Eff:10/24/88
Clerk of Circuit and Superior Court...Releases S B L
Patricia Duerson File Clerk $6.00 hr Eff:10/24/88
Jennifer Althaus Deputy Clerk $535.55 Ef£:10/24/88

Voters Registration...Releases

Amelia Tornatta Part-time $35.00 day Eff:10/6/88
Casey Randolph, Jr. Part-time $35.00 day Eff:10/6/88

Pigeon Township Assesor...Appointments

Mary M. Ewing Part-time $35.00 day Eff:10/24/88

Circuit Court...Appointments

Frederick Hobgood Part-time W/R $5.00 hr Eff:10/11/88
James Hayes Part-time W/R $5.00 hr Ef£:10/18/88

Circuit Court...Releases

Terry Barnett Part-time W/R $5.00 hr Eff:10/4/88
Elizabeth Deem Part-time W/R $5.00 hr Eff:9/29/88

William Wallace Part-time W/R $5.00 hr Eff:8/5/88

Treasurer...Appointments

Patricia Tutt Part-time $35.00 day Eff:10/24/88
Monica Mindrup Part-time $35.00 day Eff:10/24/88
Melody Todd Part~time $35.00 day Eff:10/31/88
Shannon Hall Part-time $35.00 day Ef£f:10/31/88

Prosecutor...Releases

Donald Vowels Dep. Pros. $20,000 Eff:10/24/88

Armstrong Assessor.,.Appointments

Emily Kron Part-time $35.00 day Eff:10/24/88

Armstrong Assessor...Releases

Emily Kron Part-time $35.00 day Ef£f:10/21/88

Election Office...Appointments

Doris E. Cato Deputy Clerk $4.85 hr Eff:10/21/88

Superior Court...Appointments

Russell S. Morse Misd. Intern $5.00 hr Ef£:10/31/88

RE: COUNTY AUDITOR SAM HUMPHREY

Mr. Humphrey said, "You skipped over any '0ld Business' and I
have something for your information. Today I have received
authorization from the State Board of Accounts to create a
register of claims based upon our print-outs and I think that
probably all we need is the attorney to create an authorization
for your signatutes, the Boards signatures, to replace signing
individual claims and we can also place in there any claims that
you might exclude, so that should facilitate the Commissioners
signing of claims and looking at them and I believe all it will
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require is the programming to add this wording at the end of each
register of claims and I will take this over to Mr. Miller as
soon as we leave here and give him this information too, and I
think all we need is some programming and I am certain we have
money in the Commissioners account for programming.”

" Mz, Humphrey continued, "This will show you the claim number,

the check number, the amount; the person to whom it is issued,
the P.0. number and the account number and authorization and you
can have them all on a print-out.”

President Borries thanked Mr. Humphrey for this information.

There being no further business to come before this Board today,
President Borries declared the meeting recessed at 4:30 p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R.J. Borries Sam Humphrey David Miller
R.L. Willner : '

S.J. Cox

COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEERS SHERIFF

C. Muesterman Dan Hartman C. Shepard
R. Gwinn

BLDG. COMMISSIONER OTHERS

Roger Lehman - Amel Craig

Virginia Craig

Robert Lutz

Walter Clements

Jerry Riney

Danny Spindler

Carol McClintock

Phil Heston

Bill Prior/Union Federal
Others (unidentified)
News Media

SECRETARY: JoAnne Matthews
(Transcribed by Jean Wilkey
(Proofed/Corrected by M. Meeks & J. Matthews)

Poctiad ) T

Richard J. Borries, President

Robert L. Willner, Vice President
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X, Member 7
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
'~ NOVEMBER 7, 1988

The Vanderburgh-County Board of Commissioners met in session at -
2:30 p.m. on Monday, November 7, 1988, in the Commissioners

Hearing Room, with Commissioner Robert Willner presiding.

Commissioner Rick Borries was absent.

Since it was the first meeting of the month, the meeting was
called to order by Sheriff Clarence Shepard, who declared the
Board of Commissioners in session pursuant to adjournment.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Willner said approval of the Commissioners' Minutes
of October 31st will be deferred until next week as they are not
available today. It was noted by Commissioner Cox that the
minutes are transcribed, but unavailable due to mechanical
problems with the word processing printing equipment.

RE: AUTHORIZATION TO OPEN BIDS

Commissioner Willner recognized Susan Jeffries of the Purchasing
Department. She said she has eight (7) bids and one (1)
alternate bid on handguns for the Vanderburgh County Sheriff's
Department, which she will give to the County Attorney.

A motion was entertained to authorize the County Attorney to open .
same.

Motion to this effect was made by Commissioner Cox, with a second
from Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Commissioner Cox asked that Attorney Miller state the names of
the firms from whom the bids were received prior to opening the
bids.

Attorney Miller said bids were received from the following:

Tom's Gun Shop Inc. - Lynnville, IN
Bacon Creek Gun Shop - Corbin, KY
LAWCO Police & Fire - Ogden, Utah
Kiesler Police Supply, Inc. - Clarksville, IN
(there is also an alternate bid from Kiesler)
Gulf States Distributing, Inc. - Montgomery, Alabama
Steven N. Jenkins Co., Inc. - Indianapolis, IN
The Ray O'Herron Co. - Danville, IL

RE: PLANS FOR PAVING STRIP OF MAHRENHOLZ ROAD

Commissioner Willner requested that the Board proceed with
discussion of plans for paving strip of Mahrenholz Road. Mr. Joe
O'Daniel is here to present these plans.

Mr. O'Daniel said Southern Indiana Higher Education has eleven
(11) acres of land contiguous to Campus Apartments and the
University campus and, in line with the housing needs as a result
of the growing enrollment at the University of Southern Indiana,
a master plan has been developed for that 11 acres which will
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accommodate eight buildings -- the same as the MASH Mid-America
Student Housing (now called MASH Apartments) on that space which
will accommodate a little more than 500 students. And it is the
plan to build those buildings as needed to take care of the
enrollment as it grows. We currently have plans to develop the
first building on that plot beginning yet this fall, whlch will
be :eady-for occupancy for 64 students next fall. -

Mahrenholz Road is paved from Schutte Road up to the red m;}k YGd

see on the map that you have there and the area to be paved is
from the end of the present pavement on Mahrenholz Road up to the
property line -- and that measures approximately 246 ft. To be
exact, it is 246.14 ft. according to the engineer who did this
(Mr. Biggerstaff). The yellow area leading from Schutte Road up
is for right-of-way that has already been dedicated and the green
with the black strip in it is the current pavement on Mahrenholz
Road, which is approximately 20 ft. wide. And it is our hope
that the County Commissioners will pave the 246 ft. strip from
the end of the present pavement on Mahrenholz Road to the
property line, which is the property upon which these apartments
are to be built. Mr. O'Daniel then submitted a copy of the
Master Plan for the apartment to the Commissioners for their
reference.

Mr. O'Daniel said on the red strip on the right-hand side -- one
side has the black marks across on it and the other side is
clear. On the clear side -- the 25 ft. of right-of-way had
previously been dedicated when the State highway was built back
in the 60's and the area contiguous to Campus Apartments (which
is the one that has the slash marks in it) had not been
dedicated, although an expression of willingness to dedicate it
has previously been made. We have now dedicated that to the
County and I have a copy of the dedication for your records. It
was dedicated sometime last week (Wednesday, he believes). That
is their proposal. They are building this on a very tight
budget. The banks are cooperating with them and providing money
to them and the contractors are helping them to keep the costs
down. They will need another 64 housing units for students next
year and this is how they hope to get them. They ask that the
Board of Commissioners cooperates with them and complete the
paving from the present paving on Mahrenholz Road to the property
line and they will take care of it from there. They have also
provided in the Master Plan an open area through that 11 acres,
which is wide enough to extend Mahrenholz Road if the need ever
arose and they would be willing to dedicate another 50 ft. or
whatever it takes if it ever occurred that the need was there.

Mr. O'Daniel said he would be glad to answer any questions the
Commissioners may have.

Commissioner Willner thanked Mr. O'Daniel for his presentation.
He said he will ask that Attorney Miller review the legal
document for a couple of moments. He then entertained questions.

Commissioner Cox said, "Yes, we're bursting at the seams out

there -- I know that. I have a question, Joe. You said that
this part that is pink on the plan -~ 246 ft. -- and I want to be
sure I'm understanding it coii.clily - zyecu're asking the County

to pave that area and then you're going to pave (is there more
street that goes back in there?)"

Mr. O'Daniel responded, "No. You don't have to be concerned
about anything beyond the property line there and our plans are
to take care of the needs inside the 11 acres of land. This
would simply just be the completion of a project that was started
several years ago that has never been completed.”

Mrs. Cox asked, "So the road will stop there at that section line
then?®
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Mr. O'Daniel confirmed that this is correct -- and it is 246 ft.
long and the right-of-way that is dedicated is 50 ft. wide. But
you only need about 20 ft. -- and they're not asking for the
width to be changed at all -- just the same width of the other
paving that is already there, which is about 19 ft. to 20 ft.
—wide. - ‘ S
Commissioner Willner asked, "When will building construction -
start?"

Mr. O'Daniel said they want to get the pad down and the
underground work done before the freeze -- so they're operating
on a tight time schedule. They would also ask that the County
just rock the area at the present time. During the winter months
while they're working and with the trucks going over it, it will
pack it down good and then next spring after the weather clears,
etc., then it can be paved. That will assure that it will last a
lot longer.

Commissioner Willner said he needs a motion to accept the portion
in pink with the slash marks on the map -- 246.14 ft. long and 25
ft. wide into the County maintenance system. .

Mrs. Cox said, "There is nothing there yet. So I don't know how
to make a motion like that, Bob."

Mr. Willner said, "That is what they are asking us to do -- to
put a roadway down."

Mr. O'Daniel interjected, "We are asking the Commissioners to
authorize the paving of that 246 ft. long, 20 ft. wide strip from
the present incomplete Mahrenholz Road."

Mrs. Cox asked, "Joe, does it show Mahrenholz Road on the map
going up any farther?®

Mr. O'Daniel approached the Commissioners' table and pointed to
areas on the map, explaining the plans to Mrs. Cox. He said
Mahrenholz Road comes from Schutte Road (at the bottom of the
map) and it is paved to designated point. He then pointed out
the property line. He said there are eight buildings in
designated area and they are leaving a 50 ft. wide corridor so
that if in the future we ever need any additional space -- it
will be there. He then pointed to building that is going to be
constructed. He said they will take care of any paving that is
required from designated point into the complex. The County's
total responsibility would be from designated point to designated
point, which is 246.14 ft.

Mrs. Cox queried Mr. O'Daniel about Mahrenholz Drive -- and he
said that is also paved to designated point. Mrs. Cox said she
has no problem with doing this. She thinks that the County
should realize their commitments to encourage development and she
thinks that this is one of those times. She does think that we
need to study the intersection of Mahrenholz and Schutte Road for
maybe some radii. If we put enough extra buildings for 64
studenis unto this road, that is going to be generating probably
another 200 vehicles...."

Mr. O'Daniel interrupted, "No. You have another entrance at
designated point (which primarily serves a residential area --
there are seven residences) and very few students use this area
to get into the campus, because....”

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "You mean to say that these people will not
be using Mahrenholz to get out?"

Mr. O'Daniel replied, "Yes, they will -- only those 64 students. .
Students in designated area have University Court and University
Drive and...."
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Mrs. Cox again interrupted, "All I am asking is that we do this
right. The same thing I asked you, Joe, when you came before us
and wanted to build the Clark Lane. I asked you to make sure
this bank was cut down on designated section -- and you did. And
thank goodness you did. That is what I am also asking us to do
here, because this is Phase I. And when you build a road and you
want it to take care of Phase II and Phase III down the line
(which I am sure will be there )-- that is my only concern."

Mrs. Cox pointed out that Mahrenholz Road was just resurfaced.
Heavy construction vehicles will be going back there -- and she
isn't sure that road is up to that -- and we'll probably have to
repair that. But that's really beside the point.

Mr. O'Daniel said the only heavy equipment would be trucks that
hold lumber -- and that wouldn't be....

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "You're going to pour concrete too, Joe,
and those trucks are heavy. And we always have trouble --
because there is a hill off Schutte going up that area and it
doesn't hold that road base very well at all.”

Without further discussion, motion was made by Commissioner Cox
that the County provide the extension -- and again here —-- and
she thinks we need some input from Area Plan as to what probably
to call this -- maybe Mahrenholz West or some name..."

Mr. O'Daniel interrupted, "It already has a name -- Mahrenholz
Road."

Mrs. Cox asked, "But what you're asking us, Joe -- Mahrenholz
Road also goes in designated direction. There is a fork, isn't
there?

Commissioner Willner said, "I think they call the fork that goes
to the right 'Mahrenholz Lane®™ now -- I'm not sure.”

Mr. O'Daniel said, "It may be —— but I don't think it is the same
name. You can do anything you want with the name on it and it's
all right with us -- call it West or whatever.”

Mrs. Cox said, "Well, I think that has to be determined. I know
what your bottom line is -- and that's my bottom line, too. But
I do want to make sure we get these things done correctly."”

Mr. O'Daniel said, "Well, there may be some things that we need
to work out on a cooperative basis -- and you can rest assured
that we will do whatever we can to make it as simple as possible
for you. The main thing we wish to do today is to get this
approved so we can beat 0ld Man Winter on the construction -- get
the rock down and get our concrete work done before it freezes.
If you'll cooperate to that extent with us, then we'll do
anything else that you want us to do that is within reason that

we're capable of doing."

Mrs. Cox moved that the County extend or add an extension of
246.14 ft. onto the current Mahrenholz Rnad.

Mr. Willner said, "Better make it 'accept it for County
maintenance'. It's already an easement. The easement has been
signed, sealed, and delivered to the Auditor. It is now an
easement. We now need to accept that easement for County
maintenance."”

Commissioner Cox said, "Oh, well, that will be my motion then --
that we accept the easement for County.eeeceecs”

Mr. Willner asked, "Are you comfortable with that?"
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Mrs. Cox addressed Attorney Miller and asked, "David, can you
give me some legal advice? We know what we want to do -- but
what would be the proper motion?*

Attorney Miller said, "I will try. As I read the easement
document, itself, that has already been recorded. It simply
needs to be acknowledged by this Board -- you can do it without
even a motion -- that the additional strip of ground has been
made a public right-of-way by use of this easement, but the
County has not yet accepted it for maintenance. When you accept
it for maintenance, you, by definition, agree to bring it to
County standards -- and that means paving it."

Mrs. Cox said, "That means building it, too; there is nothing
there but an easement."

Attorney Miller remarked, "I understand. So you accept the
easement and accept it for County maintenance. Accept the grant
of the easement and accept it for County maintenance.®

Mrs. Cox commented, "But it still doesn't say who is going to
build the road -- and that is what he wants.”

Attorney Miller explained, "I know that -- but you are implying
that by accepting it for maintenance when it is not even there
yet. But if you want to make it as a part of your motion that
the County will, in fact, pave and then maintain -- that would
certainly..."

Mrs. Cox interrupted, "That is what my motion will be..I move
that the County pave and maintain that section of Mahrenholz Road
consisting of 246.14 ft. and off the westerly extension of the
present Mahrenholz Road."

Motion was seconded by Commissioner Willner and so ordered.
Commissioner Willner thanked Mr. O'Daniel for his indulgence.
Commissioner Willner asked Mr. Cletus Muensterman, County Highway
Superintendent, to go ahead and get some ditches down the
right-of~way and place some rock for the construction so this can
get under way. They'd like to pour some concrete before it
freezes.

Mr. Muensterman said he will get started on this.

RE: COUNTY HIGHWAY

Weekly Work Report/County Garage: Mr. Muensterman submitted
copies of the Weekly Work Report for Employees at the County
Garage for period of October 31 thru November 4, 1988.....report
received and filed.

Paver: Mill Rd. and St. Joseph Rd.

Gradall: Adler, Brookview, Folz Lane, Folz Rd., and
‘ passett Aveiiue

Patch Crew: Pollack Avenue, River Rd., Waterworks Rd.,
Baseline, Schillinger, Heppler, Petersburg,
Plainview, Commercial Court and St. Joe Avenue

Trash Crew: Cypress-Dale, Lynn Rd., and the Garage

Rock Hauling: Crews hauled rock to Neubling, Lutterbach,
Boonville-New Harmony, Darmstadt and 0ld State Rd.
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Rocked
Shoulders: Millersburg Rd. and Heckel Rd.

Weekly Work Report/Bridge Crew: Also submitted for the same
period was the Weekly Work Report for the Bridge Crew......report
received and filed.

- Crew built.rétainingjgélléfon'Trapp.anépgaseliheAﬁbads“
- Built drop boxes on Bergdolt and Oak Hill Roads

- Replaced culverts on Folz Rd.

- Hauled rock to Montgomery Rd. for pothole

- Put up guard rail on Boonville-New Harmony Rd.,
grouted existing columns and welded steel posts

-~ Cleaned drains and cut bleeders on St. Joe Avenue
Weekly Absentee Reports: Also submitted for the same period were

the Weekly Absentee Reports for Employees at the County Garage
and the Bridge Crew.........reports received and filed.

The Chair entertained questions of Mr. Muensterman. There were
none.

Chuckhole Program: Commissioner Willner queried Mr. Muensterman
concerning the County's chuckhole program.

Mr. Muensterman said they're working every day. He had two crews
out (except today -- he had to send out a brush crew today).

Mr. Willner asked if we're going to make it before the snow
flies?

Mr. Muensterman said, "Oh, yes; but is there anyway I can get a
drawing or something -~ so we'll know where to rock on tha
Mahrenholz Extension?

Commissioner Willner said Mr. Hartman should probably run the
Surveyor out there for a few minutes. Or, a good tape would do
the same thing.

RE: COUNTY ENGINEER - DAN HARTMAN

-‘Status of Paving Contracts: Mr. Hartman reported that J. H. as
of Rudolph & Co. completed their contractal work with the County
last week. The Rogers Group, Inc. worked on the Bixler Rd.
project. They placed 268 tons of HAC surface and 494 tons of HAC
base.

Motz Rd. Project: With regard to the Motz Road project, the
Surveyor 1s doing all the cross sections out there for us and as
of this coming Wednesday, November 9th, we will have completed
all the cross sections and all the cicss section plotting. After
these are in our records we can proceed with the engineering of
that road.

woods Road: When the Surveyor is finished with surveying of Motz
Rd., he is assuming that the Surveyor will then get on Woods Road
SO we can re-cross section Woods Road in order to get an accurate
count of dirt £ill for that project. The Commissioners will
recall that this is still up in the air.
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Claim/Veach, Nicholson, Griggs & Associates: Mr. Hartman
submitted a claim in the amount of $1,674.90. The claim
indicates the contract is now 35% complete. This is in
connection with the Green River Rd. South project. This is for
road design and plans (including R/W Plans) per Appendix "D:,
Paragraph 2 of the contract. '

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the claim was approved for payment. So ordered.

RE: CONSULTANT AGREEMENT WITH BERNARDIN, LOCHMUELLER &
ASSOCIATES, INC. RE BOONVILLE-NEW HARMONY RD. FROM GREEN
RIVER RD. TO I-164

Mr. Hartman reported that he has inspected the Consultant
Agreement with Bernardin, Lochmueller & Associates, Inc. re
Boonville-New Harmony Rd. from Green River Rd. to I-164, which
the Commissioners referred to him last week. The State has
inspected it and approved the language and given it to us for our
review. The roadway portion of that project is estimated to cost
$892,631.35 and the bridge portion will be about $171,977.00 or a
total estimated cost of $1,064,608.35.

Commissioner Willner said the Consultant Agreement has been
ratified by the Indiana Department of Highways, W. J. Ritman,
Chief, Division of Local Assistance. Are there any questions of
Mr. Hartman? )

Mrs. Cox asked to view the agreement and Mr. Willner handed same
to her.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the agreement was approved and signed. So ordered.

(Note: Two copies of agreement, together with related
documents, given to Commissioners Office for
execution by the Consultant prior to forwarding to
the IDOH for further processing.)

Mr., Hartman asked if it was ever mentioned that the cost of the
Bernardin-Lochmueller contract is $144,074.00.

Mrs. Cox asked if this is below the Engineer's estimate?

Mr. Hartman said that it is. This is Bernardin-Lochmueller's
cost.

RE: NOTICE TO BIDDERS RE HANDGUNS FOR SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

Commissioner Willner requested that the record show that a Notice
to Bidders re handguns for the Sheriff's Department appeared in
the Evansville Courier and The Press on October 14 and October
21, 1988 and he is returning same to the Secretary for the
Auditor's files.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF STREETS IN GREEN RIVER ESTATES SECTION C-2

Mr. Hartman said Mr. Richard Gwinn will submit the acceptance
letter with regard to the streets in Green River Estates Section
C-2., Mr. Gwinn said he has a letter from Mr. Phil Heston
requesting acceptance of the following streets in the subject
subdivision:

Talbot Road 575 L.F. (50 £t. R/W)
Newbury Road 561 L.F. (50 ft. R/W)
Allsop Place 276 L.F. (40 ft. R/W)
Penfold Street 318 L.F. (40 £ft. R/W)
Wethersfield Drive 455 L.F. (50 ft. R/W)
Total 2,185 L.F. (0.42 mi.)
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The street improvements were constructed of 6" concrete with
curbs, in accordance with approved plans. It is his
recommendation that these streets be accepted subject to specific
exceptions as noted by Bill Jeffers, Chief Deputy Surveyor, as
follows:

1) Clean-up by developer to continue as the subdivision
develops.

2) Adjust and seal storm drain catch basins.

3) Undisclosed defects in the storm sewer pipe to be
fixed by developer.

4) Provide as-built drawings, including the
drainage plans.

Mr. Gwinn said Mr. Heston is here today and has a letter to this
effect. He is acknowledging these things. He'd like for Mr.
Heston to come up and present same and give his assurance to the
Board concerning this.

Mr. Heston said the following walked through the entire
subdivision this past Thursday: Cletus Muensterman, Jack
Waldroup, Dick Gwinn, Bill Jeffers, Mike Fitzsimmons (his
engineer) and himself. It was brought to his attention at that
time that some of the catch basins in the street drains need to
be sealed -- a couple of them were leaking. He readily agreed
that this should be and would be done this week. We got a real
rude awakening on Thursday with all the rain, etc., but he was in
the subdivision about 6:45 a.m. and three other times throughout
the day and the drainage was working well. The as-built plans,
he is embarrassed to say, are not with us today. But after they
walked through the subdivision on Thursday there needed to be
some particular elevation shots made of the streets that couldn't
be done on Friday -- but he should have those in the proper hands
by the end of this week. He will be more than happy to come back
next week with these two things done, but the purpose of his
being here (subject to the Commissioners' approval) is because
his irrevocable Letter of Credit expires on November l4th. He
believe he told the Board last week that it was November 13th --
but the correct date is November 1l4th. Therefore, this is the
reason he is asking for Board's consideration in accepting these
plans insofar as the streets and drainage are concerned. He has
included his check at 57 cents per lineal foot for the drainage.

Commissioner Willner entertained questions of Mr. Heston. There
being none, he entertained a motion for approval subject to the
four items that Mr. Heston said he will continue to do. He said
he is sure Mr. Heston will be back before the Board with regard
to the rest of the subdivision -- and if his word is not good
now, the Board will hold him accountable at a later date.

Mr. Heston said he will acknowledge to the Board in writing when
each of these items has been done.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the request for acceptance of streets in Green River
Estates C-2 for County maintenance was approved subject to the
four items addressed by the County Engineer and the County
Surveyor. Approval is based upon the developer's pledge and his
letter agreeing to those terms. So ordered.

Commissioner Willner said Mr. Heston's check for drainage
maintenance cannot be accepted until the Drainage Board meets,
which will be the last Monday in November (November 28th). Mr.
Heston said he will leave the check and drainage plan with Mr.
Hartman.
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RE: COUNTY ATTORNEY - DAVID MILLER

Commissioner Willner asked whether Attorney Miller intends to
comment on the Executive Session held prior to the Commissioners
Meeting. '

Attorney Miller said he does not, unless there are questions.

Settlement Agreement/Mary Evans vs. Vanderburgh County Sheriff &
Others: Attorney Miller reported that we have entered into a
Settlement Agreement in the case of Mary Evans vs. the
Vanderburgh County Sheriff and Others. The agreement is that the
settlement amount will not be publicized by either party and Mary
Evans will remain available for the trial of JoAnn Reed, which is
set in February of next year. That settlement agreement was
reached earlier today after a pre-trial conference leading up to
this scheduled trial (which was scheduled in December). Given
the expense of going through the trial and the exposure that the
County has in any lawsuit, he believes the settlement authorized
by the Board of Commissioners was a very good one.

RE: READING OF BIDS ON HANDGUNS FOR SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

Attorney Miller said the Sheriff is present and has reviewed the
bids with him. However, he understands he is going to ask for a
little time to review them in depth. The opening of the bids
resulted in the following findings:

Tom's Gun Shop —-- Failed to submit bid bond with the bid.
Therefore, the bid must be rejected. However, the bid
amounts were $45,760.00 for 110 Smith & Wesson's (5906) plus
$20.00 each for each of 110 additional clips. The unit
price of the Smith & Wesson's in this bid was $396.00.

Tom's Gun Shop also bid on a Beretta 92F, 110 units total
cost $43,664.50. That computes to a unit price of $374.95.
They would charge an additional $22.00 each for 110 extra
clips or magazines. For your future reference, as I review
these bids, I am told by the Sheriff that each one of the
unit bids on a gun should include two (2) clips or magazines.
The bid requirement required three (3) total clips. I think
one of the bidders misunderstood and bid the gun unit price
including two (2) clips and then bid three (3) more clips.
When I get to that bid I will reduce it by that amount.

Again, the Tom's Gun Shop bid has to be disallowed because
there is no bid bond.

Bacon Creek Gun Shop: No bid submitted. However, vendor
asked to be kept on the bid list.

LAWCO Police & Fire: No bid submitted. However, vendor
asked to be kept on the bid list.

Kiesler Supply Company: 110 Beretta M92F military guns;

unit price is $379.00. Total bid price of $41,690.00.

The bid then refers to magazines at $21.00 each vimes

330 for a grand total of $48,620.00. He believes that this
bidder is bidding two (2) too many magazines per unit. That
would be something that the Sheriff would need to check -- at
least on the Berettas.

Kiesler also bids on a Glock Model 17 or Model 19 (either
one). The unit price is $321.30 for a total bid price on the
gun itself of $35,343.00. He then bids $18.50 each for 330
magazines for a total of $41,448.00. He again believes that
this bid includes 220 magazines too many.
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Sheriff Shepard interjected, "When you buy a gun in a box, it
comes with one (1) magazines in the gun and one (1) extra in the
box. And we're asking for 110 extra clips -- and they're
misunderstanding us."

Kiesler's alternate bid is a bid for a Sig Sauer P226. Unit

;e -price is $461.93 or total price for 110 guns is $50,812.30.

‘This-bidder again bids 336 Sauer P226 magazines at. $24‘07
each for an additional amount of $7,943.10. Therefore, the
total amount of that bid is $58,755.40, but he believes there
are 220 too many magazines bid.

Attorney Miller said all of Kiesler's bids are in order in terms
of non-cullusion affidavits and bid bonds.

Gulf States Distribution, Inc.: Bid as follows. BEach of
these bids includes a total of three (3) magazines per gun.
Sig Sauer P226 at $467.00 each - Total $51,370.00
Beretta 92FP at $382.50 each - Total $42,075.00
Glock Model 17 or Model 19 at $322 50 - Total
$35,475.00.

Gulf States' bid bond is in order

Steven R. Jenkins Co.: Bid on Smith & Wesson 5906FS with
three (3) magazines included at $314.06 each for a total
bid of $34,546.60. (He says the magazines are included
because they are not excluded by the bids -- and the
guantity at the top of the page describing what is being
bid upon includes 330 magazines.

Incidentally, this is the apparent low bid.

Ray O'Herron, Inc.: Bid is in order and this bidder also
bid 330 extra magazines on two different models. The models
are as follows:
Smith & Wesson 5906FS - $309.75 each. Then he adds
$15.50 for each additional magazine -- bringing that
total bid with three (3) extra magazines to $44,302.50.
If the bid on the gun itself includes three (3) :
magazines, the Ray O'Herron bid becomes the low bid.
If it includes only the magazines in the box, then
you must add $15.50 times 110 plus $309.75 times 110.
That brings you to $41,892.50, he believes.

Ray O'Herron also bids on a Smith & Wesson 5904FS (Blue)
model. The unit price on the gun is $305.00. He then adds
$15.50 for each additional magazine times three (3) magazines
and his total bid on that grouping is $38,665.00. You
decrease that bid by 220 extra magazines and it comes down

to $35,255.00.

The foregoihg is the extent of the bidding.

The Chair entertained a motion to refer the bids to the
Purchasing Department and the Sheriff's Department for their
expertise and recommendation. -

Sheriff Shepard said they'd like to come back next week and make
their recommendation, because this is going to take some sorting
out on these weapons and they'd like action deferred for one
week.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the bids were referred to Purchasing and the Sheriff for
evaluation for one (1) week period and a recommendation is to be

made at the Commissioners Meeting next week. So ordered.
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RE: ACCEPTANCE OF CHECK - ALEXANDER AMBULANCE LAWSUIT

Attorney Miller presented a check in the amount of $25.00 from
Audrey Chatman with regard to the Alexander Ambulance lawsuit
collection.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the check was accepted, endorsed, and given to the ST
secretary for deposit into the County General Fund. So ordered.

RE: MONTHLY REPORT - COUNTY CLERK

Commissioner Wlllner submltted the monthly report from the County
Clerk for period ending October 31, 1988........report received
and filed.

RE: COUNTY TREASURER -~ INTEREST REPORT

Also submitted was the Treasurer's Interest Report effective
November 4, 1988........report received and filed.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF CHECK FROM STATE AUDITOR

Commissioner Willner also submitted a check from the State .
Auditor (from IDOH) in the amount of $6,400.00 for reimbursement

in connection with the Bridge Reinspection Program Phase II --

1987.

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the check was accepted, endorsed, and given to the
secretary for deposit into Account 203-352. So ordered.

RE: ACCEPTANCE OF CHECK FROM WELBAC CABLE T-V I

Also submitted was a check in the amount of $205.91 from Welbac
Cable T-V for franchise fees for period of July - September, 1988
(3rd Quarter).

Upon motion made by Commissioner Cox and seconded by Commissioner
Willner, the check was accepted, endorsed, and given to the
secreétary for deposit into the County General Fund. So ordered.

RE: CLOSING OF COUNTY OFFICES .

Commissioner Willner announced that all County offices will be
closed on Tuesday, November 8, 1988, for the General Election.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Mr. Willner entertained matters of 0ld Business to come before
the Board.

Elevator/Restrooms/Auditorium: Commissioner Cox reported that
she has a report.

Commissioner Willner said he also has a copy of the report. He
talked to Mr. Lehman, who said he is not prepared to make a
recommendation with regard to the elevators/restrooms, etc., at
Vanderburgh Auditorium.

Westwood Sub/Dumping Problem -- Commissioner Cox said her report
related to the Westwood Subdivision dumping problems. According
to a report from Roger Lehman, the lot on Crescent Court has been
taken care of. She assumes that matter has been completely
resolved -- and that is great.

Commissioner Willner agreed.
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RE: SCHEDULED MEETINGS
Wed. Nov. 9 2:30 p.m. County Council Mtg.
Thurs. Nov. 10 1:30 p.m. EUTS Technical Advisory

_ - Committee .
Thurs. Nov. 10. 4:15 p.m. EUTS Policy Committee

RE: CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

Arc Construction, Inc. -- Mr. Willner presented Certificate of
Insurance for Arc Construction, Inc.

Mrs. Cox asked if this is Performance Bond for the air
conditioning contract at the Auditorium? Mr. Willner said it
evidently is- it says work at the Auditorium.

RE: CLAIMS

There are no further claims to be considered by the Board.

RE: EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Knight Township Assessor (Appointments)

James S. Barrett Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 10/31/88

Carl M. Mitchell Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 11/2/88

Scott Township Assessor (Appointments)

Harley Seybold, Sr. Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88
Ann Stokes Jones Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88
Scott Township Assessor (Réleases)

Harley Seybold, Sr. Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88
Ann Stokes Jones Deputy $35.00/Day Eff: 10/10/88

(To change account numbers from 100 account to the 249
account)

There being no further business to come before the Board,
Commissioner Willner said he wishes all candidates good luck on
General Election today. He knows it's been a long, hard campaign
-- even for him, and he is not running. He hopes the fruits of
their labor pay off -- and he'll see everyone next Monday. With
no further comments, the meeting was adjourned at 4:15 p.m.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS COUNTY AUDITOR COUNTY ATTORNEY
R. J. Borries Sam Humphrey ToviloT. miliczz
(Absent)
R. L. Willner
S. J. Cox
COUNTY HIGHWAY COUNTY ENGINEER SHERIFF
C. Muensterman Dan Hartman C. Shepard

Richard Gwinn
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OTHER

Joe O'Daniel p
Phil Heston

Jerry -Riney

Carol McClintock

Susan Jeffries/Purchasing Dept.
Others (Unidentified) :

News Media

SECRETARY: Joanne A. Matthews

Richard J. Borries, President

ner, V1cé President
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MINUTES
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MEETING
NOVEMBER 14, 1988

The Vander§urgh County Board of Commissioners met in session at
2:30 p.m. in the Commissioners Hearing Room, with President Rick
Borries presiding.

RE: APPROVAL OF MINUTES

President Borries entertained a motion for approval of minutes of
the Commissioners Meeting held on October 31, 1988.

Motion so moved by Commissioner Willner, seconded by Commissioner
Cox. So ordered.

Commissioner Cox moved that the minutes of the County
Commissioners Meeting of November 7, 1988, be approved as
engrossed by the County Auditor and dispense with the reading.
Motion seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

RE: CONTRACT TO BE LET ON HANDGUNS FOR SHERIFF

President Borries said, "We have a contract that has been
advertised and now comes time to award as a result of the
Sheriffs' recommendation on handguns for the Vanderburgh County
Sheriffs' Department.”

Mr. Dorsey, from the Purchasing Department said, "We have
reviewed the bids that were submitted and the low bid was
submitted by Steve Jenkins Company at an estimated bid price of
$34,546.60, it was a unit price of $314.06 for the 110 Smith &
Wesson 5906. The Sheriffs' Department has reviewed the bid and
everything appears to be in order and would recommend that the
bid be awarded to the low bidder, Steve Jenkins Company."

President Borries asked if there were any questions of Mr.
Dorsey?

Commissioner Cox asked, "Mr. Dorsey, just for clarification,
there was some discussion when the bids were opened and read
concerning the furnishing of an extra clip and at one point it
was thought that maybe the bids included three (3) additional
clips. Did you find any satisfaction in going through the bids
or could you made a statement concerning that, were they all
correct or was there some additional.......?"

Mr. Dorsey responded, "I think there was some initial confusion
with the way some of the bids were submitted as to whether or not
they were including one (1) clip and then three (3) additional
and we went back through those bids, a buyer in my office went
back and reviewed those and I believe talked with some of the
firms to try to get a clarification of what their bid actually
included and after having done that the Smith & Wesson weapons
that were bid included three (3) magazines and the intent of the
Sheriffs' Department was to include three (3) magazines with the
bids, since they were low bid, everything for that bid was in
order and that is what we recommend unless there had been some
problem with it."
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Commissioner Cox asked, "Then this $314.06 per unit does
include.cce..?"

Mr. Dorsey said it includes three (3) magazines per each weapon.

President Borries entertained a motion based on Mr. Dorsey's

‘recommendation and at the same time asked Mr. Fravel if they B

concur. - -

Mr. Fravel said they concur with what we have here and it does
include a total of three (3) magazines for each weapon.

Commissioner Willner moved that they award the bid to Steve
Jenkins Company in the amount of $34,546.60. Seconded by
Commissioner Cox. So ordered.

RE: CONTRACT TO BE AWARDED FOR ARCHITECTURAL & ENGINEERING
DESIGN PLANS FOR THE VANDERBURGH COUNTY AUDITORIUM

President Borries said Mr. Roger Lehman is here regarding a
contract to be awarded for Architectrual & Engineering Design
Plans and Specifications for Restroom Improvements and Elevator
Installation for the Vanderburgh Auditorium.

Mr. Lehman said, "I have provided the Commissioners with a copy
of my report and the cost involved and based on that we would
recommend that we utilize the firm with the lowest cost which
would be W.S.C. Associates in the amount of $11,700."

President Borries asked if there was any discussion on this bid?

Commissioner Willner asked, "Wasn't there three (3) altogether,
what were the other two (2)2"

Mr. Lehman said Knapp, Given, Veazy and Shoulders was next low
bid with $12,250. and Kramer Group with a bid of $14,000.

President Borries said, "Now on some of the information you
provided me it says, 'Not to exceed' so I would assume that would
be the same on W.S.C. Associates, is that correct?”

Mr. Lehman responded in the affirmative.
President Borries entertained a motion to award this bid.

Commissioner Cox moved the Architectrual & Engineering Design
Plans and Specifications for Restroom Improvements & Elevator
Installation at Vanderburgh Auditorium be awarded to W.S.C.
Associates in the total amount not to exceed $11,700.

Motion seconded by President Borries. So ordered.

Mr. Lehman said, "While we are on the Auditorium, at some point
and time if the Commissioners desire, I would be glad to work on
obtaining some proposals on new equipment and some of the other
things that I was given a letter that have some other things on
there that was in the old portion of things that we are not
addressing in the contract that need to be addressed, and I am
sure there will be some cost in those, and if the Board so
desires I will be glad to help you with that."

President Borries responded, "I would like to see you do that, I
would like to see, pending whatever decision and at this time
been only an executive session that was held and no decision was
given at that time concerning the maintenance contract that had
been in effect at the Auditorium, but I would appreciate it if
you would begin to draw together some specs and your thoughts
regarding some items that need to be addressed in that particular
situation.”



wil

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS Page 3
November 14, 1988 ‘

Mr. Lehman said, "There may be some items that may cause damage
to the new section.”

Mr. Clements from W.S.C. Associates said, "I would like to have
notice of the letter I sent to all three (3) of you, I did send
it to Jim Lindenschmidt and I do think that somebody does need
to, rather quickly, before the weather gets too bad, start
considering at least a few of those items, however you are
planning on handling it, but I do think you should look into it
so we don't lose any equipment.”

President Borries said, "Well, certainly as the Consulting
Engineer on the air conditioning portion, I would appreciate your
thoughts and we, at least I have received a copy of that letter
addressed to Jim Lindenschmidt and so I think at this point we
would want to pull together specific items here to give to Mr.
Dorsey, because he will be the one to handle any specs and any
bids that would be advertised on the new maintenance agreement."

RE: BOB HAMILTON...REQUEST FOR LEASE EXTENSION

President Borries said Mr. Hamilton is here regarding a request
for lease extension.

Attorney John asked if they could skip over this until later so
he can check on it

RE: TOM DORSEY...CITY PERSONNEL EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

President Borries said Mr. Dorsey is here regarding a Purchase of
Work Stations and also Specifications to be approved for Liquid
Asphalt AE-~150, Guard Rails, Posts, End Sections, Aluminum Pipe
and also for Copy Machines.

Work Stations: Mr. Dorsey said, "There have been a few requests
from the Township Assessors concerning the purchase of additional
work stations for the reassessment. If you will recall some time
back there was a bid awarded to Manitron for the purchase of a
number of work stations and other computer equipment to get the
reassessment started and it is my understanding that the
assessors are requesting additional work stations.”

Mr. Dorsey continued, "I talked with David Miller about this
previously as far as how we should handle this, the purchases
will exceed the $10,000 1limit that the County Commissioners have
for bidding purposes, if the items were being sold at the same
price that they were originally bid, my feeling was that we could
purchase off of that bid, however, each of the work stations has
gone up by approximately $600.00 so the price is different and
what I am doing at this point is bringing that to the
Commissioners and requesting your guidance on whether this is an
item that we could go out for bid since Manitron is not a sole
vendor of the hardware itself, or if it is something that we
should purchase from them since they are the ones that originally
had the bid and they are also the ones that have the software for
that system. The states guidelines are that we bid anything in
excess of $25,000 in a class of items and to my knowledge there
is no additional computer equipment that is being purchased s¢ we
are looking at a purchase of about $20,000. and it is in between
the Commissioners guidelines of $10,000. and the states $25,000.

Commissioner Cox asked Mr. Dorsey if he knew the number of work
stations that are involved?

Mr. Dorsey said, I have not received all of the requests, but my
understanding is that Knight Township is seeking an additional
work station, Center Township is seeking an additional work
station, and Pigeon Township is seeking an additional work
station and there is also some additional equipment, I think
there is a tape back-up unit and that kind of thing."
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President Borries said, "Then we are not clear on how many at
this time, is that correct?"

Mr. Dorsey said, "To the best of my knowledge it is three (3)
and that 'is what brought—it tormz_gttention, because at that
point it exceeds.thezsgo,ﬁag. N

President Borrles said, We11, I thlnk you have brought it to our
attention and although I would be speaking individually, I think
we would just go ahead and proceed at this point and advertise
those and end any confusion that might occur.”

Commissioner Cox said, "I agree."
Commissioner Willner said it was alright with him also.

Commissioner Willner asked, "If we get a different company from
Manitron, will they work just as well with the rest of the
equipment?"”

Mr. Dorsey responded, "The equipment would almost have to be the
Unisys, in this case there would be twenty five (25) 8186
processors and my understanding is that the software only runs on
that system, so it has to be the Unisys equipment, but Unisys
markets directly and they also market through other dealers such
as Manitron, so Manitron is not a sole vendor and it is
conceivable that someone could have a better price for exactely
the same equipment.”

President Borries asked, "Are there more vendors of this Unisys
than one (1), do you think?"

Mr. Dorsey responded, "Well, there defintely are, Unisys will
sell directly and we already know that Unisys price is higher
than Manitron, because we will not buy in volume from Unisys at
the same rate Manitron will but there are other vendors that also
sell Unisys equipment that could be less expensive."

Commissioner Cox asked, "And you said you have talked to the
Manitron Company and they no longer can furnish the work station
at the contract price and it would be an additional probably
$600., did I understand you corrctly?"

Mr. Dorsey said, "I talked to one of their representatives this
afternoon before the meetlng and their quote on this equipment
for one (1) work station is $5,835. and the original bid was
$5,225. so you are talking a little over $600. for each work
station."

Commissioner Cox said, "So we are talking basically $1,800. if
there are three (3) involved, I would say we advertise."

Mr. Dorsey said, "Without attempting to complicate this too
much, at least one (1) of the assessors, I believe, has accepted
equipment, they have already ordered and the work station is
already there and all of them, I believe, feel a need to keep the
assessment going as quickly as possible. I don't understand why
these weren't originally in the initial bid, but their feeling is
that they need the additional work stations's in order to keep
the assessment going at a good rate."

President Borries asked, "Did we bid the originals?"

Mr. Dorsey answered, "Yes, the original was bid and the original
bid was awarded to Manitron. If the pricing was the same I would
see no problem because we would be awardlng off of that bid, but
the price is different.”

il
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Commissioner Cox moved that Mr. Dorsey prepare the specs and
advertise for bids.

Motion seconded by Commissioner Willner. So ordered.

Mr. Dorsey said, "On these other items-there are three (3) sets

of specifications and I will-leave a copy for each of you and the
first is:

Guard Rails, Posts, End Sections and Aluminum Pipe : Mr. Dorsey
sald, "This is one (l) bid and those specifications are
basically the same as they were previously, it is a contract that
we award on an annual basis and at this point I am requesting
approval of specifications and authorization to begin the
advertisment process.”

Liguid Asphalt AE-150: Mr. Dorsey said, "This is the same
thing, it is also an annual bid and the specifications are the
same as they are each year."

Commissioner Willner moved that they give Mr. Dorsey the approval
to advertise.

Motion seconded by Commissioner Cox. §So ordered.

Copy Machines: Mr Dorsey said, "The third item is Copy Machines
and again I am regquesting approval to advertise, these are
machines requested by Superior Court and it is an area where we
are going to be on the $25,000. annual limit for state
purchases.”

Mr. Dorsey continued, "Copiers purchased previously by other
county departments did not require a bid, but because we are
going beyond that $25,000. annual limit, these would, I talked
with Superior Court and I believe they have approved the
specifications.

Commissioner Willner so moved, seconded by Commissioner Cox. So
ordered.

RE: BOB HAMILTON...LEASE EXTENSION

Mr John said, " They are probably ready by now, but I will make
a couple of comments first, it is regarding the lease extension.
In 1988 the State Legislature made some minor changes in the
Authority of the Commissioners to lease property and certain
procedures which must be followed and this is the first time this
matter has come up, I have discussed it with Mr. Barber and we
are going to look at it this week to make sure that if and when
an agreement is entered into with the Hamilton's regarding this
property that it is done in the proper manner and not in an
illegal or improper manner."

Mr. John continued, "Now they can make their presentation but I
would request that I be allowed a week to discuss it with Mr.
Hamilton."

President Borries asked, "Is this regarding the motion from last
week, I don't believe it is?"

Mr. John said, "I am not familiar with the motion."

Commissioner Willner said, "It was just to renew his five (5)
year option on the lease."

Mr. John said, "If it is an existing agreement it would not be
affected by this legislation.”
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Mr. "Steve Barber said, "I represent the Bob Hamilton Charitable
Golf Foundation for Mr. Robert Hamilton who is present here
today, and he has asked me to read the letter (given to
Commissioners). Letter is as follows:

Dear Members of the Board:

" Please be advised that I.represent Robert T. égﬁ%§f§§g§ﬁﬁjthé,Bbb'*f;”

- Hamilton Charitable Golf Foundation, Inc.

As you know the Board of Commissioners and my clients have
entered into an agreement dated September 7, 1971, with reference
to the lease of the Hamilton Golf Course.

My client is desirous in extending the lease for an additional
seven (7) five (5) year periods. My client believes this will be
beneficial to all parties concerned and the extension would be
the best interest of all the parties.

Mr. Barber said, "Accordingly, I have drafted a proposed
amendment which I have handed to you which I am enclosing with
this letter."”

The letter continues:

If this proposal is satisfactory to you, would you please see
that it is placed on your agenda and appropriate action is taken
to approve the same.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Mr. Barber said, "The amendment is pretty self explanitory and
there is only one (1) provision and it just adds on some
extension periods from the previous termination on May 1, 2009
which would extend it to May 1, 2044."

Mr. Hamilton said, "Thank you very much, I will only take a
minute of your time to tell you my viewpoint on this. I started
out with the idea of making Evansville have the finest Municipal
Golf Facility in Indiana, that was my only idea of it and you
will find out the way it is laid out we have the only thirty six
(36) hole golf course in the State of Indiana, two putting
greens, a practice range, anything that any high class course in
the United States has got, we have, that is exactely the way it
is and now all I'm asking for is a little time to complete what I
have started to do. If you can see your way to extend this lease
for me, I would sure take it as a favor and would assure you that
you will never regret it."

Mr. Hamilton continued, "And on your other proposition, I want
to see that too, I am not a lawyer and I am not that intellegent
a man but, I can understand figures. Anybody can come in and
offer you a lot more money that doesn't put up a penny, do I get
my money back if somebody can bid on it in 2009."

Mr. John said, "I do not know what the original lease says, I
just want to make sure that if and when this happens that it is
done in the proper manner ana i will cooperate in any way
possible to make sure that the things are not only by
satisfaction but in a legal manner."

Mr. Hamilton asked, "In other words, if I put up millions of
dollars in it, which I have, I don't think somebody could come in
and bid twice as much as I am paying and you will find out over
the period of the time of it the County has already made $70,000.
when they weren't ever making a penny off of it, but it would be
very unfair for somebody to come in and say 'Give me my money
back', fine, then they could bid all they want to bid, but I
would sure like to have that straightened out in my own ming,
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President Borries asked if there were any questions of Mr.
Hamilton.

Commissioner Willner said. "I guess if I was the only one
sitting on the Board September 7, 1971, maybe it is time I 1leave,
I have been here too long, but I had some reservations at the
time that we entered into this lease, but since then I guess
that.....I read where most of the golf courses across the country
lose money for their municipality and this one is certainly
making us some money so I really have no problems with it and
would be glad to extend the lease. I think that golf course will
always be Hamiltons Golf Course as long as there is one and just
recently he started a new program bettering the course, he has
done a parking lot that is paved, he is building a new cover for
his golf carts, he has worked on the greens and the fairways and
always did have the best greens, I guess, so I have no problem
with it but I do think we should do it in the legal manner so we
will have to leave that up to the attorney's."

Commissioner Cox said only a true golfer could make all those
comments about the golf course.

Commissioner Cox said, "I too think you have done a fine job out
there and I do recall that soon after I come on this Commission
in 1981 that there was a possibility of you wanting to give it
back to the County at that time and I don't think we wanted to
take it back and you are to be commended for upgrading the
facility and making it a first class act and I can understand
that you need protection and also the amount of investment that
you have put into the facility that that is protected and I have
no problem with that at all, Mr. Hamilton."

President Borries said, "If we can get this within a week then
we will try to make contact with you or call our office and we
appreciate you coming down today and we will work with the
attorneys to resolve any differences that they see."

RE: USI AND STATE ROAD INTERCHANGE STUDY

President Borries said Darrell Veach of Veach, Nicholson & Griggs
is with us now and will present his findings and report on the
USI and State Road 62 Interchange Study.

Mr. Veach said, "Thank you Commissioners, we have with us today
six (6) copies of the finished design conceptual design studies
that have been made and we also have both the studies in the
color coded phase construction to a traffic flow. These studies
are the end result of many attempts to solve the existing and
future problems there and we finally came up with four (4)
conceptual design phases that have been made in conformanace with
the American Association of State Highway Transportation
Officials design standards which the Indiana Department of
Highways subscribes to."

Mr. Veach continued, "All of the questions such as costs, the
different positive and negative aspects and degree to which you
would want to treat the problems of that intersection or
deteinate it in the report, if it is your desire, I would put the
studies on the easel and give you an overview of each at this
time and then if it is also your desire I can move these in the
hall should anyone have any detail questions which are pertaining
to the report because I could talk all day on the information
that went into these studies. On the traffic projections, we
have met with Dr. Rice at the University of Southern Indiana and
also had an input from the Indiana Department of Highways on what
they were going to implement to solve the problem. I am at your
disposal on how you want to proceed."”




The answers were in the affirmative.
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President Borries asked, "What is the feeling of the
Commissioners, do you want to get an overview of his four (4)
options and then if you have questions, fine, obviously if you
study your report, but as Mr. Veach has pointed out then he would
be available for maybe immediate questions, if they would have
"any, perhaps outside, thenhproceed with our meetlng. Is- that
zi*ht with thls Board?"~¥' B — o

President Borries then asked Mr. Veach, "If you would like to
summarize what you have found?"

Mr. Veach said, "This is plan 'A' (on maps given to
Commissioners) the first being the conventional concept and
Diamond interchange with a four (4) lane structure over State
Road 62 at the existing entrance to the USI campus. This plan
was the least expensive in terms of construction costs but
required buying up a number of houses and possibly part of a
church property for right-of-way requirements and other
additional costs is the temporary entrance to the USI......"

Commissioner Cox excused herself for interrupting but asked what
page is he on?"

Mr. Veach continued, "Another additional cost, as I mentioned,
would be a temporary entrance to USI campus during construction
of this particular concept, in addition, when the projected
twenty (20) year traffic is attained, traffic lights would have
to be installed at the ramp intersections on Eichoff Road. The
intersection where the south ramp meets Eichoff could cause
unwanted sight and sound problems for the University because of
future left turn movement at the intersection.”

Mr. Veach said, "Concept 'B'...Crossing of State Road 62 is
located just east of USI's parking lot, this required twin
structures under State Road 62 with some realignment of the
University facilities and a deep cut on the North side of State
Road 62. An overpass for this location was rejected because of
the elevation differential of the parking lot height required to
overpass State Road 62. Loops were designed at the Northwest and
Southeast corners to relieve the high volume left turn lanes,
while the construction costs of this plan is higher than plan ‘A’
only one (1) house which is in poor condition and vacant at this
point and time would be purchased and no traffic signals would be
required for this design. Turning truck traffic would be removed
from USI's view and sound.”

Mr. Veach continued, "Now, Dr. Rice was quite emphatic that he
would appreciate it very much if we could keep the truck traffic
and the noise away from the campus itself and preserve the
i